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Dear Fellow Shareholders

Global Indemnity pic is an opportunistic niche provider

of excess and surplus lines insurance and reinsurance

with multi-distribution field operations spanning the

United States and Bermuda The company provides

underwriting claims and actuarial support to its field

operations from its U.S headquarters in Philadelphia

and from Cavan Ireland Given Global Indemnitys

$346 million in 2010 premiums written and net loss

reserves of $632 million against shareholders equity of

$929 million at year-end the company is extraordinarily

well capitalized and primed for growth when market

conditions warrant

Over the course of calendar year 2010 Global

Indemnity generated net income to common share

holders of $90 million excluding the cost of funding

its profitability initiative Shareholders equity and

book value
grew by 11.3% in the face of the painfully

prolonged
soft

property
and casualty market In fact

over the last seven years rhe company has increased

shareholders equity and book value by 209% on

cumulative basis equivalent to an
average

annual

compounded growth rate of about 17% while

adhering to disciplined pricing strict underwriting

standaids fair claims pracrices and conservative

investmenr strategy

Global Indemnity allowed domestic insurance

premiums to decline by 8% in 2010 The decline was

primarily attributable to inadequate rates and rerms in

the binding authority business as well as in wholesale

brokerage professional lines The companys offshore

reinsurance writings however increased by 37%

during the
year

which more than offset the premium

decline in the domestic insurance business Further

the reinsurance business ran at respectable accident

year combined ratio of 89.8% even after the impact of

the 2010 Chilean and New Zealand earthquakes the

Perth Australia rainstorms and the extensive flooding

in Queensland Australia late in the
year

As previously reported and noted in the late fourth

quarter of 2010 Global Indemnity implemented

profitability initiative to improve its competitive

position The one-time after-tax charge of $5 million

to fund this initiative is anticipated to result in

$9 million or $0.29 per share of increased after-tax

earnings in 2011 and subsequent years
Also in 2010

the companys pretax earnings were enhanced by the

release of $54 million in redundant loss reserves which

were primarily the result of favorable developments in

the companys casualty product lines

From .the 2010 accident year perspective Global

Indemnitys investment portfolio continued to be

the companys most significant driver of earnings

and growth in book value During the
year

Global

Indemnity repositioned the investment portfolio

somewhat by frirther shortening the duration of fixed

income investments to 2.6 years increasing floating

rate corporate
loans to $204 million or approximately

12% of the investment portfolio and increasing

common equities to $145 million or approximately

8.5% of the investment portfolio As result of the

portfolio repositioning the company harvested $17.3

million in fixed income gains as well as $9.1 million

in gains from common equities

well-established position within the industry and

in the markets it serves growing international

presence an energized workforce led by tested and

experienced management team strong capital base

and uncommon flexibility in choosing where to best

deploy resources With these and other assets in place

Global Indemnity looks to 2011 and beyond confident

that it is prepared to meet any challenge and ready to

seize any opportunity

Saul Fox

Chairman

Global Indemnity plc

4%
Larry Frakes

President Chief Executive Officer

Global Indemnity plc
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Operating Data Year Ended December31

$652965 $563112 $378700 $340999

560535 490535 309080 290995

90430 98296 15238 64308

Net Income/Loss 99418 98917 141560 75437 84903

Operating lncome/Loss Per Share $4.38 $4.73 $0.83 $2.48 $2.16

Net Income/Loss Per Share $4.81 $4.76 $7.74 $2.91 $2.80

GAAP Combined Ratio 87.5% 88.3% 117.1% 96.0% 86.6%

Weighted Average Shares Millions 23 20.7 20.8 18.3 25.9 30.3

Operating income/loss non-GAAP measure is equal to net income/boss excluding after-tax net realized investment gains losses

less impairments of goodwill and after-tax impairments of intangible assets less after tax gain and one-time charges from discontinued

operations less any after tax extraordinary gains or losses Operating income is not substitute for net income determined in accordance

with GAAP and investors should not place undue reliance on this measure

Fully diluted

Restated to reflect for stock exchange effective July 2010 upon completion of the companys redomestication to Ireland
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Shareholders Equity Dollars in millions
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Book value increased l.60o in 2010 predominantly

due to net income of $8s in 2010 and unrealized

investment gains of $8.7M afrei tax in 2010

Book value increase in 2009 includes net proceeds

from the Rights Offering of approximately $91.8M

Net Income Loss Earnings Per Share Dollars in millions except per share amounts

$140

-$160

20 10s net income includes growth from GAAP

Underwriting Income after tax of $23.3M mainly driven

by favorable development related to prior accidenr
years

Impact of favorable development in 2010 was $3g.2M

after tax compared to $5.6M after tax in 2009 Net

income includes restructuring costs of $5.1M after

tax related to the Profit Enhancement Initiative

GAAP Underwriting Income is non-GAAP financial

measure that is generally viewed as an indication

of underwriting profitability It is the sum of net

premiums earned less the sum of net losses and loss

adjustment expenses acquisition costs and other

underwriting expenses

Per share amounts restated to reflect 1-for-2 stock

exchange effective July 2010 upon completion of

the companys redomestication to Ireland

The 2010 GAAP combined ratio improved by 9.3 points

reculring mainly from 14 pninr imprnvemenr from

positive emergence of prior accident
year development

2010s GAAP combined ratio includes 1.9 points
of

resrrticruring costs from the Profitability Enhancement

Initiative Excluding restructuring costs the accident

year
GAAP combined ratio was 102.1 in 2010 compared

to 99.0 in 2009 The GAAP combined ratio is non

GAAP financial measure that is generally viewed as an

indication of underwriting profitability It is the ratio

of the sum of net losses and loss adjostmcnt epcnses

aLquisirion L05t5 and other undelwririnf cpcnsc to

net premium earned

WH1JL_
2008 2009 2010

$100

$120

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

GAAP Combined Ratio



20 ANNUA REPOR

Gross Written Premium Dollars in millions
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Gross written premiums increased from $34 1.OM in

2009 ro $3s5.8M in1 2010 TIm iiilLlcase is purnailly

due ro growrh in rhe International Reinsurance

operarions and U.S Brokerage operations

Gross loss reserve leverage decreased 490o since

2006 Gross loss reserve leverage is non-GAAP

financial measure used to determine the associated

risk in estimation of loss reserves in relation to

overall book value and is equal to gross
loss

and loss adjustment expense teserves divided

by sbarebolders equity

Reinsumnce recoverable leverage gross
of collateral

decreased 640o since 2006 Reinsurance recoverable

leverage is non-GAAP financial measure used to

determine the associated risk in collectibiliry of

reinsurance recoverables in relation to overall book

value And Ic eqnal rn reincnrance rernverahlec divicUd

by shareholders equity

Reinsurance recoverables

are with financially strong

reinsurers based on ratings

by A.M Best

2006 2007 2010

Gross Loss Reserves Ratio of Gross Loss Reserve Leverage Dollars in millions

$1750

$1500

%750

$1000

$750

$500

$250

$0

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Reinsurance Recoverables Ratio to Reinsurance Recoverables Leverage Dollars in millions

$1000

$750

$500

$250

$0

Eqwty

2006 2007 2008 2009

end Lower

3o

5o
4%



2010 ANNUAL RE OR

Investment Portfolio Dollars in millions

$1717.2

PrtrYerships

Fixed

Maturities

Investment inuumc deulinud $13.6M from 2009 to 2010

mainly due to decrease of $8.6M from income related to

limited partnesship investments In 2009 the company exited

several limited pasrnership investments and realized income

upon exit Excluding limited partnership distributions

investment income declined $5.OM primarily due to lower

yields on fixed maturities when compared to the corresponding

period in 2009 The company realized $26.4M of realized

gains in 2010 and shortened the duration on its fixed income

portfolio to 2.6 years at December 31 2010 compared to

3.0 years at December 31 2009
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The fixed-income portfolio has an average credit rating

of AA and approximate duration of 2.o
years

BBB Below BBB

55 1%

5.0%

Net Investment Income Dollars in millions
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Global Indemnity plc is an international company

whose divisions provide both admitted and

non admitted specialty property and casualty

insurance in the United States and reinsurance

throughout the world This wide variety of

distributon channels coupled with diverse

and expanding product base gves the company

an uncommon degree of freedom in choosing

how and where to deploy its strong reserves of

capita for maximum profitability

New Domicile in Ireland

Broadens Global Reach

To better reflect the companys expanding strategic

vision new name Global Indemnity plcwas

selected to become the ult mate parent company

name replacng Un ted America Indemnity Ltd

addtion its corporate headquarters was

relocated from the Cayman ands to reland

where there is support ye legal and regulatory

environment modern technological infrastructure

and motivated professional workforce

Operating Units Cover

All Distribution Channels

Global Indemnity consists of five domestic

business units and one international business

unit In the U.S Diamond State Group serve

the wholesale brokerage market Wholesale

bnding products are offered through Penn

Arierica Group small business and United

Nationa Group specalty program business

J.H Ferguson focuses on wholesale dstrbution

of excess and surp us needs to retal and

who esale agenrs ano Lol ectible Insurance

Services markets specialized personal property

coverage directly to the consumer International

activities include new expanded operatons ir

Ireland and re nsurance for both internationa

and U.S insurance writers through the



tional offices in Ireland and Bermuda

rt services headquartered in the U.S

distribution networks Global ndemnity is

ied to continue to succeed in the specialty

ri reinsurance marketplace

Bermuda based Wind River Reinsurance

Company Ltd In the U.S Global Indemnity

companes hold admitted business and surplus

lines qualification in all SO states and the District

of Columba U.S companies maintain

Excellent A.M Best ratngs

Enhanced Performance

through Resource Allocation

Global Indemnity maintained an assertive cour

both domestically and abroad even as the overall

economy continued to underperform during the

past yeac Productive performance was strength

ened unprofitable operations were phased out

and niche product with new distribution was

ntroduced Global Indemnity and all its operating

units are well served by world class claims and

actuarial practice quality underwriting processe

and the use of contemporary business intelligence

to mon tor results and support busness decisons

Building on Strength

Positioned for Significant Growth

Looking ahead Global lndemn ty will remain

focused on what it knows and does best

Seeking out uncrowded overlooked and

underserved markets and creating products

to serve trierri Investing in ne best talent

available Forging long term mutually beneficial

relationships with agents and brokers And

leveraging these established strengths and its

well positioned captal base to maximize

profitability and to grow the business

GLOBAL INDEMN
Insurance Reinj urc
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U.S BROKERAGE OPERATIONS

POSITIVE

GROWTH IN

CHALLENGING

TIMES

Diamond State Group

focus on proven strengths

tested strategies

network of locations that includes

Atlanta Chicago Dallas Los Angeles

Philadelphia and San Francisco

At time when the industry as whole is

experiencing perind nf unsettled ecnnomic

transitinn and cnntinued snft market cnnditinns

Dianond State Group has maintained

steady and stable cnurse and shnwn pnsitive

premium grnwth in 2010 It remains focused

on fnding opportunities in underserved markets

offering property general and professional

liabi ity and commercal auto products

Regional Approach for

Achieving Wider Success

critcal component of Diamond States

ong term strategy regionalization brnging

its professionals and products closer to the

markets they serve This process continued to

ga traction in 2010 as the company moved

assertvely to broaden ts presence and refine

its brokerage network in its nost productive

markets While underperform ng operations

were phased out as et were redeployed

to area of proven strength in the Northeast

Southeast Midwest and on the West Coast



Brokers with established relationships in those

markets are now enjoying the benefits associated

wth regioralzed underwrting

Resolute Value Proposition

In uoh hgh transootiunol busincao as

wholesale brokerage the ability to meet the

needs of customers is an nva uab qua ity By

making service ts overriding value proposition

Diamond State has built an enviable reputation

within the industry one that helps provide

added stability in time of economic uncertainty

and 05 tions the company to quickly gain

momentum when conditions mprove

OIAM0NU TATE CU TOWER

PRE ENT UNIQUE OR UNUSU

RXPD UFE THA ARE NUT WE

5EFV DR TH INDU iRY THE FRW

HI THE RE OURCE MPLRMN

CTIVE CON AI\MEN

MRASURs THAT ED

CA NOV AND

DIAMOND STATE GROUP

Distributes
property

and casualty insurance products

through wholesale brokers and underwritten by its

own specialty underwriters

PRODUCTS

Property Primary Excess Inland Marine and

Vacant Buildings General Liability Primary

Umbrella/Excess Commercial Automobile and

Professional Liability lines for such classes as Allied

Health Educators Home Medical Equipment

Insurance Agents EO Law Enforcement

Liability Miscellaneous EO and Public Officials

DISTRIBUTION NETWORK

Professional independent wholesale brokers

NOTEWORTHY IN 2010

Continued diversification and regionalization

Redeployed staff to strengthen field resources in

Atlanta Chicago Dallas Los Angeles Philadelphia

and San Francisco Field offices now augmented

by highly experienced Property Casualty and

P1 ofessional Liability underwriting experts

FOUNDED

2007

diamondstategroup.com

Diamond State



12 PENN-AMERICA.COM

U.S BINDING OPERATIONS

AGILEO ADAPTIVE0 ASSERTIVEO

Penn-America Group Refocusing resources maximizing profits

In 2010 Penn-Amerca Group took decisive

actioo to position itse closer to the customers

and markets it serves by redeploying talent

and resources to regional bases in the South

and West regions This allows the companys

time and energy to be more productively

invested building relationships at the ocal

level and assuming larger presence in

regonal marketplaces

Entering 2011 with stronger

core competencies refined product

lines and sharper focus on

selected regional marketplaces

Maintaining Strategic Direction

By remaining true to its long term strategies

and goa Penn America has grown stronger

more disciplned and more fundamentally

sound Core competencies service support

and underwritrg ta ent have been not just

maintained but enhanced and product

lines have been refined As result the

emphasis on what Penn America does best

rapidly capitalize on new opportunities in the

general bindng market is more resolutely

focused than ever before

Poised to Profit from an

Improving Environment

While market conditions continue to be

sluggish Penn-America is we prepared

to make significant gains as the economy

recovers and begins expanding again As

result of the hard choices made in recent

years Penn Amer ca enters 2011 as far

more ninble and responsive organization

compary iat car more swiftly seze

opportuntes that larger firms pa by

and quickly turn those scoveres into

nnovative and high prof table ventures



PENN-AMERICA GROUP

Distributes
property

and casualty insurance products

for small commercial btisinesses

PRODUCTS

Property General Liability Errors Omissions

and Commercial Automobile Insurance for

Small Commercial Businesses

DISTRIBUTION NETWORK

Approximately 100 wholesale agents with

specific binding authority

NOTEWORTHY IN 2010

Devoted resources to strengthening general

underwriting assets in the South and West regions

FOUNDED

1975

RLIA
penn-amenca.com Grou
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NEW SYNERGIES

INCREASED EFFICIENCIES

United National Group

Bringing talent experience and service closer together

United Nationa Group underweot changes in 2010 most notably th the consolidat on of

the companys Charlotte offce with obal ndemnity service operations in Pennsylvania

It expected that the company will benefit from the efficiencies and synergies of the existng

infrastructure and experience

Disciplined Underwriting Bears Fruit

United National remains committed to underwritng only program busine that offers clear

potential for profit In additon to existing Equine Courier Dealer Open Lot and Orthotics

Prosthetcs programs the company also succeeded in launching Marine program and

Specialty Homeowners program

Assets in Place to Capitalize on Opportunity

Whi the prolonged economic downturn ha affected everyone the ndustry United

Nationa has been aole to retain ts mos critical asse stro ig rou ioat on of experience

and expertise born of the companys longstanding presence in the spec alty program marke

strong in tutional know edge throughout the organization an abi ity to focus on specialty

classes that requ re unique understanding and deep and dedcated underwriting team wth

extensive experience in managing program administrators



UNITED NATIDNA FDCUSED EXCLU IVELY

DN THE PROGRAM MAR ET CONSISTING

new infrastructure poised to benefit
DF WE DEE NED

THAT ARE UNDER ERV TIfrom foundation of experience
DENERA MAS ET CAUSE DF CERTAIN

CHASACTER STICS Db RI EXPO UREand portfolio of specialty programs

UNITED NATIONAL GROUP

Distributes
property and Casualty insurance products for specialty

program classes of business

PRODUCTS Class-specific programs for Property General
Liability Errors

Omissions Umbrella/Excess CommeRcial Auto Legal Liability

and Marine lines of business

DISTRIBUTION ETWO Program administrators with specific binding authority

NOTEWORTHY IN 2010 Focused on building business
through specialty underwriters who

have solid relationships and
deep understanding of rheir markets

FOUNDED 1960

unitednat.com

wilted

__________ national

group



16 JHFERG.COM

U.S AGENCY OPERATIONS

GAINING

LEADING

PRESENCE IN

UNIQUE FIELD

J.H Ferguson Associates

Finding opportunities in vacant properties

J.H FERGUSON ASSOCIATES LLC

Providing specialty wholesale properry and casualty

insurance directly to retail and wholesale
agents

PRODUCTS

Specializes in insurance for Residential and

Commercial Vacant Properties Renovations and

Builders Risk utilizing an nnline web-based stem

through VacantExpress com Enables producers to

quote bind issue and bill policies electronically

DISTRIBUTION NETWORK

Retaileis and wholesalers countrywide except

Alaska California and Hawaii

NOTEWORTHY IN 2010

The firm is an owned Managing Ceneral Agent

for Diamond State Insurance Company and

United National Insurance Company distributing

products on an admitted and/or non-admitted basis

FOUNDED

1978

J.H Ferguson Associates LLC enab es

Cloba Indemnity to further wden an already

diverse range ot stribution channels For

ore than three decades i.H Ferguson has

been leading property and casua ty whole

saler specalizing in Vacant Properties

Renovations and Builders Risk The recent

ntroduction of new online platform has

mproved the entire quote bind policy issue

process for Vacant Property insurance

allowing retailers and wholesalers to buy

the product at lower acqu sition costs As

resu J.H Ferguson able to market an

already prof tab unique product more

effcent and wth lower production co

J0H0 FERGUG1
jhferg.com



ADDING

HIGH-MARGIN
LOW-RISK

RETAIL CHANNEL
Collectibles Insurance Services

Profitably protecti ngprized possessions

By filing gap in standard homeowners

cnverage Collectibles Insurance Services LLC

has created highly profitable niche market

As ts name denotes the firm protects pr zed

collections of memorabilia from stamps and

coins to dolls and dozens of other categories

in between In addit on to furthering Global

Indemnitys strategy of seeking out underserved

markets this acqu sition offers number of

other benefits Its online platform enables

oba Indemnity to sell products directly to

the consumer Collectib es Insurance Services

strength is in market in which there are just

mited number of competitors and where

highly attractive profit margins exist

COLLECTIBLES INSURANCE SERVICES LLC

Licensed specialty retail insurance
agency offering

collectibles insurance directly to individuals and dealers

PRODUCTS

For niche buyers and policyholders offers

broader aod more comprehensive coverage
than

homeowners insurance to protect prized

collections and memorabilia

DISTRIBUTION

Direct to individuals and dealers countrywide

NOTEWORTHY IN 2010

Founded by fellow collectors the
agency was

acquired by Global Indemnity plc in 2010

FOUNDED

otECTIajt
NJ 11 t.3 11

1966

collectinsure.com
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INTIRNATIONAL REJNSURANQE OPERATIONS

1E7XT
As part of strategic decision to make its

capital resources more productive Wind

II Rivers business plan was extensively retooled

in 2009 The company added high evel

talent launched rebranding effort to more

cleary define itself within the small to midsize

II IY1.1ZIJ1NTS specialty reinsurance market and concentrated

on building relationships with small but

carefully targeted core of brokers who were

Wind River Reinsurance Company willing to understand the immediate and

year ofchange And growth long term goals of Wind Rivec Over the

course of 2009 and continu ng in 2010

these efforts bore fruit as Wind River

increased its net written premiums over

ths period from approximately $3 million

to just over $100 millon

Advancing to the Next Level

success ul as this strategy has been in

the past wo years the future presents new

ano oirferent set of chalienges Tne current

economic environment has mited inmediate

opportunities Fortunately Wind vers

secure rated financal base allows the

company to maintain discipline in ts strategic

course selectively and prudently growing

conservative portfolio diversifed across

wor dwide niche opportunites and solidifying

its growing reputation as selective provider

of rensurance solutions to primary writers

program managers and oth reinsurers



Taking the Long View

Rather than trying tn he all things tn all people

Wind River believes that its best strategy for

continued growth is in establishing ong term

mutually beneficial strategic partnerships with

those insurance companies who are seeking

not ust commodity transactions but solutions

that create lasting value for both parties

WIND RIVER

REINSURANCE COMPANY LTD

Bermuda-based treaty reinsurer focusing on specialty

and traditional property and casualty portfolios in the

U.S and internationally

PRODUCTS

Treaty Reinsurance for Traditional and Specialty

Lines of Business

DISTRIBUTION NETWORK

Reinsurance intermediaries

NOTEWORTHY IN 2010

Continued
strategy put into place in 2009 to make

better use of
strong capital resources Strengthened

personnel assets in Bermuda Most business continued

to be in Bermuda and the U.S but now reinsurance

horizons are expanding on highly selective basis

FOUNDED

2003

wi ndriver.bm

DOlT ONTO FL DINO REIN UI NCt 005 Cu TOMERE WIN

FROVIDE TFEA AND FACULTAT Vt RE ULAN FOR WE TEFS OF FACE

URFLU AND FEC TV LINE RU INE IN EUROFE \N AND IAN MArE

Building on successful year through

patient and prudent strategy of

creating long-term relationships that

reward all parties

wind River RnsUranCe Gompar





UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington D.C 20549

Form 10-K SEC Mail rocessino

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15d
Section

OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 HAY 02201
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31 2010

OR wasnangton
TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15d 110

OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the Transition Period From
________

to
________

001-34809

Commission File Number

Global Indemnity Plc
Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter

Ireland 98-0664891

State or other jurisdiction I.R.S Employer

of incorporation or organization Identification No
ARTHUR COX BUILDING

EARLSFORT TERRACE
DUBLIN

IRELAND
Address of principal executive

office including zip code

Registrants telephone number including area code 353 618 0517

Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12b of the Act
Title of Each Class Name of Exchange on Which Registered

Common Ordinary shares The Nasdaq Global Select Market

$0.0001 Par Value

Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12g of the Act None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is well-known seasoned issuer as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act YES fl NO 12i

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15d of the Act YES NO 21

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports and has been

subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days YES 21 NO

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site if any every Interactive

Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months or for such shorter period

that the registrant was required to submit and post such files YES NO

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein and will not be

contained to the best of registrants knowledge in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this

Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is large accelerated filer an accelerated filer non-accelerated filer or smaller reporting

company See the definitions of large accelerated filer accelerated filer and smaller reporting company in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange

Act Check one

Large accelerated filer Accelerated filer 21 Non-accelerated filer Smaller reporting company

Do not check if smaller reporting company

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is shell company as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act YES NO

The aggregate market value of the common equity held by non-affiliates of the registrant computed by reference to the price of the

registrants Class Ordinary shares as of the last business day of the registrants most recently completed second fiscal quarter based on the last

reported sale price on the Nasdaq Global Select Market as of such date was $247112574 Class ordinary shares held by each executive

officer and director and by each person who is known by the registrant to beneficially own 5% or more of the registrants outstanding Class

ordinary shares have been excluded in that such persons may be deemed affiliates The determination of affiliate status is not necessarily

conclusive determination for other
purposes

As of February 28 2011 the registrant had outstanding 18295188 Class Ordinary shares and 12061370 Class Ordinary shares

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the Registrants Proxy Statement relating to the 2011 Annual Meeting of Shareholders are incorporated by reference into

Part III of this
report
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As used in this annual report unless the context requires otherwise

Global Indemnity refers to Global Indemnity plc an exempted company incorporated with limited

liability under the laws of freland 4nd its U.S and Non-U.S Subsidiaries

we us our and the Company refer to Global Indemnity and its subsidiaries or prior to July

2010 to United America Indemnity

ordinary shares refers to Global Indemnity Class and Class ordinary shares or prior to July

2010 to United America Indemnity Class and Class common shares

United America Indemnity refers to United America Indemnity Ltd formerly Vigilant

Intemational Ltd Cayman Islands exempted company that on July 2010 became direct wholly

owned subsidiary of Global Indemnity plc and its subsidiaries

our U.S Subsidiaries refers to Global Indemnity Group Global Indemnity Group Services LLC
AIS Penn-America Group Inc and our Insurance Operations



our United States Based Insurance Operations and Insurance Operations refer to the insurance

and related operations conducted by the U.S Insurance Companies American Insurance Adjustment Agency

Inc Global Indemnity Collectibles Insurance Services LLC United America Insurance Services LLC and

J.H Ferguson Associates LLC

our U.S Insurance Companies refers to the insurance and related operations conducted by United

National Insurance Company Diamond State Insurance Company United National Casualty Insurance

Company United National Specialty Insurance Company Penn-America Insurance Company Penn-Star

Insurance Company and Penn-Patriot Insurance Company

our Non-U.S Subsidiaries refers to Global Indemnity Services Ltd Global Indemnity Gibraltar

Ltd Global Indenmity Cayman Ltd Global Indemnity Luxembourg Ltd Wind River Reinsurance the

Luxembourg Companies and U.A.I freland Ltd

Wind River Reinsurance refers to Wind River Reinsurance Company Ltd

10 the Luxembourg Companies refers to U.A.I Luxembourg S.à r.l U.A.I Luxembourg
II S.à r.l U.A.I Luxembourg III S.à r.l U.A.I Luxembourg IV S.à r.l U.A.I Luxembourg Investment

S.à r.l and Wind River Luxembourg S.à r.l

11 AIS refers to American Insurance Service Inc

12 our Predecessor Insurance Operations refers to Wind River Investment Corporation which was

dissolved on May 31 2006 AIS American Insurance Adjustment Agency Inc Emerald Insurance Company

which was dissolved on March 24 2008 United National Insurance Company Diamond State Insurance

Company United National Casualty Insurance Company United National Specialty Insurance Company and

J.H Ferguson Associates LLC

13 our International Reinsurance Operations and Reinsurance Operations refer to the reinsurance

and related operations of Wind River Reinsurance

14 Global Indemnity Group refers to Global Indemnity Group Inc fka United America Indemnity

Group Inc

15 Penn-America refers to our product classification that includes property and general liability

products for small commercial businesses distributed through select network of wholesale general agents

with specific binding authority

16 United National refers to our product classification that includes property general liability and

professional liability lines products distributed through program administrators with specific binding

authority

17 Diamond State refers to our product classification that includes property casualty and profes

sional liability lines products distributed through wholesale brokers and program administrators with specific

binding authority

18 the Statutory Trusts refers to United National Group Capital Trust United National Group

Capital Statutory Trust II Penn-America Statutory Trust whose registration was cancelled effective

January 15 2008 and Penn-America Statutory Trust II whose registration was cancelled effective February

2009

19 Fox Paine Company refers to Fox Palne Company LLC and affiliated investment funds

20 Funds refers to Fox Paine Capital Fund II International L.P together with its affiliates

21 Wind River refers to Wind River Holdings L.P formerly The AMC Group L.P

22 Global Indemnity Cayman refers to Global Indemnity Cayman Ltd

23 GAAP refers to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and

24 or dollars refers to U.S dollars



PART

Item Business

Some of the information contained in this Item or set forth elsewhere in this report including information

with respect to our plans and strategy constitutes forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties

Please see Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements at the end of Item of Part II and Risk

Factors in Item lA of Part for discussion of important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially

from the results described in or implied by the forward-looking statements contained herein

Our History

Global Inderrmity is holding company formed on March 2010 under the laws of Ireland On July 2010

Global Indemnity became our ultimate parent company pursuant to scheme of arrangement whereby all United

America Indemnity Ltd ordinary shares were cancelled and all holders of such shares received ordinary shares of

Global Indemnity plc on one-for-two basis United America Indemnity Ltd was holding company formed on

August 26 2003 under the laws of the Cayman Islands to acquire our Predecessor Insurance Operations

General

Global Indemnity one of the leading specialty property and casualty insurers in the industry provides its

insurance products across full distribution network binding authority program brOkerage and reinsurance

We manage the distribution of these products in two segments Insurance Operations and Reinsurance

Operations

Business Segments

Our Insurance Operations

The United States Based Insurance Operations distribute property and casualty insurance products and operate

predominantly in the excess and surplus lines marketplace Our insurance products target specific defined groups

of insureds with customized coverages to meet their needs To manage our operations we differentiate them by

product classification These product classifications are

Penn-America distributes property and general liability products for small commercial businesses through

select network of wholesale general agents with specific binding authority

United National distributes property general liability and professional lines products through program

administrators with specific binding authority and

Diamond State distributes property casualty and professional lines products through wholesale brokers that

are underwritten by our personnel and selected brokers with specific binding authority

See Marketing and Distribution below for discussion on how our insurance products are underwritten

These product classifications comprise our Insurance Operations business segment and are not considered

individual business segments because each product has similar economic characteristics distribution and coy

erages Our Insurance Operations provide property casualty and professional liability products utilizing custom-

ized guidelines rates and forms tailored to our risk and underwriting philosophy Our Insurance Operations are

licensed to write on surplus lines non-admitted basis and an admitted basis in all SO U.S States the District of

Columbia Puerto Rico and the U.S Virgin Islands which provides us with flexibility in designing products

programs and in determining rates to meet emerging risks and discontinuities in the marketplace In 2010 gross

premiums written were $245.5 million compared to $268.0 million for 2009

We distribute our insurance products through group of approximately 103 professional wholesale general

agencies that have specific quoting and binding authority as well as number of wholesale insurance brokers who

in turn sell our insurance products to insureds through retail insurance brokers



Our United States Based Insurance Operations are rated Excellent by A.M Best which assigns credit

ratings to insurance companies transacting business in the United States Excellent is the third highest rating

of sixteen rating categories These ratings are based upon factors of concern to policyholders such as capital

adequacy loss reserve adequacy and overall operating performance and are not directed to the protection of

investors

Our Reinsurance Operations

Our Reinsurance Operations segment provides reinsurance solutions through brokers primary writers

including regional insurance companies and program managers and consists solely of the operations of Wind

River Reinsurance Wind River Reinsurance is Bermuda-based treaty reinsurer of excess and surplus lines

carriers specialty property and casualty insurance companies and U.S regional insurance writers Wind River also

participates as retrocessionaire on business assumed by other reinsurers Wind River Reinsurance began offering

third party reinsurance in the third quarter of 2006 and entered into its initial third party reinsurance treaty effective

January 2007 Wind River Reinsurance also provides quota share and stop-loss reinsurance to our Insurance

Operations In 2010 gross premiums written from third parties were $100.3 million compared to $73.0 million for

2009 Wind River Reinsurance is listed with the International Insurers Department lID of the National

Association of Insurance Commissioners NAIC Although Wind River Reinsurance does not currently offer

direct third party excess and surplus lines insurance products it is eligible to write on surplus lines basis in 31

U.S states and the District of Columbia

Wind River Reinsurance conducts business in Bermuda While we believe many reinsurers in Bermuda

continue to focus on catastrophe oriented reinsurance solutions Wind River Reinsurance is part of smaller group

of companies seeking niche and casualty oriented treaty opportunities While Wind River Reinsurance will consider

unique catastrophe oriented placements this is very selective process and is not its primary focus Given the

pricing environment of the larger casualty oriented organizations Wind River Reinsurance continues to cautiously

deploy and manage its capital while seeking to position itself as niche reinsurance solution provider We believe

the current market dictates that growth will be very measured

As part of the aforementioned reinsurance that Wind River Reinsurance provides to our Insurance Operations

our Insurance Operations cede 50% of their net unearned premiums plus 50% of the net retained insurance liability

of all new and renewal business to Wind River Reinsurance under quota share reinsurance agreement Wind River

Reinsurance also provides stop-loss protection for our Insurance Operations in 70% through 90% loss ratio

corridor

Wind River Reinsurance is rated Excellent by A.M Best

Available Information

We maintain website at www.globalindemnity.ie We will make available free of charge on our website our

most recent annual report on Form 10-K and subsequently filed quarterly reports on Form 10-Q current reports on

Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13a or 15d of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 as amended as soon as reasonably practicable after we file such material with or furnish it

to the United States Securities and Exchange Commission

Recent Trends in Our Industry

The property and casualty insurance industry has historically been cyclical industry During periods of

reduced underwriting capacity which is characterized by shortage of capital and reduced competition under

vVriting results are generally more favorable for insurers due to more favorable policy terms and conditions and

higher rate levels During periods of excess underwriting capacity which is characterized by an abundance of

capital and increased competition underwriting results are generally less favorable for insurers due to an expansion

of policy terms and conditions and lower rate levels Historically several factors have affected the level of

underwriting capacity including industry losses catastrophes changes in legal and regulatory guidelines invest

ment results and the ratings and financial strength of competitors As underwriting capacity increases the standard

insurance markets begin to expand their risk selection criteria to include risks that have typically been placed in the



non-standard excess and surplus lines market This tends to shrink the demand for insurance coverage from insurers

that are focused on writing in the excess and surplus line marketplace such as Global Indemnity

Currently we believe we are in period of excess underwriting capacity and we continued to see rate decreases

throughout 2010 Insurers and reinsurers 2010 growth if any became
very

selective as new business prices

remained competitive and renewals saw little overall price increases Non-catastrophe segments of the reinsurance

market continued to be strained further as many opposing market forces failed to allow upward rate pressures to

take root Reinsurers and carriers alike clearly observed that competition has conthbuted to the adequacy in

underlying prices terms and conditions to be eroded over the past several
years calling for flight to improved

pricing terms and conditions adequacy

For property and casualty reinsurance and insurance companies to generate an acceptable return on capital in

the current interest rate environment companies are focusing on generating acceptable underwriting returns The

industry is making increased use of risk management tools to adequately compensate for the risks being written We

believe the industry continues to focus on investment yields and the credit-worthiness of investment portfolios

The Federal Funds rate remained at extremely low levels during 2010 causing investment yields on short-term

and overnight investments to be low Given low interest rates for Federal Funds and current yields on investment

grade fixed income securities we seek to position our investment portfolio to protect against rising interest rate

enviroimient by including fixed maturity investments with low durations and continuing re-investment in our

floating rate corporate loans portfolio Our fixed income portfolio continues to be biased toward high quality assets

with an average rating of AA Our corporate loans portfolio is primarily made up of corporate loans which are

typically below investment grade however provide higher return and shorter duration

In addition continuing developments in the regulatory environment could have some impact on our industry

On July 21 2010 the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act the Act was enacted into

law in the United States The Act includes number of provisions having direct impact on the insurance industry

most notably the creation of Federal Insurance Office to monitor the insurance industry streamlining of surplus

lines insurance credit for reinsurance and systemic risk regulation The Federal Insurance Office is empowered to

gather data and information regarding the insurance industry and insurers including conducting study for

submission to the U.S Congress on how to modernize and improve insurance regulation in the United States With

respect to surplus lines insurance the Act gives exclusive authority to regulate surplus lines transactions to the home

state of the insured and the requirement that surplus lines broker must first attempt to place coverage in the

admitted market is substantially softened with respect to large commercial policyholders Significantly the Act

provides that state may not prevent surplus lines broker from placing surplus lines insurance with

non-U.S insurer such as our Wind River subsidiary that
appears on the quarterly listing of non-admitted insurers

maintained by the Intemational Insurers Department of the National Association of Insurance Coimuissioners

Regarding credit for reinsurance the Act generally provides that the state of domicile of the ceding company and

no other state may regulate financial statement credit for the ceded risk The Act also provides the U.S Federal

Reserve with supervisory authority over insurance companies that are deemed to be systemically important

Regulations to implement the Act are currently under development and we are continuing to monitor the impact the

Act may have on our operations

Excess and Surplus Lines Market

Our Insurance Operations operate in the excess and surplus lines market The excess and surplus lines market

differs significantly from the standard property and casualty insurance market In the standard property and casualty

insurance market insurance rates and forms are highly regulated products and coverages are largely uniform and

have relatively predictable exposures In the standard market policies must be written by insurance companies that

are admitted to transact business in the state in which the policy is issued As result in the standard property and

casualty insurance market insurance companies tend to compete for customers primarily on the basis of price

coverage value-added service and financial strength In contrast the excess and surplus lines market provides

coverage for businesses that often do not fit the underwriting criteria of an insurance company operating in the

standard markets due to their relatively greater unpredictable loss patterns and unique niches of exposure requiring



rate and policy form flexibility Without the excess and surplus lines market certain businesses would have to self

insure their exposures or seek coverage outside the U.S market

Competition in the excess and surplus lines market tends to focus less on price and more on availability

service and other considerations While excess and surplus lines market exposures may have higher perceived

insurance risk than their standard market counterparts excess and surplus lines market underwriters historically

have been able to generate underwriting profitability superior to standard market underwriters

The excess underwriting capacity felt in the standard property and casualty insurance industry is impacting the

excess and surplus lines market as standard insurers continue to search for acceptable risks in the excess

marketplace According to A.M Best direct premiums written for the excess and surplus lines market fell

4.1% in 2009 larger decrease than the 3.3% drop felt by the overall property and casualty insurance industry The

excess and surplus market is also being impacted by companies who choose to self-insure their risks rather than

purchase third-party insurance

Within the excess and surplus lines market we write business on both specialty admitted and surplus lines

basis Surplus lines business accounts for approximately 70.6% of the business that our Insurance Operations

writes while specialty admitted business accounts for the remaining 29.4%

When writing on specialty admitted basis our focus is on writing insurance for insureds that engage in

similar but often highly specialized types of activities The specialty admitted market is subject to greater state

regulation than the surplus lines market particularly with regard to rate and form filing requirements and the ability

to enter and exit lines of business Insureds purchasing coverage from specialty admitteçl insurance companies do so

because the insurance product is not otherwise available from standard market insurers Yet for regulatory or

marketing reasons these insureds require products that are written by an admitted insurance company

Products and Product Development

Our Insurance Operations distribute property and casualty insurance products and operate predominantly in

the excess and surplus lines marketplace To manage our operations we seek to differentiate our products by

product classification See Our Insurance Operations above for description of these product classifications We

believe we have significant flexibility in designing products programs and in determining rates to meet the needs

of the marketplace

Our Reinsurance Operations offer third party treaty reinsurance for excess and surplus lines carriers specialty

property and casualty insurance companies and U.S regional insurance writers Our Reinsurance Operations also

provide reinsurance to our Insurance Operations in the form of quota share and stop-loss arrangements

The following table sets forth an analysis of Global Indenmitys gross premiums written which is the sum of

direct and assumed premiums written by operating segment during the periods indicated

For the Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Dollars in thousands
Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent

Insurance Operations $245481 1.0% $267992 78.6% $353130 93.2%

Reinsurance Operations 100282 29.0 73006 21.4 25570 6.8

Total $345763 100.0% $340998 100.0% $378700 100.0%

For discussion of the variances between years see Results of Operations in Item of Part II of this report



The following table sets forth an analysis of Global Indemnitys net premiums written which is gross

premiums written less ceded premiums written by operating segment during the periods indicated

For the Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Dollars in thousands
Amount Percent Amount Percent Amonnt Percent

Insurance Operations $196065 66.1% $218264 75.0% $305479 98.8%

Reinsurance Operations 100439 33.9 72731 25.0 3601 1.2

Total $296504 lOftO% $290995 100.0% $309080 lOftO%

For discussion of the variances between years see Results of Operations in Item of Part II of this report

Geographic Concentration

The following table sets forth the geographic distribution of Global Indemnitys gross premiums written by its

Insurance and Reinsurance Operations tor the periods indicated

For the Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Dollars in thonsands
Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent

California 31215 9.0% 28264 8.3% 39793 10.5%

Florida- 28072 8.1 34061 10.0 41893 11.1

Texas 22133 6.4 24292 7.1 26029 6.9

New York 16009 4.6 17224 5.1 26045 6.9

Louisiana 10981 3.2 12339 3.6 13214 3.5

Pennsylvania 9903 2.9 9506 2.8 12446 3.3

Massachusetts 9181 2.7 11948 3.5 16956 4.5

Illinois 8687 2.5 8630 2.5 11766 3.1

New Jersey 8582 2.5 8918 2.6 13617 3.5

Michigan 6540 1.9 6927 2.0 8467 2.2

Subtotal 151303 43.8 162109 47.5 210226 55.5

Reinsurance Operations 100282 29.0 73006 21.4 25570 6.8

All others 94178 27.2 105883 31.1 142904 37.7

Total $345763 100.0% $340998 100.0% $378700 100.0%

Marketing and Distribution

We provide our insurance products across full distribution network binding authority program broker

age and reinsurance For our binding authority and program product classifications we distribute our insurance

products through group of approximatly 103 wholesale general agents and program administrators that have

specific quoting and binding authority For our brokerage business we distribute our insurance products through

wholesale insurance brokers who in turn sell our insurance products to insureds through retail insurance brokers

For our reinsurance business we distribute our products through reinsurance brokers

Of our non-affiliated professional wholesale general agents and program administrators the top five accounted

for 39.3% of our Insurance Operations gross premiums written for the year ended December 31 2010 No one

agency accounted for more than 12.1% of our Insurance Operations gross premiums written

Our distribution strategy is to seek to maintain strong relationships with limited number of high-quality

wholesale professional general agents and wholesale insurance brokers We carefully select our distribution sources

based on their expertise experience and reputation We believe that our distribution strategy enables us to

effectively access numerous markets at relatively low cost structure through the marketing underwriting and

administrative support of our professional general agencies and wholesale insurance brokers We believe these



wholesale general agents and wholesale insurance brokers have local market knowledge and expertise that we

believe enables us to access business in these markets more effectively

Underwriting

Our insurance products are underwritten in two ways specific binding authority in which we grant

underwriting authority to our wholesale general agents and program administrators and brokerage in which our

internal personnel underwrites business submitted by our wholesale insurance brokers

Specific Binding Authority Our wholesale general agents and program administrators have specific

quoting and binding authority with respect to single insurance product and some have limited quoting and

binding authority with respect to multiple products

We provide our wholesale general agents and program administrators with comprehensive regularly updated

underwriting manual that specifically outlines risk eligibility which is developed based on the type ot insured

nature of
exposure

and overall expected profitability This manual also outlines premium pricing under

writing guidelines including but not limited to policy forms terms and conditions and policy issuance

instructions

Our wholesale general agents and program administrators are appointed to underwrite submissions received

froth their retail agents in accordance with our underwriting manual Risks that are n6t within the specific binding

authority must be submitted to our underwriting personnel directly for underwriting review and approval or denial

of the application of the insured Our wholesale general agents provide all policy issuance services in accordance

with our underwriting manuals

We regularly monitor the underwriting quality of our wholesale general agents and program administrators

through disciplined system of controls which includes the following

automated system criteria edits and exception reports

individual policy reviews to measure adherence to our underwriting manual including risk selection

underwriting compliance policy issuance and pricing

periodic on-site comprehensive audits to evaluate
processes controls profitability and adherence to all

aspects of our underwriting manual including risk selection underwriting compliance policy issuance and

pricing

internal quarterly actuarial analysis of loss ratios produced by business underwritten by our wholesale

general agents and program administrators and

internal quarterly analysis of financial results including premium growth and overall profitability of

business produced by our whOlesale general agents and program administrators

We provide incentives to certain of our wholesale general agents and program administrators to produce

profitable business through contingent profit commission structures that are tied directly to the achievement of

profitability targets

Brokerage Our wholesale insurance brokers do not have specific binding authority therefore these risks

are submitted to our underwriting personnel for review and processing

We provide our underwriters with comprehensive regularly updated underwriting manual that specifically

outlines risk eligibility which is developed based on the type of insured nature of exposure and overall expected

profitability This manual also outlines premium pricing underwriting guidelines including but not limited

to policy forms terms and conditions and policy issuance instructions



Our underwriting personnel review submissions issue all quotes and perform all policy issuance functions We

regularly monitor the underwriting quality of our underwriters through disciplined system of controls which

includes the following

individual policy reviews to measure our underwriters adherence to our underwriting manual including risk

selection underwriting compliance policy issuance and pricing

periodic underwriting review to evaluate adherence to all aspects of our underwriting manual including risk

selection underwriting compliance policy issuance and pricing

intemal quarterly actuarial analysis of loss ratios produced by business underwritten by our

underwriters and

internal quarterly analysis of financial results including premium growth and overall profitability of

business produced by our underwriters

Contingent Commissions

Certain professional general agencies of the Insurance Operations are paid special incentives referred to as

commissions when loss results of business produced by these agencies are more favorable than predetermined

thresholds Similarly in some circumstances insurance companies that cede business to our Reinsurance Oper

ations are paid ceding or profit commissions based on the profitability of the ceded portfolio These conmiissions

are charged to other underwriting expenses when incurred The liability for the unpaid portion of these conmiissions

is stated separately on the face of the consolidated balance sheet as contingent commissions

Pricing

We use our pricing actuaries to establish pricing tailored to each specific product we underwrite taking into

account historical loss experience and individual risk and coverage characteristics We generally use the actuarial

loss costs promulgated by the Insurance Services Office as benchmark in the development of pricing for most of

our products We will seek to only write business if we believe we can achieve an adequate rate of return

Since 2005 industry prices have been steadily declining Casualty rates have declined faster than property

rates We believe our market is facing competition from standard line companies who are writing risks that they had

not insured previously Bermuda companies who are establishing relationships with wholesale brokers and excess

and surplus competitors We believe competition is driving much of the price decline Although market prices have

dropped we have sought to maintain our underwriting discipline and have therefore exited many programs

Renewal pricing on our book decreased approximately 3.8% in 2008 approximately 2.3% in 2009 and approx

imately 3.0% in 2010 on average

Reinsurance of Underwriting Risk

Our philosophy is to purchase reinsurance from third parties to limit our liability on individual risks and to

protect against property catastrophe and casualty clash losses Reinsurance assists us in controlling exposure to

severe losses and protecting capital resources We purchase reinsurance on both an excess of loss and proportional

basis The type cost and limits of reinsurance we purchase can vary from year to year based upon our desired

retention levels and the availability of quality reinsurance at an acceptable price Although reinsurance does not

legally discharge an insurer from its primary liability for the full amount of limits on the policies it has written it

does make the assuming reinsurer liable to the insurer to the extent of the insurance ceded Our reinsurance

contracts renew throughout the year and all of our reinsurance is purchased following guidelines established by our

management We primarily utilize treaty reinsurance products including proportional reinsurance excess of loss

reinsurance casualty clash reinsurance and property catastrophe excess of loss reinsurance Additionally we may

purchase facultative reinsurance protection on single risks when deemed necessary

We purchase specific types and structures of reinsurance depending upon the specific characteristics of the

lines of business and specialty products we underwrite We will typically seek to place proportional reinsurance for

our umbrella and excess products some of our specific specialty products or in the development stages of new



product We believe that this approach allows us to control our net exposure in these product areas more cost

effectively

We purchase reinsurance on an excess of loss basis to cover individual risk severity These structures are

utilized to protect our primary positions on property casualty and professional liability products The excess of loss

structures allow us to maximize our underwriting profits over time by retaining greater portion of the risk in these

products while helping to protect against the possibility of unforeseen volatility

We analyze our reinsurance contracts to ensure that they meet the risk transfer requirements of applicable

accounting guidance which requires that the reinsurer must assume significant insurance risk under the reinsured

portions of the underlying insurance contracts and that there must be reasonably possible chance that the reinsurer

may realize significant loss from the transaction See Note of the notes to consolidated financial statements in

Item of Part II of this report for details concerning our current reinsurance contracts

We continually evaluate our retention levels across the entire line of business and specialty product portfolio

seeking to ensure that the ultimate reinsurance structures are aligned with our corporate risk tolerance levels

associated with such lines of business products Any decision .to decrease our reliance upon proportional

reinsurance or to increase our excess of loss retentions could increase our earnings volatility In cases where

we decide to increase our excess of loss retentions such decisions will be result of change or progression in our

risk tolerance level and will be supported by an actuarial analysis We endeavor to purchase reinsurance from

financially strong reinsurers with which we have long-standing relationships In addition in certain circumstances

we hold collateral including letters of credit under reinsurance agreements
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The following table sets forth the ten reinsurers for which we have the largest reinsurance receivables as of

December 31 2010 Also shown are the amounts of premiums ceded by us to these reinsurers during the year ended

December 31 2010

A.M Gross Prepaid Total Percent Ceded Percent

Best Reinsurance Reinsurance Reinsurance of Premiums of

Rating Receivables Premium Assets Total Written Total

Dollars in millions

Munich Re America Corp 202.2 6.6 208.8 45.5% $20.3 41.3%

Westport Insurance Corp 97.1 97.1 21.2

General Reinsurance Corp 20.2 0.5 20.7 4.5 1.6 3.3

Hartford Fire Insurance Co 17.5 17.5 3.8

GE Reinsurance Corporation

Swiss Re 13.5 13.5 3.0

Transatlantic Reinsurance 11.8 3.1 14.9 3.2 10.3 20.9

Converium AG Zurich Scor ... 8.1 8.1 1.8

Finial Reinsurance Company A- 7.7 7.7 1.7

Swiss Reinsurance America Corp. 7.3 0.2 7.5 1.6 1.2 2.4

Clearwater Insurance Company .. A- 6.8 6.8 1.5

Subtotal 392.2 10.4 402.6 87.8 33.4 67.9

All other reinsurers 55.5 0.7 56.2 J2.2 15.8 32.1

Total reinsurance receivables

before purchase accounting

adjustments 447.7 11.1 458.8 100.0% $49.2 lOftO%

Purchase accounting adjustments

including uncollectible

reinsurance reserve 24.7 24.7

Total receivables net of purchase

accounting adjustments and

uncollectible reinsurance

reseive 423.0 11.1 434.1

Collateral held in trust from

reinsurers 289.3 5.2 294.5

Net receivables $133.7 $5.9 139.6

At December 31 2010 we carried reinsurance receivables of $423.0 million This amount is net of purchase

accounting adjustment and an allowance for uncollectible reinsurance receivables The purchase accounting

adjustment resulted from our acquisition of Wind River Investment Corporation on September 2003 and is related

to discounting the acquired loss reserves to their present value and applying risk margin to the discounted reserves

This adjustment was $12.0 million at December 31 2010 The allowance for uncollectible reinsurance receivables

was $12.7 million at December 31 2010

Historically there have been insolvencies following period of competitive pricing in the industry While we

have recorded allowances for reinsurance receivables based on currently available information conditions may

change or additional information might be obtained that may require us to record additional allowances On

.. quarterly basis we review our financial exposure to the reinsurance market and assess the adequacy of our collateral

and allowance for uncollectible reinsurance and continue to take actions to mitigate our exposure to possible loss

11



Claims Management and Administration

Our approach to claims management is designed to investigate reported incidents at the earliest juncture to

select manage and supervise all legal and adjustment aspects of claims including settlement for the mutual benefit

of us our professional general agents wholesale brokers reinsurers and insureds Our professional general agents

and wholesale brokers have no authority to settle claims or otherwise exercise control over the claims process with

the exception of one statutory managing general agent Our claims management staff supervises or processes all

claims We have formal claims review process and all claims greater than $100000 gross of reinsurance are

reviewed by our senior claims management and certain of our senior executives

To handle claims we utilize our own in-house claims department as well as third-party claims administrators

TPAs and assuming reinsurers to whom we delegate limited claims handling authority Our experienced in-

house staff of claims management professionals are assigned to one of five dedicated claim units casualty claims

latent
exposure claims property claims TPA oversight and wholly owned subsidiary that administers con

struction defect claims The dedicated claims units meet regularly to communicate current developments within

their assigned areas of specialty

As of December 31 2010 we had $358.3 million of direct outstanding loss and loss adjustment expense case

reserves at our United States Based Insurance Operations Claims relating to approximately 80.0% of those reserves

are handled by our in-house claims management professionals while claims relating to approximately 4.0% of

those reserves are handled by our TPAs which send us detailed financial and claims information on monthly basis

We also individually supervise in-house any significant or complicated TPA handled claims and conduct two to five

day on-site audits of our material TPAs at least twice year Approximately 16.0% of our reserves are handled by

our assuming reinsurers We review and supervise the claims handled by our reinsurers seeking to protect our

reputation and minimize exposure

Reserves for Unpaid Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses

Applicable insurance laws require us to maintain reserves to cover our estimated ultimate losses under

insurance policies that we write and for loss adjustment expenses relating to the investigation and settlement of

policy claims

We establish loss and loss adjustment expense reserves for individual claims by evaluating reported claims on

the basis of

our knowledge of the circumstances surrounding the claim

the severity of injury or damage

jurisdiction of the occurrence

the potential for ultimate exposure

litigation related developments

the type of loss and

our experience with the insured and the line of business and policy provisions relating to the particular type

of claim

We generally estimate such losses and claims costs through an evaluation of individual reported claims We

.- also establish reserves for incurred but not reported losses IBNR IBNR reserves are based in part on statistical

information and in part on industry experience with respect to the expected number and nature of claims arising

from occurrences that have not been reported We also establish our reserves based on our estimates of future trends

in claims severity and other subjective factors Insurance companies are not permitted to reserve for catastrophe

until it has occurred Reserves are recorded on an undiscounted basis other than fair value adjustments recorded

under purchase accounting The reserves are reviewed quarterly by the in-house actuarial staff In addition to our

internal reserve analysis independent external actuaries performed detailed review of our reserves for the second
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and fourth quarters of 2010 We do not rely upon the review by the independent actuaries to develop our reserves

however the data is used to corroborate the analysis performed by the in-house actuarial staff

With respect to some classes of risks the period of time between the occurrence of an insured event and the

final resolution of claim may be many years and during this period it often becomes necessary to adjust the claim

estimates either upward or downward Certain classes of umbrella and excess liability that we underwnte have

historically had longer intervals between the occurrence of an insured event reporting of the claim and final

resolution In such cases we must estimate reserves over long periods of time with the possibility of several

adjustments to reserves Other classes of insurance that we underwrite such as most property insurance historically

have shorter intervals between the occurrence of an insured event reporting of the claim and final resolution

Reserves with respect to these classes are therefore inherently less likely to be adjusted

The loss and loss expense reserving process is intended to reflect the impact of inflation and other factors

affecting loss payments by taking into account changes in historical payment pattems and perceived trends

However there is no precise method for the subsequent evaluation of the adequacy of the consideration given to

inflation or to any other specific factor or to the way one factor may affect another

The loss and loss expense development table below shows changes in our reserves in subsequent years from the

prior loss and loss expense estimates based on experience as of the end of each succeeding year
and in conformity

with GAAP The estimate is increased or decreased as more information becomes known about the frequency and

severity of losses for individual years redundancy means the original estimate was higher than the current

estimate deficiency means that the current estimate is higher than the original estimate

The first line of the loss and loss expense development table shows for the years indicated our net reserve

liability including the reserve for incurred but not reported losses The first section of the table shows by year the

cumulative amounts of losses and loss adjustment expenses paid as of the end of each succeeding year The second

section sets forth the re-estimates in later years of incurred losses and loss expenses including payments for the

years indicated The cumulative redundancy deficiency represents as of the date indicated the difference

between the latest re-estimated liability and the reserves as originally estimated

In 2005 $235.2 million of loss reserves were acquired as result of the merger with Penn-America Group Inc

that took place on January 24 2005 As such there are no loss reserves in our loss development table related to the

Penn-America Insurance Companies for any years prior to 2005

13



This loss development table shows development in Global Indemnitys loss and loss expense reserves on net

basis

Dollars in thousands
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Balance sheet reserves 131128 156784 260820 314027 344614 639291 735342 800885 835839 725296 645548

Cumulative paid as of

One year laser 26163

l\vo
years

laser 72579

Three years laser 75661

Four
years

laser 98654

Five years laser 121407

5ix
years

laser 129371

5eveo years laser 139090

Eight years later 143435

Nine years laser 156432

Ten years later 162430

Re-esssmased liability as of

Eod of
year 131128

floe year laser 124806

Two
years

laser 180044

Three years later 180202

Four
years

laser 175198

Five years laser 179727

5ix
years

laser 173424

5eveo years laser 187441

Eight years later 198999

Nioe years later 196423

Ten years laler 196687

Cumulative

reduudaocy/deficieucy 65559

Gross Liability end of year 800630

Less Reiosurance recoverable 669502 750573 1743602 1745733 1531896
_________ _________ _________ _________ _________ _________

Net liability-end of year 131128 156784 260820 314027 344614
_________ _________ _________ _________ _________ _________

Gross re estimated liability 1269647 1583234 1667695 1545365 1310262

Less Re eslimated recoverable at

December 31 2010 1072960 1333561 1403640 1246799 994067
_________ _________ _________ _________ _________ _________

63667

82970

118401

150062

164023

177682

186173

201899

208806

156784

228207

228391

231133

236271

226116

242666

254110

249861

249673

42779

96623

141545

164.181

t82043

193536

211036

218930

260820

261465

263995

268149

252078

264058

272806

266880

264055

76048

136133

171659

197596

214376

235022

244389

314023

3l32l

31 5230

298989

301660

308776

303146

298566

154069 169899

268827 300041

355987 413055

414068 478408

440206

639291 735342

612327 716361

629859 732056

635504 707525

622122 672712

608050

190723 215903 189358

360336 366647

470313

800885 835839 725297 645548

832733 827419 67139

812732 768623

765435

85960

139822

180801

209938

237636

251350

344614

343332

326031

323696

332302

323547

316195

2841992889 3235 15461

907357 2004422 2059760 1876510

31241 62630 35450 67217 53897

1914224 1702010 1503238 1506429 125774t 1052745

1274933 966668 702353 670591 532445 407197

639291 735342 800885 835838 725296 645548

1431994 1234344 1388359 1342561 1148129 1052745

823944 561632 622924 573938 476730 407197

Nes re estimated liability at

December 31 2010 196687 249673 264055 298566 316195 608050 6727t2 765435 768623 671399 645548

Gross cumulative redundancy/

deficieocy 469017 675877 336727 514395 566248 482230 467666 114879 163868 109612

During 2010 the Company reduced its prior accident year loss reserves by $53.9 million and reduced its

allowance for uncollectible reinsurance by $0.2 million which consisted of $43.7 million reduction in general

liability lines $5.4 million reduction in umbrella lines $4.8 million reduction in professional liability lines and

$2.5 million reduction in property lines partially offset by $2.0 million increase in auto liability lines and

$0.7 million increase in workers compensation lines

General Liability The $43.7 million reduction primarily consisted of net reductions of $45.5 million

related to accident years 2002 through 2009 due to lower than anticipated frequency and severity Incurred

losses for these years have developed at rate lower than the Companys historical averages The reduction

was driven by the Penn-America Small Business segment where loss emergence was consistently better than

expected throughout the year This reduction was partially offset by net increases of $1.8 million related to

accident years 2001 and prior where the Company increased the loss and loss adjustment expense estimates

related to construction defect claims

Umbrella The $5.4 million reduction in the umbrella lines related to all accident years 2009 and priordue

to less than anticipated severity As these accident years have matured more weight has been given to

experience based methods which continue to develop favorably compared to our initial indications

Professional Liability The $4.8 million reduction primarily consisted of net reductions of $9.6 million

related to accident years 2001 through 2008 driven by lower than expected paid and incurred activity related

to our Public Officials Social Services and Real Estate products This reduction was partially offset by
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increases of $4.7 million related to accident year
2009 where the Company experienced higher than expected

claim frequency and severity driven by our Lawyers Allied Health and Real Estate products

Property The reduction in the property lines primarily consisted of reductions of $2.7 million related to

accident years 2002 and 2004 through 2008 driven by lower than anticipated severity in the Penn-America

book of business and reduction in reserve estimates related to 2008 catastrophes This was partially offset

by increases of $0.2 million primarily related to accident
year

2009 where the Company experienced higher

than expected claim frequency and severity in our Penn-America book of business We identified an

unusually large loss in our Equine Mortality program which was offset by favorable experience in our

Diamond State book of business and reduction in ULAE reserves

Auto Liability The increase in the automobile liability lines was primarily due to increases of $2.5 million

related to accident year 2009 from non-standard auto treaty in our Reinsurance Operations

Workers Compensation The increase in our workers compensation lines is related to an accident year

2009 structured excess of loss treaty at our Reinsurance Operations where we increased our loss estimates

based on industry workers compensation results

The reduction in the allowance for uncollectible reinsurance is due to decrease in the amount of the

Companys carried reinsurance receivables

See Note 10 of the notes to consolidated financial statements in Item of Part II of this report for

reconciliation of Global thdemriitys liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses net of reinsurance ceded

The adverse development noted in the table above from 2000 through 2002 is primarily related to increasing

asbestos and environmental AEreserves related to single policy The insurance industry continues to receive

substantial number of asbestos-related bodily injury claims with an increasing focus being directed toward

installers of products containing ashestos rather than against asbestos manufacturers This shift has resulted in

significant insurance coverage litigation implicating applicable coverage
defenses or determinations if any

including but not limited to detenninations as to whether or not an asbestos-related bodily injury claim is subject

to aggregate limits of liability found in most comprehensive general liability policies In response to these

developments management increased gross and net AE reserves during 2008 to reflect its best estimate of AE
exposures

Asbestos and Environmental Exposure

Our environmental exposure arises from the sale of general liability and commercial multi-peril insurance

Cunently our policies continue to exclude classic environmental contamination claims In some states we are

required however depending on the circumstances to provide coverage for certain bodily injury claims such as an

individuals exposure to release of chemicals We have also issued policies that were intended to provide limited

pollution and environmental coverage These policies were specific to certain types of products underwritten by us

We have also received number of asbestos-related claims the majority of which are declined based on well-

established exclusions In establishing the liability for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses related to AE
exposures management considers facts eurrently known and the current state of the law and coverage litigations

Estimates of these liabilities are reviewed and updated continually

Significant uncertainty remains as to our ultimate liability for asbestos-related claims due to such factors as the

long latency period between asbestos exposure and disease manifestation and the resulting potential for involve

ment of multiple policy periods for individual claims the increase in the volume of claims made by plaintiffs who

clajm exposure but who have no symptoms of asbestos-related disease and an increase in claims subject to coverage

under general liability policies that do not contain aggregate limits of liability

The liability for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses inclusive of AE reserves reflects our best

estimates for future amounts needed to pay losses and related adjustment expenses as of each of the balance sheet

dates reflected in the financial statements herein in accordance with GAAP As of December 31 2010 we had

$20.4 million of net loss reserves for asbestos-related claims and $9.9 million for environmental claims We attempt

to estimate the full impact of the AE exposures by establishing specific case reserves on all known losses See

15



Note 10 of the notes to the consolidated fmancial statements in Item of Part II of this report for tables showing our

gross and net reserves for AE losses

In addition to the factors referenced above establishing reserves for AE and other mass tort claims involves

more judgment than other types of claims due to among other things inconsistent court decisions an increase in

bankruptcy filings as result of asbestos-related liabilities and judicial interpretations that often expand theories of

recovery and broaden the scope of coverage In 2009 one of our insurance companies was dismissed from lawsuit

seeking coverage from it and other unrelated insurance companies The suit involved issues related to approx

imately 3900 existing asbestos-related bodily injury claims and future claims related to single policy The

dismissal was the result of settlement of disputed claim related to accident year 1984 The settlement is

conditioned upon certain legal events occurring which will trigger financial obligations by the insurance company

Management will continue to monitor the developments of the litigation to determine if any additional financial

exposure is present

See Note 10 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements in Item of Part II of this report for the

survival ratios on gross basis for our open AE claims

Investments

Our investment policy is determined by the Investment Committee of our Board of Directors We have engaged

third-party investment advisors to oversee our investments and to make recommendations to the Investment

Committee of our Board of Directors Our investment policy allows us to invest in taxable and tax-exempt fixed

income investments including corporate bonds and loans as well as publicly traded and private equity investments

With respect to fixed income investments the maximum exposure per issuer varies as function of the credit quality

of the security For our corporate loans portfolio the maximum exposure per issuer is limited to 5% of the market

value of the corporate loans portfolio The allocation between taxable and tax-exempt bonds is determined based on

market conditions and tax considerations including the applicability of the altemative minimum tax The maximum

allowable investment in equity securities under our investment policy is 30% of our GAAP equity or $278.6 million

at December 31 2010 As of December 31 2010 we had $1712.4 million of investments and cash and cash

equivalent assets including $152.9 million of equity and limited partnership investments and $204.0 million in

floating rate corporate loans less $4.8 million payable for securities purchased

Insurance company investments must comply with applicable statutory regulations that prescribe the type

quality and concentration of investments These regulations permit investments within specified limits and subject

to certain qualifications in federal state and municipal obligations corporate bonds and preferred and common

equity securities
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The following table summarizes by type the estimated fair value of Global Indemnitys investments and cash

and cash equivalents as of December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

December 31 2010 December 31 2009 December 31 2008

Estimated Percent Estimated Percent of Estimated Percent of

Dollars in thousands
Fair Value of Total Fair Value Total Fair Value Total

Cash and cash equivalents 119888 7.0% 186087 10.8% 292604 18.3%

U.S treasury and agency

obligations 202690 11.8 236088 13.6 152777 9.6

Obligations of states and political

subdivisions 245012 14.3 225598 13.0 243030 15.2

Mortgage-backed securities1 249080 14.4 364000 21.0 384069 24.0

Commercial mortgage-backed

securities 38733 2.3 144457 9.0

Asset-backed securities 115099 6.7 114163 6.6 16553 1.0

Corporate bonds and loans 532784 31.0 460730 26.6 213655 13.4

Foreign corporate bonds 60994 3.6 70993 4.1 29150 1.8

Other bonds ________ 21283 1.3

Total fixed maturities 1444392 84.1 1471572 84.9 1204974 75.3

Equity securities 147526 8.6 65656 3.8 55278 3.5

Other investments 5380 ft3 7999 0.5 46672 2.9

Total investments and cash and

cash equivalents2 $1717186 100.0% $1731314 100.0% $1599528 100.0%

Includes collateralized mortgage obligations of $13445 $21959 and $34395 for 2010 2009 and 2008

respectively

Does not include payable for securities purchased of $4768 $37258 and $710 for 2010 2009 and 2008

respectively

Although we generally intend to hold fixed maturities to recovery and/or maturity we regularly re-evaluate our

position based upon market conditions As of December 31 2010 our fixed maturities excluding our mortgage-

backed and commercial mortgage-backed securities had weighted average maturity of 4.73 years and weighted

average duration excluding mortgage-backed commercial mortgage-backed and collateralized mortgage obliga

tions and including cash and short-term investments of 2.1 years Our financial statements reflect net unrealized

gain on fixed maturities available for sale as of December 31 2010 of $50.7 million on pre-tax basis

The following table shows the average amount of fixed maturities income earned on fixed maturities and the

book yield thereon as well as unrealized gains for the periods indicated

Years Ended December 31

Dollars in thousands
2010 2009 2008

Average fixed maturities at book value $1408353 $1307718 $1275700

Gross income on fixed maturities1 60262 62099 63268

Book yield 4.28% 4.75% 4.96%

Fixed maturities at book value $1393655 $1423050 $1192385

Unrealized gain 50737 48522 12589

Represents income eamed by fixed maturities gross of investment expenses and excluding realized gains and

losses

Default rates on collateralized commercial real estate obligations and asset-backed securities may continue to

rise To protect ourselves against this possibility we have sought to structure our portfolio to reduce the risk of
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default Of the $249.1 million of mortgage-backed securities $235.7 million is invested in U.S agency paper and

$13.4 million is invested in collateralized mortgage obligations of which $12.0 million or 89.2% are rated AAA
Of the $115.1 million in asset-backed securities 92.0% are rated AAA The weighted average credit enhancement

for our asset-backed securities is 30.2 We also face liquidity risk Liquidity risk is when the fair value of an

investment is not able to be realized due to lack of interest by outside parties in the marketplace We attempt to

diversify our investment holdings to minimize this risk Our investment managers run periodic analysis of liquidity

costs to the fixed income portfolio We also face credit risk 85.5% of our fixed income securities are investment

grade securities 44.3% of our fixed maturities are rated AAA See Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About

Market Risk in Item 7A of Part II of this report for more detailed discussion of the credit market and our

investment strategy

The following table summarizes by Standard Poors rating classifications the estimated fair value of Global

Indenmitys investments in fixed maturities as of December 31 2010 and 2009

December 31 2010 December 31 2009

Estimated Percent Estimated Percent

Dollars in thousands
Fair Value of Total Fair Value of Total

AAA 639814 44.3% 740658 50.4%

AA 251850 17.5 231403 15.7

288663 20.0 299703 20.4

BBB 53468 3.7 60439 4.1

BB 85641 5.9 47816 3.2

110931 7.7 78212 5.3

CCC 7899 0.5 5856 0.4

Not rated 6126 0.4 7485 0.5

Total fixed maturities $1444392 100.0% $1471572 100.0%

The following table sets forth the expected maturity distribution of Global Indemnitys fixed maturities

portfolio at their estimated market value as of December 31 2010 and 2009

December 31 2010 December 31 2009

Estimated Percent of Estimated Percent of

Dollars in thousands
Market Value Total Market Value Total

Due in one year or less 90076 6.2% 59587 4.0%

Due in one year through five years 665633 46.2 718081 48.8

Due in five years through ten years 212990 14.7 149785 10.2

Due in ten years through fifteen years 26339 1.8 26679 1.8

Due after fifteen years 46442 3.2 39277 2.7

Securities with fixed maturities 1041480 72.1 993409 67.5

Mortgaged-backed securities 249080 17.2 364000 24.7

Commercial mortgage-backed securities 38733 2.7

Asset-backed securities 115099 8.0 114163 7.8

Total fixed maturities $1444392 100.0% $1471572 100.0%

The expected weighted average
duration of our asset-backed mortgage-backed and commercial mortgage-

backed securities is 1.9 years

The value of our portfolio of bonds is inversely correlated to changes in market interest rates In addition some

of our bonds have call or prepayment options This could subject us to reinvestment risk should interest rates fall and

issuers call their securities and we are forced to invest the proceeds at lower interest rates We seek to mitigate our

reinvestment risk by investing in securities with varied maturity dates so that only portion of the portfolio will

mature be called or be prepaid at any point in time
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Our investments in corporate loans were valued at $204.0 million at December 31 2010 Corporate loans

new investment vehicle in 2009 sometimes referred to as leveraged loans are primarily investments in senior

secured floating rate loans that banks have made to corporations The loans are generally priced at an interest rate

spread over LIBOR that resets every 60 to 90 days As result of the floating rate feature this asset class provides

protection against rising interest rates However this asset class is subject to default risk since these investments are

typically below investment grade To mitigate this risk our investment managers perform an in-depth structural

analysis As part of this analysis they focus on the strength of any security granted to the lenders the position of the

loan in the companys capital structure and the appropriate covenant protection In addition as part of our risk

control our investment managers seek to maintain appropriate portfolio diversification by limiting issuer and

industry exposure

As of December31 2010 we had aggregate equity securities of $147.5 million that consisted of $145.3 million

in common stocks and $2.2 million in preferred stocks

Our investments in other invested assets are comprised primarily of limited liability partnerships and were

valued at $5.4 million at December 31 2010 This entire amount was comprised of securities for which there is no

readily available independent market price The estimated fair value of these limited partnerships is measured

utilizing the Companys net asset value as practical expedient for each limited partnership Material assumptions

and factors utilized in pricing these securities include future cash flows constant default rates recovery rates and

any market clearing activity that may have occurred since the prior month-end pricing period We obtain the value

of the partnerships at the end of each reporting period however we are not provided with detailed listing of the

investments held by these partnerships We receive annual audited financial statements from each of the partner

ships we own Of our investments in other invested assets $1.1 million was related to limited partnership which

holds convertible preferred securities of privately held company These securities were subject to an appraisal

action in Delaware State Court In February 2011 the Companys remaining interest of $1.1 million was liquidated

Realized gains and losses including other than temporary impairments for the years ended December 31

2010 2009 and 2008 were $26.4 million $15.9 million and $50.3 million respectively

Competition

We compete with numerous domestic and international insurance and reinsurance companies mutual

companies specialty insurance companies underwriting agencies diversified financial services companies

Lloyds syndicates risk retention groups insurance buying groups risk securitization products and alternative

self-insurance mechanisms In particular we compete against insurance subsidiaries of the
groups

in the specialty

insurance market noted below insurance companies and others including

American International Group

Argo Group International Holdings Ltd

Berkshire Hathaway

Everest Re Group Ltd

Great American Insurance Group

HCC Insurance Holdings Inc

IFG Companies

JRG Reinsurance Company Ltd

Maiden Holdings Ltd

Markel Corporation

Alterra Capital Holdings Ltd

Nationwide Insurance
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Navigators Insurance Group

RU Corporation

Tons Insurance Holdings Ltd

W.R Berkley Corporation and

Western World Insurance Group

In addition to the companies mentioned above we are facing competition from standard line companies who

are continuing to write risks that traditionally had been written by excess and surplus lines carriers Bermuda

companies who are establishing relationships with wholesale brokers and other excess and surplus lines

competitors

Competition may also take the form of lower prices broader coverages greater product flexibility higher

quality services reputation and financial strength or higher ratings by independent rating agencies In all of our

markets we compete by developing insurance products to satisfy well-defined market needs and by maintaining

relationships with brokers and insureds that rely on our expertise For our program and specialty wholesale

products offering and underwriting products that are not readily available is our principal means of differentiating

ourselves from our competition Each of our products has its own distinct competitive environment We seek to

compete through innovative products appropriate pricing niche underwriting expertise and quality service to

policyholders general agencies and brokers

number of recent proposed or potential legislative or marketplace developments could further increase

competition in our industry These developments include an influx of new capital that resulted from the formation of

new insurers in the marketplace and existing companies that have attempted to expand their business as result of

better pricing or terms legislative mandates for insurers to provide certain types of coverage in areas where existing

insurers do business which could eliminate the opportunities to write those coverages and proposed federal

legislation which would establish national standards for state insurance regulation

These developments are making the property and casualty insurance marketplace more competitive by

increasing the supply of insurance capacity

Employees

We have approximately 300 employees most of whom are located at our Bala Cynwyd Pennsylvania office

This includes four individuals who operate out of our Bermuda office six individuals who operate out of our freland

office and 65 individuals who operate out of our field offices that are located in California Georgia Illinois

New York North Carolina and Texas In addition we have contracts with international insurance service providers

based in Bermuda to provide services to our Reinsurance Operations

Our Bermuda employees are either permanent residents of Bermuda who possess Bermuda status or are

considered residents by the applicable employment visas issued by the Bermuda inmiigration authorities

None of our employees are covered by collective bargaining agreements and our management believes that

our relationship with our employees is excellent

Ratings

A.M Best ratings for the industry range
from Superior to In Liquidation with some companies

not being rated The United States Based Insurance Companies and Wind River Reinsurance are currently rated

Excellent by A.M Best the third highest of sixteen rating categories

Publications of A.M Best indicate that Excellent ratings are assigned to those companies that in

A.M Bests opinion have an excellent ability to meet their ongoing obligations to policyholders In evaluating

companys financial and operating performance A.M Best reviews its profitability leverage and liquidity as well

as its spread of risk the quality and appropriateness of its reinsurance the quality and diversification of its assets

the adequacy of its policy and loss reserves the adequacy of its surplus its capital structure and the experience and
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objectives of its management These ratings are based on factors relevant to policyholders general agencies

insurance brokers and intermediaries and are not directed to the protection of investors

Regulation

General

The business of insurance is regulated in most countries although the degree and type of regulation varies

.1 significantly from one jurisdiction to another As holding company Global Indemnity is not subject to any

insurance regulation by any authority in the Republic of freland However Global Indemnity is subject to various

Irish laws and regulations including but not limited to laws and regulations goveming interested directors

mergers and acquisitions takeovers shareholder lawsuits and indemnification of directors

U.S Regulation

We have seven operating insurance subsidiaries domiciled in the United States United National Insurance

Company Penn-America Insurance Company and Penn-Star Insurance Company which are domiciled in Penn

sylvania Diamond State Insurance Company and United National Casualty Insurance Company which are

domiciled in Indiana United National Specialty Insurance Company which is domiciled in Wisconsin and

Penn-Patriot Insurance Company which is domiciled in Virginia We refer to these companies collectively as our

U.S Insurance Subsidiaries

As the indirect parent of the U.S Insurance Subsidiaries we are subject to the insurance holding company laws

of Indiana Pennsylvania Virginia and Wisconsin These laws generally require each company of our U.S Insur

ance Subsidiaries to register with its respective domestic state insurance department and to fumish annually

financial and other information about the operations of the companies within our insurance holding company

system Generally all material transactions among affiliated companies in the holding company system to which

any of the U.S Insurance Subsidiaries is party must be fair and if material or of specified category require prior

notice and approval or absence of disapproval by the insurance department where the subsidiary is domiciled

Material transactions include sales loans reinsurance agreements and service agreements with the non-insurance

companies within our family of companies our Insurance Operations or our Reinsurance Operations

Changes of Con trol

Before person can acquire control of U.S insurance company prior written approval must be obtained from

the insurance commissioner of the state where the domestic insurer is domiciled Prior to granting approval of an

application to acquire control of domestic insurer the state insurance commissioner will consider factors such as

the financial strength of the applicant the integrity and management of the applicants Board of Directors and

executive officers the acquirers plans for the management Board of Directors and executive officers of the

company being acquired the acquirers plans for the future operations of the domestic insurer and any anti

competitive results that may arise from the consummation of the acquisition of control Generally state statutes

provide that control over domestic insuter is presumed to exist if any person directly or indirectly owns controls

holds with the power to vote or holds proxies representing 10% or more of the voting securities of the domestic

insurer Because person acquiring 10% or more of our ordinary shares would indirectly control the same

percentage of the stock of the U.S Insurance Subsidiaries the insurance change of control laws of Indiana

Pennsylvania Virginia and Wisconsin would likely apply to such transaction While our articles of association

limit the voting power of any U.S shareholder to less than 9.5% there can be no assurance that the applicable state

insurance

regulator would agree that any shareholder did not control the applicable insurance company

These laws may discourage potential acquisition proposals and may delay deter or prevent change of control

of Global Indemnity including through transactions and in particular unsolicited transactions that some or all of

the shareholders of Global Indemnity might consider desirable

Notice must also be provided to the lID after person acquires 10% or more of the voting securities of Wind

River Reinsurance Failure to do so may cause Wind River Reinsurance to be removed from the lID listing In the
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event of change in control and/or merger of Wind River Reinsurance complete application must be filed with the

lID including all documents that are necessary for the lID to determine if Wind River Reinsurance continues to be

in compliance for listing with the lID The lID may determine after change in control and/or merger that Wind

River Reinsurance is not in compliance and may remove it from continued listing

State Insurance Regulation

State insurance authorities have broad regulatory powers with respect to various aspects of the business of

U.S insurance companies including but not limited to licensing companies to transact admitted business or

determining eligibility to write surplus lines business accreditation of reinsurers admittance of assets to statutory

surplus regulating unfair trade and claims practices establishing reserve requirements and solvency standards

regulating investments and dividends approving policy forms and related materials in certain instances and

approving premium rates in certain instances State insurance laws and regulations may require the U.S Insurance

Subsidiaries to file financial statements with insurance departments everywhere they will be licensed or eligible or

accredited to conduct insurance business and their operations are subject to review by those departments at any

time The U.S Insurance Subsidiaries prepare statutory financial statements in accordance with statutory account

ing principles or SAP and procedures prescribed or permitted by these departments State insurance departments

also conduct periodic examinations of the books and records financial reporting policy filings and market conduct

of insurance companies domiciled in their states generally once every three to five years although market conduct

examinations may take place at any time These examinations are generally carried out in cooperation with the

insurance departments of other states under guidelines promulgated by the NAIC In addition admitted insurers are

subject to targeted market conduct examinations involving specific insurers by state insurance regulators in any

state in which the insurer is admitted The insurance departments for the states of Pennsylvania Indiana Wisconsin

and Virginia completed their financial examinations of our U.S Insurance Subsidiaries for the period ended

December 31 2007 Their final reports were issued in 2009 and there were no materially adverse findings

Insurance Regulatory Information System Ratios

The NAIC Insurance Regulatory Information System or IRIS was developed by committee of the state

insurance regulators and is intended primarily to assist state insurance departments in executing their statutory

mandates to oversee the financial condition of insurance companies operating in their respective states IRIS

identifies twelve industry ratios and specifies usual values for each ratio Departure from the usual values of the

ratios can lead to inquiries from individual state insurance conmiissioners as to certain aspects of an insurers

business Insurers that report four or more ratios that fall outside the range of usual values are generally targeted for

increased regulatory review

The following summarizes the 2010 IRIS ratio results for our insurance companies in our Insurance

Operations

Penn-Star Insurance Company and Penn-Patriot Insurance Company had an unusual value for the change in

net written premiums from the result of an unearned premium transfer within the group during 2009

We do not believe that the above
jiepartures

from the usual values will subject us to further regulatory review

Risk-Based Capital Regulations

The state insurance departments of Indiana Pennsylvania Virginia and Wisconsin require that each domestic

insurer report its risk-based capital based on formula calculated by applying factors to various asset premium and

reserve items The formula takes into account the risk characteristics of the insurer including asset risk insurance

risk interest rate risk and business risk The respective state insurance regulators use the formula as an early

warning regulatory tool to identify possible inadequately capitalized insurers for
purposes of initiating regulatory

action and generally not as means to rank insurers State insurance laws impose broad confidentiality require

ments on those engaged in the insurance business including insurers general agencies brokers and others and on

state insurance departments as to the use and publication of risk-based capital data The respective state insurance

regulators have explicit regulatory authority to require various actions by or to take various actions against insurers

whose total adjusted capital does not exceed certain company action level risk-based capital levels
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Based on the standards currenfly adopted we reported in our 2010 statutory filings that the capital and surplus

of our U.S Insurance Companies are above the prescribed Company Action Level Risk-based Capital requirements

Statutory Accounting Principles SAP
SAP is basis of accounting developed to assist insurance regulators in monitoring and regulating the solvency

of insurance companies SAP is primarily concemed with measuring an insurers surplus Accordingly statutory

accounting focuses on valuing assets and liabilities of insurers at financial reporting dates in accordance with

appropriate insurance laws regulatory provisions and practices prescribed or permitted by each insurers domi

ciliary state

GAAP is concemed with companys solvency but it is also concemed with other financial measurements

such as income and cash flows Accordingly GAAP gives more consideration to appropriate matching of revenue

and expenses As direct result different line item groupings of assets and liabilities and different amounts of assets

and liabilities are reflected in financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP than financial statements

prepared in accordance with SAP

Statutory accounting practices established by the NAIC and adopted in part by the Indiana Pennsylvania

Virginia and Wisconsin regulators determine among other things the amount of statutory surplus and statutory net

income of the U.S Insurance Companies and thus determine in part the amount of funds these subsidiaries have

available to pay dividends

State Dividend Limitations

The U.S Insurance Companies are restricted by statute as to the amount of dividends that they may pay

without the prior approval of the applicable state regulatory authorities Dividends may be paid without advanced

regulatory approval only out of unassigned surplus The dividend limitations imposed by the applicable state laws

are based on the statutory financial results of each company within our Insurance Operations that are determined

using statutory accounting practices that differ in various respects from accounting principles used in financial

statements prepared in conformity with GAAP See Regulation Statutory Accounting Principles Key dif

ferences relate to among other items deferred acquisition costs limitations on deferred income taxes reserve

calculation assumptions and surplus notes

See the Liquidity and Capital Resources section in Item of Part II of this report for more complete

description of the state dividend limitations See Note 18 of the notes to consolidated financial statements in Item

of Part II of this report for the dividends declared and paid by the U.S Insurance Companies in 2010 and the

maximum amount of distributions that they could pay as dividends in 2011

Guaranty Associations and Similar Arrangements

Most of the jurisdictions in which our U.S Insurance Subsidiaries are admitted to transact business require

property and casualty insurers doing business within that jurisdiction to participate in guaranty associations These

organizations are organized to pay contactual benefits owed pursuant to insurance policies issued by impaired

insolvent or failed insurers These associations levy assessments up to prescribed limits on all member insurers in

particular state on the basis of the proportionate share of the premiums written by member insurers in the lines of

business in which the impaired insolvent or failed insurer is engaged Some states permit member insurers to

recover

assessments paid through full or partial premium tax offsets or in limited circumstances by surcharging

policyholders

Operations of Wind River Reinsnranee

The insurance laws of each of the United States and of many other countries regulate or prohibit the sale of

insurance and reinsurance within their jurisdictions by non-U.S insurers and reinsurers that are not admitted to do

business within such jurisdictions Wind River Reinsurance is not admitted to do business in the United States We

do not intend for Wind River Reinsurance to maintain offices or solicit advertise settle claims or conduct other
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insurance and reinsurance underwriting activities in any jurisdiction in the United States where the conduct of such

activities would require that Wind River Reinsurance be admitted or authorized

As reinsurer that is not licensed accredited or approved in any state in the United States Wind River

Reinsurance is required to post collateral security with respect to the reinsurance liabilities it assumes from our

Insurance Operations as well as other U.S ceding companies The posting of collateral security is generally

required in order for U.S ceding companies to obtain credit on their U.S statutory financial statements with respect

to reinsurance liabilities ceded to unlicensed or unaccredited reinsurers Under applicable United States credit for

reinsurance statutory provisions the security arrangements generally may be in the form of letters of credit

reinsurance trusts maintained by third-party trustees or funds-withheld arrangements whereby the ceded premium is

held by the ceding company If credit for reinsurance laws or regulations are made more stringent in Indiana

Pennsylvania Virginia Wisconsin or other applicable states or any of the Insurance Operations re-domesticates to

one of the few states that do not allow credit for reinsurance ceded to non-licensed reinsurers we may be unable to

realize some of the benefits we expect from our business plan Accordingly our Reinsurance Operations could be

adversely affected

Even though Wind River Reinsurance does not currently offer third party excess and surplus lines insurance

products it maintains U.S surplus lines trust fund with U.S bank to secure its U.S surplus lines policyholders

The amount held in trust at December 31 2010 was $5.9 million Outstanding reserves at December 31 2010 were

$0.1 million The current minimum amount that Wind River Reinsurance needs to maintain in the trust fund is

$5.4 million In subsequent years if Wind River Reinsurance were to write third party excess and surplus lines

insniance it would need to maintain in the trust fund an amount equal to 30% of any amount up to the first

$200.0 million plus further graduated amounts of its U.S surplus lines loss reserves and unearned premium as at

each year end as certified by an actuary but subject to current maximum of $100.0 million The trust fund is

irrevocable and must remain in force for period of five
years

from the date of written notice to the trustee of the

termination of the trust unless the liabilities with respect to all risks covered by the trust fund have been transferred

to an insurer licensed to do business in all states where insurance is in force

Apart from the financial and related filings required to maintain Wind River Reinsurances place on the lIDs

Non-Admitted Insurers Quarterly Listing and its jurisdiction-specific approvals and eligibilities Wind River

Reinsurance generally is not subject to regulation by U.S jurisdictions Specifically rate and form regulations

otherwise applicable to authorized insurers generally do not apply to Wind River Reinsurances surplus lines

transactions

Bermuda Insurance Regulation

The Bermuda Insurance Act 1978 and related regulations as amended the Insurance Act regulates the

insurance business of Wind River Reinsurance and provides that no person may carry on any insurance business in

or from within Bermuda unless registered as an insurer by the Bermuda Monetary Authority the BMA under the

Insurance Act Wind River Reinsurance has been registered as Class 3B insurer by the BMA body corporate is

registrable as Class 3B insurer if it intends to carry on insurance business in circumstances where 50% or more of

the net premiums written or 50% or mOre of the loss and loss expense provisions represent unrelated business or its

total net premiums written from unrelated business are $50.0 million or more The continued registration of an

applicant as an insurer is subject to it complying with the terms of its registration and such other conditions as the

BMA may impose from time to time

The Insurance Act also imposes on Bermuda insurance companies solvency and liquidity standards and

auditing and reporting requirements Certain significant aspects of the Bermuda insurance regulatory framework

are set forth as follows

Classification of Insurers

Wind River Reinsurance which is incorporated to carry on general insurance and reinsurance business is

registered as Class 3B insurer in Bermuda
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Cancellation of Insurers Registration

An insurers registration may be canceled by the Supervisor of Insurance of the BMA on certain grounds

specified in the Insurance Act including failure of the insurer to comply with its obligations under the Insurance

Act

Principal Representative

An insurer is required to maintain principal office in Bermuda and to appoint and maintain principal

representative in Bermuda Wind River Reinsurances principal office is its executive offices in Hamilton

Bermuda and Wind River Reinsurances principal representative is its Chief Executive Officer

Independent Approved Auditor

Every registered insurer such as Wind River Reinsurance must appoint an independent auditor who will audit

and report annually on the statutory financial statements and the statutory financial retum of the insurer both of

which are required to be filed annually with the BMA

Loss Reserve Specialist

As registered Class 3B insurer Wind River Reinsurance is required to submit an opinion of its approved loss

reserve specialist in respect of its losses and loss expense provisions with its statutory financial return

Statutory Financial Statements

Wind River Reinsurance must prepare
annual statutory financial statements The Insurance Act prescribes

rules for the preparation and substance of these statutory financial statements which include in statutory form

balance sheet an income statement statement of capital and surplus and notes thereto Wind River Reinsurance is

required to give detailed information and analyses regarding premiums claims reinsurance and investments The

statutory financial statements are not prepared in accordance with GAAP or SAP and are distinct from the financial

statements prepared for presentation to Wind River Reinsurances shareholders and under the Bermuda Companies

Act 1981 the Companies Act which financial statements will be prepared in accordance with GAAP

Annual Statutory Financial Return

Wind River Reinsurance is required to file with the BMA statutory financial retum no later than four months

after its financial year end unless specifically extended upon application to the BMA The statutory financial

retum for Class 3B insurer includes among other matters report of the approved independent auditor on the

statutory financial statements of the insurer solvency certificates the statutory financial statements declaration of

statutory ratios and the opinion of the loss reserve specialist

Minimum Margin of Solvency and Restrictions on Dividends and Distributions

The Insurance Act provides minimum margin of solvency for Class 3B general business insurers such as

Wind River Reinsurance Class 3B insurer engaged in general business is required to maintain the amount by

which the value of its assets exceed its liabilities at the greater of $1.0 million where net premiums written

exceed $6.0 million $1.2 million plus 15% of the excess over $6.0 million or 15% of loss and loss expenses

provisions plus other insurance reserves as such terms are defined in the Insurance Act

Additionally under the Companies Act Wind River Reinsurance may only declare or pay dividend if Wind

River Reinsurance has no reasonable grounds for believing that it is or would after the payment be unable to pay its

liabilities as they become due or if the realizable value of its assets would not be less than the aggregate of its

liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium accounts
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Minimum Liquidity Ratio

The Insurance Act provides minimum liquidity ratio for general business insurers such as Wind River

Reinsurance An insurer engaged in general business is required to maintain the value of its relevant assets at not less

than 75% of the amount of its relevant liabilities as such terms are defined in the Insurance Act

Restrictions on Dividends and Distributions

Wind River Reinsurance is prohibited from declaring or paying any dividends during any financial year if it is

in breach of its minimum solvency margin or minimum liquidity ratio or if the declaration or payment of such

dividends would cause it to fail to meet such margin or ratio In addition if it has failed to meet its minimum

solvency margin or minimum liquidity ratio on the last day of any financial year Wind River Reinsurance will be

prohibited without the approval of the BMA from declaring or paying any dividends during the next financial year

Wind River Reinsurance is prohibited without the approval of the BMA from reducing by 15% or more its

total statutory capital as set out in its previous years financial statements and any application for such approval

must include such information as the BMA may require In addition at any time it fails to meet its minimum margin

of solvency Wind River Reinsurance is required within 30 days after becoming aware of such failure or having

reason to believe that such failure has occurred to file with the BMA written report containing certain information

Additionally under the Companies Act Wind River Reinsurance may not declare or pay dividend or make

disthbution from contributed surplus if there are reasonable grounds for believing that it is or would after the

payment be unable to pay its liabilities as they become due or if the realizable value of its assets would be less than

the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium accounts

Supervision Investigation and Intervention

The BMA has wide powers of investigation and document production in relation to Bennuda insurers under the

Insurance Act For example the BMA may appoint an inspector with extensive powers to investigate the affairs of

Wind River Reinsurance if the BMA believes that such an investigation is in the best interests of its policyholders or

persons who may become policyholders

Disclosure of Information

The BMA may assist other regulatory authorities including foreign insurance regulatory authorities with their

investigations involving insurance and reinsurance companies in Bermuda but subject to restrictions For example

the BMA must be satisfied that the assistance being requested is in connection with the discharge of regulatory

responsibilities of the foreign regulatory authority Further the BMA must consider whether cooperation is in the

public interest The grounds for disclosure are limited and the Insurance Act provides sanctions for breach of the

statutory duty of confidentiality

Under the Companies Act the Minister of Finance may assist foreign regulatory authority that has requested

assistance in connection with inquiries being carried out by it in the performance of its regulatory functions The

Minster of Finances powers include requiring person to fumish information to the Minister of Finance to produce

documents to the Minister of Finance to attend and answer questions and to give assistance to the Minister of

Finance in relation to inquiries The Minister of Finance must be satisfied that the assistance requested by the

foreign regulatory authority is for the purpose of its regulatory functions and that the request is in relation to

information in Bermuda that person has in his possession or under his control The Minister of Finance must

consider among other things whether it is in the public interest to give the information sought

Certain Other Bermuda Law Considerations

Although Wind River Reinsurance is incorporated in Bermuda it is classified as non-resident of Bermuda for

exchange control purposes by the BMA Pursuant to the non-resident status Wind River Reinsurance may engage in

transactions in currencies other than Bermuda dollars and there are no restrictions on its ability to transfer funds

other than funds denominated in Bermuda dollars in and out of Bermuda or to pay dividends to United States

residents that are holders of its ordinary shares
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Under Bermuda law exempted companies are companies formed for the
purpose

of conducting business

outside Bermuda from principal place of business in Bermuda As an exempted company Wind River

Reinsurance may not without the express authorization of the Bermuda legislature or under license or consent

granted by the Minister of Finance participate in certain business transactions including transactions involving

Bermuda landholding rights and the carrying on of business of
any

kind for which it is not licensed in Bermuda

The European Unions EU executive body the European Commission is implementing new capital

adequacy and risk management regulations for the European insurance industry known as Solvency II which aims

to establish revised set of EU-wide capital requirements and risk management standards that will replace the

current Solvency requirements Once finalized Solvency II is expected to set out new strengthened requirements

applicable to the entire EU relating to capital adequacy and risk management for insurers Other jurisdictions such

as Bermuda are likely to strengthen their respective capital and risk management requirements to be in line with

Solvency II Final Solvency II guidance has yet to be published consequently the Companys implementation plans

are based on its current understanding of Solvency II equivalence for the BMAs regime which may change

Taxation of Global Indemnity and Subsidiaries

Ireland

Global Indenmity plc is public limited company incorporated under the laws of freland The company is

resident taxpayer fully subject to freland corporate income tax of 12.5% on trading income and 25.0% on non-

trading income including interest and dividends from foreign companies Currently Global Indemnity plc has only

non-trading income so it is subject to corporate income tax of 25.0%

United America Indemnity Ltd direct wholly-owned subsidiary is private limited liability company

incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands The company is an Irish tax resident fully subject to freland

corporate income tax of 12.5% on trading income and 25.0% on non-trading income including interest and

dividends from foreign companies Currently United America Indemnity Ltd has only non-trading income so it is

subject to corporate income tax of 25.0%

Global Indemnity Services Ltd direct wholly-owned subsidiary is private limited liability company

incorporated under the laws of freland The company is resident taxpayer fully subject to freland corporate income

tax of 12.5% on trading income and 25.0% on non-trading income including interest and dividends from foreign

companies Currently Global Indenmity Services Ltd has only trading income so it is subject to corporate income

tax of 12.5%

U.A.I freland Limited an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary is aprivate limited liability company incor

porated under the laws of freland The company is resident taxpayer fully subject to freland corporate income tax

of 12.5% on trading income and 25.0% on non-trading income including interest and dividends from foreign

companies Currently U.A.I freland Limited has only non-trading income so it is subject to corporate income tax

of 25.0%

Cayman Islands

United America Indenmity Ltd direct wholly-owned subsidiary and Global Indenmity Cayman Ltd an

indirect wholly-owned subsidiary are private limited liability companies incorporated under the laws of the

Caman Islands Under current Cayman Islands law we are not required to pay any taxes in the Cayman Islands on

our income or capital gains United America Indemnity Ltd obtained an undertaking on September 2003 from

the Govemor in Council of the Cayman Islands substantially that for period of 20 years from the date of such

undertaking no law that is enacted in the Cayman Islands imposing any tax to be levied on profit or income or gains

or appreciation shall apply to it and no such tax and no tax in the nature of estate duty or inheritance tax will be

payable either directly or by way of withholding on its shares Given the limited duration of the undertaking we

cannot be certain that it will not be subject to Cayman Islands tax after the expiration of the 20-year period
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Bermuda

Under current Bermuda law we and our Bermuda subsidiaries are not required to pay any taxes in Bermuda on

our income or capital gains Currently there is no Bermuda income corporation or profits tax withholding tax

capital gains tax capital transfer tax estate duty or inheritance tax payable by Wind River Reinsurance or its

shareholders other than shareholders ordinarily resident in Bermuda it any Currently there is no Bermuda

withholding or other tax on principal interest or dividends paid to holders of the ordinary shares of Wind River

Reinsurance other than holders ordinarily resident in Bermuda if any There can be no assurance that Wind River

Reinsurance or its shareholders will not be subject to any such tax in the future

We have received written assurance from the Bermuda Minister of Finance under the Exempted Under

takings Tax Protection Act of 1966 of Bermuda that if any legislation is enacted in Bermuda that would impose tax

computed on profits or income or computed on any capital asset gain or appreciation or any tax in the nature of

estate duty or inheritance tax then the imposition of that tax would not be applicable to Wind River Reinsurance or

to any of its operations shares debentures or obligations through March 28 2016 provided that such assurance is

subject to the condition that it will not be construed to prevent the application of such tax to people ordinarily

resident in Bermuda or to prevent the application of any taxes payable by Wind River Reinsurance in respect of real

property or leasehold interests in Bermuda held by them Given the limited duration of the assurance we cannot be

certain that we will not be subject to any Bermuda tax after March 28 2016

Gibraltar

Global Indemnity Gibraltar Ltd an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary is private limited liability company

incorporated under the laws of Gibraltar The Company received tax mling from the Ministry of Finance Income

Tax Office of Gibraltar that dividends and distributions received by Global Indemnity Gibraltar Ltd from Global

Inderrmity Cayman Ltd would not be subject to tax in Gibraltar provided that Global Indemnity Gibraltar Ltd

continues to indirectly hold relevant participation in U.A.I Luxembourg S.à.Ll

Luxembourg

The Luxembourg Companies and Global Indemnity Luxembourg S.à.tl are indirect wholly-owned sub

sidiaries and private limited liability companies incorporated under the laws of Luxembourg These are taxable

companies which may carry out any activities that fall within the scope
of their corporate object clause The

companies are resident taxpayers fully subject to Luxembourg corporate income tax at rate of 28.59% and net

worth tax at rate of 0.5% The companies are entitled to benefits of the tax treaties concluded between

Luxembourg and other countries and European Union Directives

Profit disthbutions not in respect to liquidations by the companies are generally subject to Luxembourg

dividend withholding tax at rate of 15% in 2010 unless domestic law exemption or lower tax treaty rate

applies Dividends paid by any of the Luxembourg Companies to their Luxembourg resident parent company are

exempt from Luxembourg dividend withholding tax provided that at the time of the dividend distribution the

resident parent company has held or commits itself to continue to hold 10% or more of the nominal paid up capital

of the distributing entity or in the event of lower percentage participation participation having an acquisition

price of Euro 1.2 million or more fo/ period of at least 12 months

The Luxembourg Companies have obtained confirmation from the Luxembourg Administration des

Contributions Directes Luxembourg Tax Administration that the current financing activities of the Luxembourg

Companies under the application of at anns length principles will not lead to any material taxation in Luxembourg
The confirmation from the Luxembourg Tax Administration covers the current financing operations of the

Luxembourg Companies through September 15 2018 Given the limited duration of the confirmation and the

possibility of change in the relevant tax laws or the administrative policy of the Luxembourg Tax Administration

we cannot be certain that we will not be subject to greater Luxembourg taxes in the future

Dividends by Global Indemnity Luxembourg S.à.rJ to United America Indemnity Ltd an Irish tax resident

are exempt from withholding tax in Luxembourg provided that as of the date on which the income is made

available United America Indemnity Ltd has held or undertakes to hold directly for an uninterrupted period of at
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least 12 months relevant participation in the share capital of Global Indemnity Luxembourg S.à.rJ

United America Indemnity Ltd has held such participation since April 2010

Global Indemnity Luxembourg S.à.r.l benefits from the Luxembourg participation exemption regime for its

participation in Global Indemnity Gibraltar Ltd with respect to dividends and capital gains derived there from

provided Global Indemnity Luxembourg S.à.r.l has held or commits to hold participation in the share capital of

Global Indenmity Gibraltar Ltd for an uninterrupted period of at least 12 months Global Indenmity Luxem
bourg S.à.r.l has held such participation since June 2010

United States

The following discussion is summary of all material U.S federal income tax considerations relating to our

operations We manage our business in manner that seeks to mitigate the risk that either Global Indemnity or Wind

River Reinsurance will be treated as engaged in U.S trade or business for U.S federal income tax purposes

However whether business is being conducted in the United States is an inherently factual determination Because

the United States Internal Revenue Code the Code regulations and court decisions fail to identify definitively

activities that constitute being engaged in trade or business in the United States we cannot be certain that the IRS

will not contend successfully that Global Indemnity or Wind River Reinsurance is or will be engaged in trade or

business in the United States non-U.S corporation deemed to be so engaged would be subject to U.S income tax

at regular corporate rates as well as the branch profits tax on its income that is treated as effectively connected with

the conduct of that trade or business unless the corporation is entitled to relief under the permanent establishment

provision of an applicable tax treaty as discussed below Such income tax if imposed would be based on effectively

connected income computed in manner generally analogous to that applied to the income of U.S corporation

except that non-U.S corporation is generally entitled to deductions and credits only if it timely files U.S federal

income tax retum Global Indemnity and Wind River Reinsurance are filing protective U.S federal income tax

retums on timely basis in order to preserve the right to claim income tax deductions and credits if it is ever

determined that it is subject to U.S federal income tax All of our other non-U.S entities are considered disregarded

entities for federal income tax purposes The highest marginal federal income tax rates currently are 35% for

corporations effectively connected income and 30% for the branch profits tax

Global Indemnity Group Inc is Delaware corporation wholly owned by U.A.I Luxembourg Investment

S.a r.l Under U.S federal income tax law dividends and interest paid by U.S corporation to non-U.S share

holder are generally subject to 30% withholding tax unless reduced by treaty The income tax treaty between

Luxembourg and the United States the Luxembourg Treaty reduces the rate of withholding tax on interest

payments to 0% and on dividends to 15% or 5% if the shareholder owns 10% or more of the companys voting

stock

If Wind River Reinsurance is entitled to the benefits under the income tax treaty between Bermuda and the

United States the Bermuda Treaty Wind River Reinsurance would not be subject to U.S income tax on any

business profits of its insurance enterprise found to be effectively connected with U.S trade or business unless

that trade or business is conducted through permanent establishment in the United States No regulations

interpreting the Bermuda Treaty have been issued Wind River Reinsurance currently conducts its activities to

reduce the risk that it will have permanent establishment in the United States although we cannot be certain that

we will achieve this result

An insurance enterprise resident in Bermuda generally will be entitled to the benefits of the Bermuda Treaty if

more than 50% of its shares are owned beneficially directly or indirectly by individual residents of the United

States or Bermuda or U.S citizens and its income is not used in substantial part directly or indirectly to make

disproportionate distributions to or to meet certain liabilities to persons who are neither residents of either the

United States or Bermuda nor U.S citizens We cannot be certain that Wind River Reinsurance will be eligible for

Bermuda Treaty benefits in the future because of factual and legal uncertainties regarding the residency and

citizenship of our shareholders

Foreign insurance companies carrying on an insurance business within the United States have certain

minimum amount of effectively connected net investment income determined in accordance with formula that

depends in part on the amount of U.S risk insured or reinsured by such companies If Wind River Reinsurance is

29



considered to be engaged in the conduct of an insurance business in the United States and it is not entitled to the

benefits of the Bermuda Treaty in general because it fails to satisfy one of the limitations on treaty benefits

discussed above the Code could subject significant portion of Wind River Reinsurances investment income to

U.S income tax In addition while the Bermuda Treaty clearly applies to premium income it is uncertain whether

the Bermuda Treaty applies to other income such as investment income If Wind River Reinsurance is considered

engaged in the conduct of an insurance business in the United States and is entitled to the benefits of the Bermuda

Treaty in general but the Bermuda Treaty is interpreted to not apply to investment income significant portion of

Wind River Reinsurances investment income could be subject to U.S federal income tax

Foreign corporations not engaged in trade or business in the United States are subject to 30% U.S income tax

imposed by withholding on the gross amount of certain fixed or determinable annual or periodic gains profits and

income derived from sources within the United States such as dividends and certain interest on investments

subject to exemption under the Code or reduction by applicable treaties The Bermuda Treaty does not reduce the

rate of tax in such circumstances The United States also imposes an excise tax on insurance and reinsurance

premiums paid to foreign insurers or reinsurers with respect to risks located in the United States The rates of tax

applicable to premiums paid to Wind River Reinsurance on such business are 4% for direct insurance premiums and

1% for reinsurance premiums

Our U.S Subsidiaries are each subject to taxation in the United States at regular corporate rates

Item 1A Risk Factors

The risks and uncertainties described below are those we believe to be material but they are not the only ones

we face If any of the following risks or other risks and uncertainties that we have not yet identified or that we

currently consider not to be material actually occur our business prospects financial condition results of

operations and cash flows could be materially and adversely affected

Some of the statements regarding risk factors below and elsewhere in this report may include forward-looking

statements that reflect our current views with respect to future events and financial performance Such statements

include forward-looking statements both with respect to us specifically and the insurance and reinsurance sectors in

general both as to underwriting and investment matters Statements that include words such as expect intend

plan believe project anticipate seek will and similarstatements of future or forward-looking nature

identify forward-looking statements for purposes of the federal securities laws or otherwise All forward-looking

statements address matters that involve risks and uncertainties Accordingly there are or will be important factors

that could cause actual results to differ materially from those indicated in such statements We assume no obligation

to update our forward-looking statements to reflect actual results or changes in or additions to such forward-looking

statements

Risks Related to our Business

We are Dependent on Our Senior Executives and the Loss of Any of These Executives or Our Inability to

Attract and Retain Other Key Perstnnel Could Adversely Affect Our Business

Our success substantially depends upon our ability to attract and retain qualified employees and upon the

ability of our senior management and other key employees to implement our business strategy We believe there are

limited number of available qualified executives in the business lines in which we compete The success of our

initiatives and our future performance depend in significant part upon the continued service of our senior

management team including Larry Frakes our President and Chief Executive Officer Thomas McGeehan

our Chief Financial Officer Matthew Scott President of Penn-America Group and United National Group

David Myers President of Diamond State Group and Troy Santora President of Wind River Reinsurance

Company Ltd Messrs Frakes McGeehan Scott and Santora have employment agreements with us although

these agreements cannot assure us of the continued service of these individuals Mt Myers employment agreement

expired effective January 2011 We do not currently maintain key man life insurance policies with respect to any

of our employees
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The future loss of any of the services of other members of our senior management team or the inability to

attract and retain other talented personnel could impede the further implementation of our business strategy which

could have material adverse effect on our business

If Actual Claims Payments Exceed Our Reserves for Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses Our

Financial Condition and Resu Us of Operations Could Be Adversely Affected

Our success depends upon our ability to accurately assess the risks associated with the insurance and

reinsurance policies that we write We establish reserves on an undiscounted basis to cover our estimated liability

for the payment of all losses and loss adjustment expenses incurred with respect to premiums earned on the

insurance policies that we write Reserves do not represent an exact calculation of liability Rather reserves are

estimates of what we expect to be the ultimate cost of resolution and administration of claims under the insurance

policies that we write These estimates are based upon actuarial and statistical projections our assessment of

currently available data as well as estimates and assumptions as to future trends in claims severity and frequency

judicial theories of liability and other factors We continually refine our reserve estimates in an ongoing process as

experience develops and claims are reported and settled Our insurance subsidiaries obtain an annual statement of

opinion from an independent actuarial firm on the reasonableness of these reserves

Establishing an appropriate level of reserves is an inherently uncertain process The following factors may
have substantial impact on our future actual losses and loss adjustment experience

claim and expense payments

severity of claims

legislative and judicial developments and

changes in economic conditions including the effect of inflation

For example as industry practices and legal judicial social and other conditions change unexpected and

unintended exposures related to claims and coverage may emerge Recent examples include claims relating to mold

asbestos and construction defects as well as larger settlements and jury awards against professionals and corporate

directors and officers In addition there is growing trend of plaintiffs targeting property and casualty insurers in

purported class action litigations relating to claims-handling insurance sales practices and other practices These

exposures may either extend coverage beyond our underwriting intent or increase the frequency or severity of

claims As result such developments could cause our level of reserves to be inadequate

Actual losses and loss adjustment expenses we incur under insurance policies that we write may be different

from the amount of reserves we establish and to the extent that actual losses and loss adjustment expenses exceed

our expectations and the reserves reflected on our financial statements we will be required to immediately reflect

those changes by increasing our reserves In addition regulators could require that we increase our reserves if they

determine that our reserves were understated in the past When we increase reserves our pre-tax income for the

period in which we do so will decrease by corresponding amount In addition to having an effect on reserves and

pre-tax income increasing or strengthening reserves causes reduction in our insurance companies surplus and

could cause the rating of our insurance cmpany subsidiaries to be downgraded or placed on credit watch Such

downgrade could in tum adversely affect our ability to sell insurance policies

Failure in Our Operational Systems or Infrastructure or Those of Third Parties Could Disrupt

Business Damage Our Reputation and Cause Losses

Our operations rely on the secure processing storage and transmission of confidential and other information

in our computer systems and networks Our business depends on effective information systems and the integrity and

timeliness of the data we use to run our business Our ability to adequately price products and services to establish

reserves to provide effective and efficient service to our customers and to timely and accurately report our financial

results also depends significantly on the integrity of the data in our information systems Although we take

protective measures and endeavor to modify them as circumstances warrant our computer systems software and

networks may be vulnerable to unauthorized access computer viruses or other malicious code and other events that
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could have security consequences If one or more of such events occur this potentially could jeopardize our or our

clients or counterparties confidential and other information processed and stored in and transmitted through our

computer systems and networks or otherwise cause interruptions or malfunctions in our our clients our

counterparties or third parties operations which could result in significant losses or reputational damage We

may be required to expend significant additional resources to modify our protective measures or to investigate and

remediate vulnerabilities or other exposures and we may be subject to litigation and financial losses that are either

not insured against or not fully covered by insurance maintained

Despite the contingency plans and facilities we have in place our ability to conduct business may be adversely

affected by disruption of the infrastructure that supports our business in the communities in which we are located

or of outsourced services or functions This may include disruption involving electrical communications

transportation or other services used by us These disruptions may occur for example as result of events that

affect only the buildings occupied by us or as result of events with broader effect on the cities where those

buildings are located If disruption occurs in one location and our employees in that location are qnable to occupy

their offices and conduct business or conununicate with or travel to other locations our ability to service and

interact with clients may suffer and we may not be able to successfuljy implement contingency plans that depend on

communication or travel

Employee Error and Misconduct May Be Difficult to Detect and Prevent and Could Adversely Affect Our

Business Results of Operations and Financial Condition

Losses may result from among other things fraud errors failure to document transactions properly failure to

obtain proper intemal authorization or failure to comply with regulatory requirements It is not always possible to

deter or prevent employee misconduct and the precautions we take to prevent and detect this activity may not be

effective in all cases Resultant losses could adversely affect our business results of operations and financial

condition

Catastrophic Events Can Have Significant Impact on Our Financial and Operational Condition

Results of operations of property and casualty insurers are subject to man-made and natural catastrophes We
have experienced and expect to experience in the future catastrophe losses It is possible that catastrophic event

or series of multiple catastrophic events could have material adverse effect on our operating results and financial

condition Our operating results could be negatively impacted if we experience losses from catastrophes that are in

excess of the catastrophe reinsurance coverage of our Insurance Operations Our Reinsurance Operations also have

exposure to losses from catastrophes as result of the reinsurance treaties that it writes Our operating results could

be negatively impacted if losses and expenses related to the property catastrophe events exceed premiums assumed

Catastrophes include windstorms hurricanes typhoons floods earthquakes tomadoes hail severe winter weather

fires and may include terrorist events such as the attacks on the World Trade Center and Pentagon on September 11

2001 We cannot predict how severe particular catastrophe may be until after it occurs The extent of losses from

catastrophes is function of the total amount and type of losses incurred the number of insureds affected the

frequency of the events and the severity of the particular catastrophe Most catastrophes occur in small geographic

areas However some catastrophes may produce significant damage in large heavily populated areas In 2010 our

Reinsurance Operations suffered net losses due to hail storms and flooding in Australia an earthquake in New

Zealand and smaller events in other locations

Decline in Rating for Any of Our Insurance or Reinsurance Subsidiaries Could Adversely Affect Our

Position

in the Insurance Market Make It More Difficult To Market Our Insurance Products and Cause

-.

Our Premiums and Earnings To Decrease

Ratings have become an increasingly important factor in establishing the competitive position for insurance

companies A.M Best ratings currently range from Superior to In Liquidation with total of 16

separate ratings categories A.M Best currently assigns the companies in our Insurance Operations and Reinsurance

Operations financial strength rating of Excellent the third highest of their 16 rating categories The

objective of A.M Bests rating system is to provide potential policyholders an opinion of an insurers financial

strength and its ability to meet ongoing obligations including paying claims In evaluating companys financial
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and operating performance A.M Best reviews its profitability leverage and liquidity its spread of risk the quality

and appropriateness of its reinsurance the quality and diversification of its assets the adequacy of its policy and loss

reserves the adequacy of its surplus its capital structure and the experience and objectives of its management

These ratings are based on factors relevant to policyholders general agencies insurance brokers reinsurers and

intermediaries and are not directed to the protection of investors These ratings are not an evaluation of nor are they

directed to investors in our Class ordinary shares and are not recommendation to buy sell or hold our Class

ordinary shares Publications of A.M Best indicate that companies are assigned Excellent ratings if in

A.M Bests opinion they have an excellent ability to meet their ongoing obligations to policyholders These ratings

are subject to periodic review by and may be revised downward or revoked at the sole discretion of A.M Best

If the rating of any of the companies in our Insurance Operations or Reinsurance Operations is reduced from its

current level of by A.M Best our competitive position in the insurance industry could suffer and it could be

more difficult for us to market our insurance products downgrade could result in significant reduction in the

number of insurance contracts we write and in substantial loss of business as such business could move to other

competitors with higher ratings thus causing premiums and eamings to decrease

We Cannot Guarantee that Our Reinsurers Will Pay in Timely Fashion If At A14 and as Result We

Could Experience Losses

We cede portion of gross premiums written to third party reinsurers under reinsurance contracts Although

reinsurance makes the reinsurer liable to us to the extent the risk is transferred it does not relieve us of our liability

to our policyholders Upon payment of claims we will bill our reinsurers for their share of such claims Our

reinsurers may not pay the reinsurance receivables that they owe to us or they may not pay such receivables on

timely basis If our reinsurers fail to pay us or fail to pay us on timely basis our financial results would be

adversely affected Lack of reinsurer liquidity perceived improper underwriting or claim handling by us and other

factors could cause reinsurer not to pay

As of December 31 2010 we had $423.0 million of reinsurance receivables and $289.3 million of collateral

was held in trust to support our reinsurance receivables Our reinsurance receivables net of collateral held were

$133.7 million We also had $5.9 million of prepaid reinsurance premiums net of collateral held As of

December 31 2010 our largest reinsurer represented approximately 45.2% of our reinsurance receivables or

$202.2 million and our second largest reinsurer represented approximately 21.7% of our reinsurance receivables or

$97.1 minion As of December 31 2010 we had collateral of $162.2 million and $91.1 million from our largest

reinsurer and second largest reinsurer respectively See Business Reinsurance of Underwriting Risk in Item

of Part of this report

Our Investment Performance May Suffer as Result of Adverse Capital Market Developments or Other

Factors Which Would In Turn Adversely Affect Our Financial Condition and Results of Operations

We derive significant portion of our income from our invested assets As result our operating results depend

in part on the performance of our investment portfolio For 2010 our pre-tax income derived from invested assets

was $83.1 million net of investment expenses including net realized gains of $26.4 million Of this amount

$0.5 million were other than temporary mpairrnents Our operating results are subject to variety of investment

risks including risks relating to general economic conditions market volatility interest rate fluctuations liquidity

risk and credit and default risk The fair value of fixed income investments can fluctuate depending on changes in

interest rates and the credit quality of underlying issuers Generally the fair market value of these investments has

an inverse relationship with changes in interest rates while net investment income earned by us from future

investments in fixed maturities will generally increase or decrease with changes in interest rates Additionally with

respect to certain of our investments we are subject to pre-payment or reinvestment risk

Credit tightening could negatively impact our future investment retums and limit the ability to invest in certain

classes of investments Credit tightening may cause opportunities that are marginally attractive to not be financed

which could cause decrease in the number of bond issuances If marginally attractive opportunities are financed

they may be at higher interest rates which would cause credit risk of such opportunities to increase If new debt

supply is curtailed it could cause interest rates on securities that are deemed to be credit-worthy to decline Funds
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generated by operations sales and maturities will need to be invested If we invest during tight credit market our

investment returns could be lower than the returns we are currently realizing and/or we may have to invest in higher

risk securities

With respect to our longer-term liabilities we strive to structure our investments in manner that recognizes

our liquidity needs tor our future liabilities In that regard we attempt to correlate the maturity and duration of our

investment portfolio to our liability for insurance reserves However if our liquidity needs or general and specific

liability profile unexpectedly changes we may not be successful in continuing to structure our investment portfolio

in that manner During 2010 we decreased the average duration on our investment portfolio in order to defensively

position ourselves during the current low interest rate environment To the extent that we are unsuccessful in

correlating our investment portfolio with our expected liabilities we may be forced to liquidate our investments at

times and prices that are not optimal which could have material adverse affect on the performance of our

investment portfolio We refer to this risk as liquidity risk which is when the fair value of an investment is not able

to be realized due to low demand by outside parties in the marketplace

We are also subject to credit risk due to non-payment of principal or interest Current market conditions

increase the risk that companies may default on their credit obligations Several classes of securities that we hold

including our corporate loan securities have default risk As interest rates rise for companies that are deemed to be

less creditworthy there is greater risk that they will be unable to pay contractual interest or principal on their debt

obligations

Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors including governmental monetary policies domestic and

interhational economic and political conditions and other factors beyond our control Although we attempt to take

measures to manage the risks of investing in changing interest rate environment we may not be able to mitigate

interest rate sensitivity effectively significant increase in interest rates could have material adverse effect on the

market value of our fixed maturities securities Our mitigation efforts include maintaining high-quality portfolio

with relatively short duration that seeks to reduce the effect of interest rate changes on market value

We also have an equity portfolio that represented approximately 8.6% of our total investments and cash and

cash equivalents portfolio net of payable for securities purchased of $4.8 million as of December 31 2010 The

performance of our equity portfolio is dependent upon number of factors including many of the same factors that

affect the performance of our fixed income investments although those factors sometimes have the opposite effect

on the performance of the equity portfolio Individual equity securities have unsystematic risk We could experience

market declines on these investments We also have systematic risk which is the risk inherent in the general market

due to broad macroeconomic factors that affect all companies in the market If the market indexes were to decline

we anticipate that the value of our portfolio would be negatively affected

We have $204.0 million of investments in corporate loans Corporate loans are primarily investments in senior

secured floating rate loans that banks have made to corporations The loans are generally priced at an interest rate

spread over LIBOR that resets every
60 to 90 days As result this asset class provides protection against rising

interest rates However this asset class is subject to default risk since these investments are typically below

investment grade

We have $5.4 million of investments in limited partnerships Material assumptions and factors utilized in

pricing these securities include future cash flows constant default rates recovery rates and any market clearing

activity that may have occurred since the prior month-end pricing period

Our limited partnership investments are not liquid Our investment contracts state that we need to provide

advance notice to the partnerships of up to three months if we wished to liquidate part or all of the investment The

contracts have provisions that allow the general partner to delay distribution of funds if it would negatively impact

the partnership Our returns could be negatively affected if the market value of the partnership declines We may
miss the opportunity to reinvest proceeds from partnership at attractive rates If the general partner exercised

provision to not distribute funds and we needed liquidity we might be forced to liquidate other investments at

time when prices are not optimal

As of December 31 2010 we had approximately $3.0 million worth of investment exposure to subprime

investments and Alt-A investments Of that amount approximately $0.2 million of those investments have been
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rated AAA by Standard Poors $0.2 million were rated BBB- to AA and $2.6 million were rated below

investment grade Impairments on these investments were $0.04 million during 2010

Since We Depend On Professional General Agencies Brokers Other Insurance Companies and Other

Reinsurance Companies For Significant Portion of Our Revenue Loss of Any One of Them Could

Adversely Affect Us

We market and distribute our insurance products through group of approximately 103 professional general

agencies that have specific quoting and binding authority and that in turn sell our insurance products to insureds

through retail insurance brokers We also market and distribute our reinsurance products through third-party

brokers insurance companies and reinsurance companies For the year ended December 31 2010 our top five non-

affiliated agencies all of which market more than one specific product represented 39.3% of our Insurance

Operations gross premiums written No one agency accounted for more that 12.1% of our Insurance Operations

gross premiums written loss of all or substantially all of the business produced by any more of these general

agencies brokers insurance companies or reinsurance companies could have an adverse effect on our results of

operations

If Market Conditions Cause Reinsurance To Be More Costly or Unavailable We May Be Required to

Bear Increased Risks or Reduce The Level of Our Underwriting Commitments

As part of our overall strategy of risk and capacity management we purchase reinsurance for portion of the

risk underwritten by our insurance subsidiaries Market conditions beyond our control determine the availability

and cost of the reinsurance we purchase which may affect the level of our business and profitability Our third party

reinsurance facilities are generally subject to annual renewal We may be unable to maintain our current reinsurance

facilities or obtain other reinsurance facilities in adequate amounts and at favorable rates If we are unable to renew

our expiring facilities or obtain new reinsurance facilities either our net exposure to risk would increase or if we are

unwilling to bear an increase in net risk exposures we would have to reduce the amount of risk we underwrite

Our Results May Fluctuate as Result of Many Factors Including Cyclical Changes in the Insurance

Industry

Historically the results of companies in the property and casualty insurance industry have been subject to

significant fluctuations and uncertainties The industrys profitability can be affected significantly by

competition

capital capacity

rising levels of actual costs that are not foreseen by companies at the time they price their products

volatile and unpredictable developments including man-made weather-related and other natural catastro

phes or terrorist attacks

changes in loss reserves resulting from the general claims and legal environments as different types of claims

arise and judicial interpretations relating to the
scope

of insurers liability develop and

fluctuations in interest rates inflationary pressures and other changes in the investment environment which

affect returns on invested assets and may affect the ultimate payout of losses

The demand for property and casualty insurance and reinsurance can also vary significantly rising as the

overall level of economic activity increases and falling as that activity decreases The property and casualty

insurance industry historically is cyclical in nature These fluctuations in demand and competition could produce

underwriting results that would have negative impact on our consolidated results of operations and financial

condition
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We Face Significant Competitive Pressures in Our Business that Could Cause Demand for Our Products

to Fall and Adversely Affect Our Profitability

We compete with large number of other companies in our selected lines of business We compete and will

continue to compete with major U.S and Non-U.S insurers and other regional companies as well as mutual

companies specialty insurance companies reinsurance companies underwriting agencies and diversified financial

services companies Our competitors include among others American Intemational Group Argo Group Inter

national Holdings Ltd Berkshire Hathaway Everest Re Group Ltd Great American Insurance Group HCC

Insurance Holdings Inc IFG Companies JRG Reinsurance Company Ltd Maiden Holdings Ltd Markel

Corporation Alterra Capital Holdings Ltd Nationwide Insurance Navigators Insurance Group RU Corporation

Torus Insurance Holdings Ltd W.R Berkley Corporation and Westem World Insurance Group Some of our

competitors have greater financial and marketing resources than we do Our profitability could be adversely

affected if we lose business to competitors offering similar or better products at or below our prices

Our General Agencies Typically Pay the Insurance Premiums on Business They Have Bound to Us On

Monthly Basis This Accumulation of Balances Due to Us Exposes Us to Credit Risk

Insurance premiums generally flow from the insured to their retail broker then into trust account controlled

by our professional general agencies Our general agencies are typically required to forward funds net of

commissions to us following the end of each month Consequently we assume degree of credit risk on the

aggregate amount of these balances that have been paid by the insured but have yeLto reach us

Brokers Insurance Companies and Reinsurance Companies Typically Pay Premiums on Reinsurance

Treaties Written With Us on Quarterly Basis This Accumulation of Balances Due to Us Exposes Us to

Credit Risk

Assumed premiums on reinsurance treaties generally flow from the ceding insurance and reinsurance

companies to us on quarterly basis Consequently we assume degree of credit risk on the aggregate amount

of these balances that have been collected by the reinsured but have yet to reach us

Because We Provide Our General Agencies With Specific Quoting and Binding Authority If Any of Them

Fail To Comply With Our Pre-Established Guidelines Our Results of Operations Could Be Adversely

Affected

We market and distribute our insurance products through professional general agencies that have limited

quoting and binding authority and that in tum sell our insurance products to insureds through retail insurance

brokers These agencies can bind certain risks without our initial approval If any of these wholesale professional

general agencies fail to comply with our underwriting guidelines and the terms of their appointment we could be

bound on particular risk or number of risks that were not anticipated when we developed the insurance products or

estimated loss and loss adjustment expenses Such actions could adversely affect our results of operations

Our Holding Company Structure and Regulatory Constraints Limit Our Ability to Receive Dividends

From Our Subsidiaries in Order to Meet Our Cash Requirements

Global Indemnity is holding company and as such has no substantial operations of its own and its assets

primarily consist of cash and its ownership of the shares of its direct and indirect subsidiaries Dividends and other

permitted distributions from insurance subsidiaries which include payment for equity awards granted by Global

Indenmity to employees of such subsidiaries are expected to be Global Indemnitys sole source of funds to meet

ongoing cash requirements including debt service payments and other expenses

Due to our corporate structure most of the dividends that Global Indemnity receives from its subsidiaries must

pass through Wind River Reinsurance The inability of Wind River Reinsurance to pay dividends in an amount

sufficient to enable Global Indemnity to meet its cash requirements at the holding company level could have

material adverse effect on its operations
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Bermuda law does not pennit payment of dividends or distributions of conthbuted surplus by company if

there are reasonable grounds for believing that the company after the payment is made would be unable to pay its

liabilities as they become due or the realizable value of the companys assets would be less as result of the

payment than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium accounts Furthermore

pursuant to the Bermuda Insurance Act 1978 an insurance company is prohibited from declaring or paying

dividend during the financial year if it is in breach of its minimum solvency margin or minimum liquidity ratio or if

the declaration or payment of such dividends would cause it to fail to meet such margin or ratio See Regulation

Bermuda Insurance Regulation in Item of Part of this report

In addition the U.S Insurance Subsidiaries which are indirect subsidiaries of Wind River Reinsurance are

subject to significant regulatory resthctions limiting their ability to declare and pay dividends which must first pass

through Wind River Reinsurance before being paid to Global Indenmity See Regulation U.S Regulation in

Item of Part of this report Also see Note 18 of the notes to consolidated financial statements in Item of Part II

of this report for the maximum amount of dividends that could be paid by the U.S Insurance Subsidiaries in 2011

Our Businesses are Heavily Regulated and Changes in Regulation May Limit The Way We Operate

We are subject to extensive supervision and regulation in the U.S states in which our Insurance Operations

operate This is particularly true in those states in which our insurance subsidiaries are licensed as opposed to those

states where our insurance subsidiaries write business on surplus lines basis The supervision and regulation relate

to numerous aspects of our business and financial condition The primary purpose
of the supervision and regulation

is the protection of our insurance policyholders and not our investors The extent of regulation varies but generally

is govemed by state statutes These statutes delegate regulatory supervisory and administrative authority to state

insurance departments This system of regulation covers among other things

standards of solvency including risk-based capital measurements

restrictions on the nature quality and concentration of investments

restrictions on the types of terms that we can include or exclude in the insurance policies we offer

restrictions on the way rates are developed and the premiums we may charge

standards for the manner in which general agencies may be appointed or terminated

credit for reinsurance

certain required methods of accounting

reserves for unearned premiums losses and other purposes and

potential assessments for the provision of funds necessary for the settlement of covered claims under certain

insurance policies provided by impaired insolvent or failed insurance companies

The statutes or the state insurance dçpartment regulations may affect the cost or demand for our products and

may impede us from obtaining rate inCreases or taking other actions we might wish to take to increase our

profitability Further we may be unable to maintain all required licenses and approvals and our business may not

fully comply with the wide variety of applicable laws and regulations or the relevant authoritys interpretation of the

laws and regulations Also regulatory authorities have discretion to grant renew or revoke licenses and approvals

suhject tn the applicable state statutes and appeal process If we do not have the requisite licenses and approvals

including in some states the requisite secretary of state registration or do not comply with applicable regulatory

requirements the insurance regulatory authorities could stop or temporarily suspend us from carrying on some or all

of our activities or monetarily penalize us

In recent years the U.S insurance regulatory framework has come under increased federal scrutiny and some

state legislators have considered or enacted laws that may alter or increase state regulation of insurance and

reinsurance companies and holding companies Moreover the NAIC which is an association of the insurance

commissioners of all 50 states and the District of Columbia and state insurance regulators regularly re-examine
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existing laws and regulations Changes in these laws and regulations or the interpretation of these laws and

regulations could have material adverse effect on our business

Although the U.S federal government has not historically regulated the insurance business there have been

proposals from time to time including after the financial crisis in 2008 and 2009 to impose federal regulation on the

insurance industry On July 21 2010 the President signed into law the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and

Consumer Protection Act Among other things the Act establishes Federal Insurance Office within the

U.S Department of the Treasury The Federal Insurance Office initially has limited regulatory authority and is

empowered to gather data and information regarding the insurance industry and insurers including conducting

study for submission to the U.S Congress on how to modernize and improve insurance regulation in the

U.S Further the Act gives the Federal Reserve supervisory authority over number of financial services

companies including insurance companies if they are designated by two-thirds vote of Financial Stability

Oversight Council as systemically important While we do not believe that we are systemically important as

defined in the Act it is possible that the Financial Stability Oversight Council may conclude that we are If we were

designated as systemically important the Federal Reserves supervisory authority could include the ability to

impose heightened financial regulation and could impact requirements regarding our capital liquidity leverage

business and investment conduct As result of the foregoing the Act or other additional federal regulation that is

adopted in the future could impose significant burdens on us including impacting the ways in which we conduct

our business increasing compliance costs and duplicating state regulation and could result in competitive

disadvantage particularly relative to smaller insurers who may not be subject to the same level of regulation

We May Require Additional Capital in the Future That May Not Be Available or Only Available On

Unfavorable Terms

Our future capital requirements depend on many factors including the incurring of significant net catastrophe

losses our ability to write new business successfully and to establish premium rates and reserves at levels sufficient

to cover losses To the extent that we need to raise additional funds any equity or debt financing for this purpose if

available at all may be on terms that are not favorable to us If we cannot obtain adequate capital our business

results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected

Interests of Holders of Class Ordinary Shares May Conflict with the Interests of Our Con trolling

Shareholder

Fox Paine Company beneficially owns shares having approximately 89.6% of our total voting power The

percentage of our total voting power that Fox Paine Company may exercise is greater than the percentage of our

total shares that Fox Paine Company beneficially owns because Fox Paine Company beneficially owns large

number of Class ordinary shares which have ten votes per share as opposed to Class ordinary shares which

have one vote per share The Class ordinary shares and the Class ordinary shares generally vote together as

single class on matters presented to our shareholders Based on the ownership structure of the affiliates of Fox

Paine Company that own these shares these affiliates are subject to the voting restriction contained in our articles

of association As result Fox Paine Company has and will continue to have control over the outcome of certain

matters requiring shareholder approval including the power to among other things

elect all of our directors

amend our articles of association as long as their voting power is greater than 75%

ratify the appointment of our auditors

increase our share capital

resolve to pay dividends or distributions and

approve the annual report and the annual financial statements

Subject to certain exceptions the Fox Paine Entities may also be able to prevent or cause change of control

The Fox Paine Entities control over us and Fox Paine Companys ability in certain circumstances to prevent or

cause change of control may delay or prevent change of control or cause change of control to occur at time
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when it is not favored by other shareholders As result the trading price of our Class ordinary shares could be

adversely affected

In addition we have agreed to pay Fox Paine Company LLC an annual management fee of $1.5 million in

exchange for management services and termination fee of $10 million upon the termination of Fox Paine

Company LLCs management services in connection with the consummation of change of control transaction

that does not involve Fox Paine Company LLC and its affiliates or the Funds We have also agreed to pay Fox

Paine Company LLC transaction advisory fee of one percent of the transaction value upon the consummation of

change of control transaction that does not involve Fox Paine Company LLC and its affiliates or the Funds in

exchange for advisory services to be provided by Fox Paine Company LLC in connection therewith Fox Paine

Company may in the future make significant investments in other insurance or reinsurance companies Some of

these companies may compete with us or with our subsidiaries Fox Paine Company is not obligated to advise us

of any investment or business opportunities of which they are aware and they are not prohibited or restricted from

competing with us or with our subsidiaries

Our Con trolling Shareholder Has the Contractual Right to Nominate Certain Number of the Members

of Our Board of Directors and Also Otherwise Con trols the Election of Directors Due to Its Ownership

While Fox Paine Company has the right under the terms of the memorandum and articles of association to

nominate certain number of Directors dependant on Fox Paine Companys percentage ownership of voting

shares in the Company for so long as Fox Paine Company hold an aggregate 25% or more of the voting power in

the Company it also controls the election of all directors to the Board of Directors due to its controlling share

ownership Our Board of Directors currently consists of eight directors all of which other than Mr Frakes were

identified and proposed for consideration for the Board of Directors by Fox Paine Company

Our Board of Directors in tum and subject to its fiduciary duties under Irish law appoints the members of our

senior management who also have fiduciary duties to the Company As result Fox Paine Company effectively

has the ability to control the appointment of the members of our senior management and to prevent any changes in

senior management that other shareholders or that other members of our Board of Directors may deem advisable

Because We Rely on Certain Services Provided By Fox Paine Company the Loss of Such Services

Could Adversely Affect Our Business

During 2008 2009 and 2010 Fox Paine Company provided certain management services to us To the extent

that Fox Paine Company is unable or unwilling to provide similar services in the future and we are unable to perform

those services ourselves or we are unable to secure replacement services our business could be adversely affected

Continued Adverse Consequences of the Recent U.S and Global Economic and Financial Industry

Downturns Could Harm Our Business Our Liquidity and Financial Condition And Our Stock Price

In recent years global market and economic conditions have been severely disrupted These conditions may

potentially affect among other aspects of our business the demand for and claims made under our products the

ability of customers counterparties anj others to establish or maintain their relationships with us our ability to

access and efficiently use internal and ettemal capital resources the availability of reinsurance protection the risks

we assume under reinsurance programs and our investment performance Continued volatility in the U.S and other

securities markets may adversely affect our stock price

Our Operating Results and Shareholders Equity May Be Adversely Affected by Currency Fluctuations

Our functional currency is the U.S Dollar Our Reinsurance Operations conduct business with some customers

in foreign currencies and some of our Non-U.S Subsidiaries have foreign currency
denominated cash accounts

Monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are revalued at the current exchange rates

each period end with the resulting gains or losses reflected in net income Foreign exchange risk is reviewed as part

of our risk management process We may experience losses resulting from fluctuations in the values of

non-U.S currencies relative to the strength of the U.S Dollar which could adversely impact our results of

operations and financial condition

39



We are Incorporated in Ireland and Some of Our Assets are Located Outside the United States As

Result It Might Not Be Possible for Shareholders to Enforce Civil Liability Provisions of the Federal or

State Securities Laws of the United States

We are organized under the laws of beland and some of our assets are located outside the United States

shareholder who obtains court judgment based on the civil liability provisions of U.S federal or state securities

laws may be unable to enforce the judgment against us in freland or in countries other than the United States where

we have assets In addition there is some doubt as to whether the courts of freland and other countries would

recognize or enforce judgments of U.S courts obtained against us or our Directors or officers based on the civil

liabilities provisions of the federal or state securities laws of the United States or would hear actions against us or

those persons based on those laws We have been advised that the United States and freland do not currently have

treaty providing for the reciprocal recognition and enforcement of judgments in civil and commercial matters The

laws of freland do however as general rule provide that the judgments of the courts of the United States have the

same validity in freland as if rendered by Irish Courts Certain important requirements must be satisfied before the

Irish Courts will recognize the United States judgment The originating court must have been court of competent

jurisdiction and the judgment may not be recognized if it was obtained by fraud or its recognition would be contrary

to Irish public policy Any judgment obtained in contravention of the rules of natural justice or that is irreconcilable

with an earlier foreign judgment would not be enforced in Ireland Similarly judgments might not be enforceable in

countries other than the United States where we have assets

Irish Law Differs From the Laws in Effect in the United States and Might Afford Less Protection to

Shareholders

Our shareholders could have more difficulty protecting their interests than would shareholders of corporation

incorporated in jurisdiction of the United States As an Irish company we are govemed by the Companies Acts

1963 to 2009 of Ireland the Companies Acts and other Irish statutes The Companies Acts and other Irish

statutes differ in some significant and possibly material respects from laws applicable to U.S corporations and

shareholders under various state corporation laws including the provisions relating to interested directors mergers

and acquisitions takeovers shareholder lawsuits and indemnification of Directors

Under Irish law the duties of Directors and officers of company are generally owed to the company only

Shareholders of Irish companies do not generally have rights to take action against Directors or officers of the

company under Irish law and may only exercise such right of action on behalf of the Company in limited

circumstances Directors of an Irish company must in exercising their powers and performing their duties act with

due care and skill honestly and in good faith with view to the best interests of the company Directors have duty

not to put themselves in position in which their duties to the company and their personal interests might conflict

and also are under duty to disclose any personal interest in any contract or arrangement with the company or any of

its subsidiaries If Director or officer of an Irish company is found to have breached his duties to that company he

could be held personally liable to the company in respect of that breach of duty

Future Transfer of Your Ordinary Shares Other Than One Effected By Means of the Transfer of Book

Entry Interests in DTC May Be Subject to Irish Stamp Duty

transfer of our Class ordinary shares by seller who holds Class ordinary shares beneficially through

DTC to buyer who holds the acquired Class ordinary shares beneficially through DTC will not be subject to Irish

stamp duty transfer of our ordinary shares by seller who holds shares directly to any buyer or by seller who

holds the shares beneficially through DTC to buyer who holds the acquired shares directly may be subject to Irish

stamp duty Stamp duty is liability of the buyer or transferee and is currently levied at the rate of 1% of the price

paid or the market value of the shares acquired if higher The potential for stamp duty could adversely affect the

price of our ordinary shares
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Risks Related to Taxation

Legislative and Regulatory Action by the U.S Congress Could Materially and Adversely Affect Us

Our tax position could be adversely impacted by changes in tax laws tax treaties or tax regulations or the

interpretation or enforcement thereof Legislative action may be taken by the U.S Congress which if ultimately

enacted could override tax treaties upon which we rely or could broaden the circumstances under which we would

be considered U.S resident each of which could materially and adversely affect our effective tax rate and cash tax

position

We May Become Subject to Taxes in the Cayman Islands or Bermuda in the Future Which May Have

Material Adverse Effect on Our Results of Operations

United America Indemnity Ltd has been incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands as an exempted

company and as such obtained an undertaking on September 2003 from the Govemor in Council of the Cayman

Islands substantially that for period of 20 years from the date of such undertaking no law that is enacted in the

Cayman Islands imposing any tax to be levied on profit or income or gains or appreciation shall apply to us and no

such tax and no tax in the nature of estate duty or inheritance tax will be payable either directly or by way of

withholding on our ordinary shares This undertaking would not however prevent the imposition of taxes on any

person ordinarily resident in the Cayman Islands or any company in respect of its ownership of real property or

leasehold interests in the Cayman Islands Given the limited duration of the undertaking we cannot be certain that

we will not be subject to Cayman Islands tax after the expiration of the 20-year period

Wind River Reinsurance was formed in 2006 through the amalgamation of our Non-U.S Operations We
received an assurance from the Bermuda Minister of Finance under the Bermuda Exempted Undertakings Tax

Protection Act of 1966 as amended that if any legislation is enacted in Bermuda that would impose tax computed

on profits or income or computed on any capital asset gain or appreciation or any tax in the nature of estate duty or

iitheritance tax then the imposition of any such tax will not be applicable to Wind River Reinsurance or any of its

operations shares debentures or other obligations through March 28 2016 Given the limited duration of the

assurance we cannot be certain that we will not be subject to any Bermuda tax after March 28 2016

Following the expiration of the period described above we may become subject to taxes in the Cayman Islands

or Bermuda which may have material adverse effect on our results of operations

Global Indemnity or Wind River Reinsurance May Be Subject to U.S Tax That May Have Material

Adverse Effect On Global Indemnity or Wind River Reinsurance Results of Operations

Global Indemnity is an Irish company and Wind River Reinsurance is Bermuda company We seek to manage

our business in manner designed to reduce the risk that Global Indemnity and Wind River Reinsurance will be

treated as being engaged in U.S trade or business for U.S federal income tax purposes However because there is

considerable uncertainty as to the activities that constitute being engaged in trade or business within the

United States we cannot be certain that the U.S Intemal Revenue Service will not contend successfully that Global

Indemnity or Wind River Reinsurance will be engaged in trade or business in the United States If Global

Indemnity or Wind River Reinsurance were considered to be engaged in business in the United States we could be

subject to U.S corporate income and branch profits taxes on the portion of our earnings effectively connected to

such U.S business in which case our results of operations could be materially adversely affected

The Impact of the Cayman Islands Letter of Commitment or Other Concessions to the Organization for

Economic Cooperation and Development to Eliminate Harmful Tax Practices Is Uncertain and Could

Adversely Affect the Tax Status of Our Subsidiaries in the Cayman Islands or Bermuda

The Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development which is commonly referred to as the OECD
has published reports and launched global dialogue among member and non-member countries on measures to

limit harmful tax competition These measures are largely directed at counteracting the effects of tax havens and

preferential tax regimes in countries around the world In the OECDs report dated January 27 2011 the Cayman

Islands and Bermuda were not listed as uncooperative tax haven jurisdictions because each had previously
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comnitted itself to eliminate hasrnful tax practices and to embrace international tax standards for transparency

exchange of information and the elimination of any aspects of the regimes for financial and other services that

attract business with no substantial domestic activity We are not able to predict what changes will arise from the

comnitment or whether such changes will subject us to additional taxes

There Is Risk That Interest Paid By Our U.S Subsidiaries To Luxembourg Affiliate May Be Subject

to 30% U.S Withholding Tax

U.A.I Luxembourg Investment S.à r.l an indirectly owned Luxembourg subsidiary of Wind River

Reinsurance owns two notes issued by Global Indemnity Group Inc Delaware corporation Under U.S federal

income tax law interest paid by U.S corporation to non-U.S shareholder is generally subject to 30%

withholding tax unless reduced by treaty The income tax treaty between the United States and Luxembourg the

Luxembourg Treaty generally eliminates the withholding tax on interest paid to qualified residents of Lux

embourg Were the IRS to contend successfully that U.A.I Luxembourg Investment S.a r.l is not eligible for

benefits under the Luxembourg Treaty interest paid to U.A.I Luxembourg Investment S.à r.l by Global

Indemnity Group Inc would be subject to the 30% withholding tax Such tax may be applied retroactively to all

previous years for which the statute of limitations has not expired with interest and penalties Such result may
have material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operation

There is Risk That Interest Income Imputed to Our Irish Affiliates May Be Subject to 25% Irish

Income tax

U.A.I freland Limited is private limited liability company incorporated under the laws of freland The

company is resident taxpayer fully subject to freland corporate income tax of 12.5% on trading income and 25.0%

on non-trading income including interest and dividends from foreign companies The company intends to manage

its operations in such way that there will not be any material taxable income generated in freland under Irish law

However there can be no assurance from the Irish authorities that law may not be enacted that would impute

income to U.A.J freland Limited in the future or retroactively arising out of our current operations

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None

Item Properties

We lease office space in Bala Cynwyd Pennsylvania which holds our principle executive offices and

headquarters for our Insurance Operations In addition we lease additional office space in California Georgia

Illinois New York North Carolina and Texas which serves as office space for our field offices Some of the office

space in California also serves as office space for our claims operations We also lease office space in Hamilton

Bermuda which is used by our Reinsurance Operations We lease office space in Cavan freland which is used to

support the operating needs of our Insurance and Reinsurance Operations We believe the properties listed are

suitable and adequate to meet our needs

Item Legal Proceedings

The

Company is from time to time involved in various legal proceedings in the ordinary course of business

The Company purchases insurance and reinsurance policies covering such risks in amounts that it considers

adequate However there can be no assurance that the insurance and reinsurance coverage that the Company

maintains is sufficient or will be available in adequate amounts or at reasonable cost The Company does not

believe that the resolution of any currently pending legal proceedings either individually or taken as whole will

have material adverse effect on the Companys business results of operations cash flows or financial condition

There is greater potential for disputes with reinsurers who are in runoff of their reinsurance operations

Some of the Companys reinsurers reinsurance operations are in runoff and therefore the Company closely
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monitors those relationships The Company anticipates that similar to the rest of the insurance and reinsurance

industry it will continue to be subject to litigation and arbitration proceedings in the ordinary course of business

On December 2008 federal jury in the U.S District Court for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania

Philadelphia returned $24.0 million verdict in favor of United National Insurance Company United National

an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company against AON Corp an insurance and reinsurance broker On

July 24 2009 federal judge from the U.S District Court for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania Philadelphia

upheld that jury verdict In doing so the U.S District Judge increased the verdict to $32.2 million by adding more

than $8.2 million in prejudgment interest AON filed its Notice of Appeal and Bond in the amount of $33.0 million

Oral arguments were heard by the Appellate Court on October 26 2010 In January 2011 we settled with AON for

$16.3 million We realized approximately $7.5 million net of income taxes and attorneys fees

Item Removed and Reserved
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PART II

Item MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market for Our Class Ordinary Shares

Our Class ordinary shares par value $0.000l per share began trading on the Nasdaq Global Select Market

formerly the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol UNGL on December 16 2003 On March 14 2005 we

changed our symbol to INDM On July 2010 we changed our symbol to GBLI as part of re-domestication

transaction whereby all shares of INDM were replaced with shares of GBLI on one-for-two basis The

following table sets forth for the periods indicated the high and low sales prices of our Class ordinary shares as

reported by the Nasdaq Global Select Market Prices prior to July 2010 have been adjusted to reflect the impact of

the one-for-two share exchange

High Low

Fiscal Year Ended December 31 2010

First Quarter $19.90 $13.30

Second Quarter 20.36 14.38

Third Quarter 17.21 10.10

Fourth Quarter 21.25 15.46

Fiscal Year Ended December 31 2009

First Quarter $26.96 7.40

Second Quarter 12.94 7.46

Third Quarter 15.38 8.74

Fourth Quarter 17.82 13.24

There is no established public trading market for our Class ordinary shares par value $0.0001 per
share

As of March 2011 there were approximately 1800 beneficial holders of record of our Class ordinary

shares As of March 2011 there were 11 holders of record of our Class ordinary shares all of whom are

affiliates of Fox Paine Company
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Performance of Our Class Ordinary Shares

The following graph represents five-year comparison of the cumulative total return to shareholders for the

Companys Class ordinary shares and stock of companies included in the NASDAQ Insurance Index and

NASDAQ Composite Index which we believe are the most comparative indexes

12/31/05 12/31/06 12/31/07 12/31/08 12/31/09 12/31/10

12/31/05 12/31/06 12/31/07 12/31108 12/31/09 12/31/10

Global Indemnity plc $100.0 $138.0 $108.5 $69.8 43.1 55.7

NASDAQ Insurance Index 100.0 112.1 111.2 98.3 98.8 113.2

NASDAQ Composite Index 100.0 109.5 120.3 71.5 102.9 120.3

Note We completed our Rights Offering on May 2009 which increased our total outstanding Class ordinary

shares by 17.2 million shares See Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements in Item of Part II of this

report for details concerning the Rights Offering

Note We completed our re-domestication transaction on July 2010 which resulted in shares of INDM being

exchanged for shares of GBLI on one-for-two basis Share prices prior to July 2010 have been

adjusted to reflect the impact of the one-for-two share exchange See Note to the consolidated financial

statements in Item of Part II of this report for details concerning the re-domestication
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Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

On May 2009 we completed the Rights Offering in which total of 17178421 Class ordinary shares and

11435244 Class ordinary shares were issued The issuance of the Class ordinary shares included 41588

Class ordinary shares issued to an affiliate of Fox Paine Company in private placement pursuant to

Section 42 of the Securities Act as amended The affiliate of Fox Paine Company purchased the 41588 Class

ordinary shares for $3.50 per share which was the subscription price at which all Class common shareholders and

Class common shareholders were entitled to purchase additional shares All other shares issued in the Rights

Offering were issued pursuant to registration statement The net proceeds of $91.8 million were used to support

our strategic initiatives enhance liquidity and financial flexibility and for other general corporate purposes See

Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements in Item of Part II of this report for details concerning the Rights

Offering

Purchases of Our Class Ordinary Shares

Our Share Incentive Plan allows employees to surrender shares of our Class ordinary shares as payment for

the tax liability incurred upon the vesting of restricted stock that was issued under our Share Incentive Plan During

2010 we purchased an aggregate of 12088 of surrendered Class ordinary shares from our employees for

$0.2 million All shares purchased from employees are held as treasury stock and recorded at cost See Note 12 to

the consolidated financial statements in Item of Part II of this report for tabular disclosure of our share repurchases

by month

As part of the Rights Offering that was completed in May 2009 we purchased 5000 Class ordinary shares

for $0.04 million that had been purchased by former employee with the non-transferable Class Rights that were

distributed to that former employee for Class ordinary shares held of non-vested restricted stock Since the

restricted stock was not vested the former employee upon leaving the Company had to forfeit those Class

ordinary shares that had been purchased with the non-transferable Class Rights that were distributed on that

restricted stock See Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements in Item of Part II of this report for details

concerning the Rights Offering

Dividend Policy

We did not declare or pay cash dividends on any class of our ordinary shares in 2010 or 2009 Payment of

dividends is subject to future determinations by the Board of Directors based on our results financial conditions

amounts required to grow our business and other factors deemed relevant by the Board

We are holding company and have no direct operations Our ability to pay dividends depends in part on the

ability of Wind River Reinsurance the Luxembourg Companies and the U.S Insurance Subsidiaries to pay

dividends Wind River Reinsurance and the U.S Insurance Subsidiaries are subject to significant regulatory

restrictions limiting their ability to declare and pay dividends

See Note 18 of the notes to consolidated financial statements in Item of Part II of this report for the dividends

declared and paid by the U.S Insurance Subsidiaries in 2010 and the maximum amount of distributions that they

could pay as dividends in 2011

For 2011 we believe that Wind River Reinsurance should have sufficient liquidity and solvency to pay

dividends In the future we anticipate paying dividends from Wind River Reinsurance to fund obligations of Global

Indemnity Wind River Reinsurance is prohibited without the approval of the BMA from reducing by 15% or more

its total statutory capital as set out in its previous years statutory financial statements and any application for such

approval must include such information as the BMA may require Based upon the total statutory capital plus the

statutory surplus as set out in its 2010 statutory financial statements that will be filed in 2011 Wind River

Reinsurance could pay dividend of up to $247.5 million without requesting BMA approval Wind River is

dependent on receiving distributions from its subsidiaries in order to pay the full dividend

Under the Companies Act Wind River Reinsurance may only declare or pay dividend if Wind River

Reinsurance has no reasonable grounds for believing that it is or would after the payment be unable to pay its
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liabilities as they become due or if the realizable value of its assets would not be less than the aggregate of its

liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium accounts

In 2010 profit distributions not in respect to liquidations by the Luxembourg Companies were generally

subject to Luxembourg dividend withholding tax at rate of 15% unless domestic law exemption or lower tax

treaty rate applies There is no Luxembourg dividend withholding tax in 2010 Dividends paid by any
of the

Luxembourg Companies to their Luxembourg resident parent company are exempt from Luxembourg dividend

withholding tax provided that at the time of the dividend distribution the resident parent company has held or

commits itself to continue to hold 10% or more of the nominal paid up capital of the distributing entity or in the

event of lower percentage participation participation having an acquisition price of Euro 1.2 million or more for

period of at least twelve months

For discussion of factors affecting our ability to pay dividends see Business Regulation in Item of

Part Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Liquidity and

Capital Resources Sources and Uses of Funds in Item of Part II and Note 18 of the notes to the consolidated

financial statements in Ttem of Part TI of this
report

Item Selected Financial Data

The following table sets forth selected consolidated historical financial data for Global Indemnity and should

be read together with the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes and Managements Dis

cussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations included elsewhere in this report No cash

dividends were declared on common stock in any year presented in the table

For the Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Dollars in thousands except shares and per share data

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data

Gross premiums written 345763 340999 378700 563112 652965

Net premiums written 296504 290995 309080 490535 560535

Net premiums earned 286774 301674 382508 536323 546469

Net realized investment gains tosses 26437 15862 50259 968 570
Total revenues 370487 387750 400079 614632 612437

Impairments of goodwill and intangible assets 96449
Income loss from continuing operationsl 84903 75437 141560 98917 89338

Net income loss 84903 75437 141560 98917 99418

Per share data24
Income loss from continuing operationsl 84903 75437 141560 98917 89338

Basic 2.81 2.92 7.741 4.80 4.36

Diluted 2.80 2.91 7.74 4.76 4.32

Net income loss available to common shareholders 84903 75437 141560 98917 99418

Basic 2.81 2.92 7.74 4.80 4.85

Diluted 2.80 2.91 7.74 4.76 4.81

Weighted average number of shares outstanding3

Basic 30237787 25856049 18278094 20629013 20478554

Diluted 30274259 25881610 18278094 20785119 20668308

The results of our discontinued operations for 2010 2009 2008 and 2007 relating to our Agency Operations

that were sold in 2006 are included in income from continuing operations due to immateriality The results of

discontinued operations continue to be stated separately for 2006

In 2008 Diluted loss per
share is the same as Basic loss

per
share since there was net loss for that year

In May 2009 we issued 17.2 million Class ordinary shares and 11.4 million Class ordinary shares in

conjunction with the Rights Offering In computing the basic and diluted weighted share counts the number of

shares outstanding prior to May 2009 the date that the ordinary shares were issued in conjunction with the

Rights Offering was adjusted by factor of 1.114 to reflect the impact of bonus element associated with the

Rights Offering in accordance with appropriate accounting guidance As result share counts for the prior

periods have been restated
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Shares outstanding and per share amounts have been restated to reflect the -for-2 stock exchange effective

July 2010 when the Company completed its re-domestication to Ireland

Consolidated Insurance Operating Ratios based on our GAAP Results1

Loss ratio23

Expense ratio

Combined ratio23
_________ _________ _________ _________ _________

Net/gross premiums written
________ ________ ________

Our insurance operating ratios are non-GAAP financial measures that are generally viewed in the insurance

industry as indicators of underwriting profitability The loss ratio is the ratio of net losses and loss adjustment

expenses to net premiums earned The expense ratio is the ratio of acquisition costs and other underwriting

expenses to net premiums earned The combined ratio is the sum of the loss and expense ratios The ratios

presented here represent the consolidated results of both our Insurance Operations and Reinsurance Operations

Our 2010 loss and combined ratios were impacted by $54.1 million reduction of net losses and loss adjustment

expenses for prior accident years Our 2009 loss and combined ratios were impacted by $9.1 million reduction

of net losses and loss adjustment expenses for prior accident years Our 2008 loss and combined ratios were

impacted by $34.9 million increase of net losses and loss adjustment expenses for prior accident years Our

2007 loss and combined ratios were impacted by $29.1 million reduction of net losses and loss adjustment

expenses for prior accident years Our 2006 loss and combined ratios were impacted by $15.6 million

reduction of net losses and loss adjustment expenses for prior accident years See Results of Operations in

Item of Part II of this report for details of these items and their impact on the loss and combined ratios

Our loss and combined ratios for 2010 2009 2008 2007 and 2006 include $2.8 million $5.8 million

$21.5 million $1.7 million and $4.6 million respectively of catastrophic losses from our U.S Insurance

Operations See Results of Operations in Item of Part II of this report for discussion of the impact of these

losses on the loss and combined ratios

45.4 56.2 79.8 55.8 55.7

41.2 39.8 37.3 32.5 31.8

86.6 96.0 117.1 88.3 87.5

85.8 853 81.6 87.1 85.8

Financial Position as of Last Day of Period

Total investments and cash and cash equivalents $1717186

Reinsurance receivables net of allowance 422844

Total assets 2294683

Senior notes payable 90000

Junior subordinated debentures 30929

Unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses 1052743

Total shareholders equity 928669

$1731314

543351

2445780

90000

30929

1257741

831976

$1599528

679277

2477059

90000

30929

1506429

631993

$1765103

719706

2775172

90000

46393

1503237

836276

$1656664

982502

2984616

90000

61857

1702010

763270
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Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in

conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes of Global Indemnity included

elsewhere in this report Some of the information contained in this discussion and analysis or set forth elsewhere in

this report including information with respect to our plans and strategy constitutes forward-looking statements that

involve risks and uncertainties Please see Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements at the end of

this Item and Risk Factors in Item above for more information You should review Risk Factors in Item lA

above for discussion of important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from the results

described in or implied by the forward-looking statements contained herein

Recent Developments

Re-domestication to Ireland

In February 2010 our Board of Directors approved plan for us to re-domesticate from the Cayman Islands to

Ireland At special shareholders meeting held on May 27 2010 our shareholders approved the re-domestication

proposal pursuant to which all United America Indemnity Ltd ordinary shares would be cancelled and all holders

of such shares would receive ordinary shares of Global Indemnity plc newly formed Irish company on

one-for-two basis The re-domestication transaction was completed on July 2010 following approval from the

Grand Court of the Cayman Islands at which time Global Indemnity plc replaced United America Indemnity Ltd

as the ultimate parent company and United America Indemnity Ltd became wholly-owned subsidiary of Global

Indemnity plc Shares of United America Indemnity Ltd previously traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market

under the symbol INDM Shares of the Irish company Global Indemnity plc began trading on the NASDAQ
Global Select Market on July 2010 under the symbol GBLI

Profit Enhancement Initiative

On November 2010 we comntitted to Profit Enhancement Initiative with respect to our U.S Insurance

Operations The plan was initiated on November 2010 and is part of our efforts to streamline our operations in

response to the continuing impact of the domestic recession as well as the competitive landscape within the excess

and surplus lines market As part of this initiative the Company intended to enhance profitability and earnings

through reducing its U.S based census by approximately 25% closing underperforming U.S facilities and

supplementing staffing in Bermuda and in Ireland All action items relating to this initiative were implemented by

Decemher 31 2010

The total cost of implementing this initiative was recorded in our consolidated statements of operations within

our Insurance Operations segment in the fourth quarter of 2010 Components of the initiative included employee

termination and severance charges of $1.71 million expenses of $1.53 million relating to discontinuing use of

leased office space net of sublease income restructuring expenses of $0.63 million for related asset and

leasehold improvement impairments ançl expenses of $2.91 million relating to the curtailment of our workers

compensation product initiative consisting of minimum ceded premium charge of $1.48 on our workers

compensation reinsurance treaty and $1.43 million in asset impairments We project that this restructuring plan will

result in annual savings beginning in 2011 of approximately $9 million to $11 million on pre-tax basis although

there can be no assurance that all of these savings will be realized See Note of the notes to the consolidated

financial statements in Item of Part II of this report for discussion on the Profit Enhancement Initiative

Appointment of Matthew Scott

On July 2010 we announced the appointment of Matthew Scott as President of the United National

Group the specific binding authority side of our Insurance Operations This appointment coincides with the

resignation of Scott Reynolds who had served as President of the United National Group since July 2008

Mr Scott will continue as President of the Penn-America Group our wholesale general agency business
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Appointment of Mr James Crystal

On July 2010 we announced the appointment of Mr James Crystal to our Board of Directors effective as

of that date

Retirement of Mr Stephen Cozen

On September 22 2010 we announced that Mr Stephen Cozen will be retiring from our Board of Directors

effective as of December 31 2010

Appointment of Ms Mary Hennessy

On September 22 2010 we announced that Ms Mary Hennessy FCAS has joined the Board effective as of

September 20 2010

AON Settlement

On December 2008 federal jury in the U.S District Court for the Eastem District of Pennsylvania

Philadelphia returned $24.0 million verdict in favor of United National Insurance Company United National

an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company against AON Corp an insurance and reinsurance broker On

July 24 2009 federal judge from the U.S District Court for the Eastem District of Pennsylvania Philadelphia

upheld that jury verdict In doing so the U.S District Judge increased the verdict to $32.2 million by adding more

than $8.2 million in prejudgment interest AON filed its Notice of Appeal and Bond in the amount of $33.0 million

Oral arguments were heard by the Appellate Court on October 26 2010 In January 2011 we settled with AON for

$16.3 million We realized approximately $7.5 million net of income taxes and attomeys fees

New Zealand Earthquake

On February 22 2011 an earthquake struck Christchurch New Zealand Given the magnitude and recent

occurrence of this event there is lack of data available from industry participants resulting in significant

uncertainty with respect to potential insured losses and as result the Companys potential losses from this event

While we are still evaluating the potential loss our current estimate is approximately $5.1 million Actual losses

from this event may vary materially from our current estimates due to the inherent uncertainties resulting from

several factors including the preliminary nature of the loss data available and potential inaccuracies and

inadequacies in the data provided

Japan Earthquake and Tsunami

On March 11 2011 an earthquake and resultant tsunami struck off the northeast coast of Japan Given the

magnitude and recent occurrence of this event there is lack of data available from industry participants resulting in

significant uncertainty with respect to potential insured losses and as result the Companys potential losses from

this event We are evaluating our exposure to loss from this event and have not determined an initial estimate

Overview

Our Insurance Operations distribute property and casualty insurance products through group of approx

imately 103 professional general agencies that have limited quoting and binding authority as well as number of

wholesale insurance brokers who in turn sell our insurance products to insureds through retail insurance brokers We

operate predominantly in the excess and surplus lines marketplace To manage our operations we differentiate them

by product classification These product classifications are Penn-America which includes property and general

liability products for small commercial businesses distributed through select network of wholesale general agents

with specific binding authority United National which includes property general liability and professional lines

products distributed through program administrators with specific binding authority and Diamond State which

includes property casualty and professional lines products distributed through wholesale brokers and program

administrators with specific binding authority
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Our Reinsurance Operations are comprised of the operations of Wind River Reinsurance Bermuda based

treaty reinsurer of excess and surplus lines and specialty property and casualty insurance

We derive our revenues primarily from premiums paid on insurance policies that we write and from income

generated by our investment portfolio net of fees paid for investment management services The amount of

insurance premiums that we receive is function of the amount and type of policies we write as well as of prevailing

market prices

Our expenses include losses and loss adjustment expenses acquisition costs and other underwriting expenses

corporate and other operating expenses interest other investment expenses and income taxes Losses and loss

adjustment expenses are estimated by management and reflect our best estimate of ultimate losses and costs arising

during the reporting period and revisions of prior period estimates We record losses and loss adjustment expenses

based on an actuarial analysis of the estimated losses we expect to incur on the insurance policies we write The

ultimate losses and loss adjustment expenses will depend on the actual costs to resolve claims Acquisition costs

consist principally of commissions that are typically percentage of the premiums on the insurance policies we

write net of ceding commissions earned from reinsurers and allocated internal costs Other underwriting expenses

consist primarily of personnel expenses and general operating expenses Corporate and other operating expenses are

comprised primarily of outside legal fees other professional fees including accounting fees directors fees

management fees salaries and benefits for company personnel whose services relate to the support of corporate

activities and capital duty taxes incurred Interest expense consists primarily of interest on senior notes payable

junior subordinated debentures and funds held on behalf of others

Critical Accounting Estimates and Policies

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in conformity with GAAP which requires us to make

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial

statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods See Note of the notes

to consolidated financial statements contained in Item of Part II of this report Actual results could differ from

those estimates and assumptions We believe that of our significant accounting policies the following may involve

higher degree of judgment and estimation

Liability For Unpaid Losses And Loss Adjustment Expenses

Although variability is inherent in estimates we believe that the liability for unpaid losses and loss adjustment

expenses reflects our best estimate for future amounts needed to pay losses and related loss adjustment expenses and

the impact of our reinsurance
coverages

with respect to insured events

In developing loss and loss adjustment expense loss or losses reserve estimates for our Insurance

Operations our actuaries perform detailed reserve analyses each quarter To perform the analysis the data is

organized at reserve category level reserve category can be line of business such as commercial automobile

liability or it can be particular type of claim such as construction defect The reserves within reserve category

level are characterized as short-tail throukh long-tail Most of our business can be characterized as medium to long-

tail For long-tail business it will generally be several years between the time the business is written and the time

when all claims are settled Our long-tail exposures include general liability professional liability products liability

commercial automobile liability and excess and umbrella Short-tail exposures include property commercial

automobile physical damage and equine mortality To manage our insurance operations we differentiate them by

product classifications which are Penn-America United National and Diamond State For further discussion about

our product classifications see General Our Insurance Operations in Item of Part of this report Each of our

product classifications contain both long-tail and short-tail exposures Every reserve category is analyzed by our

actuaries each quarter The analyses generally include reviews of losses gross of reinsurance and net of reinsurance

In addition to our internal reserve analysis independent extemal actuaries performed detailed review of our

reserves for the second and fourth quarters of 2010 We do not rely upon the review by the independent actuaries to

develop our reserves however the data is used to corroborate the analysis performed by the in-house actuarial staff
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Loss reserve estimates for our Reinsurance Operations are developed by independent external actuaries The

data for this analysis is organized by treaty and treaty year As with our reserves for our Insurance Operations

reserves for our Reinsurance Operations are characterized as short-tail through long-tail Most of our business can

be characterized as medium to long-tail Long-tail exposures
include workers compensation professional liability

and excess and umbrella liability Short-tail
exposures are primarily catastrophe exposed property accounts Every

treaty is reviewed each quarter both gross and net of reinsurance

The methods used to project ultimate losses for both long-tail and short-tail exposures include but are not

limited to the following

Paid Development method

Incurred Development method

Expected Loss Ratio method

Bomhuetter-Ferguson method using premiums and paid loss

Bornhuetter-Ferguson method using premiums and incurred loss and

Average Loss method

The Paid Development method estimates ultimate losses by reviewing paid loss patterns and applying them to

accident years with further expected changes in paid loss Selection of the paid loss-pattern requires analysis of

several factors including the impact of inflation on claims costs the rate at which claims professionals make claim

payments and close claims the impact ofjudicial decisions the impact of underwriting changes the impact of large

claim payments and other factors Claim cost inflation itself requires evaluation of changes in the cost of repairing

or replacing property changes in the cost of medical care changes in the cost of wage replacement judicial

decisions legislative changes and other factors Because this method assumes that losses are paid at consistent

rate changes in any of these factors can impact the results Since the method does not rely on case reserves it is not

directly influenced by changes in the adequacy of case reserves

For many reserve categories paid loss data for recent periods may be too immature or erratic for accurate

predictions This situation often exists for long-tail exposures In addition changes in the factors described above

may result in inconsistent payment patterns Finally estimating the paid loss pattern subsequent to the most mature

point available in the data analyzed often involves considerable uncertainty for long-tail reserve categories

The Incurred Development method is similar to the Paid Development method but it uses case incurred losses

instead of paid losses Since this method uses more data case reserves in addition to paid losses than the Paid

Development method the incurred development pattems may be less variable than paid development patterns

However selection of the incurred loss pattern requires analysis of all of the factors listed in the description of the

Paid Development method In addition the inclusion of case reserves can lead to distortions if changes in case

reserving practices have taken place and the use of case incurred losses may not eliminate the issues associated with

estimating the incurred loss pattern subsequent to the most mature point available

The Expected Loss Ratio method multiplies premiums by an expected loss ratio to produce ultimate loss

estimates for each accident year This method may be useful if loss development patterns are inconsistent losses

emerge very slowly or there is relatively little loss history from which to estimate future losses The selection of the

expected loss ratio requires analysis of loss ratios from earlier accident years or pricing studies and analysis of

inflationary trends frequency trends rate changes underwriting changes and other applicable factors

The Bomhuetter-Ferguson method using premiums and paid losses is combination of the Paid Development

method and the Expected Loss Ratio method This method normally determines expected loss ratios similar to the

method used for the Expected Loss Ratio method and requires analysis of the same factors described above The

method assumes that only future losses will develop at the expected loss ratio level The percent of paid loss to

ultimate loss implied from the Paid Development method is used to determine what percentage of ultimate loss is

yet to be paid The use of the pattern from the Paid Development method requires consideration of all factors listed

in the description of the Paid Development method The estimate of losses yet to be paid is added to current paid
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losses to estimate the ultimate loss for each year This method will react very slowly if actual ultimate loss ratios are

different from expectations due to changes not accounted for by the expected loss ratio calculation

The Bomhuetter-Ferguson method using premiums and incurred losses is similar to the Bomhuetter-Ferguson

method using premiums and paid losses except that it uses case incurred losses The use of case incurred losses

instead of paid losses can result in development pattems that are less variable than paid development pattems

However the inclusion of case reserves can lead to distortions if changes in case reserving practices have taken

place and the method requires analysis of all the factors that aeed to be reviewed for the Expected Loss Ratio and

Incurred Development methods

The Average Loss method multiplies projected number of ultimate claims by an estimated ultimate
average

loss for each accident
year to produce ultimate loss estimates Since projections of the ultimate number of claims are

often less variable than projections of ultimate loss this method can provide more reliable results for reserve

categories where loss development pattems are inconsistent or too variable to be relied on exclusively In addition

this method can more directly account for changes in
coverage that impact the number and size of claims However

this method can be difficult to apply to situations where
very large claims or substantial number of unusual claims

result in volatile
average claim sizes Projecting the ultimate number of claims requires analysis of several factors

including the rate at which policyholders report claims to us the impact of judicial decisions the impact of

underwriting changes and other factors Estimating the ultimate average loss requires analysis of the impact of large

losses and claim cost trends based on changes in the cost of repairing or replacing property changes in the cost of

medical care changes in the cost of wage replacement judicial decisions legislative changes and other factors

For many exposures especially those that can be considered long-tail particular accident year may not have

sufficient volume of paid losses to produce statistically reliable estimate of ultimate losses In such case our

actuaries typically assign more weight to the Incurred Development method than to the Paid Development method

As claims continue to settle and the volume of paid losses increases the actuaries may assign additional weight to

the Paid Development method For most of our reserve categories even the incurred losses for accident years that

are early in the claim settlement process will not be of sufficient volume to produce reliable estimate of ultimate

losses In these cases we will not assign any weight to the Paid and Incurred Development methods and will use the

Bomhuetter-Ferguson and Expected Loss Ratio methods For short-tail exposures the Paid and Incurred Devel

opment methods can often be relied on sooner primarily because our history thcludes sufficient number of years to

cover the entire period over which paid and incurred losses are expected to change However we may also use the

Expected Loss Ratio Bomhuetter-Ferguson and Average Loss methods for short-tail exposures

Generally reserves for long-tail lines use the Expected Loss Ratio method for the most recent accident year

shift to the Bornhuetter-Ferguson methods for the next two years and then shift to the Incurred and/or Paid

Development method Claims related to umbrella business are usually reported later than claims for other long-tail

lines For umbrella business the Expected Loss Ratio and Bomhuetter-Ferguson methods are used for as many as

six years before shifting to the Incurred Development method Reserves for short-tail lines use the Bornhuetter

Ferguson methods for the most recent accident year and shift to the Incurred and/or Paid Development method in

subsequent years

For other more complex reserve categories where the above methods may not produce reliable indications we

use additional methods tailored to the characteristics of the specific situation Such reserve categories include losses

from construction defects and AE
For construction defect losses our actuaries organize losses by the year in which they were reported To

estimate losses from claims that have not been reported various extrapolation techniques are applied to the pattern

of claims that have been reported to estimate the number of claims yet to be reported This process requires analysis

of several factors including the rate at which policyholders report claims to us the impact of judicial decisions the

impact of underwriting changes and other factors An average claim size is determined from past experience and

applied to the number of unreported claims to estimate reserves for these claims

Establishing reserves for AE and other mass tort claims involves considerably more judgment than other

types of claims due to among other things inconsistent court decisions an increase in bankruptcy filings as result

of asbestos-related liabilities and judicial interpretations that often expand theories of recovery and broaden the

scope of coverage The insurance industry continues to receive substantial number of asbestos-related bodily
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injury claims with an increasing focus being directed toward other parties including installers of products

containing asbestos rather than against asbestos manufacturers This shift has resulted in significant insurance

coverage litigation implicating applicable coverage defenses or determinations if any including but not limited to

determinations as to whether or not an asbestos-related bodily injury claim is subject to aggregate limits of liability

found in most comprehensive general liability policies In response to these continuing developments management

increased gross and net AE reserves during the second quarter of 2008 to reflect its best estimate of AE
exposures In 2009 one of our insurance companies was dismissed from lawsuit seeking coverage from it and

other unrelated insurance companies The suit involved issues related to approximately 3900 existing asbestos

related bodily injury claims and future claims The dismissal was the result of settlement of disputed claim

related to accident year 1984 The settlement is conditioned upon certain legal events occurring which will trigger

financial obligations by the insurance company Management will continue to monitor the developments of the

litigation to determine if any additional financial exposure is present

Reserve analyses performed by our internal and external actuaries result in actuarial point estimates The

results of the detailed reserve reviews were summarized and discussed with our senior management to determine the

best estimate of reserves This
group considered many factors in making this decision The factors included but

were not limited to the historical pattern and volatility of the actuarial indications the sensitivity of the actuarial

indications to changes in paid and incurred loss patterns the consistency of claims handling processes the

consistency of case reserving practices changes in our pricing and underwriting and overall pricing and

underwriting trends in the insurance market

Managements best estimate at December 31 2010 was recorded as the loss reserve Managements best

estimate is as of particular point in time and is based upon known facts our actuarial analyses current law and our

judgment This resulted in carried gross and net reserves of $1052.7 million and $645.5 million respectively as of

December 31 2010 breakout of our gross and net reserves excluding the effects of our intercompany pooling

arrangements and intercompany stop loss and quota share reinsurance agreements as of December 31 2010 is as

follows

Gross Reserves

Dollars in thousands
Case IBNR1 Total

Insurance Operations $348354 $630274 978628

Reinsurance Operations 20277 53840 74117

Total $368631 $684114 $1052745

Net Reserves2

Dollars in thousands
Case IBNR1 Total

Insurance Operations $214427 $357926 $572353

Reinsurance Operations 20156 53039 73195

Total $234583 $410965 $645548

Losses incurred but not reporte4 including the expected future emergence of case reserves

Does not include reinsurance rceivable on paid losses

We continually review these estimates and based on new developments and information we include

adjustments of the estimated ultimate liability in the operating results for the periods in which the adjustments

are made The establishment of loss and loss adjustment expense reserves makes no provision for the possible

broadening of
coverage by legislative action or judicial interpretation or the emergence of new types of losses not

sufficiently represented in our historical experience or that cannot yet be quantified or estimated We regularly

analyze our reserves and review pricing and reserving methodologies so that future adjustments to prior year

reserves can be minimized However given the complexity of this process reserves require continual updates and

the ultimate liability may be higher or lower than previously indicated Changes in estimates for loss and loss

adjustment expense reserves are recorded in the period that the change in these estimates is made See Note 10 to the

consolidated financial statements in Item of Part II of this report for details conceming the changes in the estimate

for incurred loss and loss adjustment expenses related to prior accident years
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The detailed reserve analyses that our internal and external actuaries complete use variety of generally

accepted actuarial methods and techniques to produce number of estimates of ultimate loss We determine our best

estimate of ultimate loss by reviewing the various estimates and assigning weight to each estimate given the

characteristics of the reserve category being reviewed The reserve estimate is the difference between the estimated

ultimate loss and the losses paid to date The difference between the estimated ultimate loss and the case incurred

loss paid loss plus case reserve is considered to be IBNR IBNR calculated as such includes provision for

development on known cases supplemental development as well as provision for claims that have occurred but

have not yet been reported pure IBNR

In light of the many uncertainties associated with establishing the estimates and making the assumptions

necessary to establish reserve levels we review our reserve estimates on regular basis and make adjustments in the

period that the need for such adjustments is determined The anticipated future loss emergence continues to be

reflective of historical patterns and the selected development patterns have not changed significantly from those

underlying our most recent analyses

The key assumptions fundamental to the reserving process are often different for various reserve categories

and accident years Some of these assumptions are explicit assumptions that are required of particular method but

most of the assumptions are implicit and cannot be precisely quantified An example of an explicit assumption is the

pattern employed in the Paid Development method However the assumed pattem is itself based on several implicit

assumptions such as the impact of inflation on medical costs and the rate at which claim professionals close claims

Loss frequency is measure of the number of claims
per

unit of insured exposure and loss severity is measure of

the
average

size of claims Each reserve segment has an implicit frequency and severity for each accident year as

result of the various assumptions made

Previous reserve analyses have resulted in our identification of information and trends that have caused us to

increase or decrease our frequency and severity assumptions in prior periods and could lead to the identification of

need for additional material changes in loss and loss adjustment expense reserves which could materially affect our

results of operations equity business and insurer financial strength and debt ratings Factors affecting loss frequency

include among other things the effectiveness of loss controls and safety programs and changes in economic activity

or weather patterns Factors affecting loss severity include among other things changes in policy limits and

deductibles rate of inflation and judicial interpretations Another factor affecting estimates of loss frequency and

severity is the loss reporting lag which is the period of time between the occurrence of loss and the date the loss is

reported to us The length of the loss reporting lag affects our ability to accurately predict loss frequency loss

frequencies are more predictable for short-tail lines as well as the amount of reserves needed for IBNR

If the actual levels of loss frequency and severity are higher or lower than expected the ultimate losses will be

different than managements best estimate For most of our reserving classes we believe that frequency can be

predicted with greater accuracy
than severity Therefore we believe managements best estimate is more sensitive

to changes in severity than frequency The following table which we believe reflects reasonable range of

variability around our best estimate based on our historical loss experience and managements judgment reflects

the impact of changes which could be favorable or unfavorable in frequency and severity on our current accident

year net loss estimate of $184.5 million for claims occurring during the year ended December 31 2010

Severity Change

Dollars in thousands
10% 5% 0% 5% 10%

Frequency Change 5% $26747 $17985 $9223 461 8301

3% 23426 14480 5534 3413 12359

2% 21766 12728 3689 5349 14388

1% 20106 10975 1845 7286 16417

0% 18446 9223 9223 18446

1% 16786 7471 1845 11160 20475

2% 15126 5718 3689 13097 22504

3% 13466 3966 5534 15033 24533

5% 10145 461 9223 18907 28591
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Our net reserves for losses and loss expenses of $645.5 million as of December 31 2010 relate to multiple

accident years Therefore the impact of changes in frequency and severity for more than one accident year could be

higher or lower than the amounts reflected above

Recoverability of Reinsurance Receivables

We regularly review the collectability of our reinsurance receivables and we include adjustments resulting

from this review in earnings in the period in which the adjustment arises A.M Best ratings financial history

available collateral and payment history with the reinsurers are several of the factors that we consider when judging

collectability Changes in loss reserves can also affect the valuation of reinsurance receivables if the change is

related to loss reserves that are ceded to reinsurers Certain amounts may be uncollectible if our reinsurers dispute

loss or if the reinsurer is unable to pay If our reinsurers do not pay we are still legally obligated to pay the loss At

December 31 2010 our reinsurance receivables were $423.0 million net of an allowance for uncollectible

reinsurance receivables of $12.7 million At December 31 2010 the Company held collateral securing its

reinsurance receivables of $289.3 million Reinsurance receivables net of collateral held were $133.7 million

at December 31 2010 For listing of the ten reinsurers for which we have the largest reinsurance asset amounts as

of December 31 2010 see Reinsurance of Underwriting Risk in Item of Part of this report See Note of the

notes to the consolidated financial statements in Item of Part II of this report for more details concerning the

collectability of our reinsurance receivables

Investments

The carrying amount of our investments approximates their estimated fair value We regularly perform various

analytical valuation procedures with respect to investments including reviewing each fixed maturity security in an

unrealized loss position to determine the amount of unrealized loss related to credit loss and the amount related to all

other factors such as changes in interest rates The credit loss represents the portion of the amortized book value in

excess of the net present value of the projected future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate implicit in

the debt security prior to impairment The credit loss component of the other than temporary impairment is recorded

through eamings whereas the amount relating to factors other than credit losses are recorded in other compre
hensive income net of taxes During our review we consider credit rating market price and issuer specific

financial information among other factors to assess the likelihood of collection of all principal and interest as

contractually due Securities for which we determine that credit loss is likely are subjected to further analysis to

estimate the credit loss to be recognized in eamings if any See Note of the notes to consolidated financial

statements in Item of Part II of this report for the specific methodologies and significant assumptions used by asset

class Upon identification of such securities and periodically thereafter detailed review is performed to determine

whether the decline is considered other than temporary This review includes an analysis of several factors

including but not limited to the credit ratings and cash flows of the securities and the magnitude and length of time

that the fair value of such securities is below cost

For an analysis of our securities with gross unrealized losses as of December 31 2010 and 2009 and for other

than temporary impairment losses that we recorded for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 please

see Note of the notes to the consolidated financial statements in Item of Part TI of this report

Fair Value Measurements

We categorize our assets that are accounted for at fair value in the consolidated statements into fair value

hierarchy The fair value hierarchy is directly related to the amount of subjectivity associated with the inputs utilized

to determine the fair value of these assets See Note of the notes to the consolidated financial statements in Item

of Part II of this report for further information about the fair value hierarchy and our assets that are accounted for at

fair value

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

During 2008 the
gross written premium of Penn-America declined and the Companys and certain of its

competitors market values declined indicating that goodwill and other intangible assets might be impaired After
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testing the Company concluded that impairment of goodwill and partial impairment of the intangible assets related

to the merger with Penn-America Group Inc was necessary As result the Company recorded an impairment

charge of $92.2 million net of tax in the fourth quarter of 2008 related to the Companys 2005 merger with

Penn-America Group Inc The impairment charge of $92.2 million is comprised of goodwill impairment of $84.3

million an impairment of indefinite lived intangible assets of $0.8 million pre-tax $0.5 million after tax and an

impairment of definite lived intangible assets of $11.4 million pre-tax $7.4 million after-tax

See Note of the notes to the consolidated financial statements in Item of Part II of this report for details

conceming the goodwill and intangible asset testing related to 2008

During 2009 there were no changes to goodwill which was fully impaired in 2008 There were no impairments

to indefinite lived or definite lived intangible assets The balance of definite lived intangible assets related to the

merger with the Penn-America Group Inc of $0.04 million net of accumulated amortization amortized fully in

2010

In April 2010 the Company recorded goodwill of $4.8 million and intangible assets of $10.2 million as result

of an acquisition The acquisition was recorded as business combination using the acquisition method of

accounting in accordance with applicable accounting guidance The intangible assets were comprised of trade

marks customer relationships and non-compete agreements The trademarks were determined to be indefinite

lived and are not subject to amortization The customer relationships and non-compete agreements were determined

to be fmite lived and will be amortized over their estimated useful lives The customer relationships will be

amortized over fifteen years and the non-compete agreements will be amortized over two years

See Note of the notes to the consolidated financial statements in Item of Part II of this report for details

concerning the 2010 acquisition

Taxation

We provide for income taxes in accordance with applicable accounting guidance Our deferred tax assets and

liabilities primarily result from temporary differences between the amounts recorded in our consolidated financial

statements and the tax basis of our assets and liabilities

At each balance sheet date management assesses the need to establish valuation allowance that reduces

deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not that all or some portion of the deferred tax assets will not be

realized valuation allowance would be based on all available information including our assessment of uncertain

tax positions and projections of future taxable income from each tax-paying component in each jurisdiction

principally derived from business plans and available tax planning strategies There are no valuation allowances as

of December 31 2010 The deferred tax asset balance is analyzed regularly by management Based on these

analyses we have determined that our deferred tax asset is recoverable Projections of future taxable income

incorporate several assumptions of futurd business and operations that are apt to differ from actual experience If in

the future our assumptions and estimates that resulted in our forecast of future taxable income for each tax-paying

component prove to be incorrect valuation allowance may be required This could have material adverse effect

on our financial condition results of operations and liquidity

In 2009 we recognized $8.6 million of investment income related to the liquidation of investments in two

limited partnerships Our 2009 tax provision includes federal income tax expense of $3.0 million related to this

investment income

We apply more likely than not recognition threshold for all tax uncertainties only allowing the recognition of

those tax benefits that have greater than 50% likelihood of being sustained upon examination by the taxing

authorities Please see Note of the notes to the consolidated financial statements in Item of Part II of this report

for discussion of our tax uncertainties
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Our Business Segments

We manage our business through two business segments Insurance Operations which includes the operations

of the United National Insurance Companies and the Penn-America Insurance Companies and Reinsurance

Operations which are the operations of Wind River Reinsurance

We evaluate the performance of our Insurance Operations and Reinsurance Operations segments based on

gross and net premiums written revenues in the form of net premiums earned and expenses in the form of net

losses and loss adjustment expenses acquisition costs and other underwriting expenses

See Business Segments in Item of Part of this report for description of our segments

The following table sets forth an analysis of financial data for our segments during the periods indicated

Years Ended December 31

Dollars in thousands
2010 2009 2008

Insurance Operations premiums written

Gross premiums written $245481 $267992 $353130

Ceded premiums written 49416 49728 47651

Net premiums written $196065 $218264 $305479

Reinsurance Operations premiums written

Gross premiums written $100282 73007 25570
Ceded premiums written 157 276 21969

Net premiums written $100439 72731 3601

Revenues1
Insurance Operations $194820 $250409 $374174

Reinsurance Operations 92607 51265 8334

Total revenues $287427 $301674 $382508

Expenses

Insurance Operations $1626263 $2524943 $4311143
Reinsurance Operations 85897 36817 16827

Net expenses $248523 $289311 $447941

Income loss from segments

Insurance Operations 32194 2085 56940
Reinsurance Operations 6710 14448 8493

Total income loss from segments 38904 12363 65433

Insurance combined ratio analysis4

Insurance Operations

Loss ratio 36.6 58.4 78.5

Expense ratio 47.1 42.4 36.7

Combined ratio 83.7 100.8 115.2

Reinsurance Operations

Loss ratio 63.9 45.2 136.2

Expense ratio 28.8 26.6 65.7

Combined ratio 92.7 71.8 201.9

Consolidated

Loss ratio 45.4 56.2 79.8

Expense ratio 41.2 39.8 37.3

Combined ratio 86.6 96.0 117.1

Excludes net investment income and net realized investment gains losses which are not allocated to our

segments

Excludes corporate and other operating expenses
and interest expense which are not allocated to our segments
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Includes excise tax of $1021 $1342 and $1871 related to cessions from our U.S Insurance Companies to

Wind River Reinsurance for 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

Our insurance combined ratios are non-GAAP financial measures that are generally viewed in the insurance

industry as indicators of underwriting profitability The loss ratio is the ratio of net losses and loss adjustment

eApenses to iiet premiums eariied The expense ratio is the ratio of acquisition costs and other underwriting

expenses to net premiums earned The combined ratio is the sum of the loss and expense ratios

Results of Operations

All percentage changes included in the text below have been calculated using the corresponding amounts from

the applicable tables

Year Ended December 31 2010 Compared with the Year Ended December 31 2009

Insurance Operations

The components of income loss from underwriting and underwriting ratios of our Insurance Operations

segment are as follows

Increase/Decrease

Dollars in thousands
2010 2009

Gross premiums written $245481 $267992 $2251l 8.4%

Net premiums written $196065 $218264 $22199 lO.2%

Net premiums earned $194167 $250409 $56242 22.5%

Other income 653 653 100.0%

Total revenues $194820 $250409 $55589 22.2%

Losses and expenses

Net losses and loss adjustment expenses 71175 146197 75022 51.3%

Acquisition costs and other underwriting

expensesl 91451 106297 14846 14.0%

Income loss from underwriting 32194 2085 34279 1644.1%

Underwriting Ratios

Loss ratio

Current accident year 65.9 62.0 3.9

Prior accident
year 29.3 3.6 25.7

Calendar year 36.6 58.4 21.8

Expense ratio

Current accident year 45.7 42.1 3.6

Prior accident year 1.4 0.3 1.1

Calendar year 47.1 42.4 4.7

Combined ratio 83.7 100.8 17.1

Includes excise tax of $1021 and $1342 related to cessions from our U.S Insurance Companies to Wind River

Reinsurance for 2010 and 2009 respectively

Premiums

Gross premiums written which represents the amount received or to be received for insurance policies written

without reduction for reinsurance costs or other deductions was $245.5 million for 2010 compared with

$268.0 million for 2009 decrease of $22.5 million or 8.4% The decrease was primarily due to declines in
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the Penn-America book of business and price decreases in the aggregate of 3.0% offset partially by growth in our

brokerage operations

Net premiums written which equals gross premiums written less ceded premiums written was $196.1 million

for 2010 compared with $218.3 million for 2009 decrease of $22.2 million or 10.2% The decrease was primarily

due to the reduction of gross premiums written noted above higher reinsurance costs and minimum premium

charge of $1.5 million related to the curtailment of our workers compensation initiative In 2011 we increased

retention on our property per risk reinsurance agreement from $1 million to $2 million as well as cancelled our

Penn-America property quota share treaty Please see Note of the notes to the consolidated financial statements in

Item of Part II of this report for more information on our treaty renewals

The ratio of net premiums written to gross premiums written was 79.9% for 2010 and 81.4% for 2009 decline

of 1.5 points which was primarily due to increased reinsurance costs and the minimum premium charge noted

above Without the impact of the premium charge the ratio of net premiums written to gross premiums written was

80.5% in 2010

Net premiums earned were $194.2 million for 2010 compardd with $250.4 million for 2009 decrease of

$56.2 million or 22.5% The decrease was primarily due to the reductions in net premiums written in recent years

Property net premiums earned for 2010 and 2009 were $75.2 million and $103.5 million respectively

Casualty net premiums earned for 2010 and 2009 were $119.0 million and $146.9 million respectively

Net Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses

The loss ratio for our Insurance Operations was 36.6% for 2010 compared with 58.4% for 2009 The loss ratio

is non-GAAP financial measure that is generally viewed in the insurance industry as an indicator of underwriting

profitability and is calculated by dividing net losses and loss adjustment expenses by net premiums earned

The loss ratio improved 25.7 points resulting from decrease of net losses and loss adjustment expenses
for

prioraccident years of $56.8 million in 2010 compared to decrease of net losses and loss adjustment expenses
for

prior accident years of $9.1 million in 2009 When analyzing loss reserves and prior year development we consider

many factors including the frequency and severity of claims loss credit trends case reserve settlements that may
have resulted in significant development and any other additional or pertinent factors that may impact reserve

estimates

In 2010 we reduced our prior accident year loss reserves by $56.6 million and reduced our allowance for

uncollectible reinsurance by $0.2 million The reduction of our prior accident year loss reserves primarily

consisted of $43.7 million reduction in our general liability lines $5.4 million reduction in our umbrella

lines $4.9 million reduction in our professional liability lines and $2.0 million reduction in our property

lines

General Liability The reduction in the general liability lines primarily consisted of reductions of

$45.4 million related to acciçlent years 2002 through 2009 due to lower than anticipated frequency and

severity Incurred losses forthese years have developed at rate lower than the Companys historical

averages This reduction was partially offset by net increases of $1.8 million related to accident years

2001 and prior where the Company increased the loss and loss adjustment expense estimates related to

construction defect claims

Umbrella The $5.4 million reduction in the umbrella lines related to all accident years 2009 and prior

due to less than anticipated severity As these accident years have matured more weight has been given to

experience based methods which continue to develop favorably compared to our initial indications

ProfessionalLiability The reduction in the professional liability lines primarily consisted of reductions

of $9.9 million related to accident years 2001 through 2008 driven by lower than expected paid and

incurred activity during the quarter This reduction was partially offset by increases of $5.0 million related

to accident year 2009 where the Company experienced higher than expected claim frequency and severity
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Property The reduction in the property lines primarily consisted of reductions of $2.9 million related to

accident years 2002 and 2004 through 2008 driven by lower than anticipated severity partially offset by

increases of $0.9 million primarily related to accident year 2009 where the Company experienced higher

than expected claim frequency and severity

The reduction in our allowance for uncollectible reinsurance is primarily due to the decrease in the amount of

our carried reinsurance receivables

In 2009 we reduced our prior accident
year loss reserves by $8.4 million and reduced our allowance for

uncollectible reinsurance by $0.7 million The reduction of our prior accident
year loss reserves primarily

consisted of $5.5 million reduction in our property lines $2.9 million reduction in our general liability

lines and $4.7 million reduction in our umbrella lines offset by $4.7 million increase in our professional

liability lines

Property The reduction in the property lines primarily consisted of reductions related to accident year

2006 through 2008 due to better than expected loss emergence in Diamond State brokerage

General Liability The reduction in the general liability lines primarily consisted of net reductions of

$13.5 million related to accident years 2006 and prior due to loss emergence that had been consistently

lower than expected during those years partially offset by increases of $10.6 million related to accident

years 2007 and 2008 that were driven by large claim and an increase in our construction defect

provisions for Penn-America

Umbrella The reduction in the umbrella lines primarily consisted of net reductions of $5.1 million

related to accident years 2007 and prior that were driven by loss emergence throughout the year that was

consistently better than expected partially offset by increases of $0.4 million related to accident year

2008

Professional Liability The increase to the professional liability lines primarily consisted of increases of

$10.1 million related to accident years 2007 and 2008 due to an increase in severity partially offset by net

reductions of $5.4 million primarily related to accident years 2006 and prior

The reduction in our allowance for uncollectible reinsurance is primarily due to the decrease in the amount of

our carried reinsurance receivables

The current accident year loss ratio increased 3.9 points in 2010 due to increases in both the property and

casualty loss ratios

The current accident year property loss ratio increased 5.9 points from 55.3% in 2009 to 61.2% in 2010

which consisted of 6.1 point increase in the non-catastrophe loss ratio from 51.4% in 2009 to 57.5% in

2010 offset by 0.1 point decrease in the catastrophe loss ratio from 3.9% in 2009 to 3.8% in 2010 There

was very little significant catastrophe activity during 2010 and 2009 Catastrophe losses were $2.8 million

and $4.0 million in 2010 and 2009 respectively The property loss ratio was impacted by rate decreases of

approximately 3.4% as well as higher reinsurance costs in 2010 when compared to 2009 Property net

premiums earned for 2010 and 2009 were $75.2 million and $103.5 million respectively

The current accident year casualty loss ratio increased 2.1 points from 66.8% in 2009 to 68.9% in 2010

primarily due to rate decreases of approximately 2.7% and higher reinsurance costs in 2010 Casualty net

premiums earned for 2010 and 2009 were $119.0 million and $146.9 million respectively

Net losses and loss adjustment expenses were $71.2 million for 2010 compared with $146.2 million for 2009

decrease of $75.0 million or 51.3% Excluding the $56.8 million reduction of net losses and loss adjustment

expenses for prioraccident years in 2010 and the $9.1 million reduction of net losses and loss adjustment expenses

for prior accident years in 2009 the current accident year net losses and loss adjustment expenses were

$128.0 million and $155.3 million for 2010 and 2009 respectively This decrease is primarily attributable to

decrease in net premiums earned
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Acquisition Costs and Other Undenvriting Expenses

Acquisition costs and other underwriting expenses were $91.5 million for 2010 compared with $106.3 million

for 2009 decrease of $14.8 million or 14.0% The decrease is due to $12.6 million decrease in acquisition costs

and $2.2 million decrease in other underwriting expenses We incurred $2.8 million in acquisition costs related to

prior accident years in 2010 compared with $0.8 million related to prior accident years in 2009 an increase of

$2.0 million

The decrease in acquisition costs is primarily due to decrease in commissions resulting from decrease in

net premiums earned The increase in acquisition costs related to prior accident years is primarily due to an

increase in contingent conmtissions related to the prior accident year loss reserve releases noted above

The decrease in other underwriting expenses is primarily due to decreases in compensation related expenses

and decreases in legal fees partially offset by one-time charges of $3.9 million related to the Profit

Enhancement Initiative See Note of the notes to the consolidated financial statements in Item of Part II of

this report for discussion on the Profit Enhancement Initiative

Expense and Combined Ratios

The expense ratio for our Insurance Operations was 47.1% for 2010 compared with 42.4% for 2009 The

current accident year expense ratio was 45.7% for 2010 compared with 42.1% for 2009 The expense ratio is non

GAAY financial measure that is calculated by dividing the sum of acquisition costs and other underwriting expenses

by nçt premiums earned The increase in the expense ratio is primarily due to the decrase in net premiums earned

noted above as well as one-time charges related to the Profit Enhancement Initiative of 1.5% or $3.9 million

The combined ratio for our Insurance Operations was 83.7% for 2010 compared with 100.8% for 2009 The

combined ratio is non-GAAP financial measure and is the sum of our loss and expense ratios Excluding the

impact of prior accident year adjustments the combined ratio increased from 104.2% in 2009 to 111.6% in 2010

See discussion of loss ratio included in Net Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses above and discussion of

expense ratio in preceding paragraph above for an explanation of this increase

Income loss from underwriting

The factors described above resulted in income from underwriting for our Insurance Operations of

$32.2 million for 2010 compared with loss from underwriting of $2.1 million for 2009 an increase of

$34.3 million
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Reinsurance Operations

The components of income from underwriting and underwriting ratios of our Reinsurance Operations segment

are as follows

IncreaselDeerease

Dollars in thousands
2010 2009

Gross premiums written $100282 $73007 $27275 37.4%

Net premiums written $100439 $72731 $27708 38.1%

Net premiums earned 92607 $51265 $41342 80.6%

Losses and expenses

Net losses and loss adjustment expenses 59184 23185 35999 155.3%

Acquisition costs and other underwriting expenses 26713 13632 13081 96.0%

Income from underwriting 6710 $14448 7738 53.6%

Underwriting Ratios

Loss ratio

Current accident year 61.0 45.2 15.8

Prior accident year
2.9 2.9

Calendar year loss ratio 63.9 45.2 18.7

Expense ratio

Current accident year 27.2 26.6 0.6

Prior accident year
1.6 1.6

Calendar year 28.8 26.6 2.2

Combined ratio 92.7 71.8 20.9

Premiums

Gross premiums written which represents the amount received or to be received for reinsurance agreements

written without reduction for reinsurance costs or other deductions was $100.3 million for 2010 compared with

$73.0 million for 2009 an increase of $27.3 million or 37.4% The increase was primarily due to several new

reinsurance treaties that were written during 2010

Net premiums written which equals gross premiums written less ceded premiums written was $100.4 million

for 2010 compared with $72.7 million for 2009 an increase of $27.7 million or 38.1% The increase was primarily

due to the increase in gross premiums written as described above

The ratio of net premiums written to gross premiums written was 100.2% for 2010 and 99.6% for 2009

Net premiums earned were $92.6 million for 2010 compared with $51.3 million for 2009 an increase of

$41.3 million or 80.6% The increase ws primarily due to new reinsurance treaties that commenced during 2009

and 2010 Property net premiums eamed for 2010 and 2009 were $35.3 million and $23.5 million respectively

Casualty net premiums earned for 2010 and 2009 were $57.3 million and $27.8 million respectively

Net Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses

The loss ratio for our Reinsurance Operations was 63.9% for 2010 compared with 45.2% for 2009 The loss

ratio is non-GAAY financial measure that is generally viewed in the insurance industry as an indicator of

underwriting profitability and is calculated by dividing net losses and loss adjustment expenses by net premiums

earned

The impact of changes to prior accident years is an increase of 2.9 points resulting from an increase of net

losses and loss adjustment expenses for prior accident years of $2.7 million in 2010 and an increase of net losses and
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loss adjustment expenses forprior accident years of $0.03 million in 2009 When analyzing loss reserves and prior

year development we consider many factors including the frequency and severity of claims loss credit trends case

reserve settlements that may have resulted in significant development and any other additional or pertinent factors

that may impact reserve estimates

In 2010 we increased our prioraccident
year loss reserves by $2.7 million The increase in our prior accident

year loss reserves primarily consisted of $2.6 million increase in our automobile liability lines

$0.5 million increase in our workers compensation lines offset partially by decrease of $0.5 million

in our property lines

Automobile Liability The increase in the automobile liability lines was primarily due to increases of

$2.5 million related to higher frequency within accident year 2009 from non-standard auto treaty

Workers Compensation The increase in our workers compensation lines is related to an accident year

2009 structured excess of loss treaty where we increased our loss estimates based on industry workers

compensation results

Property The reduction in the property lines primarily consisted of reductions of $0.7 million related to

accident year 2009 partially offset by increases of $0.2 million related to accident year 2008 These

changes are due to continuing emergence of loss trends on our catastrophe treaty

In 2009 we increased our prior accident
year loss reserves by $0.03 million which primarily consisted of

increases in our general liability lines The increase to the general liability lines was related to accident years

2007 and 2008

In 2010 the current accident year loss ratio increased 15.8 points from 45.2% in 2009 to 61.0% in 2010 The

casualty lines loss ratio was 75.1% in 2010 compared to 77.1% in 2009 The property lines loss ratio was 38.2% in

2010 compared to 7.5% in 2009 We experienced abnormally low levels of catastrophe losses in 2009 In 2010 we

experienced catastrophe losses from New Zealand earthquakes Perth hail storms Australian floods and other

smaller events

Net losses and loss adjustment expenses were $59.2 million for 2010 compared with $23.2 million for 2009

an increase of $36.0 million or 155.3% Excluding the $2.7 million increase of net losses and loss adjustment

expenses for prior accident years in 2010 and the $0.03 million increase of net losses and loss adjustment expenses

for prior accident years in 2009 the current accident year net losses and loss adjustment expenses were $56.5 million

and $23.2 million for 2010 and 2009 respectively This increase is primarily attributable to an increase in net

premiums earned and the factors that caused an increased current accident year loss ratio as described above

Acquisition Costs and Other Underwriting Expenses

Acquisition costs and other underwriting expenses were $26.7 million for 2010 compared with $13.6 million

for 2009 an increase of $13.1 million or 96.0% We incurred $1.5 million in acquisition costs related to prior

accident
years

in 2010 while we did not make any adjustments to prior accident year acquisition costs in 2009 The

entire increase in acquisition costs ançl other underwriting expenses is due to increases in conmiissions resulting

from the increase in net premiums earned The increase in acquisition costs related to prior accident years is

primarily due to timing of contingent commission expenses
incurred

Expense and Combined Ratios

The expense ratio for our Reinsurance Operations was 28.8% for 2010 compared with 26.6% for 2009 The

current accident year expense ratio was 27.2% for 2010 compared with 26.6% for 2009 The expense ratio is non

GAAP financial measure that is calculated by dividing the sum of acquisition costs and other underwriting expenses

by net premiums earned The increase in the expense ratio is primarily due to changes in our mix of business

The combined ratio for our Reinsurance Operations was 92.7% for 2010 compared with 71.8% for 2009 The

combined ratio is non-GAAY financial measure and is the sum of our loss and expense ratios Excluding the

impact of prior accident year adjustments the combined ratio increased from 71.8% in 2009 to 88.2% in 2010 See
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discussion of loss ratio included in Net Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses above and discussion of expense

ratio in preceding paragraph above for an explanation of this increase

Income from underwriting

The factors described above resulted in income from underwriting for our Reinsurance Operations of

$6.7 million in 2010 compared to $14.4 million in 2009 decrease of $7.7 million

Unallocated Corporate Items

The following items are not allocated to our Insurance Operations or Reinsurance Operations segments

Increase/Decrease

2010 2009

Dollars in thousands

Net investment income 56623 70214 $13591 19.4%

Net realized investment gains 26437 15862 10575 66.7%

Corporate and other operating expenses 21127 16752 4375 26.1%

Interest expense 7020 7216 196 2.7%

Income tax expense 8892 4310 4582 106.3%

Equity in net income loss of partnership net of tax 22 5276 5298 100.4%

Net Investment Income

Net investment income which is gross investment income less investment expenses was $56.6 million for

2010 compared with $70.2 million for 2009 decrease of $13.6 million or 19.4%

Gross investment income was $62.6 million for 2010 compared with $74.9 million for 2009 decrease of

$12.3 million or 16.4% There was no investment income generated by our limited partnership investments

in 2010 but $8.6 million generated from these investments in 2009 Excluding distributions from our limited

partnership investments gross
investment income for 2010 decreased $3.6 million or 5.5% compared to

2009 The remaining decrease was primarily due to continuing declines in our yield as interest rates declined

throughout 2010 We reduced the
average

duration of our investment portfolio in 2010 in order to maintain

defensive posture in the current low interest rate environment We continue to increase our investments in

equity securities and corporate loans which generally have higher yield than traditional fixed income

securities to offset the increased credit risk

Cash and invested assets net of payable for securities purchased increased to $1712.4 million as of

December 31 2010 from $1694.1 million as of December 31 2009 an increase of $18.3 million or 1.1%

This increase was primarily due to timing of purchases and sales of securities

Investment expenses were $6.0 million for 2010 compared with $4.7 million for 2009 an increase of

$1.3 million or 28.2% The increase was primarily due to additional fees related to our investments in

corporate loans

The average duration of our fixed maturities portfolio was 2.2 years as of December 31 2010 compared with

2.8 years as of December 31 2009 Including cash and short-term investments the average duration of our fixed

maturities portfolio as of December 31 2010 and 2009 was 2.1 years Changes in interest rates can cause principal

payments on certain investments to extend or shorten which can impact duration At December 31 2010 our book

yield on our fixed maturities not including cash was 3.92% compared with 4.34% at December 31 2009 As of

December 31 2010 our investment portfolio held $180.9 million in tax-exempt municipals with book yield of

3.68% and $64.1 million in taxable municipals with book yield of 2.99%
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Net Realized Investment Gains

Net realized investment gains were $26.4 million for 2010 compared with $15.9 million for 2009 The net

realized investment gains for 2010 consist primarily of net gains of $17.4 million relative to our fixed maturities and

$9.5 relative to our equity securities offset by other than temporary impainnent losses of $0.5 miffion The net

realized investment gains for 2009 consist primarily of net gains of $5.4 million relative to market value changes in

our convertible portfolio and net gains of $16.1 million relative to our fixed maturities and equity portfolios offset

by other than temporary impairment losses of $5.6 million

See Note of the notes to the consolidated financial statements in Item of Part II of this report for an analysis

of total investment return on an after-tax basis for the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009

Corporate and Other Operating Expenses

Corporate and other operating expenses consist of outside legal fees other professional fees development

costs directors fees management fees salaries and benefits for holding company personnel and taxes incurred

which are not directly related to operations Corporate and other operating expenses were $21.1 million for 2010

compared with $16.8 million tor 2009 an increase of $4.4 million or 26.1% This increase was primarily due to one

time charges related to the Profit Enhancement Initiative and infrastructure costs related to IT upgrades offset by

decreases in professional service fees

Interest Expense

Interest expense was $7.0 million and $7.2 million for 2010 and 2009 respectively The reduction was due to

decreases in LIBOR rates during 2010 which is the basis for interest paid on the trust preferred debt See Note 11 of

the notes to the consolidated financial statements in Item of Part II of this report for details on our debt

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense was $8.9 million for 2010 compared with $4.3 million for 2009 See Note of the notes to

the consolidated financial statements in Item of Part II of this report for an analysis of income tax expense between

periods

Equity in Net Earnings Loss of Partnerships

Equity in net loss of partnerships net of tax was $0.02 million for 2010 compared with equity in net earnings

of partnerships net of tax of $5.3 million for 2009 decrease of $5.3 million The income in 2009 was due to the

performances of limited partnership investments which invest mainly in high yield bonds and corporate loans All

but the remaining value of $1.1 million of the partnership interests that generated income in 2009 was redeemed as

of December 31 2009 The Companys remaining interest of $1.1 million was liquidated in February 2011

Net Income

The factors described above resulted in net income of $84.9 million in 2010 compared with $75.4 million in

2009 an increase of $9.5 million
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Year Ended December 31 2009 Compared with the Year Ended December 31 2008

Insurance Operations

The components of loss from underwriting and underwriting ratios of our Insurance Operations segment are as

follows

IncreaselDecrease

Dollars in thousands
2009 2008

Gross premiums written $267992 $353130 85138 24.1%

Net premiums written $218264 $305479 87215 28.6%

Net premiums earned $250409 $374174 $123765 33.1%

Losses and expenses

Net losses and loss adjustment expenses 146197 293820 147623 50.2%

Acquisition costs and other underwriting

expenses1 106297 137294 30997 22.6%

Loss from underwriting 2085 56940 54855 96.3%

Underwriting Ratios

Loss ratio

Current accident year 62.0 69.7 7.7

Prior accident year 3.6 8.8 12.4

Calendar year 58.4 78.5 20.1

Expense ratio 42.4 36.7 5.7

Combined ratio 100.8 115.2 14.4

Includes excise tax of $1342 and $1871 related to cessions from our U.S Insurance Companies to Wind River

Reinsurance for 2009 and 2008 respectively

Premiums

Gross premiums written which represents the amount received or to be received for insurance policies written

without reduction for reinsurance costs or other deductions was $268.0 million for 2009 compared with

$353.1 million for 2008 decrease of $85.1 million or 24.1% The decrease was primarily due to reduction

of $35.1 million due to terminated programs and agents and reduction of $50.0 million from price decreases and

other market factors

Net premiums written which equals.gross premiums written less ceded premiums written was $218.3 million

for 2009 compared with $305.5 million for 2008 decrease of $87.2 million or 28.6% The decrease was primarily

due to the reduction of gross premiums written noted above

The ratio of net premiums written to gross premiums written was 81.4% for 2009 and 86.5% for 2008 decline

of 5.1 points which was primarily due to $11.5 million of ceded premiums written related to new quota share

treaty that we executed on Penn-Americas property lines of business effective January 2009 and changes in our

mix of business

Net premiums earned were $250.4 million for 2009 compared with $374.2 million for 2008 decrease of

$123.8 million or 33.1% The decrease was primarily due to the reductions of net premiums written in recent years

Property net premiums eamed for 2009 and 2008 were $103.5 million and $137.9 million respectively

Casualty net premiums eamed for 2009 and 2008 were $146.9 million and $236.3 million respectively
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Net Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses

The loss ratio for our Insurance Operations was 58.4% for 2009 compared with 78.5% for 2008 The loss ratio

is non-GAAP financial measure that is generally viewed in the insurance industry as an indicator of underwriting

profitability and is calculated by dividing net losses and loss adjustment expenses by net premiums earned

The impact of changes to prior accident years is 12.4 points resulting from decrease of net losses and loss

adjustment expenses for prior accident years of $9.1 million in 2009 compared to an increase of net losses and loss

adjustment expenses for prior accident years of $33.0 million in 2008 When analyzing loss reserves and prior year

development we consider many factors including the frequency and severity of claims loss credit trends case

reserve settlements that may have resulted in significant development and any other additional or pertinent factors

that may impact reserve estimates

In 2009 we reduced our prior accident year loss reserves by $8.4 million and reduced our allowance for

uncollectible reinsurance by $0.7 million The reduction of our prior accident year loss reserves primarily

consisted of $5.5 million reduction in our property lines $2.9 million reduction in our general liability

lines and $4.7 million reduction in our umbrella lines offset by $4.7 million increase in our professional

liability lines

Property The reduction in the property lines primarily consisted of reductions related to accident years

2006 through 2008 due to better than expected loss emergence in Diamond State brokerage

General Liability The reduction in the general liability lines primarily consisted of net reducrions of

$13.5 million related to accident years 2006 and prior due to loss emergence that had been consistently

lower than expected during those years partially offset by increases of $10.6 million related to accident

years
2007 and 2008 that were driven by large claim and an increase in our construction defect

provisions for Penn-America

Umbrella The reduction in the umbrella lines primarily consisted of net reductions of $5.1 million

related to accident
years 2007 and prior that were driven by loss emergence throughout the year that was

consistently better than expected partially offset by increases of $0.4 million related to accident year

2008

Professional Liability The increase to the professional liability lines primarily consisted of increases of

$10.1 million related to accident years 2007 and 2008 due to an increase in severity partially offset by net

reductions of $5.4 million primarily related to accident years 2006 and prior

The reduction in our allowance for uncollectible reinsurance is primarily due to the decrease in the amount of

our carried reinsurance receivables

In 2008 we increased our prior accident year loss reserves by $29.9 million and increased our allowance for

uncollectible reinsurance by $3.1 million The loss reserves increase of $29.9 million consisted of increases

of $15.9 million in our general liability lines and $15.7 million in our professional liability lines offset by

reductions of $1.2 million in our property lines and $0.5 million in our umbrella lines

General Liability The inOrease to the general liability lines consisted of increases of $20.5 million

related to accident years 2006 2007 and 2001 and prior offset by reductions of $4.6 million related to

accident years 2002 through 2005 The increases in 2006 and 2007 are primarily related to greater

severity

Professional Liability The increase to the professional liability lines consisted of increases of

$17.7 million related to accident years 2006 and 2007 offset by reductions of $2.0 million related to

accident years 2005 and prior The increases in 2006 and 2007 are primarily related to greater severity

Property The reduction in property lines consisted of reductions of $2.6 million related to accident

years 2008 and 2003 and prior offset by increases of $1.4 million primarily related to accident years 2004

through 2006

Umbrella The reduction in umbrella lines was primarily related to accident years 2004 and prior
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The current accident year loss ratio decreased 7.7 points in 2009 primarily due to decrease in both the

property and casualty loss ratios

The current accident year property loss ratio decreased 13.9 points from 69.2% in 2008 to 55.3% in 2009
which consists of an 11.4 point decrease in the catastrophe loss ratio from 15.3% in 2008 to 3.9% in 2009 and

2.5 point decrease in the non-catastrophe loss ratio from 53.9% in 2008 to 51.4% in 2009 Catastrophe

losses were $4.0 million and $21.1 million in 2009 and 2008 respectively Catastrophe losses in 2008

included net loss and loss adjustment expenses
related to Hurricanes Ike and Gustav which occurred in

September 2008 and storms in the Midwest that occurred in the first half of 2008 Property net premiums

earned for 2009 and 2008 were $103.5 million and $137.9 million respectively

The current accident year casualty loss ratio decreased 3.2 points from 70.0% in 2008 to 66.8% in 2009

primarily due to changes in our mix of business Casualty net premiums earned for 2009 and 2008 were

$146.9 million and $236.3 million respectively

Net losses and loss adjustment expenses were $146.2 million for 2009 compared with $293.8 million for 2008
decrease of $147.6 million or 50.2% Excluding the $9.1 million reduction of net losses and loss adjustment

expenses
for prior accident years in 2009 and the $33.0 million increase of net losses and loss adjustment expenses

for prior accident
years in 2008 the current accident year net losses and loss adjustment expenses were

$155.3 million and $260.8 million for 2009 and 2008 respectively This decrease is primarily attributable to

decrease in net premiums earned and the decline in the items noted in the loss ratio asdescribed above

Acquisition Costs and Other Underwriting Expenses

Acquisition costs and other underwriting expenses were $106.3 million for 2009 compared with $137.3 million

for 2008 decrease of $31.0 million or 22.6% The decrease is due to $32.5 million decrease in acquisition costs

offset by $1.5 million increase in other underwriting expenses

The decrease in acquisition costs is primarily due to decrease in commissions resulting from decrease in

net premiums earned

The increase in other underwriting expenses is primarily due to the incurrence of infrastructure costs related

to new product development information technology upgrades and additional office locations

Expense and Combined Ratios

The expense ratio for our Insurance Operations was 42.4% for 2009 compared with 36.7% for 2008 The

expense ratio is non-GAAP financial measure that is calculated by dividing the sum of acquisition costs and other

underwriting expenses by net premiums earned The increase in the expense ratio is primarily due to the decrease in

net premiums earned noted above

The combined ratio for our Insurance Operations was 100.8% for 2009 compared with 115.2% for 2008 The

combined ratio is non-GAAP financial measure and is the sum of our loss and expense ratios Excluding the

impact of $9.1 million reduction of prior accident year loss reserves in 2009 and $33.0 million increase of prior

accident
year

loss reserves in 2008 the combined ratio decreased from 106.4% for 2008 to 104.4% for 2009 See

discussion of loss rario included in Net Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses above and discussion of expense

ratio in preceding paragraph above for an explanation of this decrease

Loss from underwriting

The factors described above resulted in loss from underwriting for our Insurance Operations of $2.1 million

for 2009 compared with loss from underwriting of $56.9 million for 2008 decrease in the loss of $54.8 million
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Reinsurance Operations

The components of income loss from underwriting and underwriting ratios of our Reinsurance Operations

segment are as follows

Increase/Decrease

Dollars in thousands
2009 2008

Gross premiums written $73007 $25570 $47437 185.5%

Net premiums written $72731 3601 $69130 1919.7%

Net premiums earned $51265 8334 $42931 515.1%

Losses and expenses

Net losses and loss adjustment expenses 23185 11354 11831 104.2%

Acquisition costs and other underwriting expenses 13632 5473 8159 149.1%

Income loss from underwriting $14448 8493 $22941 NIM

Underwriting Ratios

Loss ratio

Current accident year 45.2 112.8 67.6

Prior accident year 23.4 23.4

Calendar year loss ratio 45.2 136.2 91.0

Expense ratio 26.6 65.7 39.1

Combined ratio 71.8 201.9 130.1

NIM Not meaningful

Premiums

Gross premiums written which represents the amount received or to be received for reinsurance agreements

written without reduction for reinsurance costs or other deductions was $73.0 million for 2009 compared with

$25.6 million for 2008 an increase of $47.4 million or 185.5% The increase was primarily due to several new

reinsurance treaties that commenced during the first quarter of 2009 One of the treaties we entered into during the

first quarter was catastrophe book of business

Net premiums written which equals gross premiums written less ceded premiums written was $72.7 million

for 2009 compared with $3.6 million for 2008 an increase of $62.1 million or 1919.7% The increase was

primarily due to several new reinsurance treaties that commenced during the first quarter of 2009

The ratio of net premiums written to gross premiums written was 99.6% for 2009 and 14.1% for 2008 an

increase of 85.5 points which was primarily due to changes in our mix of business In 2008 one of our largest

treaties was 95% retro-ceded

Net premiums earned were $51.3 million for 2009 compared with $8.3 million for 2008 an increase of

$43.0 million or 515.1% The increase was primarily due to several new reinsurance treaties that commenced during

the first quarter of 2009 and decrease in the amount of gross premiums retro-ceded to our reinsurers in 2008

Property net premiums earned for 2009 and 2008 were $23.5 million and $0.6 million respectively Casualty net

premiums earned for 2009 and 2008 were $27.8 million and $7.7 million respectively

Net Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses

The loss ratio for our Reinsurance Operations was 45.2% for 2009 compared with 136.2% for 2008 The loss

ratio is non-GAAP financial measure that is generally viewed in the insurance industry as an indicator of

underwriting profitability and is calculated by dividing net losses and loss adjustment expenses by net premiums

earned
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The impact of changes to prior accident years is reduction of 23.4 points resulting from an increase of net

losses and loss adjustment expenses for prior accident years of $0.03 million in 2009 and an increase of net losses

and loss adjustment expenses for prior accident years of $1.9 million in 2008 When analyzing loss reserves and

prior year development we consider many factors including the frequency and severity of claims loss credit trends

case reserve settlements that may have resulted in significant development and any other additional or pertinent

factors that may impact reserve estimates

In 2009 we increased our prior accident year loss reserves by $0.03 million which primarily consisted of

increases in our general liability lines The increase to the general liability lines was related to accident
years

2007 and 2008

In 2008 we increased our prior accident
year loss reserves by $1.9 million which primarily consisted of an

increase of $2.6 million in our professional liability lines offset by reductions of $0.6 million in our general

liability lines and $0.1 million in our property lines The increase to the professional liability lines was

related to accident
year 2008 The reduction to the general liability lines was related to accident years

2004

through 2000 The reduction in the property lines was related to accident
year

2007

In 2009 the current accident year loss ratio decreased 67.6 points from 112.8% in 2008 to 45.2% in 2009 In

2008 our book was primarily comprised of casualty business that included treaty that was not performing

profitably and that has since been terminated In 2009 our book is primarily comprised of approximately 50%

casualty and 50% property business based on net earned premiums

Net losses and loss adjustment expenses were $23.2 million for 2009 compared with $11.3 million for 2008

an increase of $11.9 million or 104.2% Excluding the $0.03 million increase of net losses and loss adjustment

expenses for prior accident years in 2009 and the $1.9 million increase of net losses and loss adjustment expenses

for prioraccident years in 2008 the current accident year net losses and loss adjustment expenses were $23.2 million

and $9.4 million for 2009 and 2008 respectively This increase is primarily attributable to an increase in net

premiums earned which increased from $8.3 million in 2008 to $51.3 million in 2009 offset partially by an

improved loss ratio in 2009 compared with 2008 as described below

Acquisition Costs and Other Underwriting Expenses

Acquisition costs and other underwriting expenses were $13.6 million for 2009 compared with $5.5 million

for 2008 an increase of $8.1 million or 149.1% The increase is due to $7.8 million increase in acquisition costs

and $0.3 million increase in other underwriting expenses

The increase in acquisition costs is primarily due to an increase in commissions resulting from an increase in

net premiums earned

The increase in other underwriting expenses is primarily due to an increase in property and office costs legal

fees and professional services partially offset by reductions in total compensation expenses

Expense and Combined Ratios

The expense ratio for our Reinsurance Operations was 26.6% for 2009 compared with 65.7% for 2008 The

expense ratio is non-GAAP financial measure that is calculated by dividing the sum of acquisition costs and other

underwriting expenses by net premiums earned The decrease in the expense ratio is primarily due to the increase in

net premiums earned noted above

The combined ratio for our Reinsurance Operations was 71.8% for 2009 compared with 201.9% for 2008 The

combined ratio is non-GAAP financial measure and is the sum of our loss and expense ratios Excluding the

impact of $0.03 million increase of prior accident year loss reserves in 2009 and $1.9 million increase of prior

accident
year loss reserves in 2008 the combined ratio decreased from 178.5% for 2008 to 1.8% for 2009 See

discussion of loss ratio included in Net Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses above and discussion of expense

ratio in preceding paragraph above for an explanation of this increase
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Income Loss from underwriting

The factors described above resulted in income from underwriting for our Reinsurance Operations of

$14.4 million for 2009 compared with loss from underwriting of $8.5 million for 2008 an increase in income

of $22.9 million

Unallocated Corporate Items

The following items are not allocated to our Insurance Operations or Reinsurance Operations segments

Increase/Decrease

Dollars in thousands
2009 2008

Net investment income 70214 67830 2384 3.5%

Net realized investment gains losses 15862 50259 66121 N/M

Corporate and other operating expenses 16752 13918 2834 20.4%

Interest expense 7216 8657 1441 16.6%

Impairments of goodwill and intangible assets 96449 96449 100.0%

Income tax benefit expense 4310 29216 33526 N/M

Equity in net income loss of partnership net of tax 5276 3890 9166 NIM

N/M Not meaningful

Net Investment Income

Net investment income which is gross investment income less investment expenses was $70.2 million for

2009 compared with $67.8 million for 2008 an increase of $2.4 million or 3.5%

Gross investment income excluding realized gains and losses was $74.9 million for 2009 compared with

$72.8 million for 2008 an increase of $2.1 million or 2.8% The increase was primarily due to gross

investment income of $8.6 million generated by liquidating some of our limited partnership investments

offset by reductions due to decreases in interest rates There was no investment income generated by our

limited partnership investments for 2008 Excluding distributions from our limited partnership investments

gross
investment income for 2009 decreased 9.0% compared to 2008 This decrease is due to reductions in

interest rates Cash and invested assets net of payable for securities purchased of $37.3 million increased to

$1694.1 million as of December 31 2009 from $1598.8 million as of December 31 2008 an increase of

$95.3 million or 6.0% This increase was primarily due to proceeds from the Rights Offering portion of

these proceeds were invested in limited partnership which resulted in $1.7 million of equity in net income

of partnerships in the consolidated statement of operations This ownership was redeemed in December

2009 The remaining portion of the proceeds were invested short-term investments until later in the
year at

which time they were invested in assets which are expected to produce higher yields in 2010

Investment expenses were $4.7 million for 2009 compared with $5.0 million for 2008 decrease of

$0.3 million or 6.3% The decrease was primarily due to the decrease in trust fees and change in fee

structure resulting from change in investment managers

The average duration of our fixed maturities portfolio was 2.8 years as of December 31 2009 compared with

3.1 years as of December 31 2008 Including cash and short-term investments the average duration of our

investments as of December 31 2009 and 2008 was 2.5 years At December 31 2009 our book yield on our fixed

maturities not including cash was 4.34% compared with 4.95% at December 31 2008 The book yield on the

$194.0 million of municipal bonds in our portfolio was 3.88% at December 31 2009

Net Realized Investment Gains Losses

Net realized investment gains were $15.9 million for 2009 compared with net realized investment losses of

$50.3 million for 2008 The net realized investment gains for 2009 consist primarily of net gains of $5.4 million

relative to market value changes in our convertible portfolio and net gains of $16.1 million relative to our fixed
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maturities and equity portfolios offset by other than temporary impairment losses of $5.6 million The net realized

investment losses for 2008 consist primarily of net losses of $5.2 million relative to market value declines in our

convertible portfolios other than temporary impairment losses of $32.1 million net losses of $5.9 million from the

sale of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac preferred stock and net losses of $6.8 million from the sale of Lehman

Brothers corporate bonds

See Note of the notes to the consolidated financial statements in Item of Part II of this report for an analysis

of total investment retum on an after-tax basis for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008

Corporate and Other Operating Expenses

Corporate and other operating expenses consist of outside legal fees other professional fees directors fees

management fees salaries and benefits for holding company personnel and taxes incurred which are not directly

related to operations Corporate and other operating expenses were $16.8 million for 2009 compared with

$13.9 million for 2008 an increase of $2.8 million or 20.4% This increase was primarily due to professional fees

related to the re-domestication and other corporate initiatives

Interest Expense

Interest expense was $7.2 million and $8.7 million for 2009 and 2008 respectively The reduction was due to

retiring $15.5 million of trust preferred debt in May 2008 as well as reduction in LIBOR rates during 2009 which

is the basis for interest paid on the trust preferred debt See Note 11 of the notes to the consolidated financial

statements in Item of Part II of this report for details on our debt

Impairments of Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Impairments of goodwill and intangible assets were $96.4 million for 2008 There were no impairments in

2009 See Note of the notes to the consolidated financial statements in Item of Part II of this report for details on

our goodwill and intangible asset impairments

Income Tax Expense Benefit

Income tax expense was $4.3 million for 2009 compared with income tax benefit of $29.3 million for 2008

See Note of the notes to the consolidated financial statements in Item of Part II of this report for an analysis of

income tax expense
between periods

Equity in Net Earnings Loss of Partnerships

Equity in net earnings of partnerships net of tax was $5.3 million for 2009 compared with equity in net loss of

partnerships net of tax of $3.9 million for 2008 an increase in income of $9.2 million The change from loss in

2008 to income in 2009 was due to the performances of limited partnership investments which invest mainly in high

yield bonds and corporate loans

Net Income Loss

The factors described above resulted in net income of $75.4 million for 2009 compared with net loss of

$141.6 million for 2008 an increase in income of $217.0 million

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Sources and Uses of Funds

Global Indemnity is holding company Its principal asset is its ownership of the shares of its direct and

indirect subsidiaries including United National Insurance Company Diamond State Insurance Company United

National Specialty Insurance Company United National Casualty Insurance Company Wind River Reinsurance

Penn-America Insurance Company Penn-Star Insurance Company and Penn-Pathot Insurance Company
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The principal source of cash that Global Indemnity Global Indemnity Group Inc and AIS need to meet their

short term and long term liquidity needs including the payment of corporate expenses includes dividends and other

permitted disbursements from their direct and indirect subsidiaries and reimbursement for equity awards granted to

employees The principal sources of funds at these direct and indirect subsidiaries include underwriting operations

investment income and proceeds from sales and redemptions of investments Funds are used principally by these

operating subsidiaries to pay claims and operating expenses to make debt payments to purchase investments and

to make dividend payments The future liquidity of Global Indenmity Global Indenmity Group Inc and AIS is

dependent on the ability of their subsidiaries to pay dividends Currently Global Indemnity Global Indemnity

Group Inc and AIS have no planned capital expenditures that could have material impact on their short-term or

long-term liquidity needs

In May 2009 we received gross proceeds of $100.1 million from the issuance of 17.2 million and 11.4 million

of our Class and Class ordinary shares respectively in conjunction with the Rights Offering that was

atmounced in March 2009 The net proceeds of $91.8 million were used to support strategic initiatives enhance

liquidity and financial flexibility and for other general corporate purposes See Note 12 to the consolidated

financial statements in Item of Part II of this report for details conceming the Rights Offering

We owe $90.0 million to unrelated third parties in guaranteed senior notes On July 20 2011 and on each

anniversary thereafter to and including July 20 2014 we are required to prepay $18.0 million of the principal

amount On July 20 2015 we are required to pay any remaining outstanding principal amount on the notes The

notes are guaranteed by Global Indemnity Cayman Ltd In the event that debt service obligations were not

satisfied Global Indemnity Group would be precluded from paying dividends to U.A.I Luxembourg Investment

S.à tl its parent company

AIS owes $30.9 million to affiliated parties in junior subordinated debentures which are due in 2033 Interest

is payable quarterly See Note 11 of the notes to consolidated financial statements in Item of Part II of this report

for the terms of these notes In the event that debt service obligations were not satisfied AIS would be precluded

from paying dividends to Global Indemnity Group its parent company

In July 2008 United America Indemnity Ltd completed its purchase of $100.0 million of its Class ordinary

shares as part of two $50.0 million share buyback programs that were initiated in November 2007 and February

2008 respectively Wind River Reinsurance loaned United America Indemnity Ltd funds to enable it to execute the

buybacks In June 2008 Wind River Reinsurance declared and paid dividend of $50.0 million to United America

Indemnity Ltd United America Indemnity Ltd used proceeds from the dividend to repay portion of the loan

At December 31 2010 United America Indemnity Ltd owed $53.0 million in principal to Wind River

Reinsurance and $6.0 million in principal to U.A.I Luxembourg Investment S.à r.l

The U.S Insurance Companies are restricted by statute as to the amount of dividends that they may pay

without the prior approval of regulatory authorities The dividend limitations imposed by the state laws are based on

the statutory financial results of each company within our Insurance Operations that are determined by using

statutory accounting practices that differ in various respects from accounting principles used in financial statements

prepared in conformity with GAAP SSe Regulation Statutory Accounting Principles Key differences relate to

among other items deferred acquisition costs limitations on deferred income taxes reserve calculation assump
tions and surplus notes

Under Indiana law Diamond State Insurance Company and United National Casualty Insurance Company

may not pay any dividend or make any distribution of cash or other property the fair market value of which together

With that of any
other dividends or distributions made within the 12 consecutive months ending on the date on which

the proposed dividend or distribution is scheduled to be made exceeds the greater of 10% of its surplus as of the

31st day of December of the last preceding year or its net income for the 12 month period ending on the 31st day

of December of the last preceding year unless the commissioner
approves the proposed payment or fails to

disapprove such payment within 30 days after receiving notice of such payment An additional limitation is that

Indiana does not permit domestic insurer to declare or pay dividend
except out of earned surplus unless

otherwise approved by the commissioner before the dividend is paid See Note 18 of the notes to consolidated
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financial statements in Item of Part II of this report for the dividends declared and paid by the U.S Insurance

Subsidiaries in 2010

Under Pennsylvania law United National Insurance Company Penn-America Insurance Company and Perm

Star Insurance Company may not pay any dividend or make any distribution that together with other dividends or

distributions made within the preceding 12 consecutive months exceeds the greater of 10% of its surplus as

shown on its last annual statement on file with the commissioner or its net income for the period covered by such

statement not including pro rata distributions of any class of its own securities unless the commissioner has

received notice from the insurer of the declaration of the dividend and the commissioner approves the proposed

payment or fails to disapprove such payment within 30 days after receiving notice of such payment An additional

limitation is that Pennsylvania does not permit domestic insurer to declare or pay dividend except out of

unassigned funds surplus unless otherwise approved by the commissioner before the dividend is paid Further

more no dividend or other distribution may be declared or paid by Pennsylvania insurance company that would

reduce its total capital and surplus to an amount that is less than the amount required by the Insurance Department

for the kind or kinds of business that it is authorized to transact

Under Virginia law Penn-Patriot Insurance Company may not ay any dividend or make any distribution of

cash or other property the fair market value of which together with that of any other dividends or distributions made

within the preceding 12 consecutive months exceeds the lesser of either 10% of its surplus as of the 31st day of

December of the last preceding year or its net income not including net realized capital gains for the 12 month

period ending on the 31st day of December of the last preceding year not including pro rata distributions of
any

class of its securities unless the commissioner
approves

the proposed payment or fails to-disapprove such payment

within 30 days after receiving notice of such payment In determining whether the dividend must be approved

undistributed net income from the second and third preceding years not including net realized capital gains may be

carried forward

Under Wisconsin law United National Specialty Insurance Company may not pay any dividend or make any

distribution of cash or other property other than proportional distribution of its stock the fair market value of

which together with that of other dividends paid or credited and distributions made within the preceding 12 months

exceeds the lesser of 10% of its surplus as of the preceding 31st day of December or the greater of its net

income for the calendar year preceding the date of the dividend or distribution minus realized capital gains for that

calendar year or the aggregate of its net income for the three calendar years preceding the date of the dividend or

distribution minus realized capital gains for those calendar years and minus dividends paid or credited and

distributions made within the first two of the preceding three calendar years unless it reports the extraordinary

dividend to the commissioner at least 30 days before payment and the commissioner does not disapprove the

extraordinary dividend within that period Additionally under Wisconsin law all authorizations of distributions to

shareholders other than stock dividends shall be reported to the commissioner in writing and no payment may be

made until at least 30 days after such report

See Note 18 of the notes to consolidated financial statements in Item of Part II of this report for the dividends

declared and paid by the U.S Insurance Companies in 2010 and the maximum amount of distributions that they

could pay as dividends in 2011

For 2011 we believe that Wind River Reinsurance including distributions it could receive from its subsid

iaries should have sufficient liquidity and solvency to pay dividends Wind River Reinsurance is prohibited

without the approval of the BMA from reducing by 15% or more its total statutory capital as set out in its previous

years statutory financial statements and any application for such approval must include such information as the

--
BMA may require Based upon the total statutory capital plus the statutory surplus as set out in its 2010 statutory

financial statements that will be filed in 2011 we believe Wind River Reinsurance could pay dividend of up to

$247.5 million without requesting BMA approval

Surplus Levels

Our U.S Insurance Companies are required by law to maintain certain minimum level of policyholders

surplus on statutory basis Policyholders surplus is calculated by subtracting total liabilities from total assets The

NAIC adopted risk-based capital standards that are designed to identify property and casualty insurers that may be
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inadequately capitalized based on the inherent risks of each insurers assets and liabilities and mix of net premiums

written Insurers falling below calculated threshold may be subject to varying degrees of regulatory action Based

on the standards currently adopted the policyholders surplus of each of our U.S Insurance Companies is in excess

of the prescribed minimum company action level risk-based capital requirements

Cash Flows

Sources of operating funds consist primarily of net premiums written and investment income Funds are used

primarily to pay claims and operating expenses
and to purchase investments

Our reconciliation of net income to cash provided from operations is generally influenced by the following

the fact that we collect premiums net of commission in advance of losses paid

the timing of our settlements with our reinsurers and

the timing of our loss payments

Net cash was used for operating activities in 2010 2009 and 2008 was $1.0 million $52.6 million and

$18.2 million respectively

In 2010 the increase in operating cash flows of approximately $51.6 million from the prior year was primarily

net result of the following items

2010 2009 Change

Net premiums collected 300175 270512 29663

Net losses paid 214850 282144l 67294

Acquisition costs and other underwriting expenses 139906 128725 11181

Net investment income 61765 76791 15026

Net federal income taxes recovered paid 1832 18311 20143

Interest paid 6961 7292 331

Other 583 96 679

Net cash used for operating activities 1026 52643 51617

Includes an out-of-period adjustment of $1 8.6 million See Note in Item of Part II of this report for details

conceming this adjustment

In 2009 the decrease in operating cash flows of approximately $34.4 million from the prioryear was primarily

net result of the following items

2009 2008 Change

Net premiums collected 270512 324785 $54273

Net losses paid 2821441 261553 20591

Acquisition costs and other undefwriting expenses 128725 145810 17085

Net investment income 76791 76827 36
Net federal income taxes recovered paid 18311 5670 23981

Interest paid 7292 9016 1724

Other 96 2206 2302

Net cash used for operating activities 52643 18231 $34412

Includes an out-of-period adjustment of $l8.6 million See Note in Item of Part II of this report for details

concerning this adjustment

See the consolidated statement of cash flows in the financial statements in Item of Part II of this report for

details concerning our investing and financing activities
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Liquidity

Currently we believe each company in our Insurance Operations and Reinsurance Operations maintains

sufficient liquidity to pay claims through cash generated by operations and investments in liquid investments Our

holding companies also maintain sufficient liquidity to meet their obligations At December 31 2010 Global

Indemnity had cash and cash equivalents of $119.9 million

In May 2009 we received
gross proceeds of $100.1 million from the issuance of 17.2 million and 11.4 million

of our Class and Class ordinary shares respectively in conjunction with the Rights Offering that was

announced in March 2009 See Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements in Item of Part II of this report for

details concerning the Rights Offering

Stop Loss Agreement Quota Share Arrangements and Intercompany Pooling Arrangement

The U.S Insurance Companies and Wind River Reinsurance participate in stop loss agreement that provides

protection to the U.S Insurance Companies in loss corridor from 70% to 90%

The U.S Insurance Companies participate in quota share reinsurance agreements with Wind River Reinsur

ance The U.S Insurance Companies have agreed to cede 50% of their net unearned premiums as of December 31

2006 plus 50% of the net retained insurance liability of all new and renewal business bound on or after January

2007 to Wind River Rejnsurance Wind River Reinsurance is an unauthorized reinsurer As result any losses and

unearned premium that are ceded to Wind River Reinsurance by the U.S Insurance Companies must be

collateralized To satisfy this requirement Wind River Reinsurance has set up custodial trust accounts on behalf

of the U.S Insurance Companies

Wind River Reinsurance has established independent reinsurance trust accounts for the benefit of each of the

U.S Insurance Companies Wind River also has established trust accounts to collateralize exposure it has to third

party ceding companies We invest the funds in securities that have durations that closely match the expected

duration of the liabilities assumed We believe that Wind River Reinsurance will have sufficient liquidity to pay

claims prospectively

The U.S Insurance Companies participate in an intercompany pooling arrangement whereby premiums

losses and expenses are shared pro rata amongst the U.S Insurance Companies United National Insurance

Company is not an authorized reinsurer in all states As result any losses and unearned premiums that are ceded to

United National Insurance Company are collateralized The state insurance departments that regulate the parties to

the intercompany pooling agreements require United National Insurance Company to place assets on deposit

subject to trust agreements for the protection of the other members of the U.S Insurance Companies

All trusts that we are required to maintain as result of the above mentioned pooling agreements and quota

share arrangements are adequately funded

In 2011 we expect that in the aggçegate our Insurance Operations and Reinsurance Operations will have

sufficient liquidity to pay claims We moflitor our portfolios to assure liability and investment durations are closely

matched

Prospectively as fixed income investments mature and new cash is obtained the cash available to invest will be

invested in accordance with our investment policy Our investment policy allows us to invest in taxable and tax-

exempt fixed income investments as well as publicly traded and private equity investments With respect to bonds

our credit exposure limit for each issuer varies with the issuers credit quality The allocation between taxable and

tax-exempt bonds is determined based on market conditions and tax considerations

We have access to various capital sources including dividends from insurance subsidiaries invested assets in

our Non-U.S Subsidiaries and access to the debt and equity capital markets We believe we have sufficient liquidity

to meet our capital needs See Note 18 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements in Item of Part II of this

report for discussion of our dividend capacity
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Capital Resources

In May 2009 we received gross proceeds of $100.1 million from the issuance of 17.2 million and 11.4 million

of our Class and Class ordinary shares respectively in conjunction with the Rights Offering that was

announced in March 2009 See Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements in Item of Part II of this report for

details concerning the Rights Offering

In July 2005 we sold $90.0 million of guaranteed senior notes due July 20 2015 These senior notes have an

interest rate of 6.22% payable semi-annually On July 20 2011 and on each amriversary thereafter to and including

July 20 2014 we are required to repay $18.0 million of the principal amount On July 20 2015 we are required to

pay any remaining outstanding principal amount on the notes We are dependent on dividends received from our

U.S Insurance Operations to fund this debt service The notes are guaranteed by Global Indemnity Cayman Ltd

U.A.I Luxembourg Investment S.à r.l holds promissory notes of $175.0 million and $110.0 million from

Global Indenmity Group which have interest rates of 6.64% and 6.20% respectively and mature in 2018 and 2020

respectively Interest on these notes is paid annually

Global Indemnity Group has no income producing operations The ability of Global Indemnity Group to

generate cash to repay the notes is dependent on dividends that it receives from its subsidiaries

On January 18 2006 U.A.I Luxembourg Investment .à r.l loaned $6.0 million to United America

Indemnity Ltd The loan has been used to pay operating expenses that arise in the normal course of business The

loan is demand loan and bears interest at 4.3 8% At December 31 2010 there was $13 million of accrued interest

on the loan United America Indemnity Ltd is dependent on its subsidiaries to pay its dividends and operating

expenses

On November 12 2007 Wind River Reinsurance issued $50.0 million demand line of credit to United

America Indemnity Ltd that bears interest at 125% The proceeds of the line were used to fund the purchases of our

Class ordinary shares On February 13 2008 the demand line of credit was amended The interest rate was

decreased to 3.75% per annum and the loan amount was increased to $100.0 million The increase was used to fund

the repurchase of an additional $50.0 million of our Class ordinary shares In June 2008 Wind River Reinsurance

declared and paid dividend of $50.0 million to United America Indemnity Ltd United America Indemnity Ltd

used proceeds from the dividend to repay portion of the line of credit In February 2010 the line of credit was

converted to non-interest bearing note payable for the full amount of principle and accrued interest to date As of

December 31 2010 there was $53.0 million outstanding on the note payable

On May 15 2008 we redeemed all of the $15.0 million issued and outstanding notes of Penn Trust II In

conjunction with this redemption the $15.5 million of junior subordinated debentures of PAGI which are the sole

assets of Penn Trust II were also redeemed The registration of Penn Trust II was cancelled effective February

2009

Our business trust subsidiaries have issued floating rate capital and floating rate common securities

Trust Preferred Securities summary of the terms related to these securities is as follows

Issuer Amount Maturity Interest Rate Call Provisions

AIS through its wholly owned $10.0 million issoed September 30 2033 Payable quarterly at the At par after

subsidiary United National September 30 2003 three month London September 30 2008

Group Capital Tmst UNG Interbank Offered Rate

Trust LIBOR plus 4.05%

AIS through its wholly owned $20.0 million issued October 29 2033 Payable quarterly at the At par after

subsidiary United National October 29 2003 three month LIBOR October 29 2008

Group Capital Statutory plus 3.85%

Trust II UNG Trust II

We have the ability to call these floating rate capital and floating rate common securities on quarteriy basis

anytime between now and maturity

The proceeds from the above offerings were used to purchase junior subordinated interest notes and to support

business growth in the insurance subsidiaries and general business needs
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Distributions on the above securities can be deferred up to five years but in the event of such deferral we may
not declare or pay cash dividends on the common stock of the applicable subsidiary

Our wholly owned business trust subsidiaries UNG Trust and UNG Trust II are not consolidated pursuant to

applicable accounting guidance Our business trust subsidiaries have issued $30.0 million in floating rate capital

securities and $0.9 million of floating rate common securities The sole assets of the business trust subsidiaries are

$30.9 million of our junior subordinated debentures which have the same terms with respect to maturity payments

and distributions as the floating rate capital securities and the floating rate common securities

We are party to management agreement with Fox Paine Company LLC whereby in connection with

certain management services provided to us by Fox Paine Company LLC we agreed to pay an annual

management fee of $1.5 million to Fox Paine Company LLC The last annual management fee of $1.5 million

was paid to Fox Paine Company LLC on September 2010 The next annual management fee payment of

$1.5 million is payable on September 2011 Please see Assignment and Amended Management Agreement in

Item 9B of Part II for discussion of the assignment assumption and amendment of this management agreement on

March 16 2011

Contractual Obligations

We have commitments in the form of operating leases revolving line of credit senior notes payable junior

subordinated debentures and unpaid losses and loss expense obligations As of December 31 2010 contractual

obligations related to Global Indemnitys commitments including any principal and interest payments were as

follows

Payment Due by Period

Year to Years to Years Years

Dollars in thousands
Tutal 1/1/11-12/31/11 1I1/12-12/31/13 1/1/14-12/31/15 and Later

Operating leasesl 9594 3168 6035 372 19

Commitments to fund

limited partnerships 2569 2569

Senior notes2 106794 23598 43836 39360

Junior subordinated

debentures3 60809 1304 2608 2608 54289

Term Loans 356 285 71

Unpaid losses and loss

adjustment expenses

obligations4 1052744 324875 368108 175874 183887

Total $1232866 $355799 $420658 $218214 $238195

We lease office space and equipment as part of our normal operations The amounts shown above represent

future comniitments under such opeating leases net of expected sub-lease income from abandoned space

On July 20 2005 we sold $90.0 million of guaranteed senior notes due July 20 2015 These notes have an

interest rate of 6.22% payable semi-annually On July 20 2011 and on each anniversary thereafter to and

including July 20 2014 we are required to prepay $18.0 million of the principal amount On July 20 2015 we

are required to pay any remaining outstanding principal amount on the notes The notes are guaranteed by

Global Indemnity Cayman Ltd Proceeds from the notes were used to prepay $72.8 million in principal

together with related interest due as of July 20 2005 under senior notes issued by Wind River to the Bail family

trusts in September 2003

See discussion in Capital Resources

These amounts represent the gross future amounts needed to pay losses and related loss adjustment expenses

and do not reflect amounts that are expected to be recovered from our reinsurers See discussion in Liability for

Unpaid Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses for more details
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Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no off balance sheet arrangements other than the Trust Preferred Securities and floating rate common

securities discussed in the Capital Resources section of Liquidity and Capital Resources

Inflation

Property and casualty insurance premiums are established before we know the amount of losses and loss

adjustment expenses or the extent to which inflation may affect such amounts We attempt to anticipate the potential

impact of inflation in establishing our reserves

Future increases in inflation could result in future increases in interest rates which in tum are likely to result in

decline in the market value of the investment portfolio and resulting unrealized losses or reductions in

shareholders equity

Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Some of the statements under Business Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and

Results of Operations and elsewhere in this report may include forward-looking statements that reflect our current

views with respect to future events and financial performance that are intended to be covered by the safe harbor for

forward-looking statements provided by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 Forward-looking

statements are statements that are not historical facts These statements can be identified by the use of forward-

looking terminology such as believe expect may will should project plan seek intend or

anticipate or the negative thereof or comparable terminology and include discussions of strategy financial

projections and estimates and their underlying assumptions statements regarding plans objectives expectations or

consequences of identified transactions and statements about the future performance operations products and

services of the companies including statements regarding projected annual savings and costs resulting from the

Profit Enhancement Initiative

Our business and operations are and will be subject to variety of risks uncertainties and other factors

Consequently actual results and experience may materially differ from those contained in any forward-looking

statements Such risks uncertainties and other factors that could cause actual results and experience to differ from

those projected include but are not limited to the following the ineffectiveness of our business strategy due to

changes in current or future market conditions the effects of competitors pricing policies and of changes in

laws and regulations on competition including industry consolidation and development of competing financial

products greater frequency or severity of claims and loss activity than our underwriting reserving or investment

practices have anticipated decreased level of demand for our insurance products or increased competition due to

an increase in capacity of property and casualty insurers risks inherent in establishing loss and loss adjustment

expense reserves uncertainties relating to the financial ratings of our insurance subsidiaries uncertainties

arising from the cyclical nature of our business changes in our relationships with and the capacity of our

general agents brokers insurance companies and reinsurance companies from which we derive our business

the risk that our reinsurers may not be able to fulfill obligations 10 investment performance and credit risk

11 risks associated with our completed re-domestication to freland which may include encountering difficulties

moving jurisdictions and opening new offices and functions tax and financial expectations and advantages not

materializing or changing our stock price could decline and Irish corporate govemance and regulatory schemes

could prove different or more challenging than currently expected 12 new tax legislation or interpretations that

could lead to an increase in our tax burden 13 uncertainties relating to governmental and regulatory policies both

domestically and internationally 14 foreign currency fluctuations 15 impact of catastrophic events 16 esti

mates of the projected annual savings and costs for the Profit Enhancement Initiative which we made based on

information available at the time the charges were recorded 17 our subsidiaries ability to pay dividends and

18 uncertainties relating to ongoing or future litigation matters

The foregoing review of important factors should not be construed as exhaustive and should be read in

conjunction with the other cautionary statements that are set forth in Risk Factors in Item 1A and elsewhere in this

Annual Report on Form 10-K Our forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of this report or as of the
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date they were made We undertake no obligation to publicly update or review any forward-looking statement

whether as result of new information future developments or otherwise

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of economic losses due to adverse changes in the estimated fair value of financial

instrument as the result of changes in interest rates equity prices credit risk illiquidity foreign exchange rates and

commodity prices Our consolidated balance sheet includes the estimated fair values of assets that are subject to

market risk Our primary market risks are interest rate risk and credit risks associated with investments in fixed

maturities equity price risk associated with investments in equity securities and foreign exchange risk associated

with premium received that is denominated in foreign currencies Each of these risks is discussed in more detail

below We have no commodity risk

Interest Rate Risk

Our primary market risk
exposure

is to changes in interest rates Our fixed income investments are exposed to

interest rate risk Fluctuations in interest rates have direct impact on the market valuation of these securities As

interest rates rise the market value of our fixed income investments fall and the converse is also true We seek to

manage interest rate risk through an active portfolio management strategy that invoNes the selection by our

managers of investments with appropriate characteristics such as duration yield currency
and liquidity that are

tailored to the anticipated cash outflow characteristics of our liabilities Our strategy for managing interest rate risk

also includes maintaining high quality bond portfolio with relatively short duration to reduce the effect of interest

rate changes on book value significant portion of our investment portfolio matures each year allowing for

reinvestment at current market rates

As of December 31 2010 assuming identical shifts in interest rates for securities of all maturities the table

below illustrates the sensitivity of market value in Global Indemnitys bonds to selected hypothetical changes in

basis point increases and decreases

Change in

Dollars in thousands
Market Value

Basis Point Change Market Value

200 $1488590 44198 3.1%

100 1473135 28743 2.0%

No change 1444392 0.0%

100 1406404 37988 2.6%

200 1368273 76119 5.3%

Credit Risk

We have exposure to credit risk primarily as holder of fixed income investments as well as corporate loans

With the exception of corporate loans our investment policy requires that we invest in debt instruments of high

credit quality issuers and limits the amount of credit exposure to any one issuer based upon the rating of the security

Our corporate loan portfolio is subject to default risk since these investments are typically below investment

grade To mitigate this risk our investment managers perform an in-depth structural analysis As part of this

analysis they focus on the strength of any security granted to the lenders the position of the loan in the companys

capital structure and the appropriate covenant protection In addition as part of our risk control our investment

managers maintain appropriate portfolio diversification by limiting issuer and industry exposure

As of December 31 2010 we had approximately $3.0 million worth of investment exposure to subprime and

Alt-A investments As of December 31 2010 approximately $0.2 million of those investments have been rated

AAA by Standard Poors $0.2 million were rated BBB- to AA and $2.6 million were rated below investment
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grade As of December 31 2009 the Company had approximately $2.5 million worth of investment exposure to

subprime and Alt-A investments Of that amount approximately $0.8 million have been rated AAA by Standard

Poors $1.6 million were rated BBB- to AA and $0.1 million were rated below investment grade Impairments on

these investments were $0.04 million and $0.9 million during the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009

respectively

In addition we have credit risk exposure to our general agencies and reinsurers We seek to mitigate and

control our risks to producers by typically requiring our general agencies to render payments within no more than

45 days after the month in which policy is effective and including provisions within our general agency contracts

that allow us to terminate general agencys authority in the event of non-payment

With respect to our credit exposure to reinsurers we seek to mitigate and control our risk by ceding business to

only those reinsurers having adequate financial strength and sufficient capital to fund their obligation In addition

we seek to mitigate credit risk to reinsurers through the use of trusts and letters of credit for collateral As of

December 31 2010 $289.3 million of collateral and $9.7 million in letters of credit were held in trust to support the

reinsurance receivables

Equity Price Risk

In 2010 the strategy for our equity portfolio followed large cap value approach This investment style will

place primary emphasis on selecting the best relative values from those issues having projected normalized price-

earnings ratio at discount to the market multiple

We compare the results of our equity portfolio to SP 500/Citigroup excluding PC Insurers Multi-line

insurers and Investment Banks/Brokers Index To protect against equity price risk the sector exposures within our

equity portfolio closely correlate to the sector exposures within the custom benchmark index In 2010 our common

stock portfolio had retum of 18.0% not including investment advisor fees compared to the benchmark retum of

15.6%

The canying values of investments subject to equity price risk are based on quoted market prices as of the

balance sheet dates Market prices are subject to fluctuation and thus the amount realized in the subsequent sale of

an investment may differ from the reported market value Fluctuation in the market price of an equity security

results from perceived changes in the underlying economic makeup of stock the price of altemative investments

and overall market conditions

We attempt to mitigate our unsystematic risk which is the risk that is associated with holding particular

security by holding large number of securities in that market At year end no security represented more than 4.3%

of the market value of the equity portfolio We continue to have systematic risk which is the risk inherent in the

general market due to broad macroeconomic factors that affect all companies in the market

As of December 31 2010 the table below summarizes our equity price risk and reflects the effect of

hypothetical 10% and 20% increase or decrease in market prices The selected hypothetical changes do not indicate

what could be the potential best or iorst scenarios

Hypothetical

Estimated Fair Value Percentage Increase

Dollars in thousands after Hypothetical Decrease in

Hypothetical Price Change Change in Prices Shareholders Equity1

20% $118021 2.1%

l0% 132773 1.0%

No change 147526

10% 162279 1.0%

20% 177031 2.1%

Net of 35% tax
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Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

We have foreign currency exchange risk associated with portion of the business written at Wind River

Reinsurance as well as small portion of expenses related to corporate overhead in our freland office We generally

keep premiums received in non U.S currencies in their respective original currencies until there is greater certainty

of net profits under individual reinsurance contracts at which time we convert some of those original currencies into

U.S dollars We also maintain cash accounts in foreign currencies in order to pay intemational expenses At period

end we re-measure those non-U.S currency assets to their current U.S dollar equivalent Corresponding financial

liabilities if any are adjusted within the reserving process If liabilities exceed assets we intend to purchase the

relevant non-U.S currencies at the prevailing rates in order to minimize the impact of foreign exchange risk to our

operations
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and

Shareholders of Global Indemnity plc

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly in all

material respects the financial position of Global Indemnity plc and its subsidiaries at December 31 2010 and

2009 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the tbree years in the period ended

December 31 2010 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America In

addition in our opinion the financial statement schedules listed in the accompanying index present fairly in all

material respects the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial

statements Also in our opinion the Company maintained in all material respects effective internal control over

financial reporting as of December 31 2010 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO The

Companys management is responsible for these financial statements and financial statement schedules for

maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal

control over financial reporting included in Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

appearing under Item 9A Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements on the financial

statement schedules and on the Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our integrated audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over

financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audits of the financial statements included

examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements assessing

the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management and evaluating the overall financial

statement presentation Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of

internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists and testing and

evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk Our audits also

included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our

audits provide reasonable basis for our opinions

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting

includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company ii provide reasonable

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of fthancial statements in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made

only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and iiiprovide reasonable

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys

assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its iitherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Philadelphia Pennsylvania

March 16 2011
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GLOBAL INDEMNITY PLC

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31 December 31
2010 2009

In thousands except share amounts

ASSETS
Fixed maturities

Available for sale at fair value

amortized cost $1393655 and $1423050 $1444392 $1471572

Equity securities

Preferred stocks

Available for sale at fair value

cost $930 and $1509 2252 2599

Common stocks

Available for sale at fair value

cost $120674 and $50709 145274 63057

Other invested assets

Available for sale at fair value

cost $4255 and $4323 4268 6854

Securities classified as trading at fair value

cost $1112 and $1145 1112 1145

Total investments 1597298 1545227

Cash and cash equivalents 119888 186087

Accounts receivable net 56657 69711

Reinsurance receivables 422844 543351

Federal income taxes receivable 3521
Deferred federal income taxes 6926 13819

Deferred acquisition costs 35344 33184

Intangible assets 19082 9236

Goodwill 4820

Prepaid reinsurance premiums 11104 16546

Other assets 20720 25098

Total assets $2294683 $2445780

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
Liabilities

Unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses $1052743 $1257741
Unearned premiums 135872 131582

Ceded balances payable 12376 16009

Contingent commissions 9260 11169

Payable for securities purchased 4.768 37.258

Federal income taxes payable 55

Notes and debentures payable 121285 121569
Other liabilities 29655 38476

Total liabihties 1366014 1613804

Conmiitments and contingencies Note 14
Shareholders equity

Ordinary shares $00001 par value 9004000000 ordinary shares authorized Class

ordinary shares issued 21340821 and 21243345 respectively Class ordinary shares

outstanding 18300544 and 18215239 respectively Class ordinary shares issued and

outstanding 12061370 and 12061370 respectively

Additional paid-in capital 622725 619473

Accumulated other comprehensive income net of taxes 57211 48481
Retained earnings 349642 264739

Class ordinary shares in treasury at cost 3040277 and 3028106 shares respectively 100912 100720

Total shareholders equity 928669 831976

Total liabilities and shareholders equity $2294683 $2445780

Share amounts have been retrospectively restated to reflect the 1-for-2 stock exchange effective July 2010

when the Company completed its re-domestication to Ireland

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

86



GLOBAL INDEMNITY PLC

Consolidated Statements of Operations

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

In thousands except shares and per share data

Revenues

Gross premiums written 345763

Net premiums written 296504

Net premiums earned 286774
Net investment income 56623

Net realized investment gains losses

Other than temporary impairment losses on investments 511
Other than temporary impairment losses on investments

recognized in other comprehensive income 43

Other net realized investment gains losses 26905

Total net realized investment gains losses 26437

Other income 653

Total revenues 370487

Losses and Expenses

Net losses and loss adjustment expenses 130359

Acquisition costs and other underwriting expenses 118164

Corporate and other operating expenses 21127

Interest expense 7020

Impairments of goodwill and intangible assets __________

Income loss before income taxes 93817

Income tax expense benefit 8892

Income loss before equity in net income loss of

partnerships 84925

Equity in net income loss of partnerships net of taxes 22
Net income loss 84903

Per share data123
Net income loss

Basic 2.81

Diluted 2.80

Weighted-average number of shares outstanding23
Basic 30237787

Diluted 30274259

340999

290995

301674

70214

5689

115

21436

15862

387750

169382

119929

16752

7216

74471

4310

70161

5276

75437

2.92

2.91

25856049

25881382

378700

309080

382508

67830

32141

18118

50259

400079

305174

142767

13918

8657

96449

166886

29216

137670

3890

141560

7.74

7.74

18278094

18278094

In 2008 Diluted loss per share is the same as Basic loss per share since there was net loss for the year

ended December 31 2008

In computing the basic and diluted weighted share counts the number of shares outstanding prior to May 2009

the date that the ordinary stock was issued in conjunction with the Stockholders Rights Offering was adjusted

by factor of 1.114 to reflect the impact of bonus element associated with the Stockholders Rights Offering

in accordance with GAAP

Shares outstanding and per share amounts have been retrospectively restated to reflect the -for-2 stock

exchange effective July 2010 when the Company completed its re-domestication to Ireland
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GLOBAL INDEMNITY PLC

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

In thousands

Net income loss 84903 75437 $141560

Other comprehensive income loss net of taxes

Unrealized holding gains losses arising during the period 28085 40532 49111

Portion of other than temporary impairment losses recognized in

other comprehensive income loss net of taxes 88 150

Recognition of previously unrealized holding gains losses 19400 11129 34144

Unrealized foreign currency translation gains losses 43 140 97

Other comprehensive income loss net of tax 8730 29693 15064

Comprehensive income loss net of tax 93633 $105130 $156624

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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GLOBAL INDEMNITY PLC

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders Equity

In thousands except share amounts

Number of Class ordinary shares issued

Number at beginning of period

Ordinary shares issued under share incentive plan

Ordinary shares issued to Directors

Ordinary shares issued under Rights Offering _________

Number at end of period

Number of Class ordinary shares issued

Number at beginning of period

Ordinary shares issued under Rights Offering _________

Number at end of period

Par value of Class ordinary shares

Balance at beginning and end of period
__________

Par value of Class ordinary shares

Balance at beginning and end of period
__________

Additional paid-in capital

Balance at beginning of period

Share compensation plans

Ordinary shares issued under Rights Offering _________

Balance at end of period
__________

Accumulated other comprehensive income net of deferred income tax

Balance at beginning of period

Other comprehensive income loss

Unrealized holding gains losses arising during the period

Unrealized foreign currency translation gains losses

Other comprehensive income loss

Change in other than temporary impairment losses recognized in other

comprehensive income net of taxes

Cumulative effect adjustment per new impairment accounting guidance

Balance at end of period _________

Retained earnings

Balance at beginning of period

Net income loss

Cumulative effect adjustment per new impairment accounting guidance

Balance at end of period

Number of Treasury Shares

Number at beginning of period

Class ordinary shares purchased

Number at end of period

Treasury Shares at cost

Balance at beginning of period

Class ordinary shares purchascd at cost

Balance at end of period __________

Total shareholders equity

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

21243345

20828

76648

21340821

12061370

12061370

12516309

36064

101762

8589210

21243345

6343750

5717620

12061370

12385253

126124

4932

12516309

6343750

6343750

2$ 2$

1$ 1$

619473 524346 519981

3252 3294 4365

91833

622725 619473 524346

48481 25108 40172

8703

43

8660

70

57211

264739

84903

349642

3028106

12171

3040277

100720

192

100912

928669

29554

140

29694

6320

48481

182982

75437

6320

264739

3009578

18528

3028106

100446

274

100720

831976

14967

97
15064

25108

324542

141560

182982

1227044

1782534

3009578

48422

52024

100446

631993

Share amounts have been retrospectively restated to reflect the 1-for-2 stock exchange effective July 2010

when the Company completed its re-domestication to Ireland

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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GLOBAL INDEMNITY PLC

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

In thousands

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income loss 84903 75437 $041560

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used for operating activities

Amortization of debt issuance costs 83 83 173

Amortization and depreciation 4466 73 1008

Impairments of goodwill and intangible assets 96449

Restricted stock and stock option expense 3510 4588 3415

Deferred federal income taxes 3484 9655 14944
Amortization of bond premium and discount net 3450 1995 2638

Net realized investment losses gains 26437 15862 50259

Equity in loss income of partnerships 22 5276 3890

Changes in

Accounts receivable 13054 12594 11460

Reinsurance receivable 120507 135926 40429

Unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses 204998 248688 3192

Unearned premiums 4290 18095 78686
Ceded balances payable 3633 9156 9427

Other assets and liabilities net 8676 2867 5543
Contingent commissions 1909 4474 2925
Federal income tax receivable payable 3576 12966 19942
Deferred acquisition costs net 2.160 1.550 17.771

Prepaid reinsurance premiums 5442 7414 5258

Net cash used for operating activities 1026 52643 18231

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from sale of fixed maturities 650386 499857 222345

Proceeds from sale of equity securities 49537 86376 24611

Proceeds from maturity of fixed maturities 45020 49260 94060

Proceeds from sale of other invested assets 68 60191

Purchase of fixed maturities 684635 728075 177732
Purchase of equity securities 109802 80778 29565
Purchase of other invested assets 31334 277
Acquisition of business net of cash acquired 14970

_________ _________

Net cash provided by used for investing activities 64396 144503 133442

Cash flows from financing activities

Net proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares 91833

Proceeds from exercise of stock options 1041

Excess tax expense from share-based compensation plan 258 794 91
Purchase of Class ordinary shares 192 274 52024
Retirement of junior subordinated debentures 15464
Principal payments of term debt 284 276 293

Net cash provided by used for financing activities 734 90489 66831

Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents 43 140 97
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 66199 106517 48283

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 186087 292604 244321

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 119888 186087 292604

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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GLOBAL INDEMNITY PLC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presentation

Global Indemnity plc Global Indenmity or the Company was incorporated on March 2010 and is

domiciled in freland Global Indemnity replaced the Companys predecessor United America Indemnity Ltd as

the ultimate parent company as result of re-domestication transaction See Note below for details regarding the

re-domestication United America Indemnity Ltd was incorporated on August 26 2003 and is domiciled in the

Cayman Islands United America Indenmity Ltd is now subsidiary of the Company and an fish tax resident The

Companys Class ordinary shares are publicly traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market On July 2010 the

Company changed its trading symbol on the NASDAQ Global Select Market from INDM to GBLI

On January 24 2005 the Companys predecessor changed its name from United National Group Ltd to

United America Indemnity Ltd On March 14 2005 the Company changed its trading symbol on the NASDAQ
Global Select Market from UNGL to INIDM

The Company offers property and casualty insurance products in the excess and surplus lines marketplace

through its Insurance Operations and provides third party treaty reinsurance for writers of excess and surplus and

specialty lines of property and casualty insurance through its Reinsurance Operations The Company manages its

Insurance Operations by differentiating them into three product classifications Penn-America which markets to

small commercial businesses through select network of wholesale general agents with specific binding authority

United National which markets insurance products for targeted insured segments including specialty products

such as property general liability and professional lines through program administrators with specific binding

authority and Diamond State which markets property casualty and professional lines products which are

developed by the Companys underwriting department by individuals with expertise in those lines of business

through wholesale brokers and also markets through program administrators having specific binding authority

These product classifications comprise our Insurance Operations business segment and are not considered

individual business segments because each product has similar economic characteristics distribution and coy

erages Collectively the Companys U.S insurance subsidiaries are licensed in all 50 states and the District of

Columbia The Companys Reinsurance Operations consist solely of the operations of its Bermuda-based wholly-

owned subsidiary Wind River Reinsurance Wind River Reinsurance provides reinsurance solutions through

brokers primary writers including regional insurance companies and program managers Wind River Reinsurance

also participates as retrocessionaire on business assumed by other reinsurers

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America GAAP which differ in certain respects from those followed in reports

to insurance regulatory authorities The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and

disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of

revenues and expenses during the reporting period Actual results could differ from those estimates

The consolidated financial statetuents include the accounts of Global Indemnity and its wholly owned

subsidiaries All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation

The Companys wholly-owned business trust subsidiaries United National Group Capital Trust UNG
Trust United National Group Capital Statutory Trust II UNG Trust II are not consolidated pursuant to the

Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB Accounting Standards Codification the Codification The

Companys business trust subsidiaries have issued $30.0 million in floating rate capital securities Trust Preferred

Securities and $0.9 million of floating rate common securities The sole assets of the Companys business trust

subsidiaries are $30.9 million of junior subordinated debentures issued by the Company which have the same terms

with respect to maturity payments and distributions as the Trust Preferred Securities and the floating rate common

securities The registration of the Companys wholly owned business trust subsidiary Penn-America Statutory

Trust II Penn Trust II was cancelled effective February 2009 as result of the redemption of its $15.0 million

issued and outstanding notes on May 15 2008
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GLOBAL INDEMNITY PLC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation

Re-domestication

In February 2010 the Companys Board of Directors approved plan for the Company to re-domesticate from

the Cayman Islands to Ireland At special shareholders meeting held on May 27 2010 the Companys

shareholders voted in favor of completing the re-domestication proposal pursuant to which all United America

Indemnity Ltd ordinary shares would be cancelled and all holders of such shares would receive ordinary shares of

Global Indemnity plc newly formed Irish company that was incorporated on March 2010 on one-for-two

basis two United America Indenmity Ltd shares exchanged for one Global Indemnity plc share The re

domestication transaction was completed on July 2010 following approval from the Grand Court of the Cayman

Islands at which time Global Indenmity plc replaced United America Indemnity Ltd as the ultimate parent

company and United America Indemnity Ltd became wholly-owned subsidiary of Global Indemnity plc Shares

of United America Indemnity Ltd previously traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol

INDM Shares of the Irish company Global Indemnity plc began trading on the NASDAQ Global Select Market

on July 2010 under the symbol GBLI

Profit Enhancement Initiative

On November 2010 we committed to Profit Enhancement Initiative with respect to our U.S Insurance

Operations The plan was initiated on November 2010 and is part of our efforts to streamline our operations in

response to the continuing impact of the domestic recession as well as the competitive landscape within the excess

and surplus lines market This initiative is intended to enhance profitability and earnings by aligning corporate

overhead costs with recent changes in our business In the fourth quarter of 2010 the Company reduced its

U.S based census by approximately 25% closed underperforming U.S facilities and supplemented staffing in

Bermuda and in Ireland All action items relating to this initiative were implemented by December 31 2010

The total cost of implementing this initiative was recorded in our consolidated statements of operations within

our Tnsurance Operations segment in the fourth quarter of 2010 Components of the initiative included employee

termination and severance charges of $1.71 million expenses of $1.53 million relating to discontinuing use of

leased office space net of sublease income restructuring expenses of $0.63 million for related asset and

leasehold improvement impairments and expenses of $2.91 million relating to the curtailment of our workers

compensation product initiative consisting of minimum ceded premium charge of $1.48 on our workers

compensation reinsurance treaty and $1.43 million in asset impairments

The following table summarizes charges incurred by expense type and the remaining liability as of Decem

ber 31 2010

Employee Operating Asset Workers

Termination Leases Impainnents Compensation Total

Dollars in thousands

Charges incurred in2OlO $1711 $1532 $631 $2907 $6781

Cash payments for 2010 actions 758 985 1743
Non-cash asset charges 176 631 1430 1885

Balance at December 31
2010 $1129 $1532 492 $3153
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The following table summarizes the charges incurred within our consolidated statement of operations by major

account line

Year Ended

December 31
2010

Dollars in thousands

Net earned premium $1477

Acquisition costs and other underwriting expenses 3874

Corporate and other operating expenses 1430

Total restructuring charges $6781

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Investments

The Companys investments in fixed maturities preferred stock and common stock are classified as available

for sale and are carried at their fair value Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or

paid to transfer liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date The fair

values of the Companys available for sale portfolio excluding the limited partnership interest are determined on

the basis of quoted market prices where available If quoted market prices are not available the Company uses third

party pricing services to assist in determining fair value In many instances these services examine the pricing of

similar instruments to estimate fair value The Company purchases bonds with the expectation of holding them to

their maturity however changes to the portfolio are sometimes required to assure it is appropriately matched to

liabilities In addition changes in financial market conditions and tax considerations may cause the Company to sell

an investment before it matures Corporate loans have stated maturities however they generally do not reach their

final maturity due to borrowers refinancing The difference between amortized cost and fair value of the Companys
available for sale investments excluding the Companys convertible bond and convertible preferred stock port

folios net of the effect of deferred income taxes is reflected in accumulated other comprehensive income in

shareholders equity and accordingly has no effect on net income other than for the credit loss component of

impairments deemed to be other than temporary The difference between amortized cost and fair value of the

convertible bonds and convertible preferred stocks is included in income

As of December 31 2010 the Company did not hold any convertible bonds or convertible preferred stock As

of December 31 2009 the Company held $0.6 million of convertible preferred stock The change in the difference

between the amortized cost and the market value of the convertible portfolio is included in income as component

of net realized investments gains losses The Company realized $0.003 million gain $5.4 million gain and

$5.2 million loss for the years ended December 31 20102009 and 2008 respectively due to market value changes

related to convertible securities

As of December 31 2010 and 2009 the Company held $204.0 million and $138.9 million in corporate loans

Corporate loans are primarily investments in senior secured floating rate loans that banks have made to corpo

rations The loans are generally priced at an interest rate spread over LIBOR which resets every 60 to 90 days The

Companys investments in corporate loans are purchased in secondary markets for the purpose of being held as

investments They are carried at fair value with any change in the difference between amortized cost and fair value

net of the effect of deferred income taxes reflected in accumulated other comprehensive income in shareholders

equity These investments are typically below investment grade

The Companys investments in other invested assets are comprised primarily of limited liability partnership

interests Partnership interests where we owned more than 3% at any time are carried at their fair value The change

in the difference between amortized cost and fair value of partnership interests of 3% ownership or greater net of the

effect of deferred income taxes is reflected in income Partnership interests of less than 3% ownership are carried at
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their fair value The change in the difference between amortized cost and the fair value of partnership interests of

less than 3% ownership net of the effect of deferred income taxes is reflected in accumulated other comprehensive

income in shareholders equity and accordingly has no effect on net income other than for impairments deemed to

be other than temporary

The Companys investments in other invested assets including investments in several limited partnerships

were valued at $5.4 million and $8.0 million as of December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively All of these amounts

were comprised of securities for which there is no readily available independent market price The estimated fair

value of these limited partnerships is measured utilizing the Companys net asset value as practical expedient for

each limited partnership Material assumptions and factors utilized in pricing these securities include future cash

flows constant default rates recovery rates and any market clearing activity that may have occurred since the prior

month-end pricing period Of our investments in other invested assets $1.1 million was related to limited

partnership which holds convertible preferred securities of privately held company These securities were subject

to an appraisal action in Delaware State Court In February 2011 the Companys remaining interest of $1.1 million

was liquidated

Net realized gains and losses on investments are determined based on the specific identification method

-The Company regularly performs various analytical valuation procedures with respect to its investments

including reviewing each fixed maturity security in an unrealized loss position to assess whether the security is

candidate for credit loss Specifically the Company considers credit rating market price and issuer specific

financial information among other factors to assess the likelihood of collection of all principal and interest as

contractually due Securities for which the Company determines that credit loss is likely are subjected to further

analysis through discounted cash flow testing to estimate the credit loss to be recognized in earnings if any The

specific methodologies and significant assumptions used by asset class are discussed below Upon identification of

such securities and periodically thereafter detailed review is performed to determine whether the decline is

considered other than temporary This review includes an analysis of several factors including but not limited to the

credit ratings and cash flows of the securities and the magnitude and length of time that the fair value of such

securities is below cost

For fixed maturities the factors considered in reaching the conclusion that decline below cost is other than

temporary include among others whether

the issuer is in financial distress

the investment is secured

significant credit rating action occurred

scheduled interest payments were delayed or missed

changes in laws or regulations have affected an issuer or industry

the investment has an unrealized loss and was identified by the Companys Investment Manager as an

investment to be sold before recovery or maturity and

the investment failed cash flow projection testing to determine if anticipated principal and interest

payments will be realized

According to the most recent accounting guidance for debt securities in an unrealized loss position the

Company is required to assess whether the Company has the intent to sell the debt security or more likely than not

will be required to sell the debt security before the anticipated recovery If either of these conditions is met the

Company must recognize an other than temporary impairment with the entire unrealized loss being recorded

through earnings For debt securities in an unrealized loss position not meeting these conditions the Company
assesses whether the impairment of security is other than temporary If the impairment is deemed to be
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other than temporary the Company must separate the other than temporary impairment into two components the

amount representing the credit loss and the amount related to all other factors such as changes in interest rates The

credit loss represents the portion of the amortized book value in excess of the net present value of the projected

future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate implicit in the debt security prior to impairment The credit

loss component of the other than temporary impairment is recorded through eamings whereas the amount relating

to factors other than credit losses are recorded in other comprehensive income net of taxes

For equity securities management carefully reviews all securities with unrealized losses and further focuses on

securities that have either

persisted for more than twelve consecutive months or

the value of the investment has been 20% or more below cost for six continuous months or more to

determine if the security should be impaired

The amount of any write-down including those that are deemed to be other than temporary is included in

earnings as realized loss in the period in which the impairment arose

For an analysis of other than temporary losses that were recorded for the
years

ended December 31 2010

2009 and 2008 please see Note below

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the statements of cash flows the Company considers all liquid instruments with an original

maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents The Company has cash management program that provides

for the investment of excess cash balances primarily in short-term money market instruments Generally bank

balances exceed federally insured limits The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value

At December 31 2010 the Company had approximately $86.4 million of cash and cash equivalents that was

invested in diversified portfolio of high quality short-term debt securities

Valuation of Accounts Receivable

The Company evaluates the collectability of accounts receivable based on combination of factors In

circumstances in which the Company is aware of specific circumstance where party may be unable to meet its

financial obligations to the Company specific allowance for bad debts against amounts due is recorded to reduce

the net receivable to the amount reasonably believed by the Companys management to be collectible For all

remaining balances allowances are recognized for bad debts based on the length of time the receivables are past

due The allowance for bad debts was $1.2 million and $2.2 million as of December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The Company tests for impairment of goodwill at least annually and more frequently as circumstances warrant

in accordance with applicable accounting guidance Impairment of goodwill is recognized only if the carrying

amount of the business unit including goodwill exceeds the fair value of the reporting unit The amount of the

impairment loss would be equal to the excess carrying value of the goodwill over the implied fair value of the

reporting unit goodwill Based on the analysis performed in 2010 there were no impairments of goodwill as of

December 31 2010

Impairment of intangible assets with an indefinite useful life is tested at least annually and more frequently as

circumstances warrant in accordance with applicable accounting guidance Impairment of indefinite lived intan

gible assets is recognized only if the carrying amount of the intangible assets exceeds the fair value of said assets

The amount of the impairment loss would be equal to the excess carrying value of the assets over the fair value of
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said assets Based on the analysis performed in 2010 there were no impairments of indefinite lived intangible assets

as of December 31 2010

Intangible assets that are not deemed to have an indefinite useful life are amortized over their estimated useful

lives The carrying amounts of definite lived intangible assets are regularly reviewed for indicators of impairment in

accordance with applicable accounting guidance Impairment is recognized only if the carrying amount of the

intangible asset is in excess of its undiscounted projected cash flows The impairment is measured as the difference

between the carrying amount and the estimated fair value of the asset Based on the analysis performed in 2010

there were no impairments of definite lived intangible assets as of December 31 2010

Reinsurance

In the normal course of business the Company seeks to reduce the loss that may arise from events that cause

unfavorable underwriting results by reinsuring certain levels of risk from various areas of exposure with reinsurers

Amounts receivable from reinsurers are estimated in manner consistent with the reinsured policy and the

reinsurance contract

During 2010 the Company decreased its uncollectible reinsurance reserve by $0.2 million due to decrease in

the amount of carried reinsurance receivables During 2009 the Company decreased its uncollectible reinsurance

reserve by $0.7 million due to decrease in the amount of carried reinsurance receivables

The applicable accounting guidance requires that the reinsurer must assume significant insurance risk under

the reinsured portions of the underlying insurance contracts and that there must be reasonably possible chance that

the reinsurer may realize significant loss from the transaction The Company has evaluated its reinsurance

contracts and concluded that each contract qualifies for reinsurance accounting treatment pursuant to this guidance

The Company regularly reviews the collectability of reinsurance receivables Any changes in the allowances

resulting from this review are included in income during the period in which the determination is made

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences

between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the

years
in which those

temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled The effect on deferred tax assets

and liabilities of change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date

valuation allowance is provided when it is more likely than not that some portion of the deferred tax assets

will not be realized Management believes that it is more likely than not that the results of future operations will

generate sufficient taxable income to realize the remaining deferred income tax assets and accordingly the

Company has not established any valdation allowances

Deferred Acquisition Costs

The costs of acquiring new and renewal insurance and reinsurance contracts include commissions premium

taxes and certain other costs that vary with and are primarily related to the acquisition of new and renewal insurance

and reinsurance contracts The excess of the Companys costs of acquiring new and renewal insurance and

reinsurance contracts over the related ceding commissions earned from reinsurers is capitalized as deferred

acquisition costs and amortized over the period in which the related premiums are earned In accordance with

accounting guidance for insurance enterprises the method followed in computing such amounts limits them to their

estimated realizable value that gives effect to the premium to be earned related investment income losses and loss

adjustment expenses and certain other costs expected to be incurred as the premium is eamed The amortization of

deferred acquisition costs for the years ended December31 2010 2009 and 2008 was $85.3 million $84.1 million
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and $108.9 million respectively The Company determined that its deferred acquisition costs of $35.3 million as of

December 31 2010 were deemed to be recoverable

Notes and Debentures Payable

The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheet represent the outstanding balances

In accordance with the applicable accounting guidance that establishes standards for classifying and mea

suring certain financial instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity the Companys junior

subordinated debentures are classified as liability on the balance sheets and the related distributions are recorded

as interest expense in the Statements of Operations

The Company does not consolidate its business trust subsidiaries which in the aggregate issued $30.0 million

of Trust Preferred Securities and $0.9 million of floating rate common securities The sole assets of the Companys
business trust subsidiaries are $30.9 million of junior subordinated debentures issued by the Company which have

the sai-ne terms with respect to maturity payments and distributions as the Trust Preferred Securities and the

floating rate common securities Therefore the Companys junior subordinated debentures are presented as

liability in the balance sheet at December 31 2010 and 2009

Unpaid Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses

The liability for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses represents the Companys best estimate of future

amounts needed to pay losses and related settlement expenses with respect to events insured by the Company This

liability is based upon the accumulation of individual case estimates for losses reported prior to the close of the

accounting period with respect to direct business estimates received from ceding companies with respect to

assumed reinsurance and estimates of unreported losses

The process of establishing the liability for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses of property and

casualty insurance company is complex requiring the use of informed actuarially based estimates and judgments In

some cases significant periods of time up to several years or more may elapse between the occurrence of an

insured loss and the reporting of that loss to the Company To establish this liability the Company regularly reviews

and updates the methods of making such estimates and establishing the resulting liabilities Any resulting

adjustments are recorded in income during the period in which the determination is made

Premiums

Premiums are recognized as revenue ratably over the term of the respective policies and treaties Unearned

premiums are computed on pro rata basis to the day of expiration

Contingent Commissions

Certain professional general agencies of the Insurance Operations are paid special incentives referred to as

commissions when loss results of business produced by these agencies are more favorable than predetennined

thresholds Similarly in some circumstances insurance companies that cede business to the Companys Rein

surance Operations are paid ceding or profit commissions based on the profitability of the ceded portfolio These

commissions are charged to other underwriting expenses when incurred The liability for the unpaid portion of these

commissions which is stated separately on the face of the consolidated balance sheet as contingent commissions

was $9.3 million and $11.2 million as of December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively
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Share-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock options and other equity based compensation using the modified prospective

application of the fair value-based method pennitted by the appropriate accounting guidance See Note 15 for

details

Earnings per Share

All share amounts have been adjusted to reflect the one-for-two stock exchange of Global Indemnity plc shares

for United America Indemnity Ltd shares effective July 2010 as part of the re-domestication to Ireland See

Note above for more information regarding the re-domestication

Basic earnings per share have been calculated by dividing net income available to common shareholders by the

weighted-average ordinary shares outstanding Diluted eamings per share has been calculated by dividing net

income available to common shareholders by the sum of the weighted-average ordinary shares outstanding and the

weighted-average common share equivalents outstanding which include options warrants and other equity

awards Basic and diluted per common share and related weighted average number of common share amounts are

the same for 2008 since potential ordinary shares were anti-dilutive and excluded from the computation due to the

Companys net loss for the year ended December 31 2008 See Note 17 for details

Out-of-Period Adjustments

During the preparation of the Companys consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31

2009 the Company identified an enor in the consolidated financial statements as of and for the years ended

December 31 2009 and 2008 related to the recognition of outstanding claim payment checks and ACH wires

occurring after the early closing of the paid-loss sub-ledger at the end of the reporting periods The Company

typically closes the general ledger for operations during the third week of quarter- or year-end close in order to

improve the timeliness of financial reporting Cash accounts in the general ledger remain open through the last day

of the reporting period which would typically remedy system cut-off issues since post-system close cash is applied

through the financial statement date However although post-system close claim payments are recorded in the

general ledger they are not recorded to the paid claims accounts that are mapped to the Unpaid losses and loss

adjustment expenses line item on the balance sheet they are instead recorded to clearing account that is mapped

to the Cash and cash equivalents line item The net effect is that claim payments that are made after the system

close but before the financial statement date are actually not reflected in the consolidated financial statements

since neither cash nor unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses are reduced for the amount of the claim payments

The only other balances that are impacted as result of this process are operating cash flows on the consolidated

statement of cash flows There is no impact to the Companys net income

The Company has conected this error in its consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended

December 31 2009 by decreasing the Cash and cash equivalents and the Unpaid losses and loss adjustment

expenses line items on the consolidated balance sheet and the Unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses line

item on the consolidated statement of cash flows by $18.6 million the cumulative net effect of the error The

Company does not believe that that these adjustments are material to the consolidated financial statements for the

year ended December 31 2009 or to any prior years consolidated financial statements As result the Company
has not restated any prior period amounts
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Investments

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of investments were as follows as of December 31 2010 and 2009

Other Than
Gross Gross Temporary

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated Impairments
Cost Gains Losses Fair Valne Recognized in AOCI1

Dollars in thousands

As of December 31 2010

Fixed maturities

U.S treasury and agency

obligations 192746 9948 202690

Ubligations of states and

political subdivisions 239872 5756 616 245012

Mortgage-backed securities 239265 9864 49 249080 19
Asset-backed securities 112626 2548 75 115099 41
Commercial mortgage-backed

securities 38963 239 38733

Corporate bonds and loans 511754 21594 564 532784 134

Foreign corporate bonds 58429 2570 60994

Total fixed maturities 1393655 52289 1552 1444392 194
Common stock 120674 25300 700 145274

Preferred stock 930 1322 2252

Other invested assets 5367 13 5380

Total $1520626 $78924 $2252 $1597298 $194

Represents the total amount of other than temporary impairment losses recognized in accumulated other

comprehensive income AOCI due to the adoption of the recent guidance on other than temporary

impairments in 2009 Per the accounting guidance these items were not included in earnings as of December 31
2010
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Other Than

Gross Gross Temporary
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated Impairments

Cost Gains Losses Fair Value Recognized in AOCI2
Dollars in thousands

As of December 31 2009

Fixed maturities

U.S treasury and agency

obligations 228386 7936 234 236088

Obligations of states and

political subdivisions 217713 8255 370 225598

Mortgage-backed securities 349.287 15219 506 364.000 72
Asset-backed securities 112287 2322 446 114163 10
Corporate bonds and loans 446570 15419 1259 460730

Foreign corporate bonds 68809 2354 170 70993 698

Total fixed maturities 1423052 51505 2985 1471572 780
Common stock 50709 12473 125 63057

Preferred stock 1509 1090 2599

Other invested assets 5468 2531 7999

Total $1480738 $67599 $3110 $1545227 $780

Represents the amount of other than temporary impairment losses recognized in accumulated other compre
hensive income AOCI since the date of adoption of the recent guidance on other than temporary

impairments Per the accounting guidance these items were not included in earnings as of December 31 2009

During 2010 the Company purchased mortgage-backed security MBS issued by Government National

Mortgage Association GNMA which represented approximately 8% of shareholders equity as of December 31

2010 Excluding U.S treasury agency bonds and the MBS issued by GNMAthe Company did not hold any debt or

equity investments in single issuer that was in excess of 2.0% of shareholders equity at December 31 2010 or

2009 respectively

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of the Companys fixed maturities portfolio classified as available

for sale at December 31 2010 by contractual maturity are shown below Actual maturities may differ from

contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or

prepayment penalties

Amortized Estimated

Cost Fair Value

Dollars in thousands

Due in one year or less 88836 90076

Due in one year through five
years 638537 665633

Due in five years through ten years 205439 212990

Due in ten years through fifteen years 24335 26339

Due after fifteen years 45654 46442

Mortgaged-backed securities 239265 249080

Asset-backed securities 112626 115099

Commercial mortgage-backed securities 38963 38733

$1393655 $1444392
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The following table contains an analysis of the Companys securities with gross unrealized losses categorized

by the period that the securities were in continuous loss position as of December 31 2010

Less Than 12 months 12 Months or Longer1 Total

Gross Gross Gross

Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized

Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses

Dollars in thousands

Fixed maturities

U.S treasury and agency

obligations 1015 1015

Obligations of states and

political subdivisions 38601 553 1651 63 40252 616

Mortgage-backed securities 2298 29 561 20 2859 49
Asset-backed securities 7021 17 880 58 7901 75
Commercial mortgage-backed

securities 32889 239 32889 239

Corporate bonds and loans 35063 559 1014 36077 564

Foreign corporate bonds 1990 _____ 1990

Total fixed maturities 118877 1406 4106 146 122983 1552
Conmion stock 12580 700 12580 700

Total $131457 $2106 $4106 $146 $135563 $2252

Fixed maturities in gross unrealized loss position for twelve months or longer is primarily comprised of non-

credit losses on investment grade securities where management does not intend to sell and it is more likely than

not that the Company will not be forced to sell the security before recovery The Company has analyzed these

securities and has determined that they are not impaired

The following table contains an analysis of the Companys securities with gross unrealized losses categorized

by the period that the securities were in continuous loss position as of December 31 2009

Less Than 12 Months 12 Mouths or Longer2 Total

Gross Gross Gross

Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized

Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses

Dollars in thousands

Fixed maturities

U.S treasury and agency

obligations 56445 234 56445 234

Obligations of states and

political subdivisions 26488 239 6403 131 32891 370

Mortgage-backed securities 23.612 217 5.020 289 28.632 506
Asset-backed securities 31255 246 1625 200 32880 446

Corporate bonds and loans 87286 1166 3556 93 90842 1259

Foreign corporate bonds 11835 170 11835 170

Total fixed maturities 236921 2272 16604 713 253525 2985
Common stock 3184 73 1107 52 4291 125

Total $240105 $2345 $17711 $765 $257816 $3110
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Fixed maturities in gross unrealized loss position for twelve months or longer is primarily comprised of non-

credit losses on investment grade securities where management does not intend to sell and it is more likely than

not that the Company will not he forced to sell the security before recovery The Company has analyzed these

securities and has determined that they are not impaired

Subject to the risks and uncertainties in evaluating the potential impairment of securitys value the

impairment evaluation conducted by the Company as of December 31 2010 concluded the unrealized losses

discussed above are not other than temporary impairments The impairment evaluation process is discussed in the

Investment section of Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following is description by asset type of the methodology and significant inputs that the Company used

to measure the amount of credit loss recognized in earnings if any

U.S treasury and agency obligations As of December 31 2010 gross unrealized losses related to

U.S treasury and agency obligations were $0.004 million All unrealized losses have been in an unrealized loss

position for less than twelve months All of these securities are rated AAA The Companys investment managers

analysis for this sector includes on-site visits and meetings with officials in addition to the standard rigorous

analysis that determines the financial condition of the issuer

Obligations of states and political subdivisions As of December 31 2010 gross unrealized losses related

to obligations of states and political subdivisions were $0.6 million Of this amount $0.06 million has been in an

unrealized loss position for twelve months or greater These securities are rated investment grade The Companys
investment managers analysis for this sector includes on-site visits and meetings with officials in addition to the

standard rigorous analysis that determines the financial condition of the issuer

Mortgage-backed securities non-agency As of December 31 2010 gross unrealized losses related to

mortgage-backed securities non agency were $0.05 million Of this amount $0.02 million has been in an

unrealized loss position for twelve months or greater All of these securities are rated AAA The Companys
investment manager models each mortgage-backed security to project principal losses under downside base and

upside scenarios for the economy and home prices The primary assumption that drives the security and loan level

modeling is the Home Price Index HPI projection The Companys investment manager first projects HPI at the

national level then at the Metropolitan Statistical Area MSA level based on the historical relationship between

the individual MSA HPI and the national HPI using inputs from its macroeconomic team mortgage portfolio

management team and structured analyst team The model utilizes loan level data and borrower characteristics

including FICO score geographic location original and content loan size loan age mortgage rate and type fixed

rate interest-only adjustable rate mortgage issuer originator residential type owner occupied investor

property dwelling type single family multi-family loan purpose level of documentation and delinquency

status as inputs

Asset backed securities ABS As of December 31 2010 gross unrealized losses related to asset backed

securities were $0.08 million Of this amount $0.06 million has been in an unrealized loss position for twelve

months or greater These securities are rated investment grade The weighted average credit enhancement for the

Companys asset backed portfolio is 30.2 The Companys investment manager analyzes every ABS transaction on

stand alone basis This analysis involves thorough review of the collateral prepayment and structural risk in

each transaction Additionally their analysis includes an in-depth credit analysis of the originator and servicer of the

collateral The Companys investment manager projects an expected loss for deal given set of assumptions

specific to the asset type These assumptions are used to calculate at what level of losses that the deal will incur

dollar of loss The major assumptions used to calculate this ratio are loss severities recovery lags and no advances

on principal and interest

Commercial mortgage-backed securities CMBS As of December 31 2010 gross unrealized losses

related to CMBSs were $0.2 million All unrealized losses have been in an unrealized loss position for less than
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twelve months All of these securities are rated AAA The weighted average credit enhancement for the Companys
CMBS portfolio is 23.0 This represents the percentage of pool losses that can occur before an asset-backed security

will incur its first dollar of principle losses For the Companys CMBS portfolio loan level analysis is utilized

where every underlying CMBS loan is re-underwritten based on the Companys investment managers internally

generated set of assumptions that reflect their expectation for the future path of the economy In the analysis the

focus is centered on stressing the significant variables that influence commercial loan defaults and collateral losses

in CMBS deals These variables include occupancies are projected to drop capitalization rates vary by

property type and are forecasted to return to more normalized levels as the capital markets repair and capital begins

to flow again and property value was stressed by using projected property performance and projected

capitalization rates Term risk is triggered if projected debt service coverage rate falls below lx Balloon risk

is triggered if propertys projected performance does not satisfy new tighter mortgage standards

Corporate bonds and loans As of December 31 2010 gross
unrealized losses related to corporate bonds

and loans were $0.6 million Of this amount $0.005 million has been in an unrealized loss position for twelve

months or greater All of these securities are rated below investment grade The Companys investment managers

analysis for this sector includes maintaining detailed financial models that include projection of each issuers

future financial performance including prospective debt servicing capabilities capital structure composition and

the value of the collateral The analysis incorporates the macroeconomic environment industry conditions in which

the issuer operates issuers current competitive position vulnerability to changes in the competitive environment

regulatory environment issuer liquidity issuer conmiitment to bondholders issuer creditworthiness and asset

protection Part of the process also includes running downside scenarios to evaluate the expected likelihood of

default as well as potential losses in the event of default

Foreign bonds As of December 31 2010 gross unrealized losses related to foreign bonds were $0.005 mil

lion All unrealized losses have been in an unrealized loss position for less than twelve months These securities are

rated The Companys investment manager maintains financial models for the Companys bond issuers These

models include projection of each issuers future financial performance including prospective debt servicing

capabilities and capital structure composition The analysis incorporates the macroeconomic environment industry

conditions in which the issuer operates issuers current competitive position vulnerability to changes in the

competitive environment regulatory environment issuer liquidity issuer commitment to bondholders issuer

creditworthiness and asset protection

The Company recorded the following other than temporary impairments OTTI on its investment portfolio

for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Dollars in thousands

Fixed maturities

OTII losses gross $121 $4449 $13811

Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensive income pre-tax 43 115

Net impairment losses on fixed maturities recognized in earnings 78 4334 13811

Preferred stock 647 2130

Common stock 390 593 16200

Total $468 $5574 $32141

In the second quarter of 2009 the Company reclassified $6.3 million of OTTI losses net of tax that were

previously recorded through earnings to other comprehensive income with an offset to retained earnings as

cumulative-effect adjustment This one-time adjustment that resulted from the implementation of new impairment
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accounting guidance represented the non-credit portion of previously recognized 0Th on debt securities which

were still held as investments as of April 2009

The following table is an analysis of the credit losses recognized in earnings on debt securities held by the

Company as of December 31 2010 for which portion of the OfT loss was recognized in other comprehensive

income loss

Asof

Dollars in thousands
December 31 2010

Balance at beginning of period 50

Additions where no 0TH was previously recorded 63

Additions where an OTTI was previously recorded 15

Reductions for securities for which the company intends to sell or more likely

than not will be required to sell before recovery

Reductions reflecting increases in expected cash flows to be collected

Reductions for securities sold during the period 13
Balance at end of period $115

The following table is an analysis of the credit losses recognized in earnings on debt securities held by the

Company as of December 31 2009 for which portion of the OfT loss was recognized in other comprehensive

income loss

As of

Dollars in thousands
December 31 2009

Balance of credit losses related to securities still being held as of April 2009
date of adoption

Additions where no OfT was previously recorded 50

Additions where an OfT was previously recorded

Reductions for securities for which the company intends to sell or more likely

than not will be required to sell before recovery

Reductions reflecting increases in expected cash flows to be collected

Reductions for securities sold during the period

Balance of credit losses related to securities still being held as of December 31
2009 $50

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

Accumulated other comprehensive income as of December 31 2010 and 2009 was as follows

December 31

2010 2009

Dollars in thousands

Net unrealized gains from

Fixed maturities 50737 48521

Preferred stocks 1322 1090

Common stocks 24600 12348

Partnerships 3%owned 13 2531

Foreign currency fluctuations 44

Deferred taxes 19461 16053

Accumulated other comprehensive income 57211 48481
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Net Realized Investment Gains Losses

The components of net realized investment gains losses on the sale of investments and other than temporary

impairment losses for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 were as follows

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Dollars in thousands

Fixed maturities

Gross realized gains $17915 21777 2553

Gross realized losses 557 12751 26003

Net realized gains losses 17358 9026 23450

Common stock

Gross realized gains 9905 11753 1972

Gross realized losses 829 6118 18513

Nt realized gains losses 9076 5635 16541

Preferred stock

Gross realized gains 2490

Gross realized losses 1289 10268

Net realized gains losses 1201 10268

Total net realized investment gains losses $26437 15862 $50259

The proceeds from sales of available for sale securities resulting in net realized investment gains losses for

the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 were as follows

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Dollars in thousands

Fixed maturities $650386 $499857 $222345

Equity securities 49537 86376 24611

Net Investment Income

The sources of net investment incorçe for the years
ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 were as follows

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Dollars in thousands

Fixed maturities $60262 $62099 $63223

Preferred and common stocks 2177 1752 3059

Cash and cash equivalents 161 2382 6529

Other invested assets 8647

Total investment income 62604 74880 72811

Investment expense 5981 4666 4981

Net investment income $56623 $70214 $67830
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The Companys total investment return on an after-tax basis for 2010 2009 and 2008 were as follows

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Dollars in thousands

Net investment income 48322 56745 55689

Net realized investment gains losses 19400 11129 34142

Net equity in net income loss of partnerships 22 5276 3890
Net unrealized investment gains losses 8773 29553 14969

Net investment gains losses 28151 45958 53001

Total investment return 76473 102703 2688

Total investment return 4.5% 6.2% 0.2%

Average investment portfolio1 $1703237 $1646437 $1682316

Average of total cash and invested assets net of payable for securities purchased asof the beginning and ending

of the period

Subprime and Alt-A Investments

The Company had approximately $3.0 million and $2.5 million worth of investment exposure through

subprime and Alt-A investments as of December31 2010 and 2009 respectively An Alt-A investment is one which

is backed by loan that contains limited documentation As of December 31 2010 approximately $0.2 million of

those investments were rated AAA by Standard Poors $0.2 million were rated BBB- to AA and $2.6 million

were rated below investment grade As of December 31 2009 approximately $0.8 million of those investments

were rated AAA by Standard Poors $1.6 million were rated BBB- to AA and $0.1 million were rated below

investment grade Impainnents on these investments were $0.04 million and $0.9 million during the years ended

December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

Insurance Enhanced Municipal Bonds

As of December 31 2010 the Company held insurance enhanced municipal bonds of approximately

$118.0 million which represented approximately 6.9% of the Companys total cash and invested assets These

securities had an average rating of AA Approximately $47.9 million of these bonds are pre-refunded with

U.S treasury securities of which $37.5 million are backed by financial guarantors meaning that funds have been

set aside in escrow to satisfy the future interest and principal obligations of the bond Of the remaining $70.1 million

of insurance enhanced municipal bonds $35.0 million would have carried lower credit rating had they not been

insured The following table provides breakdown of the ratings for these municipal bonds with and without

insurance

Ratings Ratings

Dollars in thousands with withont

Rating Insurance Insurance

AAA 1352

AA 30334 10041

1415 20620

BBB 2440

Not rated 1895 1895

Total $34996 $34996
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summary of the Companys insurance enhanced municipal bonds that are backed by financial guarantors

including the pre-refunded bonds that are escrowed in U.S government obligations as of December 31 2010 is as

follows

11345

2475

43932

40190

2294

4134

3313

107683

10320

$118003

884

1956

37532

10320

$47852

27661

30017

2294

3250

1357

6901

$6901

In addition to the $118.0 million of insurance enhanced municipal bonds the Company also held insurance

enhanced asset-backed and credit securities with market value of approximately $31.7 million which represented

approximately 1.8% of the Companys total invested assets The financial guarantors of the Companys $31.7 mil

lion of insurance enhanced asset-backed and credit securities include Financial Guaranty Insurance Company

$0.9 million Municipal Bond Insurance Association $12.2 million Ambac $2.6 million Assured Guaranty

Corporation $10.8 million and Other $5.2 million

The Company had no direct investments in the entities that have provided financial guarantees or other credit

support to any security held by the Company at December 31 2010

Bonds Held on Deposit

Certain cash balances cash equivalents and bonds available for sale were deposited with various govern

mental authorities in accordance with statutory requirements or were held in trust pursuant to intercompany

reinsurance agreements The estimated fair values of bonds available for sale and on deposit or held in trust were as

follows as of December 31 2010 and 2009

Dollars in thousands

On deposit with governmental authorities

Intercompany trusts held for the benefit of U.S policyholders

Held in trust pursuant to third party requirements

Held in trust pursuant to U.S regulatory requirements for the benefit of

U.S policyholders ________5871

Total $727669

Govermnent

Guaranteed
Securities

Exposure Net of

Pre-refnnded

Government

Guaranteed

Securities

5572

Pre-refunded

Total Securities

5773

2475

16271

10173

Dollars in thousands
Financial Guarantor

Ambac Financial Group

Financial Guaranty Insurance Company..

Assured Guaranty Corporation

Municipal Bond Insurance Association

Federal Housing Association

Govt National Housing Association

Permanent School Fund Guaranty

Total backed by financial guarantors

Other credit enhanced municipal bonds

Total

63250

$63250

Estimated Fair Value

December 31 December 31
2010 2009

43656

609242

68900

41336

653500

29884

6169

$730889
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Fair Value Measurements

The Company elected to apply the fair value option within its limited partnership investment portfolio to an

investment where the Company previously owned more than 3% interest The fair value of this investment was

$1.1 million as of December 31 2010 and 2009 Effective December 31 2009 the Company redeemed the majority

of its ownership interest in this limited partnership resulting in its ownership interest falling below 3% As of

December 31 2010 the Companys remaining interest in this limited partnership was comprised of convertible

preferred securities of privately held company Accordingly this investment is classified as Level within the fair

value hierarchy

During 2009 the Company contributed $30.0 million to limited partnership which invests in corporate loans

This partnership interest was redeemed as of December 31 2009 The activity associated with this investment is

classified as Level within the fair value hierarchy The Company obtained the value of this partnership at the end

of each reporting period however the Company was not provided with detailed listing of the investments held by

the partnership Accordingly this investment was classified as Level within the fair value hierarchy

During the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 the Company recognized the following gains

losses net of taxes due to changes in the value of these investments

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Dollars in thousands

Limited partnership 3% ownership $22 $5276 $3890

These gains losses are reflected on the consolidated statement of operations as equity in net income loss of

partnerships net of taxes

The fair value option was not elected for the Companys investments in limited partnerships with less than

3% ownership interest

The accounting standards related to fair value measurements define fair value establish framework for

measuring fair value outline fair value hierarchy based on inputs used to measure fair value and enhance

disclosure requirements for fair value measurements These standards do not change existing guidance as to

whether or not an instmment is carried at fair value The Company has determined that its fair value measurements

are in accordance with the requirements of these accounting standards

The Companys invested assets are carried at their fair value and are categorized based upon fair value

hierarchy

Level inputs utilize quoted prices unadjusted in active markets for identical assets that the Company

has the ability to access at the measurement date

Level inputs utilize other than quoted prices included in Level that are observable for the similar

assets either directly or indirectly

Level inputs are unobservable for the asset and include situations where there is little if any market

activity for the asset

In certain cases the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy In

such cases the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement falls has been determined

based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety The Companys

assessment of the significance of particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgment

and considers factors specific to the asset

Both observable and unobservable inputs may be used to determine the fair value of positions that the

Company has classified within the Level category As result the unrealized gains and losses for invested assets

108



GLOBAL IIWEMNITY PLC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

within the Level category presented in the tables below may include changes in fair value that are attributed to

both observable e.g changes in market interest rates and unobservable e.g changes in unobservable long-dated

volatilities inputs

The following table presents information about the Companys invested assets measured at fair value on

recurring basis as of December 31 2010 and 2009 and indicates the fair value hierarchy of the valuation techniques

utilized by the Company to determine such fair value

As of December 31 2010

Dollars in thousands

Fixed maturities

U.S treasury and agency obligations

Obligations of states and political

subdivisions

Mortgage-backed securities

Commercial mortgage-backed securities

Asset-backed securities

Corporate bonds and loans

Foreign corporate bonds

Total fixed maturities

Preferred shares

Common shares 145274

Other invested assets
_________

Total invested assets $234461

245012

249080

38733

115099

532784

60994

1444392

2.252

145274

As of December 31 2009

Dollars in thousands

Fair Value Measurements

Level Level Level
___________

Total

Fixed maturities

The securities classified as Level in the above table consist of U.S Treasuries and equity securities actively

traded on an exchange

The securities classified as Level in the above table consist primarily of fixed maturity securities Based on

the typical trading volumes and the lack of quoted market prices for fixed maturities security prices are derived
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Fair Value Measurements

Level Level Level Total

89187 113503 202690

245012

249080

38733

115099

532784

60994

89187 1355205

2.252

5380 5380

$1357457 $5380 $1597298

U.S treasury and agency obligations 82021 154067 236088

Obligations of states and political

subdivisions 225598 225598

Mortgage-backed securities 364000 364000

Asset-backed securities

Corporate bonds and loans

114163

460730

114163

460730

Foreign corporate bonds 70993 70993

Total fixed maturities 82021 1389551 1471572

Preferred shares 579 2020 2599

Common shares

Other invested assets

Total invested assets

63057

$145657 $1391571

7999

$7999

63057

7999

$1545227
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through recent reported trades for identical or similar securities making adjustments through the reporting date

based upon available market observable information It there are no recent reported trades matrix or model

processes are used to develop security price where future cash flow expectations are developed based upon

collateral performance and discounted at an estimated market rate Included in the pricing of asset-backed

securities collateralized mortgage obligations and mortgage-backed securities are estimates of the rate of future

prepayments of principal over the remaining life of the securities Such estimates are derived based on the

characteristics of the underlying structure and prepayment speeds previously experienced at the interest rate levels

projected for the underlying collateral For corporate loans price quotes from multiple dealers along with recent

reported trades for identical or similar securities are used to develop prices

There were no significant transfers between Level and Level during the twelve or three months ended

December 31 2010

The following table presents changes in Level investments measured at fair value on recurring basis for

2010

Other

Invested Assets

Dollars in thousands

Beginning balance at January 2010 7999

Total losses realized unrealized

Included in equity in net loss of partnership 33
Included in accumulated other comprehensive income loss 2518

Sales 68

Ending balance at December 31 2010 5380

Losses for 2010 included in earnings atthbutable to the change in unrealized losses

relating to assets still held at December 31 2010 33

The securities classified as Level in the above table consist of $5.4 million related to investments in limited

partnerships This entire amount was comprised of securities for which there is no readily available independent

market price The estimated fair value of these limited partnerships is measured utilizing the Companys net asset

value as practical expedient for each limited partnership Material assumptions and factors utilized in pricing these

securities include future cash flows constant default rates recovery rates and any market clearing activity that may
have occurred since the prior month-end pricing period Of our investments in limited partnerships $1.1 million

was related to limited partnership which holds convertible preferred securities of privately held company These

securities were subject to an appraisal action in Delaware State Court In Febmary 2011 the Companys remaining

interest of $1.1 million was liquidated
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The following table presents changes in Level investments measured at fair value on recurring basis for

2009

Other

Invested Assets

Dollars in thousands

Beginning balance at January 2009 46672

Total gains losses realized unrealized

Included in equity in net income of partnership 7184

Included in accumulated other comprehensive income loss 8336
Purchases 31334

Sales 68855

Ending balance at December 31 2009 7999

Gains for 2009 included in earnings attributable to the change in unrealized gains

relating to assets still held at December 31 2009 181

The securities classified as Level in the above table consist of $8.0 million related-to the Companys limited

partnerships investments This entire amount was comprised of securities for which there is no readily available

independent market price The estimated fair value of these limited partnerships is measured utilizing the

Companys net asset value as practical expedient for each limited partnership Material assumptions and factors

utilized in pricing these securities include future cash flows constant default rates recovery rates and any market

clearing activity that may have occurred since the prior month-end pricing period Of the investments in limited

partnerships $1.1 million was related to limited partnership which holds convertible preferred securities of

privately held company These securities were subject to an appraisal action in Delaware State Court In February

2011 the Companys remaining interest of $1.1 million was liquidated

Fair Value of Alternative Investments

Included in Other invested assets in the fair value hierarchy at December 31 2010 and 2009 are limited

liability partnerships measured at fair value The following table provides the fair value and future funding

commitments related to these investments at December 31 2010 and 2009

--

December 31 2010 December 31 2009

Future Future

Funding Funding

Dollars in thousands
Fair Value Commitment Fair Value Commitment

Equity Fund LP1 $4268 $2569 $5625 $2500

Real Estate Fund LP2 1229

High Yield Convertible Securities Fund

LP3 1112 _____ 1145

Total $5380 $2569 $7999 $2500

This limited partnership invests in companies from various business sectors whereby the partnership has

acquired control of the operating business as lead or organizing investoL The Company does not have the

contractual option to redeem its limited partnership interest but receives disthbutions based on the liquidation

of the underlying assets The Company does not have the ability to sell or transfer its limited partnership interest

without consent from the general partner

This limited partnership invests in real estate assets through combination of direct or indirect investments in

partnerships limited liability companies mortgage loans and lines of credit The Company does not have the
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contractual option to redeem its limited partnership interest but receives distributions based on the liquidation

of the underlying assets The Company does not have the ability to sell or transfer its limited partnership interest

without consent from the general partner The Company continues to hold an investment in this limited

partnership and has written the fair value down to zero as of December 31 2010

This limited partnership is registered mutual fund which invests in portfolio of high yield convertible

securities issued by companies with small to medium market capitalizations and lower credit ratings generally

below investment grade In accordance with the partnership agreement the Company has exercised its right to

submit capital withdrawal request effective December 31 2009 As of December 31 2009 the Company was

unable to redeem portion of its ownership interest in this limited partnership with fair market value of

$1.1 million This is related to convertible preferred securities of one company which were subject to an

Appraisal Action in Delaware Court In February 2011 the Companys remaining interest of $1.1 million was

liquidated

Pricing

The Companys pricing vendors provide prices for all investment categories except for investments in limited

partnerships One vendor provides prices for equity securities and select fixed maturity categories including

corporate loans conimercial mortgage backed securities high yield investment grade short term securities and

intemational fixed income securities if any second vendor provides prices for other fixed maturity categories

including asset backed securities ABS collateralized mortgage obligations CMOand municipals third

vendor provides prices for the remaining fixed maturity categories including mortgage backed securities MBS
and treasuries

The following is description of the valuation methodologies used by the Companys pricing vendors for

investment securities carried at fair value

Equity prices are received from all primary and secondary exchanges

Corporate bonds are individually evaluated on nominal spread or an option adjusted spread basis

depending on how the market trades security or sector Spreads are updated each day and compared

with those from the broker/dealer community and contributing firms Issues are geuerally benchmarked off

of the U.S treasuries or LIBOR

For CMOs which are categorized with mortgage-backed securities in the tables listed above volatility-

driven multi-dimensional single cash flow stream model or optiop-adjusted spread model is used For ABSs

single expected cash flow stream model is utilized For both asset classes evaluations utilize standard

inputs plus new issue data monthly payment information and collateral performance The evaluated pricing

models incorporate security set-up prepayment speeds cash flows treasury swap curves and spread

adjustments

For municipals series of mairices are used to evaluate securities within this asset class The evaluated

pricing models for this asset class incorporate security set-up sector curves yield to worst ratings updates

and adjustments for material events notices

U.S Treasuries are priced on the bid side by market maker

For MBSs the pricing vendor utilizes matrix model correlation to TBA forward MBS trade or

benchmarking to value security

Corporate loans are priced using averages of bids and offers obtained from the broker/dealer community

involved in trading such loans

The Company performs certain procedures to validate whether the pricing information received from the

pricing vendors is reasonable to ensure that the fair value determination is consistent with the most recent
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accounting guidance and to ensure that its assets are properly classified in the fair value hierarchy The Companys

procedures include but are not limited to

Reviewing periodic reports provided by the Investment Manager that provides information regarding rating

changes and securities placed on watch This procedure allows the Company to understand why particular

securitys market value may have changed

Understanding and periodically evaluating the various pricing methods and procedures used by the

Companys pricing vendors to ensure that investments are properly classified within the fair value hierarchy

During 2010 or 2009 the Company did not adjust quotes or prices obtained from the pricing vendors

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

In April 2010 the Company recorded goodwill of $4.8 million and intangible assets of $10.2 million as result

of an acquisition in exchange for $15.0 million in cash The acquisition was recorded in our Insurance Operations as

business combination using the purchase method of accounting in accordance with applicable accounting

guidance The intangible assets were comprised of trademarks customer relationships and non-compete agree

ments The trademarks have been determined to have indefinite lives and therefore will not be subject to

amortization The customer relationships and non-compete agreements have been determined to have definite

lives and will therefore be amortized over their estimated useful lives The customer relationships will be amortized

over fifteen years and the non-compete agreements will be amortized over two years

Goodwill

In 2008 goodwill was tested for impairment using two-step process The first step was to determine if there

was impairment by comparing the estimated fair value of the reporting unit to the carrying value of the business unit

including goodwill The second step which is only required if step one yields business unit carrying value that is

greater than the fair value of the business unit was to determine the amount of the impairment loss which was equal

to the excess carrying value over the implied fair value of the goodwill of the reporting unit giving rise to the

goodwill

In performing step one of the goodwill impairment test during the fourth quarter of 2008 the Company used

two approaches to estimate the fair value of the Penn-America reporting unit market capitalization approach

that allocated portion of the Companys total market capitalization to each of its business units and

discounted cash flow approach that estimated fair value as the present value of estimated future cash flows Under

each approach the carrying value of the Penn-America reporting unit exceeded the estimated fair value indicating

that step two of the goodwill impairment test was required

In the market capitalization approach the Company allocated its market capital value as of December31 2008

based on return on equity approach

In the discounted cash flow approach the Company projected the financial results of the Penn-America

reporting unit and discounted the projection using discount factor of 16.0% The discount factor was based on the

weighted average cost of capital for the insurance industry of 15.9% as calculated from empirical data for market

participants and other relevant sources as prepared by an independent valuation firm The discounted cash flow

-_ approach also assumed 5.0% annual increase in net premiums written loss ratio declining from 62.2 to 57.7 over

the next six years an equity to net premium written ratio of 11 and that an investment income return of 5.25%

would be attainable in future periods

Step two of the goodwill impairment test which determines the amount of the impairment loss required the

Company to determine the fair value of each asset and liability and to compare those values to the implied fair value

of the reporting unit to determine the amount of goodwill The excess of the fair value of the reporting unit over the

amounts assigned to its assets and liabilities was the implied fair value of goodwill Step two of the goodwill
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impairment test indicated the fair value of the Penn-America reporting unit was less than the amounts assigned to

the assets and liabilities of the reporting unit demonstrating that the entire amount of the Penn-America goodwill

was impaired As result the Company recorded an impairment charge of $84.3 million which reduced the balance

of goodwill at December 31 2008 to $0

For the 2010 acquisition the Company worked with an independent third party valuation firm to value the

assets acquired The valuation resulted in goodwill of $4.8 million the excess purchase price over the Companys
best estimate of the fair value of the assets acquired The impairment test performed in 2010 did not result in

impairment of the goodwill acquired in 2010

roll-forward of goodwill is as follows

Dollars in thousands

Balance at December 31 20071 84246

Impairment 84246

Balance at December 31 2008 and 2009

Acquisition 4800

Balance at December 31 2010 4800

Goodwill of $84246 related to the merger with Penn-America Group Inc

There were no changes to goodwill during 2009

The following table presents details of the Companys intangible assets as of December 31 2010

Dollars in thousands Accnmnlated

Description Useful Life Cost Amortization Net Value

Trademarks Indefinite 4800 4800

Trade names Indefinite 4200 4200

State insurance licenses Indefinite 5000 5000

Customer relationships 15 years 5300 250 5050

Non-compete agreements years 50 18 32

$19350 $268 $19082

The following table presents details of the Companys intangible assets as of December 31 2009

Dollars in thousands Accnmnlated

Description Useful Life Cost Amortization Net Value

Trade names Indefinite $4200 $4200

State insurance licenses Indefinite 5000 5000

Software technology years 400 364 36

$9600 $364 $9236

Amortization expense related to the Penn-America Group Inc merger was $0.04 million $0.07 million and

$1.0 million for 2010 2009 and 2008 Amortization related to the 2010 acquisition was $0.3 million for 2010

Intangible assets with indefinite lives

As of December 31 2010 indefinite lived intangible assets which are comprised of trade names trademarks

and state insurance licenses were $14.0 million As of December 31 2009 indefinite lived intangible assets which
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were comprised of trade names and state insurance licenses were $9.2 million Impairment testing performed in

2010 and 2009 indicated that there was no impairment

In assessing fair value for the 2009 and 2010 impairment testing state licenses related to the merger with

Penn-America Group Inc were valued by estimating demand for such licenses by evaluating the growth of

competitors analyzing overall property and casualty market conditions and reviewing prior independent valuations

Trade names related to the merger with Penn-America Group Inc were valued by analyzing discounted cash flows

as well as reviewing prior independent valuations

The Company worked with an independent valuation firm to determine the fair value of the indefinite lived

intangible assets related to the 2010 acquisition which include trademarks The impairment test performed in 2010

did not result in impairment of these assets

In 2008 the Company worked with an independent valuation firm to determine the fair value of its indefinite

lived intangible assets The fair value of the state insurance licenses was valued higher than the carrying value of

$5.0 million which demonstrated there was no impairment The method used to determine the fair value of the

Penn-America trade name was the relief from royalty method The relief from royalty method calculates the present

value of savings resulting from the right to manufacture or sell products that incorporate the intangible assets

without having to pay license fee for its use This method is commonly used to va1ue trademarks patents

developed technology and base core technology The assumed royalty rate under this approach was 0.5% which

yielded an estimated value of the trade name in the amount of $4.2 million indicating that there was an impairment

of $0.8 million pre-tax and $0.5 million after tax

Intangible assets with definite lives

As of December 31 2010 definite lived intangible assets were $5.1 million net of accumulated amortization

and were comprised of customer relationships and non-compete agreements related to the 2010 acquisition The

Company worked with an independent valuation firm to corroborate the fair value of the definite lived intangible

assets related to the 2010 acquisition The impairment test performed in 2010 did not result in impairment of these

assets

As of December 31 2009 definite lived intangible assets which are comprised of software technology were

$0.04 million net of accumulated amortization Impairment testing performed in 2009 indicated that there was no

impairment The aforementioned software technology fully amortized during 2010

In 2008 the Companys definite lived intangible assets pertained to the Penn-America Group Inc agency

relationships that were in force at the time of the merger and intemally developed software The Company
determined that the forecasted undiscounted cash flows related to the agency relationships net of capital charge

equal to 16.0% of required capital were negative and therefore there was no value to the agency relationships As

result the Company recorded an impairment charge of $11.4 million pre-tax and $7.4 million after-tax which

reduced the balance of the agency relatidnships at December 31 2008 to $0 The intemally developed software

related to Penn-America does not directly generate cash flows therefore the Company worked with an independent

valuation firm to determine the fair value of the software The cost approach was used to value the software which

estimates the cost to replicate the software to determine the fair value of the intemally developed software The

software was valued at $0.3 million which was greater than the carrying value of $0.1 million indicating there was

no impairment
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We expect that amortization expense for the next five years will be as follows

Dollars in thousands

2011 $378

2012 361

2013 353

2014 353

2015 353

Reinsurance

The Company cedes risk to unrelated reinsurers on pro rata quota share and excess of loss basis in the

ordinary course of business to limit its net loss exposure on insurance contracts Reinsurance ceded arrangements do

not discharge the Company of primary liability Moreover reinsurers may fail to pay the Company due to lack of

reinsurer liquidity perceived improper underwriting losses for risks that are excluded from reinsurance coverage

and other similar factors all of which could adversely affect the Companys financial results

At December 31 2010 and 2009 the Company carried reinsurance receivables of $422.8 million and

$543.4 million respectively These amounts are net of purchase accounting adjustment and an allowance for

uncollectible reinsurance receivables The purchase accounting adjustment is related to discounting the loss

reserves to their present value and applying risk margin to the discounted reserves This adjustment was

$12.0 million and $17.5 million at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively The allowance for uncollectible

reinsurance receivables was $12.7 million and $12.9 million at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively The

change is primarily due to the decrease in the amount of carried reinsurance receivables

At December 31 2010 and 2009 the Company held collateral securing its reinsurance receivables of

$289.3 million and $378.1 million respectively Prepaid reinsurance premiums were $11.1 million and $16.5 mil

lion at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively Reinsurance receivables net of collateral held were $133.6 mil

lion and $165.3 million at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

The Company regularly evaluates retention levels to ensure that the ultimate reinsurance cessions are aligned

with corporate risk tolerance and capital levels The Companys U.S Insurance Operations primary reinsurance

treaties are as follows

Property Catastrophe Excess of Loss The Companys curtent property writings create exposure to

catastrophic events To protect against these exposures the Company purchases property catastrophe treaty

Effective June 2010 the Company renewed its property catastrophe excess of loss treaty which provides

occurrence coverage for losses of $75.0 million in excess of $15.0 million This treaty provides for one full

reinstatement of coverage at 100% additional premium as to time and pro rata as to amount of limit reinstated This

replaces the treaty that expired on May 31 2010 which provided identical limits of coverage

Property Per Risk Excess of Loss Effective January 2011 the Company renewed its property per
risk

excess of loss treaty which provides coverage of $13.0 million per risk in excess of $2.0 million per risk This

replaces the treaty that expired December 31 2010 which provided coverage of 140 million per risk in excess of

$1.0 million per risk The renewal treaty provides coverage in two layers $3.0 million per risk in excess of

$2.0 million per risk and $10.0 million per risk in excess of $5.0 million per risk The first layer is split into two

sections each subject to $3.0 million limit of liability for all risks involved in one loss occurrence and the second

layer is subject to $10.0 million limit for all risks involved in one loss occurrence

Professional Liability Excess of Loss Effective January 2010 the Company renewed its professional

liability excess of loss treaty which provides coverage
of $4.0 million per policy occurrence in excess of

$1.0 million per policy occurrence This replaces the treaty that expired December 31 2009 which provided
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identical limits of coverage This treaty is continuous it will be terminated on April 30 2011 and it is anticipated

that the exposure will be added to the casualty excess of loss treaty effective May 2011

Casualty Excess of Loss Effective May 2010 the Company renewed its casualty excess of loss treaty

which provides coverage for $2.0 million
per occurrence in excess of $1.0 million per occurrence for general

liability and auto liability Allocated loss adjustment expenses are included within limits This replaces the treaty

that expired April 30 2010 which provided coverage for $2.25 million per occurrence in excess of $0.75 million

per occurrence with allocated loss adjustment expenses shared in proportion to losses retained and ceded

Casualty Clash Excess of Loss Effective January 2011 the Company renewed its casualty clash excess

of loss treaty which provides coverage of $10.0 million per occurrence in excess of $3.0 million per occurrence

subject to $20.0 million limit for all loss occurrences This replaces the treaty that expired December 31 2010

which provided identical coverage

Property Quota Share Effective January 2010 the Company renewed its 40% quota share treaty related

to the Penn-America property line of business This treaty covers premiums earned in 2010 on policies written in

2009 and 2010 During 2010 the Company ceded $14.1 million of earned premium This treaty expired on

December 31 2010 and was not renewed

Workers Compensation Excess of Loss Effective April 15 2010 the Company entered into two new

workers compensation excess of loss treaties The first treaty provides coverage for $3.0 million per occurrence in

excess of $2.0 million per occurrence with three full reinstatements of coverage one at no cost and two at 100%

additional premium as to time and pro rata as to amount of limit reinstated The second treaty provides coverage in

three layers for $45.0 million per occurrence in excess of $5.0 million per occurrence The first layer of $5.0 million

in excess of $5.0 million provides for two full reinstatements of coverage at 100% additional premium The second

layer of $10.0 million in excess of $10.0 million and the third layer of $30.0 million in excess of $20.0 million

provides for one full reinstatement of coverage at 100% additional premium As discussed in Note above as part

of the Profit Eithancement Initiative we curtailed our workers compensation product initiative which resulted in

minimum premium charge of $1.5 million for 2010 under these contracts These treaties are not expected to be

renewed in 2011

Marine Excess of Loss Effective May 24 2010 the Company entered into new marine excess of loss

treaty which provides coverage in three layers for $13.0 million
per occurrence in excess of $2.0 million

per

occurrence The first layer of $3.0 million in excess of $2.0 million and the second layer of $5.0 million in excess of

$5.0 million provides for two full reinstatements of coverage at 100% additional premium The third layer of

$5.0 million in excess of $10.0 million provides for one full reinstatement of coverage at 100% additional premium

There were no other significant changes to any of the Companys other reinsurance treaties during 2010

To the extent that there may be an increase or decrease in catastrophe or casualty clash exposure in the future

the Company may increase or decrease its reinsurance protection for these exposures commensurately

As of December 31 2010 the Company had aggregate unsecured reinsurance receivables that exceeded 3% of

shareholders equity from the following reinsurer Unsecured reinsurance receivables include amounts receivable

for paid and unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses and prepaid reinsurance premiums less amounts secured

by collateral

Reinsurance A.M Best Ratings

Dollars in millions
Receivables As of December 31 2010

Munich Re America Corporation $40.7
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The effect of reinsurance on premiums written and earned is as follows

Written Earned

Dollars in thonsands

For the
year ended December 31 2010

Direct business $245482 $248995

Reinsurance assumed 100281 92478

Reinsurauce ceded 49259 54699

Net premiums $296504 $286774

For the
year

ended December 31 2009

Direct business $267981 $298427

Reinsurance assumed 73018 60667

Reinsurance ceded 50004 57420

Net premiums $290995 $301674

For the
year

ended December 31 2008

Direct business $353168 $429164

Reinsurance assumed 25532 28221

Reinsurance ceded 69620 74877

Net premiums $309080 $382508

Income Taxes

The statutory income tax rates of the countries where the Company does business are 35.0% in the United

States 0.0% in Bermuda 0.0% in the Cayman Islands 0.0% in Gibraltar 28.59% in the Duchy of Luxembourg and

25.0% on non-trading income and 12.5% on trading income in the Republic of Ireland The statutory income tax

rate of each country is applied against the annual taxable income of each country to calculate the annual income tax

expense
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The Companys income before income taxes from the Non-U.S Subsidiaries and U.S Subsidiaries including

the results of the quota share agreement between Wind River Reinsurance and the Insurance Operations for the

years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 were as follows

Year Ended December 31 2010

Non-U.S U.S

Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

Dollars in thousands

Revenues

Gross premiums written $202639 $245481 $102357 $345763

Net premiums written $202797 93707 $296504

Net premiums earned $194719 92055 $286774

Net investment income 44427 30636 18440 56623

Net realized investment gains 6639 19798 26437

Other income 653 653

Total revenues 245785 143142 18440 370487

Losses and Expenses

Net losses and loss adjustment expenses 100.125 30.234 130.359

Acquisition costs and other underwriting expenses 76111 42053 118164

Corporate and other operating expenses 10471 10656 21127

Interest expense _______ 25460 18440 7020

Income before income taxes 59078 34739 93817

Year Ended December 31 2009

Non-U.S U.S

Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

Dollars in thousands

Revenues

Gross premiums written $191138 $267993 $118132 $340999

Net premiums written $190862 $100133 $290995

Net premiums earned $185471 $116203 $301674

Net investment income 41764 46890 18440 70214

Net realized investment gains 2338 13524
_________

15862

Total revenues 229573 176617 18440 387750

Losses and Expenses

Net losses and loss adjustment expenses 95730 73652 169382

Acquisition costs and other underwriting expenses 75185 44744 119929

Corporate and other operating expenses 10014 6738 16752

Interest expense 25656 18440 7216

Income before income taxes 48644 25827 74471
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Year Ended December 31 2008

Dollars in thousands

Revenues

Non-U.S U.S

Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations

The weighted average expected tax provision has been calculated using income loss before income taxes in

each jurisdiction multiplied by that jurisdictions applicable statutory tax rate

The following table summarizes the differences between the tax provision for financial statement purposes and

the expected tax provision at the weighted average tax rate

%ofPre- %ofPre- %ofPre

Amount Tax Income Amount Tax Income Amount Tax Income

3.5 2994 1.8

0.5 653 0.4

29486 17.7

677 0.7 1854 2.4 920 0.6

Actual taxes benefits on continuing

operations 8892 9.5% 4310 5.8% $29263 17.5%

The effective income tax rate for 2010 was 9.5% compared with an effective income tax rate of 5.8% for 2009

and an effective income tax benefit of 17.5% for 2008 The effective rate differed from the weighted average

expected income tax expense rate of 12.8% for 2010 primarily due to investments in tax-exempt securities and the

decrease in prior years tax contingencies due to lapses on the statute of limitations The effective rate differed from

the weighted average expected income tax expense rate of 12.2% for 2009 primarily due to investments in tax-

exempt securities and the decrease in prior years tax contingencies due to lapses on the statute of limitations The

Total

Gross premiums written $178310 353130 $152740 378700

Net premiums written $156341 152739 309080

Net premiums earned $195421 187087 382508

Net investment income 41157 45113 18440 67830

Net realized investment losses 4215 46044 50259

Total revenues 232363 186156 18440 400079

Losses and Expenses

Net losses and loss adjustment expenses 151643 153531 305174

Acquisition costs and other underwriting expenses 83540 59227 142767

Corporate and other operating expenses 9168 4750 13918

Interest expense 27097 18440 8657

Impairments of goodwill and intangible assets 96449 96449

Loss before income taxes $11988 $154898 $166886

2010

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008

Dollars in thousands

Expected tax provision at weighted

average $11993

Adjustments

Tax exempt interest 1988
Dividend exclusion 436

Impairment of goodwill

Other

12.8% 9110 12.2% $54182 32.4%

2.1 2571

0.5 375
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effective rate differed from the weighted average expected income tax benefit of 2.4% for 2008 primarily due to

investments in tax-exempt securities and the impairments of goodwill and intangible assets

The following table summarizes the components of income tax expense

Years Ended December 31

Dollars in thousands
2010 2009 2008

Current income tax expense benefit

Foreign and U.S Federal $5408 $5345 $14319

Deferred income tax expense benefit

U.S Federal 3484 9655 14944

Total income tax expense benefit $8892 4310 $29263

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the net deferred tax assets at

December 31 2010 and 2009 are presented below

Dollars in thousands
2010 2009

Dferred tax assets

Discounted unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses $12382 $17316

Unearned premiums 3330 3215

Alternative minimum tax credit
carryover 6479 3240

Partnership Ki basis differences 3435

Investment impairments 2005 4362

Stock options 2273 1977

Investment basis differences 417

Other 7139 4662

Total deferred tax assets 33608 38624

Deferred tax liabilities

Intangible assets 3220 3233

Unrealized gain on securities available-for-sale and less than 3% owned

investments in partnerships included in accumulated other comprehensive

income 19461 16053

Gain on partnerships greater than 20% owned 204 2714

Investment basis differences 586

Deferred acquisition costs 1463 1875

Depreciation and amortization 158 193

Partnership Kl basis differences 250

Other 1339 737

Total deferred tax liabilities 26681 24805

Total net deferred tax assets 6927 $13819

Management believes it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will be completely utilized in future

years As result there is no valuation allowance at December 31 2010 and 2009

The Company had an alternative minimum tax AMT credit carryforward of $6.5 million and $3.2 million

as of December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively which can be carried forward indefinitely As result of the 2008
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and 2009 capital and operating loss carrybacks the alternative minimum tax was thggered in the carryback years

As result the AMT credit canyforward increased by $3.2 million

The Company and some of its subsidiaries file income tax returns in the U.S federal jurisdiction and various

states and foreign jurisdictions The Company is no longer subject to U.S federal tax examinations by tax

authorities for tax years before 2007

The Company applies more-likely-than-not recognition threshold for all tax uncertainties whereby it only

recognizes those tax benefits that have greater than 50% likelihood of being sustained upon examination by the

taxing authorities The Companys unrecognized tax benefits were $0.7 million and $1.1 million as of December 31

2010 and 2009 respectively

reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows

Dollars in thousands

Balance as of January 2008 3646

Lapses on statutes of limitations 554

Balance as of December 31 2008 3092

Lapses on statutes of limitations 1986

Balance as of December 31 2009 1106

Lapses on statutes of limitations 415

Balance as of December 31 2010 691

If recognized the gross unrecognized tax benefits could lower the effective income tax rate in any future

period The provision for gross unrecognized tax benefits decreased $0.4 million during 2010 due to the expiration

of the IRS statute of limitations on the Companys 2006 federal income tax return As result the effective income

tax rate was reduced by 0.4% during 2010

The Company classifies all interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions as income tax expense As

of December 31 2010 the Company has recorded $0.1 million in liabilities for tax-related interest and penalties on

its consolidated balance sheet
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10 Liability for Unpaid Losses and Loss Adjnstment Expenses

Activity in the liability for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses is summarized as follows

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Dollars in thousands

Unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses at beginning of

period $1257741 $1506429 $1503237

Less Gross reinsurance receivables on unpaid losses and loss

adjustment expenses 514466 656929 691811

Net balance at beginning of period 743275 849500 811426

Incurred losses and loss adjustment expenses related to

Current year 184460 178492 270242

Prior years 54101 9110 34932

Total incurred losses and loss adjustment expenses 130359 169382 305174

Paid loses and loss adjustment expenses related to

Current year 49863 44815 55315

Prior years 178223 230792 211785

Total paid losses and loss adjustment expenses 228086 275607 267100

Net balance at end of period 645548 743275 849500

Plus Gross reinsurance receivables on unpaid losses and loss

adjustment expenses 407197 514466 656929

Unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses at end of period $1052745 $1257741 $1506429

When analyzing loss reserves and prior year development the Company considers many factors including the

frequency and severity of claims loss trends case reserve settlements that may have resulted in significant

development and
any

other additional or pertinent factors that may impact reserve estimates

During 2010 the Company reduced its prior accident year loss reserves by $53.9 million and reduced its

allowance for uncollectible reinsurance by $0.2 million which primarily consisted of $43.7 million reducrion in

generai liability lines $5.4 million reduction in umbrella lines $4.8 million reduction in professional liability

lines and $2.5 million reduction in property lines partially offset by $2.0 million increase in auto liability lines

and $0.7 million increase in workers compensation lines

General Liability The $43.7 million reduction primarily consisted of net reductions of $45.5 million

related to accident years 2002 through 2009 due to lower than anticipated frequency and severity Incurred

losses for these years have developed at rate lower than the Companys historical averages This reduction

was partially offset by net increases of $3.8 million related to accident years 1998 through 2001 where the

Company increased the loss and loss adjustment expense estimates related to construction defect claims

Umbrella The $5.4 million reduction in the umbrella lines related to all accident years 2009 and prior due

to less than anticipated severity As these accident years have matured more weight has been given to

experience based methods which continue to develop favorably compared to our initial indications

Professional Liability The $4.8 million reduction primarily consisted of net reductions of $9.6 million

related to accident years 2001 through 2008 driven by lower than expected paid and incurred activity This

reduction was partially offset by increases of $4.7 million related to accident year 2009 where the Company

experienced higher than expected claim frequency and severity
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Property The reduction in the property lines primarily consisted of reductions of $2.7 million related to

accident years 2002 and 2004 through 2008 driven by lower than anticipated severity partially offset by

increases of $0.2 million primarily related to accident year 2009 where the Company experienced higher

than expected claim frequency and severity

Auto Liability The increase in the automobile liability lines was primarily due to increases of $2.5 million

related to accident year 2009 from non-standard auto treaty in our Reinsurance Operations

Workers Compensation The increase in our workers compensation lines is related to an accident year

2009 structured excess of loss treaty at our Reinsurance Operations where we increased our loss estimates

based on industry workers compensation results

The reduction in the allowance for uncollectible reinsurancŁ is due to decrease in the amount of the

Companys carried reinsurance receivables

In 2009 the Company reduced its prior accident year loss reserves by $8.4 million and reduced its allowance

for uncollectible reinsurance by $0.7 million The reduction of prior accident year loss reserves primarily consisted

of $5.5 million reduction in property lines $2.9 million reduction in general liability lines and $4.7 million

reduction in umbrella lines partially offset by $4.7 million increase in professional liability lines

Property The $5.5 million reduction primarily consisted of reductions related to accident years 2006

through 2008 due to better than expected loss emergence in brokerage

General liability The $2.9 million reduction primarily consisted of reductions of $13.5 million related to

accident years 2006 and prior due to loss emergence that had been consistently lower than expected during

the year partially offset by increases of $10.6 million related to accident
years

2007 and 2008 that were

driven by large claim and an increase in our construction defect provisions for the Penn-America book of

business

Umbrella The $4.7 million reduction primarily consisted of net reductions of $5.1 million related to

accident years 2007 and prior that were driven by loss emergence throughout the year that was consistently

better than expected partially offset by increases of $0.4 million related to accident year 2008

Professional liability The $4.7 million increase primarily consisted of increases of $10.1 million related

to accident years 2007 and 2008 due to an increase in severity partially offset by net reductions of

$5.4 million primarily related to accident years 2006 and prior

The reduction in the allowance for uncollectible reinsurance is due to decrease in the amount of the

Companys carried reinsurance receivables

In 2008 the Company increased its prior accident year loss reserves by $31.8 million and increased its

allowance for uncollectible reinsurance by $3.1 million The increase to prior accident year loss reserves primarily

consisted of increases of $15.3 million in general liability lines and $18.3 million in professional liability lines

offset by reductions of $1.2 million in property lines and $0.6 million in umbrella lines

General Liability The $15.3 million increase primarily consisted of increases of $20.4 million related to

accident years 2006 2007 and 2001 and prior offset by reductions of $5.1 million related to accident years

2002 through 2005

Professional Liability The $18.3 million increase primarily consisted of increases of $20.3 million

related to accident
years 2006 and 2007 offset by reductions of $2.0 million related to accident years 2005

and prior
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Property The $1.2 million reduction primarily consisted of reductions of $2.6 million related to accident

years 2007 and 2003 and prior offset by increases of $1.4 million related to accident years 2004 through

2006

Umbrella The $0.6 million reduction was primarily related to accident years 2004 and prior

The increase in the allowance for uncollectible reinsurance is due to the increase in the amount of the

Companys carried reinsurance receivables

Prior to 2001 the Company underwrote multi-peril business insuring general contractors developers and

sub-contractors primarily involved in residential construction that has resulted in significant exposure to con

struction defect CD claims The Companys reserves for CD claims $50.8 million and $55.0 million as of

December 31 2110 and 2009 net of reinsurance respectively are established based upon managements best

estimate in consideration of known facts existing case law and gnerally accepted actuarial methodologies

However due to the inherent uncertainty conceming this type of business the ultimate exposure for these claims

may vary significantly from the amounts currently recorded

The Company has exposure to asbestos environmental AE claims The asbestos exposure primarily

arises from the sale of product liability insurance and the environmental exposure arises from the sale of general

liability and commercial multi-peril insurance In establishing the liability for unpaid losses and loss adjustment

expenses related to AE exposures management considers facts currently known and the current state of the law

and coverage litigation Liabilities are recognized for known claims including the cost of related litigation when

sufficient information has been developed to indicate the involvement of specific insurance policy and

management can reasonably estimate its liability In addition liabilities have been established to cover additional

exposures on both known and unasserted claims Estimates of the liabilities are reviewed and updated regularly

Case law continues to evolve for such claims and significant uncertainty exists about the outcome of coverage

litigation and whether past claim experience will be representative of future claim experience Included in net

unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses as of December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 were IBNR reserves of

$20.2 million $21.6 million and $31.8 million respectively and case reserves of approximately $10.1 million

$10.1 million and $5.2 million respectively for known AE-related claims

The following table shows the Companys gross reserves for AE losses

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Dollars in thousands

Gross reserve for AE losses and loss adjustment expenses

beginning of period $51170 $60601 $65116

Plus Incurred losses and loss adjustment expenses case

reserves 896 9212 6592

Plus Incurred losses and loss adjustment expenses IBNR 1648 5716 1469

Less Payments 1267 12927 12576

Gross reserves for AE losses and loss adjustment expenses end

of period $49151 $51170 $60601
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The following table shows the Companys net reserves for AE losses

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Dollars in thousands

Net reserve for AE losses and loss adjustment expenses

beginning of period $31677 $36926 $30144

Plus Incurred losses and loss adjustment expenses case

reserves 238 9989 4150

Plus Incurred losses and loss adjustment expenses IBNR 1376 5564 7988

Less Payments 206 9674 5356

Net reserves for AE losses and loss adjustment expenses .- end

of period $30333 $31677 $36926

Establishing reserves for AE and other mass tort claims involves more judgment than other types of claims

due to among other things inconsistent court decisions an increase in bankruptcy filings as result of asbestos-

related liabilities and judicial interpretations that often expand theories of recovery and broaden the scope of

coverage The insurance industry continues to receive substantial number of asbestos-related bodily injury claims

with an increasing focus being directed toward other parties including installers of products containing asbestos

rather than against asbestos manufacturers This shift has resulted in significant insurance coverage litigation

implicating applicable coverage defenses or determinations if any including but not limited to determinations as to

whether or not an asbestos-related bodily injury claim is subject to aggregate limits of liability found in most

comprehensive general liability policies In 2009 one of the Companys insurance companies was dismissed from

lawsuit seeking coverage from it and other unrelated insurance companies The suit involved issues related to

approximately 3900 existing asbestos-related bodily injury claims and future claims The dismissal was the result

of settlement of disputed claim related to accident year 1984 The settlement is conditioned upon certain legal

events occurring which will trigger financial obligations by the insurance company Management will continue to

monitor the developments of the litigation to determine if any additional financial exposure is present

As of December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 the survival ratio on gross basis for the Companys open AE
claims was 5.5 years 5.1 years and 9.2 years respectively As of December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 the survival

ratio on net basis for the Companys open AE claims was 6.0 years 5.7 years and 13.8 years respectively The

survival ratio which is the ratio of gross or net reserves to the 3-year average of annual paid claims is financial

measure that indicates how long the current amount of gross or net reserves are expected to last based on the current

rate of paid claims

11 Debt

Debt consisted of the following as of December 31 2010 and 2009

December 31

2010 2009

6.22% guaranteed senior notes due July 2011 to July 2015 90000 90000

Three-month LIBOR plus 4.05% junior subordinated debentures due

September2033 10310 10310

Three-month LIBOR plus 3.85% junior subordinated debentures due

October 2033 20619 20619

Loans payable due 2011 to 2012 4.0% stated interest 356 640

Total debt $121285 $121569
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Guaranteed Senior Notes

On July 20 2005 we sold $90.0 million of guaranteed senior notes due July 20 2015 These senior notes have

an interest rate of 6.22% payable semi-annually On July 20 2011 and on each anniversary thereafter to and

including July 20 2014 we are required to prepay $18.0 million of the principal amount On July 20 2015 we are

required to pay any remaining outstanding principal amount on the notes The notes are guaranteed by Global

Indemnity Cayman Ltd

Junior Subordinated Debentures

In 2003 trusts formed and owned by the Company issued total of $30.0 million of trust preferred securities

The funds were used to purchase junior subordinated interest notes and to support the business growth in the

insurance subsidiaries and general business needs summary of the terms related to the trust preferred securities

that are still currently outstanding is as follows

Issuer Amount Maturity Interest Rate Call Provisions

MS through its wholly $10.0 milllon issued September 30 2033 Payable quarterly at the At par after September 30 2008

owned subsidiary UNG September 30 2003 three month London

Trust Interbank Offered Rate

LIBOR plus 4.05%

MS through its wholly $20.0 million issued October 29 2033 Payable quarterly at the At par after October 29 2008

owned subsidiary UNG October 29 2003 three month LIBOR plus

Trust II 3.85%

The proceeds from the above offerings were used to purchase junior subordinated interest notes and were used

to support the business growth in the insurance subsidiaries and general business needs

Distributions on the above securities can be deferred up to five years but in the event of such deferral the

Company may not declare or pay cash dividends on the common stock of the applicable subsidiary

The Companys wholly owned business trust subsidiaries UNG Trust and UNG Trust II are not consolidated

pursuant to applicable accounting guidance These business trust subsidiaries have issued $30.0 million in floating

rate capital securities and $0.9 million of floating rate common securities The sole assets of the business trust

subsidiaries are $30.9 million of the Companys junior subordinated debentures which have the same terms with

respect to maturity payments and distributions as the floating rate capital securities and the floating rate common

securities

On May 15 2008 the Company redeemed all of the $15.0 million issued and outstanding notes of Penn

Trust II In conjunction with this redemption the $15.5 million of junior subordinated debentures of PAGI which

are the sole assets of Penn Trust II were also redeemed The registration of Penn Trust II was cancelled effective

February 2009

Loans Payable

Loans payable of $0.4 million and $0.6 million as of December 31 2010 and 2009 were comprised of loan

payable to former minority shareholder The current portion of these loans that will be payable in 2011 is

$0.3 million Interest expense related to loans payable was $0.02 million $0.03 million and $0.03 million for 2010

2099 and 2008 respectively

12 Shareholders Equity

With the exception of the Rights Offering discussion below all share amounts have been adjusted to reflect the

one-for-two stock exchange of Global Indenmity plc shares for United America Indemnity Ltd shares effective

July 2010 as part of the re-domestication to Ireland See Note above for more information regarding the re

domestication
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Rights Offering

On February 17 2009 the Company filed universal shelf registration statement on Form S-3 with the

U.S Securities and Exchange Commission SEC covering up to $300.0 million of Class ordinary shares

preferred shares depositary shares debt securities warrants to purchase Class ordinary shares preferred shares

or debt securities stock purchase contracts and stock purchase units The filing was made in order to provide the

Company with future financial flexibility

On March 10 2009 the Company filed Amendment No to the Form S-3 filing with the SEC which included

preliminary prospectus defming the terms of our intended non-transferable rights offering the Rights Offering

On March 17 2009 the Company filed final Prospectus under SEC Rule 424b2 denoting the amended terms

of the prospectus

The Rights Offering allowed holders of the Companys Class ordinary shares to subscribe to new offering

of Class ordinary shares and the holders of the Companys Class ordinary shares to subscribe to new offering

of Class ordinary shares One non-transferable Class Right for each Class ordinary share held and one non-

transferable Class Right for each Class ordinary share held was distributed to tlje respective Class and

share holders for each share owned at 500PM EST on March 16 2009 the record date for the Rights Offering Each

Right entitled the holder to purchase either 0.9013 Class shares or 0.9013 Class shares depending on the class

of shares owned on the record date of the offering at the subscription price of $3.50 per share The Rights Offering

expired April 2009

The Rights Offering included an agreement with Fox Paine Company and an investment entity referred to as

the Backstop Purchaser which is controlled by Fox Paine Company The Backstop Purchaser agreed subject to

certain conditions to purchase all of the Class and Class ordinary shares offered in the Rights Offering and not

subscribed for pursuant to the Rights Offering The Company entered into the agreement to ensure that subject to

the conditions of the agreement all Class ordinary shares and Class ordinary shares offered in the Rights

Offering were either distributed in the Rights Offering or purchased subsequent to the Rights Offering at the same

purchase price at which the rights were exercisable Through this arrangement the Company had high degree of

certainty that it would raise gross proceeds of $100.0 million through the Rights Offering In the agreement and

subject to the successful completion of the Rights Offering the Company agreed to pay Fox Paine Company an

arrangement fee of $2.0 million and backstop fee equal to 5% of the aggregate gross proceeds raised in the Rights

Offering or $5.0 million for total payments of $7.0 million Payment of these fees was subject to the prior approval

by the Companys shareholders which was obtained at the Annual General Shareholders meeting that was held on

October 27 2009 The fees were paid on October 27 2009

As result of the Rights Offering 17.2 million Class ordinary shares and 11.4 million Class ordinary

shares were purchased resulting in gross proceeds of $100.1 million After deducting expenses associated with the

Rights Offering the Companys equity increased $91.8 million Approximately 66% of the Class common

shareholders had exercised their subscription right Excluding those Class ordinary shares that are owned by Fox

Paine Company and affiliated entities approximately 72% of the Class common shareholders had exercised

their subscription right Fox Paine Company and affiliated entities purchased 5.9 million Class ordinary shares

and all Class ordinary shares for $60.7 million

Post the Rights Offering and including the impact of the one-for-two stock exchange Fox Paine Company

and affiliated entities own 3.8 million of the total 21.3 million outstanding Class ordinary shares and all

12.1 million of the outstanding Class ordinary shares In total Fox Paine Company and affiliated entities now

own 47.4% of all outstanding shares and beneficially own shares having approximately 89.6% of the Companys

total outstanding voting power
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Repurchases of the Company Class Ordinary shares

The Company allows employees to surrender the Companys Class ordinary shares as payment for the tax

liability incurred upon the vesting of restricted stock that was issued under the Companys Share Incentive Plan

During 2010 the Company purchased an aggregate of 12088 of surrendered Class ordinary shares from its

employees for $0.2 million During 2009 the Company purchased an aggregate of 13525 of surrendered Class

ordinary shares from its employees for $0.2 million All Class ordinary shares purchased from employees by the

Company are held as treasury stock and recorded at cost

As part of the Rights Offering the Company purchased 5000 Class ordinary shares for $0.04 million that

had been purchased by former employee with the non-transferable Class Rights that were distributed to that

former employee for Class ordinary shares held of non-vested resthcted stock Since the restricted stock was not

vested the former employee upon leaving the Company had to forfeit those Class ordinary shares that had been

purchased with the non-transferable Class Rights that were distributed on that unvested restricted stock See

above for more details conceming the Rights Offering

The following table provides information with respect to the Class ordinary shares that were surrendered or

repurchased in 2010

Approximate
Total Number of Dollar Value

Shares Purchased of Shares That

Total Number Average as Part of Publicly May Yet Be

of Shares Price Paid Announced Plan Purchased Under the

Period1 Purchased Per Share or Program Plau or Program2

January 1-31 2010 50453 $15.98

February 1-28 2010 30333 $13.96

March 1-31 2010 594 7.00

April 1-30 2010 893 $19.60

May 1-31 2010 20373 $15.79

June 1-30 2010 3703 $15.00

October 1-31 2010 4193 $16.65

November 1-30 2010 5923 $19.29

December 1-31 2010 5033 $19.84

Total 12147 $15.74 N/A

Based on settlement date

Approximate dollar value of shares is as of the last date of the applicable month

Surrendered by employees as paymnt of taxes withheld on the vesting of restricted stock

Includes 59 shares repurchased as part of the Rights Offering
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The following table provides information with respect to the Class ordinary shares that were surrendered or

repurchased in 2009

Approximate
Total Number of Dollar Value

Shares Purchased of Shares That

Total Number Average as Part of Publicly May Yet Be

of Shares Price Paid Aunounced Plau Purchased Uuder the

Period1 Purchased Per Share or Program Plan or Program2

January 1-31 2009 46223 $24.25

February 1-28 2009 21633 $21.00

May 1-31 2009 11983 9.78

July 1-3 2009 86514 .02

October 1-31 2009 7963 $14.91

November 1-30 2009 10953 $13.89

Total 18525 $14.81 N/A

Based on settlement date

Approximate dollar value of shares is as of the last date of the applicable month

Surrendered by employees as payment of taxes withheld on the vesting of restricted stock

Includes 3651 shares surrendered by employees as payment of taxes withheld on the vesting of restricted stock

and 5000 shares repurchased as part of the Rights Offering

13 Related Party Transactions

Fox Paine Company

As of December 312010 Fox Paine Company beneficially owns shares having approximately 89.6% of the

Companys total outstanding voting power Fox Paine Company can nominate certain number of our Directors

dependent on Fox Paine Companys percentage ownership of voting shares in the Company for so long as Fox

Paine Company holds an aggregate of 25% or more of the voting power in the Company Fox Paine Company
controls the election of all of our Directors due to its controlling share ownership The Companys Chairman is

member of Fox Paine Company The Company relies on Fox Paine Company to provide management services

and other services related to the operations of the Company

As mentioned in Note 12 above as result of the Rights Offering the Company agreed to pay Fox Paine

Company an arrangement fee of $2.0 million and backstop fee equal to 5% of the aggregate gross proceeds raised

in the Rights Offering or $5.0 million for total payments of $7.0 million Since Fox Paine Company is related

party and all other shareholders were not offered these fees in the Rights Offering the payment of the fees was

subject to the prior approval of the Companys shareholders which was obtained at the Annual General Share

holders meeting that was held on October 27 2009 The fees were paid on October 27 2009 See Note 12 above for

more details concerning the Rights Offering

At December 31 2010 and 2009 Wind River Reinsurance was limited partner
in the Fox Paine Capital

Fund II which is managed by Fox Paine Company This investment was originally made by United National

Insurance Company in June 2000 and pre-dates the September 2003 acquisition by Fox Paine Company of

Wind River Investment Corporation the holding company for the Companys Predecessor Insurance Operations

The Companys investment in this limited partnership was valued at $4.3 million and $5.6 million at December 31

2010 and 2009 respectively At December 31 2010 the Company had an unfunded capital conmiitment of

$2.6 million to the partnership
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In September 2010 management fees of $1.5 million in the aggregate were paid to Fox Paine Company
LLC The management fees covered the period from September 2010 through September 2011 and were

recognized ratably over that period In September 2009 management fees of $1.5 million in the aggregate were paid

to Fox Paine Company LLC pursuant to the Management Agreement with Fox Paine Company LLC The

management fees cover the period from September 2009 through September 2010 and will be recognized

ratably over that period In November 2008 management fees of $1.5 million in the aggregate were paid to Fox

Paine Company LLC The management fees cover the period from September 2008 through September

2009 and were recognized ratably over that period The Company relies on Fox Paine Company LLC to provide

management services and other services related to the operations of the Company

On July 2010 United America Indenmity Ltd entered into an agreement to indemnify the affected indirect

owners of the affiliates of Fox Paine Company that were shareholders of United America Indemnity Ltd

immediately prior to the effective date of our re-domestication to freland See Note for details The agreement

indemnifies them for any tax cost including interest on tax and penalties if any of any triggering event and such

affected indirect owners will pay us an amount equal to any tax benefits if any realized by them as result of

triggering event for which they were indemnified provided that the indirect owners will not be required to pay any

amount of tax benefits in excess of the tax costs for which we have indemnified them sale or other disposition by

these iildirect owners of our ordinary shares will not constitute triggering event for thiSpurpose In addition the

indemnification agreement provides that under certain circumstances in the event the conversion of Global

Indemnity plcs Class ordinary shares to Class ordinary shares or sale or other disposition of Global Indemnity

plcs Class ordinary shares is subject to Irish stamp duty we will indemnify such affiliates of Fox Paine

Company and their transferees against such Irish stamp duty

Cozen OConnor

In 2010 2009 and 2008 the Company incurred $0.2 million $0.1 million and $1.1 million respectively for

legal services rendered by Cozen OConnor Stephen Cozen the chairman of Cozen OConnor was member of

the Companys Board of Directors as of December 31 2010 Mr Cozen has retired from our Board of Directors

effective December 31 2010

Vali.dus Reinsurance Ltd

Validus Reinsurance Ltd Validus was participant on the Companys following catastrophe reinsurance

treaty

$100.0 million in excess of $10.0 million which expired on May 31 2008

The Company paid $3.9 million and $0.1 million in 2008 and 2009 respectively in premium to Validus as

result this treaty

Validus is also participant in quota share retrocession agreement with Wind River Reinsurance The

Company estimated that the following written premium and losses related to the quota share retrocession agreement

have been assumed by Validus from Wind River Reinsurance

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Dollars in thousands

Ceded written premium $3682 $2518 $10634

Ceded paid losses 309 2314 8075
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Edward Noonan the chairman and chief executive officer of Validus was member of the Companys Board

of Directors until June 2007 when he resigned from the Companys Board Validus remains related party since

the current quota share retrocession agreement between Validus and Wind River Reinsurance was put in place

during the period when Mr Noonan was member of the Companys Board of Directors

Citigroup Global Markets Inc

In connection with the Rights Offering the Company entered into an agreement with Citigroup Global

Markets Inc Citiwherein Citi agreed to be the Companys exclusive capital markets structuring adviser to

provide advisory and investment banicing services The Company paid Citi $1.0 million in connection with these

services in 2009 Chad Leat Vice Chainnan of Global Banlcing at Citigroup is member of the Companys
Board of Directors

Frank Crystal Company

During the
years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 the Company paid $0.2 million and $0.2 million in

brokerage fees to Frank Crystal Company an insurance broker James Crystal the chairman and chief

executive officer of Frank Crystal Company became member of the Companys Board of Directors effective

July 2010

14 Commitments and Contingencies

Lease Commitments

Total rental expense under operating leases for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 were

$5.2 million $3.5 million and $3.7 million respectively At December 31 2010 future minimum payments under

non-cancelable operating leases net of expected sub-lease income were as follows

Dollars in thousands

2011 $3168

2012 2980

2013 3055

2014 316

2015 and thereafter 75

Total $9594

Legal Proceedings

The Company is from time to time involved in various legal proceedings in the ordinary course of business

The Company purchases insurance and reinsurance policies covering such risks in amounts that it considers

adequate However there can be no assurance that the insurance and reinsurance coverage that the Company

maintains is sufficient or will be available in adequate amounts or at reasonable cost The Company does not

believe that the resolution of any currently pending legal proceedings either individually or taken as whole will

have material adverse effect on the Companys business results of operations cash flows or financial condition

There is greater potential for disputes with reinsurers who are in runoff of their reinsurance operations

Some of the Companys reinsurers reinsurance operations are in runoff and therefore the Company closely

monitors those relationships The Company anticipates that similar to the rest of the insurance and reinsurance

industry it will continue to be subject to litigation and arbitration proceedings in the ordinary course of business

On December 2008 federal jury in the U.S District Court for the Eastem District of Pennsylvania

Philadelphia retumed $24.0 million verdict in favor of United National Insurance Company United National
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an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company against AON Corp an insurance and reinsurance broker On

July 24 2009 federal judge from the U.S District Court for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania Philadelphia

upheld that jury verdict In doing so the U.S District Judge increased the verdict to $32.2 million by adding more

than $8.2 million in prejudgment interest AON filed its Notice of Appeal and Bond in the amount of $33.0 million

Oral arguments were heard by the Appellate Court on October 26 2010 In January 2011 we settled with AON for

$16.3 million We realized approximately $7.5 million net of income taxes and attorneys fees

Other Commitments

As mentioned in Note 13 above the Company has remaining commitment of $2.6 million to the Fox Paine

Capital Fund II

The Company is party to Management Agreement as amended with Fox Paine Company LLC whereby

in connection with certain management services provided to it by Fox Paine Company LLC the Company agreed

to pay an annual management fee of $1.5 million to Fox Paine Company LLC The most recent annual

management fee of $1.5 million was paid to Fox Paine Company LLC on September 2010 The next annual

managethent fee payment of $1.5 million is payable on September 2011

15 Share-Based Compensation Plans

All share amounts have been adjusted to reflect the one-for-two stock exchange of Global Indemnity plc shares

for United America Indemnity Ltd shares effective July 2010 as part of the re-domestication to freland See

Note above for more information regarding the re-domestication

The fair value method of accounting recognizes share-based compensation to employees and non-employee

directors in the statements of operations using the grant-date fair value of the stock options and other equity-based

compensation expensed over the requisite service and vesting period

For the purpose of determining the fair value of stock option awards the Company uses the Black-Scholes

option-pricing model An estimation of forfeitures is required when recognizing compensation expense which is

then adjusted over the requisite service period should actual forfeitures differ from such estimates Changes in

estimated forfeitures are recognized through cumulative adjustment to compensation in the period of change

The prescribed accounting guidance also requires tax benefits relating to excess stock-based compensation

deductions to be prospectively presented in the statement of cash flows as financing cash inflows Tax expense

resulting from stock-based compensation ileductions in excess of amounts reported for financial reporting purposes

were $0.2 million $0.3 million and $0.1 million for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

respectively

OPTIONS

Share Incentive Plan

The Company maintains the Global Indemnity plc Share Incentive Plan as so amended the Plan The

purpose of the Plan is to give the Company competitive advantage in attracting and retaining officers employees

consultants and non-employee directors by offering stock options restricted shares and other stock-based awards

As amended and restated on July 2010 the Company may issue up to 5.0 million Class ordinary shares for
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issuance
pursuant to awards granted under the Plan Award activity for stock options granted under the Plan and the

weighted average exercise price per share are summarized as follows

Weighted

Average
Time-Based Performance- Tranche Exercise Price

Options Based Options Options Total Options Per Share

Options outstanding at January 2008 370196 98736 28037 496969 $35.50

Options issued 124709 124709 249418 $40.10

Options forfeited 27102 27102 $25.96

Options exercised 49371 49371 $21.08

Options retired 161 161 $16.98

Options purchased by Company 98736 98736 197472 $50.64

Options outstanding at December 31 2008 319535 124709 28037 472281 $33.66

Options issued 124709 124709 249418 $23.80

Options forfeited 7500 7500 $43.74

Options exercised

Options retired 102726 28037 130763 $22.44

Options purchased by Company 124709 124709 ______ 249418 $40.10

Options outstanding at December 31 2009 209309 124709 334018 $25.65

Options issued

Options forfeited

Options exercised

Options retired 4000 4000 $34.00

Options purchased by Company

Options outstanding at December 31 2010 205309 124709 330018 $25.55

Options exercisable at December 31 2010 142954 142954 $27.84

NOTE The above table excludes 27500 warrants that were issued at an exercise price of $20.00 per share on

September 2003 and which expired on September 11 2008 In addition the Tranche options were

granted outside of the Plan

There was no activity in the Option-ATranche during 2010 or 2008 In 200928037 Option-ATranche options

expired on March 31 2009

During 2008 the Company granted 124709 Time-Based Options and 124709 Performance-Based Options

under the Plan The Company also cancelled 98736 Time-Based Options and 98736 Performance-Based Options

under the plan as result of the amendment and restatement of Larry Prakes employment agreement The Time-

Based Options vest in 25% increments over four-year period with any unvested options being forfeited upon

termination of employment for any reason and expire 10 years after the grant date The Performance-Based Options

vest in 25% increments and are conditional upon the Company achieving various operating targets and expire

10
years

after the grant date

During 2009 the Company granted 124709 Time-Based Options and 124709 Performance-Based Options

under the Plan The Company also cancelled 124709 Time-Based Options and 124709 Performance-Based

Options under the plan as result of the amendment and restatement of Larry Frakes employment agreement

The Time-Based Options vest in 25% increments on December 31 2008 2010 2011 and 2012 with any unvested

options being forfeited upon termination of employment for any reason and expire 10 years after the grant date The
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Performance-Based Options vest in 25% increments and are conditional upon the Company achieving various

operating targets and expire 10 years after the grant date

During 2010 there were no new option grants or cancellations

In 2010 the Company recorded $1.2 million of compensation expense for the 330018 outstanding options

granted under the Plan In 2009 the Company recorded $1.2 million of compensation expense for the 334018

outstanding options granted under the Plan In 2008 the Company recorded $1.2 million of compensation expense

for the 472281 outstanding options granted under the Plan The Company received $0.0 million $0.0 million and

$1.0 million of proceeds from the exercise of options during 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively Amortization

expense related to options is anticipated to be $1.1 million in 2011 $0.07 million in 2012 and $0.02 million in

2013

Option intrinsic values which are the differences between the fair market value of $20.45 at December 31

2010 and the strike price of the option are as follows

Weighted
Number Average
of Shares Strike Price Intrinsic Value

Outstanding 330018 $25.55 $0.01 million

Exercisable 142954 27.84 0.01 million

Exercised

NOTE The intrinsic value of the Exercised Options is the difference between the fair market value at time of

exercise and the strike price of the option

The options exercisable at December 31 2010 include the following

Number of

Options

Option Price Exercisable

$16.98 207

$20.00 19293

$23.80 62354

$29.24 5000

$34.00 41100

$36.80 2500

$37.70 12500

Options exercisable at December 31 2010 142954

The weighted average fair value of options granted under the Plan was $4.56 and $15.14 in 2009 and 2002

respectively using Black-Scholes option-pricing model and the following weighted average assumptions

2009 2008

Dividend yield 0.0% 0.0%

Expected volatility 48.40% 1.4%

Risk-free interest rate 3.0% 3.1%

Expected option life 6.1 years 6.6 years
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The following tables summarize the range
of exercise prices of options outstanding at December 31 2010

2009 and 2008

Outstanding at Weighted Average Weighted Average

Ranges of Exercise Prices December 31 2010 Per Share Exercise Price Remaining Life

$16.98-$19.99 207 $16.98 1.0
years

$20.00-$33.99 273711 $23.63 8.2
years

$34.00-$37.70 56100 $34.95 3.0
years

Total 330018

Outstanding at Weighted Average Weighted Average
Ranges of Exercise Prices December 31 2009 Per Share Exercise Price Remaining Life

$16.98-$19.99 207 $16.98 2.0
years

$20.00-$33.99 273711 $23.63 9.2 years

$34.00-$37.70 60100 $34.89 4.0 years

Total 334018

Outstanding at Weighted Average Weighted Average
Ranges of Exercise Prices December 31 2008 Per Share Exercise Price Remaining Life

$13.00-$19.99 28.244 $13.03 0.4 years

$20.00-$29.99 93942 $20.49 2.3 years

$30.00-$39.99 90677 $34.90 3.6 years

$40.00-$43.74 259418 $40.24 8.4 years

Total 472281

Restricted Shares

In addition to stock option awards the Plan also provides for the issuance of Restricted Shares to employees

and non-employee Directors The Company recognized compensation expense
for restricted stock of $1.1 million

$1.8 million and $1.4 million for 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively The total unrecognized compensation expense

for the non-vested restricted stock was $0.7 million at December 31 2010 which will be recognized over

weighted average
life of 2.4 years The weighted average

fair value of the 119292 Class ordinary shares subject

to certain restrictions granted to key employees of the Company under the Plan Restricted Shares that vested

during the year ended December 31 2010 was $20.38 per
share

The following table summarizes the restricted stock awards since inception

Restricted Stock Awards

Year Employees Directors Total

Inception through 20071 309820 46522 356342

2008 111327 23698 135025

2009 65568 101755 167323

2010 47610 76648 124258

534325 248623 782948

Includes 122603 shares that were purchased by key employees in 2003
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The following table summarizes the non-vested Restricted Shares activity for the years ended December 31

2010 2009 and 2008

Weighted

Average
Numher of Price

Shares Per Share

Non-vested Restricted Shares at January 2008 76612 $44.56

Shares issued 135025 $31.94

Shares vested 54726 $38.14

Shares forfeited 19427 $43.55

Non-vested Restricted Shares at December 31 2008 137484 $34.87

Shares issued 167323 $15.30

Shares vested 146497 $20.78

Shares forfeited 39311 $27.84

Non-vested Restricted Shares at December 31 2009 118999 $27.04

Shares issued 424258 $15.76

Shares vested 119292 $20.38

Shares forfeited 58020 $24.59

Non-vested Restricted Shares at December 31 2010 65945 $20.26

Based on the terms of the Restricted Shares awards all forfeited shares revert back to the Company

During 2008 the Company granted an aggregate of 111327 Restricted Shares to key employees of the

Company and an aggregate of 23698 fully vested Director Restricted Shares at weighted average fair value of

$33.40 per share to non-employee directors of the Company under the Plan In 2008 the company granted 35837

Restricted Shares to key employees and 18770 fully vested Director Restricted Shares to non-employee directors of

the Company out of shares held in treasury Included in the 111327 are 71000 Restricted Shares granted by the

Company to key executives of the Company in exchange for signed employment agreements Included in the 71000

are 6000 shares that vest 33V3% on each subsequent anniversary date of the award for period of three years and

15000 shares that vest 25% on each subsequent anniversary date of the award for period of four years Of the

remaining 50000 shares 10% of the shares vested upon being granted and 22.5% vest on each subsequent

anniversary date of the award for period of four years The Company also granted 8080 shares to key executive

in 2008 The 8080 Restricted Shares vest 25% on each subsequent anniversary date of the award for period of four

years

During 2009 the Company granted an aggregate of 65568 Restricted Shares to key employees of the

Company and an aggregate of 101755 fully vested Director Restricted Shares at weighted average fair value of

$13.54 per share to non-employee directors of the Company under the Plan In 2009 the company granted 29235

Restricted Shares to key employees out of shares held in treasury Included in the 65568 are 38681 Restricted

Shares granted by the Company to key executives of the Company in exchange for signed employment agreements

Included in the 38.681 are 26.181 shares that were forfeited in 2009 and 7.500 shares that vest 33/3% on each

subsequent anniversary date of the award for period of three years and 5000 shares that vest 25% on each

subsequent anniversary date of the award for period of four years

During 2010 the Company granted an aggregate of 47610 Restricted Shares to key employees of the

Company and an aggregate of 76648 fully vested Director Restricted Shares at weighted average fair value of

$16.34 per share to non-employee directors of the Company under the Plan In 2010 the Company granted 8149

Restricted Shares to key employees and 18529 fully vested Director Restricted Shares to non-employee directors of

the Company out of shares held in treasury Included in the 47610 are 10000 Resthcted Shares granted by the
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Company to key executives of the Company in exchange for signed employment agreements Included in the 10000

are 5000 shares that were torfeited in 2010 and 5000 shares that vest 33/3% on each subsequent anniversary date ot

the award for period of three years

Chief Executive Officer

Effective May 10 2007 Larry Frakes was hired as the Companys President and Chief Operating Officer as

well as Chief Executive Officer of all of the Company Affiliates Mr Frakes four-year employment agreement

includes several equity components including the granting of $10.0 million of stock options or 197473 shares

split evenly between time-based and performance-based options at the grant date market value of $50.64 per share

an annual bonus program under which the first $0.5 million is paid in restricted stock based on the market value

at December 31 of the subject Bonus Year the purchase of $1.0 million of the Companys Class ordinary

shares by Mr Frakes and the requirement that effective Janudry 2009 Mr Frakes hold Class ordinary

shares of the Company with value of the lesser of two times his Annual Compensation or the sum of owned

granted and vested Class ordinary shares The time-based options vest at 25% on each December 31 of years

2008 through 2011 The performance-based options generally vest at the same rate based on the achievement of

various Company financial performance goals The restricted stock portion of the 2008 2009 and 2010 bonuses

vest at 25% per year each year after the bonus year and awards for the 2011 bonus year and thereafter will vest at

33.3% per year each year after the bonus year

On February 2008 the Company entered into an amended and restated employment agreement with

Mr Frakes which amended and restated Mt Frakes original employment agreement that was entered into on

May 10 2007 The amended and restated employment agreement changes and clarifies the terms of options granted

under the original employment agreement The amended and restated agreement grants Mt Frakes $10.0 million of

options with strike price equal to the average price per
share that was paid by Mr Frakes upon his purchase of

$1.0 million of the Companys Class ordinary shares

On September 14 2009 the Company entered into an amended and restated employment agreement with

Mt Frakes which amended and restated Mr Frakes amended employment agreement that was entered into on

February 2008 The amended and restated employment agreement changes and clarifies the terms of options

granted under the original employment agreement The Time Based Options vest at 25% on December 31 2008

2010 2011 and 2012 The Performance Based Options have three vesting opportunities Each tranche which

represents 25% of the total award can initially vest on December 31 2008 2009 2010 and 2011 Subsequent

vesting opportunities occur on April 30 2011 and 2012 for each tranche

16 401k Plan

The Company maintains 401k defined contribution plan that covers all eligible U.S employees Under this

plan the Company matches 100% of the first 6% contributed by an employee Vesting on contributions made by the

Company for new employees with lesg than years of service prior to January 2009 occurs pro-rata over three

year period Effective January 2009 vesting on contributions made by the Company is immediate Total expenses

for the plan were $1.6 million $1.4 million and $1.3 million for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and

2008 respectively

17 Earnings Loss Per Share

Earnings loss per share have been computed using the weighted average number of ordinary shares and

ordinary share equivalents outstanding during the period With the exception of the Rights Offering discussion

below all share counts and corresponding per share market prices have been adjusted to reflect the one-for-two

stock exchange of Global Indemnity plc shares for United America Indemnity Ltd shares as part of the re

domestication to Ireland See Note above for more information regarding the re-domestication As detailed below

share counts for prior years have also been restated as result of the Rights Offering that took place in 2009
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The Company issued non-transferable rights to stockholders of record on March 16 2009 The rights entitled

the holders to purchase 0.9013 shares of common stock for every right held The Rights Offering expired on April

2009 On May 2009 the Company issued 17.2 million Class ordinary shares and 11.4 million Class ordinary

shares at subscription price of $3.50 per share in conjunction with the Rights Offering

The market price of the Companys Class ordinary shares was $4.89 per share on March 12 2009 which was

the ex-rights date related to the Rights Offering Since the $3.50 per share subscription price of the shares issued

under the Rights Offering was lower than the $4.89 per share market price on March 12 2009 the Rights Offering

contained bonus element In computing the basic and diluted weighted share counts the number of shares

outstanding prior to May 2009 the date that the ordinary shares were issued in conjunction with the Rights

Offering was adjusted by factor of 1.114 to reflect the impact of bonus element associated with the Rights

Offering See Note 12 above for more details concerning the Rights Offering

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings loss per share In 2008 Diluted

loss per share is the same as Basic loss per share since there was net loss for that year

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Dollars in thousands except share and per share data

Net income loss 84903 75437 141560

Basic earnings loss per share

Weighted average
shares outstanding basic 30237787 25246171 16413189

Adjustment for bonus element of Rights Offering 609878 1864905

Adjusted weighted average
shares outstanding basic 30237787 25856049 18278094

Net income loss 2.81 2.92 7.74

Diluted earnings loss per share

Weighted average shares outstanding diluted 30274259 25271504 16413189

Adjustment for bonus element of Rights Offering 609878 1864905

Adjusted weighted average shares outstanding diluted 30274259 25881382 18278094

Net income loss 2.80 2.91 7.74

reconciliation of weighted average shares for basic earnings per share to weighted average shares for diluted

earnings per share for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 is as follows

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Weighted average shares for basic earnings per share 30237787 25856049 18278094

Non-vested restricted stock 36472 2961

Options and warrants 22372

Weighted average shares for diluted earnings per share 30274259 25881382 18278094

If the Company had not incurred loss in 2008 then 18353497 weighted average shares would have been

used to compute the diluted loss per share calculation In addition to the basic shares weighted average shares for

the diluted calculation would have included 25275 shares of non-vested restricted stock and 50127 share

equivalents for options and warrants
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18 Statutory Financial Information

GAAP differs in certain respects from Statutory Accounting Principles SAP as prescribed or permitted by

the various U.S State Insurance Departments The principal differences between SAP and GAAP are as follows

Under SAP investments in debt securities are primarily carried at amortized cost while under GAAP the

Company records its debt securities at estimated fair value

Under SAP policy acquisition costs such as commissions premium taxes fees and other costs of

underwriting policies are charged to current operations as incurred while under GAAP such costs are

deferred and amortized on pro rata basis over the period covered by the policy

IJnder SAP certain assets designated as Non-admitted assets such as prepaid expenses are charged

against surplus

Under SAP net deferred income tax assets are admitted following the application of specified criteria with

the resulting admitted deferred tax amount being credited directly to surplus

Under SAP certain premium receivables are non-admitted and are charged against surplus based upon aging

criteria

Under SAP the costs and related receivables for guaranty funds and other assessments are recorded based on

managements estimate of the ultimate liability and related receivable settlement while under GAAP such

costs are accrued when the liability is probable and reasonably estimable and the related receivable amount

is based on future premium collections or policy surcharges from in-force policies

Under SAP unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses and unearned premiums are reported net of the

effects of reinsurance transactions whereas under GAAP unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses and

unearned premiums are reported gross of reinsurance

Under SAP provision for reinsurance is charged to surplus based on the authorized status of reinsurers

available collateral and certain aging criteria whereas under GAAP an allowance for uncollectible

reinsurance is established based on managements best estimate of the collectability of reinsurance

receivables

The National Association of Insurance Commissioners NAIC issues model laws and regulations many of

which have been adopted by state insurance regulators relating to risk-based capital RBC standards

codification of insurance accounting principles investment restrictions and restrictions on the ability of

insurance companies to pay dividends

The Companys U.S insurance subsidiaries are required by law to maintain certain minimum surplus on

statutory basis and are subject to regultions under which payment of dividend from statutory surplus is restricted

and may require prior approval of regulatory authorities Applying the current regulatory restrictions as of

December 31 2010 the maximum amount of distributions that could be paid for 2011 by the United National

Insurance Companies and the Penn-America Insurance Companies as dividends under applicable laws and

regulations without regulatory approval is approximately $42.4 million and $21.4 million respectively The

Penn-America Insurance Companies limitation includes $7.0 million that would be distributed to United National

Insurance Company or its subsidiary Penn Independent Corporation based on the December 31 2010 ownership

percentages For 2010 the United National Insurance Companies and Penn-America Insurance Companies

declared and paid dividends of $50.3 million and $19.1 million respectively

The NAICs RBC model provides tool for insurance regulators to determine the levels of statutory capital and

surplus an insurer must maintain in relation to its insurance and investment risks as well as its reinsurance

exposures to assess the potential need for regulatory attention The model provides four levels of regulatory
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attention varying with the ratio of an insurance companys total adjusted capital to its authorized control level RBC

ACLRBC If companys total adjusted capital is

less than or equal to 200% but greater than 150% of its ACLRBC the Company Action Level the

company must submit comprehensive plan to the regulatory authority proposing corrective actions aimed at

improving its capital position

less than or equal to 150% but greater than 100% of its ACLRBC the Regulatory Action Level
the regulatory authority will perform special examination of the company and issue an order specifying the

corrective actions that must be followed

less than or equal to 100% but greater than 70% of its ACLRBC the Authorized Control Level
the regulatory authority may take any action it deems necessary including placing the company under

regulatory control and

less than or equal to 70% of its ACLRBC the Mandatory Control Level the regulatory authority

must place the company under its control

Based on the standards currently adopted the Company reported in its 2010 statutory filings that the capital

and surplus of the U.S Insurance Companies are above the prescribed Company Action Level RBC requirements

The following is selected information for the Companys U.S Insurance Companies net of intercompany

eliminations where applicable as determined in accordance with SAP

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Dollars in thousands

Statutory capital and surplus as of end of period $467526 $461756 $440157

Statutory net income loss 55526 55811 45363

19 Segment Information

The Company manages its business through two business segments Insurance Operations which includes the

operations of the United National Insurance Companies and the Penn-America Insurance Companies and

Reinsurance Operations which includes the operations of Wind River Reinsurance

The Insurance Operations segment and the Reinsurance Operations segment follow the same accounting

policies used for the Companys consolidated financial statements For further disclosure regarding the Companys

accounting policies please see Note

Gross premiums written by product classification are as follows

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Dollars in thousands

Insurance Operations $245481 $267992 $353130

Reinsurance Operations 100282 73007 25570

Total $345763 $340999 $378700

Of the Companys non-affiliated professional wholesale general agents and program administrators the top

five accounted for 39.3% of our Insurance Operations gross premiums written for the year ended December 31

2010 No one agency accounted for more than 12.1% of our Insurance Operations gross premiums written

141



GLOBAL INDEMNITY PLC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Following is tabulation of business segment information Corporate information is included to reconcile

segment data to the consolidated financial statements

Total revenue

Losses and Expenses

Net losses and loss adjustment expenses

Acquisition costs and other underwriting expenses

Income from segments

Unallocated items

Net investment income

Net realized investment gains

Corporate and other operating expenses

Interest expense

Income before income taxes

Income tax expense 8892

Income before equity in net loss of partnerships

Equity in net loss of partnerships net of tax

Net income

Total assets $1651525 $6431584
_________

Includes business ceded to the Companys Reinsurance Operations

External business only excluding business assumed from affiliates

Includes excise tax of $1021 related to cessions from U.S Insurance Companies to Wind River Reinsurance

Comprised of Wind River Reinsurances total assets less its investment in subsidiaries

Insurance Reinsnrance
2010 Operations1 Operations2 Total

Dollars in thousands

Revenues

Gross premiums written 245481 _______ _________

Net premiums written 196065
________ _________

Net premiums earned 194167

Other income

$100282

$100439

92607

92607

59184

26713

6710

653

194820

71175

145 13

32194

345763

296504

286774

653

287427

130359

118164

38904

56623

26437

21127

7020

93817

84925

22

84903

$2294683
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Insurance Reinsurance
2009 Operations1 Operations2 Total

Dollars in thousands

Revenues

Gross premiums written 267992 73007 340999

Net premiums written 218264 72731 290995

Net premiums earned 250409 51265 301674

Losses and Expenses

Net losses and loss adjustment expenses 146197 23185 169382

Acquisition costs and other underwriting expenses 1062973 13632 119929

Income loss from segments 2085 14448 12363

Unallocated items

Net investment income 70214

Net realized investment gains 15862

Corporate and other operating expenses 16752

Interest expense 7216

Income before income taxes 74471

Income tax expense 4310

Income before equity in net income of partnerships 70161

Equity in net income of partnerships net of tax 5276

Net income 75437

Total assets $1805273 $6405074 $2445780

Includes business ceded to the Companys Reinsurance Operations

Extemal business only excluding business assumed from affiliates

Includes excise tax of $1342 related to cessions from U.S Insurance Companies to Wind River Reinsurance

Comprised of Wind River Reinsurances total assets less its investment in subsidiaries
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Insurance Reinsurance

2008 Operations1 Operations2 Total

Dollars in thousands

Revenues

Gross premiums written 353130 25570 378700

Net premiums written 305479 3601 309080

Net premiums earned 374174 8334 382508

Losses and Expenses

Net losses and loss adjustment expenses 293820 11354 305174

Acquisition costs and other underwriting expenses 1372943 S473 142767

Loss from segments 56940 8493 65433

Unallocated items

Net investment income 67830

Net realized investment losses 50259

Corporate and other operating expenses 13918

Interest expense 8657

Impairments of goodwill intangible assets 96449

Loss before income taxes 166886

Income tax benefit 29216

Loss before equity in net loss of partnerships 137670

Equity in net loss of partnerships net of tax 3890

Net loss 141560

Total assets $1870030 $6070294 $2477059

Includes business ceded to the Companys Reinsurance Operations

Extemal business only excluding business assumed from affiliates

Includes excise tax of $1871 related to cessions from U.S Insurance Companies to Wind River Reinsurance

Comprised of Wind River Reinsurances total assets less its investment in subsidiaries

20 Supplemental Cash Flow Inforjnation

Taxes and Interest Paid

The Company paid the following net federal income taxes and cash interest for 2010 2009 and 2008

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

ifiollars in thousands

Net federal income taxes paid $1829 $18019 $5763

Interest paid 6962 7292 9015
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21 New Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2010 the FASB issued authoritative guidance that requires new disclosures related to fair value

measurements and clarifies existing disclosure requirements about the level of disaggregation inputs and valuation

techniques Specifically reporting entities now must disclose separately the amounts of significant transfers in and

out of Level and Level fair value measurements and describe the reasons for the transfers In addition in the

reconciliation for Level fair value measurements reporting entity should separately present information about

purchases sales issuances and settlements The guidance clarifies that reporting entity needs to use judgment in

determining the appropriate classes of assets and liabilities for disclosure of fair value measurement considering

the level of disaggregated information required by other applicable GAAP guidance and should also provide

disclosures about the valuation techniques and inputs used to measure fair value for each class of assets and

liabilities This guidance was effective on January 2010 except for the disclosures about purchases sales

issuances and settlements in the reconciliation for Level fair value measurements which will be effective on

January 2011 The Company adopted this new guidance in the first quarter of 2010 and it did not have material

impact on the Companys consolidated financial position or results of operations

In February 2010 the FASB issued new accounting guidance surrounding disclosures of subsequent events

This guidance clarified that an SEC filer is required to evaluate subsequent events through1he date that the financial

statements are issued Previously SEC filers were required to evaluate subsequent events through the date that the

financial statements were available to be issued and disclose the date through which subsequent events have been

evaluated The previous requirement was in conflict with SEC requirements surrounding subsequent events The

new guidance is meant to bring about consistency in regulatory framework between the FASB and the SEC

surrounding evaluation of subsequent events The Company adopted this new guidance in the first quarter of 2010

and it had no impact on the Companys consolidated financial position or results of operations

In October 2010 the FASB issued new accounting guidance that modified the definition of costs that can be

capitalized in the acquisition of new and renewal business for insurance companies The guidance defines criteria

for the capitalization of acquisition costs in more specific manner than defined in previous guidance This

guidance is effective for calendar years beginning after December 15 2011 The Company is still in the process of

evaluating the impact that this guidance will have on our consolidated financial position and results of operations

In December 2010 the FASB issued new accounting guidance surrounding goodwill impairment testing for

reporting units with zero or negative carrying values Under previous guidance these reporting units would have

been exempt from goodwill impairment testing even though qualitative indicators of goodwill impairment may
have existed This guidance modifies the requirements for these reporting units to evaluate whether it is more likely

than not goodwill impairment exists using qualitative factors This guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning

after December 15 2010 This guidance is not expected to have material impact on our consolidated financial

position or results of operations

22 Subsequent Events

On December 2008 federal jury in the U.S District Court for the Eastem District of Pennsylvania

Philadelphia retumed $24.0 million verdict in favor of United National Insurance Company United National

an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company against AON Corp an insurance and reinsurance broker On

July 24 2009 federal judge from the U.S District Court for the Eastem District of Pennsylvania Philadelphia

upheld that jury verdict In doing so the U.S Disthct Judge increased the verdict to $32.2 million by adding more

than $8.2 million in prejudgment interest AON filed its Notice of Appeal and Bond in the amount of $33.0 million

Oral arguments were heard by the Appellate Court on October 26 2010 In January 2011 we settled with AON for

$16.3 million We realized approximately $7.5 million net of income taxes and attomeys fees

On February 22 2011 an earthquake struck Christchurch New Zealand Given the magnitude and recent

occurrence of this event there is lack of data available from industry participants resulting in significant
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uncertainty with respect to potential insured losses and as result the Companys potential losses from this event

While we are still evaluating the potential loss our current estimate is approximately $5.1 million Actual losses

from this event may vary materially from our current estimates due to the inherent uncertainties resulting from

several factors including the preliminary nature of the loss data available and potential inaccuracies and

inadequacies in the data provided

On March 11 2011 an earthquake and resultant tsunami struck off the northeast coast of Japan Given the

magnitude and recent occurrence of this event there is lack of data available from industry participants resulting in

significant uncertainty with respect to potential insured losses and as result the Companys potential losses from

this event We are evaluating our exposure to loss from this event and have not determined an initial estimate

23 Summary of Quarterly Financial Information Unaudited

An unaudited summary of the Companys 2010 and 2009 quarterly performance is as follows

Year Ended December 31 2010

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

Dollars in thonsands except per share data

Net premiums earned $70788 $74702 $70089 $71195

Net investment income 14579 13941 14089 14014

Net realized investment gains 14204 5597 1818 4818

Net losses and loss adjustment expenses 41789 32675 29789 26106

Acquisition costs and other underwriting expenses 30148 29008 28541 30467

Income before income taxes 20999 26003 20908 25907

Net income 18901 24512 19762 21728

Per share data Diluted

Net income 0.622 0.81 0.65 0.72

Year Ended December 31 2009

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

Dollars in thousands except per share data

Net premiums earned $78540 $74732 $72893 $75509

Net investment income 22177 16605 15267 16165

Net realized investment gains losses 8596 5398 6613 12447

Net losses and loss adjustment expenses 47740 44047 38887 38708

Acquisition costs and other underwrihng expenses 30814 29972 27564 31579

Income before income taxes 7738 17221 21870 27642

Net income 7150 16261 27352 24674

Per share data Diluted

Net income 0.4612 0.642 0.902 0.822

In computing the basic and diluted weighted share counts the number of shares outstanding prior to May 2009

the date that the ordinary stock was issued in conjunction with the Stockholders Rights Offering was adjusted

by factor of 1.114 to reflect the impact of bonus element associated with the Stockholders Rights Offering

in accordance with GAAP

Per share amounts have been restated to reflect the 1-for-2 stock exchange effective July 2010 when the

Company completed its re-domestication to beland
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Item Changes In And Disagreements With Accountants On Accounting And Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A Con trols and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures as that term is defined in Rules 13a-15e and

l5d-15e under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended the Exchange Act that are designed to

ensure that information required to be disclosed in the Companys reports under the Exchange Act is recorded

processed sunm-iarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commis

sions rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated to the Companys manage

ment including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer as appropriate to allow timely decisions

regarding required disclosures Any controls and procedures no matter how well designed and operated can

provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives The Companys management with

the participation of the Companys Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer has evaluated the

effectiveness of the design and operation of the Companys disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31
2010 Based upon that evaluation and subject to the foregoing the Companys Chief Executive Officer and Chief

Financial Officer concluded that as of December 31 2010 the design and operation of the Companys disclosure

controls and procedures were effective to accomplish their objectives at the reasonable assurance level

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over

financial reporting The Companys internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable

assurances regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the consolidated financial

statements of the Company in accordance with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

The Companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions

and dispositions of the assets of the Company

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial

statements in accordance with U.S generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and

expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorizations of the Companys management and

directors and

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or

disposition of assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations intemal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that

controls may become inadequate becaue of changes in conditions or that the degree or compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate

Management has assessed the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2010

The standard measures adopted by management in making its evaluation are the measures in the Internal-Control

Integrated Framework published by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

Based upon its assessment management has concluded that the Companys internal control over financial

reporting was effective at December 31 2010 and that there were no material weaknesses in the Companys
internal control over financial reporting as of that date

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP an independent registered public accounting firm which has audited and

reported on the consolidated financial statements contained in this Form 10-K has issued its report on the

effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting
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Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have added deleted or modified certain of our intemal controls over financial reporting during 2010

However there have been no changes in our internal controls over financial reporting that occurred during the

quarter ended December 31 2010 that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our

internal controls over financial reporting

Item 9B Other Information

Retention Agreements

On March 15 2011 retention agreements were entered into between Thomas McGeehan Matthew

Scott David Myers and Troy Santora and each of their respective employers The retention agreements

provide for the payment of bonus equal to 1.5 times each executives base salary 0.5 times in the case of

Mt Santora to be paid 12 months following the occurrence of Qualifying Transaction assuming that the

executive remains continuously employed by his employer through such period

If the executives employment with his employer terminates before the end of such 12-month period for any

reason including without limitation the death or disability of the executive other than solely resulting from the

executives resignation with good reason or ii the termination of the executives employment without cause

as such terms are defined in the agreements the executive will not earn and will not be entitled to receive his bonus

or any portion thereof and the employer will have no further obligations under the retention agreement

If the executive voluntarily terminates employment with good reason or his employment is terminated without

cause during such 12-month period he will receive the bonus reduced except in the case of Mr Santora by any

cash severance payments made under the executives employment agreement with respect to each executive who is

party to an employment agreement with his employer at the end of such 12-month period Following payment of

his retention bonus each executive with the exception of Mr Santora will no longer be eligible for cash severance

payments under his employment agreement upon any subsequent termination of employment The variations in

Mr Santoras retention agreement are intended to comply with applicable requirements under Bermuda law

Qualifying Transaction is defined in the retention agreements to mean merger consolidation or other

business combination pursuant to which the business assets or divisions of the executives employer or any parent

of the employer is combined with an unaffiliated third party ii the sale or other disposition of 50% or more of the

stock of the employer or any parent of the employer or iiicertain transfers of all or substantially all of the assets of

the employer or any parent of the employer provided however that the Compensation Committee has sole

discretion with respect to the determination as to whether Qualifying Transaction has occurred if no Qualifying

Transaction is consummated within two years of the effective date of the retention agreements or entered into

during that two-year period and then later consummated the agreements will terminate In addition any or all of

the retention agreements may be terminated prior to the occurrence of Qualifying Transaction by the Compen
sation Committee upon the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer of Global Indenmity

Restricted Share Agreement

On March 15 2011 Global Inmnity entered into restricted share agreement with Larry Frakes our

Chief Executive Officer that provides for the grant of 31250 restricted shares of Global Indemnity which shares

will vest 12 months following the occurrence of Qualifying Transaction assuming that that Mr Frakes remains

continuously employed by his employer through such period

If

Mt Frakes employment with his employer terminates before the end of such 12-month period for any

reason including without limitation his death or disability other than solely resulting from his resignation with

good reason or ii the termination of his employment without cause as such terms are defined in the

agreement the restricted shares will be forfeited and Global Indemnity will have no further obligations under the

agreement If Mt Frakes voluntarily terminates employment with good reason or his employment is terminated

without cause during such 12-month period the restricted shares will immediately vest Qualifying Transaction is

defined in the sante manner as in the retention agreements described above If no Qualifying Transaction is

consummated within two years
of the effective date of the agreement or entered into during that two-year period
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and then later consummated the restricted shares will be forfeited to Global Indemnity The restricted share

agreement provides that any provision in an agreement to which Mr Frakes is party that would otherwise cause the

acceleration of vesting of his resthcted shares on change of control will not apply to the restricted shares being

granted pursuant to his agreement

Employment Agreement Amendment

On March 152011 an amendment to the employment agreement with Mr Frakes was entered into effective as

of July 2010 in order to transfer his employment from United America Indemnity to Global Indemnity Cayman
Limited The amendment provides for the coordination of his services to Global Indemnity Cayman Limited and to

Global Indemnity and in that regard provides that his duties to Global Indemnity Cayman Limited will be

modified to the extent necessary for his duties to Global Indemnity to be carried out ii termination of employment

with Global Indemnity Cayman Limited will constitute termination of employment with Global Indemnity and vice

versa iii of Mr Frakes $600000 base salary which is consistent with his current salary $413000 will be paid for

his services to Global Indemnity Cayman Limited and the remainder for his services to Global Indemnity iv upon

termination of employment by Global Indemnity Cayman Limited without cause or by Mr Frakes for good
reason as defined in the agreement as amended he will receive his monthly salary based on $413000 annual

salary for 18 months Global Indenmity Cayman Limited will provide Mr Frakes with bonus opportunity of

$1500000 which is consistent with his current employment agreement vi Mr Frakes will receive payment to

compensate him for any additional taxes imposed on him in excess of the taxes he would have paid had he been subject

to taxation solely in the United States as well as reimbursement for his tax retum preparation expenses vii bonuses

will be provided in manner which preserves their deductibility pursuant to Section 162m of the Code viii amounts

payable on termination of employment will be provided in manner which complies with Section 409A of the Code

thus avoiding the acceleration of taxes and the imposition of additional taxes under that section of the Code and

ix references to affiliates in the current employment agreement e.g as to the entities with respect to which he is

Chief Executive Officer will not include any affiliate not treated as United States person for federal income tax

purposes Other than with respect to the additional payments to make Mr Frakes whole for foreign taxes and tax

preparation expenses as described in clause vi above nothing in the amendment is intended to confer additional

rights or benefits beyond those provided in the employment agreement prior to the amendment

Assignment Assumption and Amendment of the Management Agreement

On September 2003 as part of the acquisition of Wind River Investment Corporation United America

Indemnity entered into management agreement and related indemnification agreement together the Man
agement Agreement with Fox Paine Company LLC and Wind River In the Management Agreement United

America Indemnity agreed to pay to Fox Paine Company LLC an initial management fee of $13.2 million for the

year beginning on September 2003 which was paid on September 2003 and thereafter an annual management

fee of $1.2 million subject to certain adjustments United America Indemnity likewise agreed to pay to Wind River

an annual management fee of $0.3 million subject to certain adjustments In exchange for the management fee Fox

PSe Company LLC and Wind River agreed to assist United America Indemnity and its affiliates by providing

certain financial and strategic consulting advisory and other services Fox Paine Company LLC has also

consulted with United America Indemnity and its affiliates on various matters including tax planning public

relations strategies economic and industry trends and executive compensation

On May 25 2006 United America Indenmity entered into Amendment No to the Management Agreement

with Fox Paine Company LLC and Wind River Amendment No Amendment No terminated the services

provided to United America Indemnity by Wind River as of May 25 2006 In connection with United America

Indemnitys ongoing operations and Fox Paine Company LLCs continued provision of management services

United America Indemnity agreed to pay an annual management fee of $1.5 million to Fox Paine Company LLC
United America Indemnity also agreed to continue to indemnify Fox Paine Company LLC Wind River and the

other indemnified persons and to continue to reimburse Fox Paine Company LLC for expenses incurred in

providing management services

In connection with our re-domestication to Ireland two of our subsidiaries Wind River Reinsurance and

Global Indemnity Group agreed to guarantee United America Indemnitys payment obligations under the Man

agement Agreement and Amendment No
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On March 162011 United America Indemnity and Global Indemnity Cayman entered into an agreement the

Amended Management Agreement with Fox Paine Company LLC pursuant to which United America

Indemnity assigned and Global Indemnity Cayman assumed all of United America Indeninitys rights and

obligations under the Management Agreement and Amendment No Under the Amended Management Agree

ment Global Indemnity Cayman will pay to Fox Paine Company LLC the same $1.5 million annual management

fee provided under Amendment No in exchange for Fox Paine Company LLCs ongoing provision of

management services to Global Indemnity Cayman and its affiliates In addition upon the consummation of

change of control transaction that does not involve Fox Paine Company LLC and its affiliates or the Funds

Global Indemnity Cayman will pay Fox Paine Company LLC $10 million termination fee in exchange for the

immediate termination of Global Indemnity Caymans obligation to pay the annual management fee and Fox

Paine Company LLCs obligation to provide management services The Amended Management Agreement also

confirms the arrangements under which Fox Paine Company LLC will provide advisory services to Global

Indemnity Cayman and its affiliates in the event of possible change of control transaction that does not involve

Fox Paine Company LLC and its affiliates or the Funds In exchange for such advisory services which will

include as appropriate advice and assistance with respect to defining objectives performing valuation analyses and

structuring planning and negotiating any such transaction Global Indemnity Cayman will pay Fox Paine

Company LLC upon the consummation of change of control transaction transaction advisory fee equal to one

percent of the transaction value as determined in accordance with the terms of the Amended Management

Agreement

Under the Amended Management Agreement Fox Paine Company LLC will continue to provide

management services until the Funds no longer hold an indirect equity investment iii United America Indenmity

or Global Indemnity Cayman agrees with Fox Paine Company LLC to terminate the management relationship In

the event transaction is consummated that would otherwise have been change of control transaction but for

any such transaction involving Fox Paine Company LLC and its affiliates or the Funds and thus no termination

fee in respect of the annual management fee obligation or transaction advisory fee being then due and payable

notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Amended Management Agreement the consummation of any

such transaction would not terminate the terms of the Amended Management Agreement including the right of Fox

Paine Company LLC to receive the $1.5 million annual management fee and the $1.5 million annual

management fee would continue until the earlier of such time as Fox Paine Company LLC and its affiliates

and the Funds no longer hold an indirect equity investment in Global Indemnity or any successor thereto and

such time as Fox Paine Company LLC and Global Indemnity Cayman agree to terminate the management

relationship

Global Indemnity Cayman has assumed United America Indemnitys obligations to indemnify Fox Paine

Company LLC Wind River and the other indemnified parties against various liabilities that may arise as result of

the management services and advisory services they have provided or will provide Global Indemnity Cayman will

also continue to reimburse Fox Paine Company LLC for expenses incurred in providing management services

Our subsidiaries United America Indemnity Wind River Reinsurance and Global Indemnity Group have

guaranteed Global Indemnity Caymans payment obligations under the Amended Management Agreement The

guaranties provided by Wind River Reinsurance and Global Indemnity Group in support of United America

Indemnitys payment obligations under the Management Agreement and Amendment No have been terminated
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PART III

Item 10 Directors Execu five Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to and will be contained in our definitive

proxy statement

Item 11 Execu five Compensation

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to and will be contained in our definitive

proxy statement

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder

Matters

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to and will be contained in our definitive

proxy statement

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to and will be contained in our definitive

proxy statement

Item 14 Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to and will be contained in our definitive

proxy statement
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PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits Financial Statement Schedules

The agreements and other documents filed as exhibits to this report are not intended to provide factual

information or other disclosure other than with respect to the terms of the agreements or other documents

themselves and you should not relyon them for that purpose In particular any representations and warranties made

by us in these agreements or other documents were made solely within the specific context of the relevant

agreement or document and may not describe the actual state of affairs as of the date they were made or at any other

time

The following documents are filed as part of this report

The Financial Statements listed in the accompanying index on page 79 are filed as part of this report

The Financial Statement Schedules listed in the accompanying index on page 79 are filed as part of

this report

Exhibit No Description

3.1 Memorandum and Articles of Association of Global Indemnity pic incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 3.1 of our Current Report on Form 8-K12B dated July 2010 File No 001-34809

3.2 Certificate of Incorporation of Global Indemnity pic an Irish public limited company incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 3.2 of our Current Report on Form 8-K12B dated July 2010 File

No 001-34809

4.1 Form of 6.22% Guaranteed Senior Note due 2015 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of

our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 21 2005File No 000-50511

4.2 Assumption Agreement relating to the 6.22% Guaranteed Senior Notes dated June 2010

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of our Current Report on Form 8-K12B dated July

2010 File No 001 -34809

10.1 Global Indemnity plc Share Incentive Plan amended and restated effective July 2010 incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of our Current Report on Form 8-Kl 2B dated July 2010 File

No 001-34809

10.2 Amendment to Global Indemnity plc Share Incentive Plan dated July 22010 incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 10.2 of our Current Report on Form 8-K12B dated July 2010 File

No 001-34809

10.3 Deed Poll of Assumption for United America Indemnity Ltd Share Incentive Plan by Global

Indemnity plc dated July 2010 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 or Current

Report on Form 8-K12B dated July 2010 File No 00 1-34809

10.4 Global Indenmity plc Annual Incentive Award Program amended and restated effective July 2010

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of Current Report on Form 8-K12B dated July 22010

File No 001-34809

10.5 Deed Poll of Assumption for United America Indemnity Ltd Annual Incentive Award Program by

Global Indemnity plc dated July 22010 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of our

Current Report on Form8-K12B dated July 2010 File No 001-34809

10.6 Amended and Restated Shareholders Agreement dated July 22010 by and among Global Indemnity

plc as successor to United America Indenmity Ltd and the signatories thereto incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.6 of our Current Report on Form 8-K12B dated July 2010 File

No 001-34809

10.7 Assignment and Assumption Agreement relating to the Amended and Restated Shareholders

Agreement dated July 2010 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.7 of our Current

Report on Form 8-K12B dated July 2010 File No 001-34809

10.8 Indemnification Agreement between United America Indemnity Ltd and Fox Paine Capital Fund II

Intemational L.P dated July 22010 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.8 of our Current

Report on Form 8-K12b dated July 2010 File No 001-34809
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Exhibit No Description

10.9 Form of Indemnification Agreement between United America Indemnity Ltd and certain directors

and officers of Global Indemnity plc dated July 22010 incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.9 of our Current Report on form 8-K12B dated July 22010 File No 001-34809

10.10 Employment Agreement for Larry Frakes dated May 10 2007 incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on May 102007 File No 000-50511

10.11 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement for Larry Frakes dated February 2008

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on

February 82008 File No 000-50511

10.12 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement for Larry Frakes dated August 14 2009

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on

August 172009 File No 000-50511

10.13 Amendment to the Amended and Restated Employment Agreement for Larry Frakes entered into

on March 15 2011 and effective as of July 2010

10.14 Executive Employment Agreement dated as of April 2006 between Wind River Insurance

Company Bermuda Ltd and David Whiting incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1

of our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 172006 File No 000-505

10.15 Executive Employment Agreement dated August 2007 between Penn-America Insurance

Company and Raymond McDowell incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of our

Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 15 2007 File No 000-5051

10.16 Executive Employment Agreement dated July 282008 between United National Insurance Company
and Scott Reynolds incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to our annual report on

Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31 2008 File No 000-50511

10.17 Amendment No to Executive Employment Agreement dated as of July 30 2008 between

United National Insurance Company and Scott Reynolds incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.23 to our annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year

ended December 312008 File

No 000-50511

10.18 Executive Employment Agreement dated as of June 2009 between Penn-America Insurance

Company and Matthew Scott incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to our annual
report

on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year

ended December 312009 File No 000-50511

10.19 Retention Agreement between Penn-America Insurance Company and Matthew Scott dated

March 15 2011

10.20 Executive Employment Agreement dated as of November 152009 between Wind River Reinsurance

Company Ltd and Troy Santora incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to our annual

report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year

ended December 312009 File No 000-50511

10.21 Retention Agreement between Wind River Reinsurance Company Ltd and Troy Santora dated

March 152011

10.22 Executive Employment Agreement dated as of December 2009 between United America

Indenmity Ltd and Thomas McGeehan incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.27 to

our annual report on Form
19-K

for the fiscal year ended December 312009 File No 000-50511

10.23 Retention Agreement between United America Indemnity Ltd and Thomas McGeehan dated

March 152011

10.24 Retention Agreement between Diamond State Insurance Company and David Myers dated

March 152011

10.25 Subscription and Backstop Agreement dated as of March 162009 between United America

Indemnity Ltd U.N Holdings Cayman II Ltd and Fox Paine Company LLC incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 17 2009 File

No 000-50511

10.26 Letter Agreement dated March 16 2011 assigning the 2003 Management Agreement as amended
and related indemnity agreement by and among United America Indemnity Ltd Global Indemnity

Cayman Ltd and Fox Paine Company LLC
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Exhibit No Description

10.27 Guaranties dated March 15 2011 provided by each of United America Indemnity Ltd Wind River

Reinsurance Company Ltd and Global Indenmity Group Inc in each case in favor of Fox Paine

Company LLC relating to the obligations of Global Indemnity Cayman Ltd under the Letter

Agreement dated March 15 2011

10.28 Management Agreement dated as of September 2003 by and among United National Group Ltd
Fox Paine Company LLC and The AMC Group L.P with related Indemnity Letter incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of Amendment No to our Registration Statement on Form S-i

Registration No 333-108857 filed on October 28 2003File No 000-505 11
10.29 Amendment No to the Management Agreement dated as of May 25 2006 by and among United

America Indemnity Ltd Fox Paine Company LLC and Wind River Holdings L.P formerly The

AMC Group L.P incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of our Current Report on Form 8-K

filed on June 2006 File No 000-50511

21.1 List of Subsidiaries

23.1 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLR

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Filed herewith

Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit to this Form 10-K
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Section 13 or 15 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Global

Indemnity has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

Date March 16 2011

GLOBAL INDEMNITY PLC

By Is LARRY Fitis

Name Larry Frakes

Title Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed by the

following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated below on March 16 2011

Signature Title

Is SAUL Fox

Saul Fox

Is LARRY FRAKES

Larry Frakes

Is THOMAS MCGEEHAN

Thomas McGeehan

Chairman and Director

President Chief Executive Officer and Director

Principal Financial and Accounting Officer

Is JAMES CRYSTAL

James Crystal

Is SETH GERSCH

Seth Gersch

Is JAMES KRONER

James Kroner

Director

Is CHAD LEAT

Chad Leat

Is MICHAEL MARCH10

Michael Marchio

Is MARY HENNESSY

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Mary Hennessy
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GLOBAL INDEMNITY PLC

SCHEDULE SUMMARY OF INVESTMENTS OTHER THAN INVESTMENTS

IN RELATED PARTIES

In thousands

As of December 31
2010

Amount
Included in tbe

Costs Value Balance Sheet

Type of Investment

Fixed maturities

United States Government and government agencies and

authorities 192746 202690 202690

States municipalities and political subdivisions 239872 245012 245012

Mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities 390854 402912 402912

Public utilities 38317 41061 41061

All other corporate bonds 531866 552717 552717

Redeemable preferred stock 930 2252 2252

Total fixed maturities 1394585 1446644 1446644

Equity securities

Common stocks

Public utilities 3302 3570 3570

Banks trusts and insurance companies 26201 31239 31239

Industrial and miscellaneous 91171 110465 110465

Total equity securities 120674 145274 145274

Other long-term investments 5367 5380 5380

Total investments $1520626 $1597298 $1597298

Original cost of equity securities original cost of fixed maturities adjusted for amortization of premiums and

accretion of discounts All amounts are shown net of impairment losses
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GLOBAL INDEMNITY PLC

SCHEDULE II Condensed Financial Information of Registrant

Parent Only
Balance Sheets

Dollars in thousands except share data

As of

December 31
2010

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 51

Accounts receivable 41

Equity in unconsolidated subsidiariesl 928381

Due from affiliates 504

Total assets 928977

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Liabilities

Other liabilities 308

Total liabilities 308

Commitments and contingencies

Shareholders equity

Ordinary shares $0.000l par value 900000000 ordinary shares authorized Class ordinary

shares issued 21340821 Class ordinary shares outstanding 18300544 Class

ordinary shares issued and outstanding 12061370

Ordinary shares par value 40000 ordinary shares authorized issued and outstandingl 55

Preferred shares $0.0001 par value 100000000 shares authorized none issued and

outstanding

Additional paid-in capital 622670

Accumulated other comprehensive income net of tax 57211

Retained earnings 349642

Class ordinary shares in treasury at cost 3040277 shares 100912

Total shareholders equity 928009

Total liabilities and shareholders equity 928977

This item has been eliminated in the Companys Consolidated Financial Statements

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item

S-2



UNITED AMERICA INDEMNITY LTD

SCHEDULE II Condensed Financial Information of Registrant Continued

Parent Only

Balance Sheets

Dollars in thousands except share data

As of

December 31
2009

ASSETS

Fixed maturities

Available for sale at fair value amortized cost $68755 69899

Cash and cash equivalents 32553

Equity in unconsolidated subsidiaries1 804550

Due from affiliates 1152

Other assets 1316

Total assets 909470

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Liabilities

Note payable to affiliate1 54747

Payable for securities purchased 14314

Other liabilities 8433

Total liabilities 77494

Commitments and contingencies

Shareholders equity

Ordinary shares $0.0001 par value 900000000 ordinary shares authorized Class

ordinary shares issued 42486690 Class ordinary shares outstanding 36430477
Class ordinary shares issued and outstanding 24122744

Preferred shares $0.0001 par value 100000000 shares authorized none issued and

outstanding

Additional paid-in capital 619469

Accumulated other comprehensive income net of tax 48481

Retained earnings 264739

Class ordinary shares in treasury at cost 6056213 shares 100720

Total shareholders equity 831976

Total liabilities and shareholdqrs equity 909470

This item has been eliminated in the Companys Consolidated Financial Statements

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item
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GLOBAL INDEMNITY PLC

SCHEDULE II Condensed Financial Information of Registrant Continued

Parent Only

Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income

Dollars in thousands

Year Ended

December 31 2010

Revenues

Total revenues

Expenses

Other expenses 727

Loss before equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries 727

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiariesl 85630

Net income 84903

Other comprehensive income net of tax

Equity in other comprehensive income of unconsolidated subsidiaries1 8730

Other comprehensive income net of tax 8730

Comprehensive income net of tax $93633

This item has been eliminated in the Companys Consolidated Financial Statements

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item

S-4



UNITED AMERICA INDEMNITY LTD

SCHEDULE II Condensed Financial Information of Registrant Continued

Parent Only

Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income

Dollars in thousands

Year Ended

December 31 2009

Revenues

Total revenues 877

Expenses

Other expenses 12167

Loss before equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries 11290

Equity in earnings of partnerships 1732

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries1 84995

Net income 75437

Other comprehensive income net of tax

Unrealized holding gains arising during the period 1145

Equity in other comprehensive income of unconsolidated subsidiaries1 28548

Other comprehensive income net of tax 29693

Comprehensive income net of tax $105130

This item has been eliminated in the Companys Consolidated Financial Statements

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item
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GLOBAL INDEMNITY PLC

SCHEDULE II Condensed Financial Information of Registrant Continned

Parent Only

Statement of Cash Flows

Dollars in thousands

Year Ended

December 31 2010

Net cash used for operating activities 30
Cash flows from investing activities

Investment in subsidiaries1 872715

Net cash used for investing activities 872715

Cash flows from financing activities

Issuance of ordinary shares 973708

Purchases of Class ordinary shares 100912

Net cash provided by financing activities 872796

Net change in cash and equivalents 51

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 51

This item has been eliminated in the Companys Consolidated Financial Statements

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item

S-6



UNITED AMERICA INDEMNITY LTD

SCHEDULE II Condensed Financial Information of Registrant Continued

Parent Only

Statement of Cash Flows

Dollars in thousands

Year Ended

December 31 2009

Net cash used for operating activities 5889

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from sale of fixed maturities 13473

Purchases of fixed maturities 55999

Purchases of other invested assets 10000

Net cash used for investing activities 52.526

Cash flows from financing activities

Issuance of ordinary shares 91833

Excess tax expense from share-based compensation plans 794
Purchase of Class ordinary shares 274

Net cash provided by financing activities 90765

Net change in cash and equivalents 32350

Cash arid cash equivalents at beginning of period 203

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 32553

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item
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GLOBAL INDEMNITY PLC

SCHEDULE III SUPPLEMENTARY INSURANCE INFORMATION

Dollars in thousands

Future

Policy Benefits

Deferred Policy Losses Claims And Unearned Other Policy and

Segment Acquisition Costs Loss Expenses Premiums Benefits Payable

At December 31 2010

Insurance Operations $27108 978746 $104837

Reinsurance Operations 8237 73997 31035

At December 31 2009

Insurance Operations $26345 $1221516 $108352

Reinsurance Operations 6839 36225 23230

At December 31 2008

Insurance Operations $33737 $1481793 $138796

Reinsurance Operations 997 24636 10881

Benefits Claims

Losses

And Amortization of

Premium Settlement Deferred Policy Net Written

Segment Revenue Expenses Acquisition Costs Premium

For the year ended December 31 2010

Insurance Operations $194167 71175 61726 $196065

Reinsurance Operations 92607 59184 23582 100439

Total $286774 $130359 85308 $296504

For the year ended December 31 2009

Insurance Operations $250409 $146197 73437 $218264

Reinsurance Operations 51265 23185 10659 72731

Total $301674 $169382 84096 $290995

For the year ended December 31 2008

Insurance Operations $374174 $293820 $105492 $305479

Reinsurance Operations 8.334 11.354 3.390 3.601

Total $382508 $305174 $108882 $309080

Corporate
Net and Other

Investment Operating
Unallocated Corporate Items Income Expenses

For the year ended December 31 2010 $56623 $21127

For the year ended December 31 2009 70214 16752

For the year ended December 31 2008 67830 13918
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GLOBAL INDEMNITY PLC

SCHEDULE IV REINSURANCE

EARNED PREMIUMS
Dollars in thousands

Percentage

Gross Ceded to Other Assumed from of Amount

Amount1 Companies Other Companies Net Amount Assumed to Net

For the year ended

December 31 2010

Property Liability Insurance $248995 $54699 $92478 $286774 32.2%

For the year ended

December 31 2009

Property Liability Insurance. $298427 $57420 $60667 $301674 20.1%

For the year ended

December 31 2008

Property Liability Insurance $429164 $74877 $28221 $382508 7.4%

Includes direct premiums written
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Description

For the year ended

December 31 2010

Investment asset valuation

reserves

Mortgage loans

Real estate

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Premiums accounts and notes

receivable

Deferred tax asset valuation

allowance

Reinsurance receivables

For the year ended

December 31 2009

Investment asset valuation

reserves

Mortgage loans

Real estate

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Premiums accounts and notes

receivable

Deferred tax asset valuation

allowance

Reinsurance receivables

For the year ended

December 31 2008

Investment asset valuation

reserves

Mortgage loans

Real estate

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Premiums accounts and notes

receivable

Deferred tax asset valuation

allowance

Reinsurance receivables

GLOBAL IIQDEMNITY PLC

SCHEDULE VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES

Dollars in thousands

Balance at Charged

Beginning of Credited to Costs Charged Credited Other

Period and Expenses to Other Accounts Deductions

Balance at End
of Period

2221 984 1237

12947 204 12743

$-

2655 434 2221

13661 714 12947

$-

$1255 26553910

10542 3119 13661
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GLOBAL INIWMNITY PLC

SCHEDULE VI SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION FOR PROPERTY CASUALTY

UNDERWRITERS
Dollars in thousands

Reserves for

Deferred Unpaid Claims

Policy and Claim

Acquisition Adjustment Discount If Unearned
Costs Expenses Any Deducted Premiums

Consolidated Property Casually Entities

As of December 31 2010 $35344 $1052743 $12000 $135872

As of December 31 2009 33184 1257741 17500 131582

As of December 31 2008 34734 1506429 17500 149677

Claims and Claim
Paid Claims

Net Adjustment Expense Amortization of and Claim

Earned Investment
Incurred Related To

Deferred Policy Adjustment Premiums
Premiums Income Current Year Prior Year Acquisition Costs Expenses Written

Consolidated Property

Casualty Entities

For the year ended

December 31 2010 $286774 $56623 $184460 $54l0l 85309 $235587 $296504

For the year ended

December 31 2009 301674 70214 178492 9110 84096 279923 290995

For the year ended

December 31 2008 382508 67830 270242 34932 108882 270220 309080

Note All of the Companys insurance subsidiaries are 100% owned and consolidated
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